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Summary of Financial Information

Financial Statement of The Company only

Description UnIt 2008 2007 2006

Total Assets Million Baht 40121 39159 37953

Capital
Million Baht 4194 4.194 4.194

Shareholders Fund Million Baht 11567 14950 13746

Sales Million Baht 25334 30341 26840

Net Profit after Tax Million Baht 2450 1260 .956

EPS Baht 0.58 0.30 0.47

Book Value Baht 2.76 3.56 3.48

Par Value Baht

DPS Baht 0.00 0.07 0.00

DPSxIOO 23

EPS

Consolidated Financial Statements

as of 31st December Unit 2008 2007 2006

Total Assets Million Baht 57230 52985 50.653

Total Liabilities Million Baht 44535 36.167 35671

Total Shareholders Equity Million Baht 12695 16817 14.982

Revenues from construction services Million Baht 42855 45623 39817

Total Revenues Million Baht 43699 46512 40.459

Profit before taxes and other expenses Million Baht 655 3241 2.047

Net Proflt Million Baht 2656 1011 2146

Financial Ratios and Results of Operation of the Company and its Subsidiaries for years

2008 2007 2006

Consolidated The Company Consolidated The Company Consolidated The Company

Current Ratio

Current Ratio 1.12 1.17 1.19 1.14 1.11 1.05

Quick Ratio 0.47 0.51 0.42 0.42 0.45 0.42

A/RTurnover 4.39 3.70 5.00 4.71 4.05 4.13

Collection Period 81.99 97.24 72.04 76.39 88.96 87.24

InventoryTurnover 11.12 16.81 14.20 19.18 16.48 22.89

Return on Sales 32.36 21.42 25.35 18.77 21.85 15.73

A/PTurnover 4.78 4.21 5.09 5.24 4.56 4.87

Payment Period 75.38 85.49 70.66 68.75 79.03 73.98

CashCycle 38.97 33.17 26.73 26.41 31.78 28.99

Profitability Ratio

Gross Profit 1.53 2.41 6.98 7.05 5.14 3.94

Net Profit 6.08 9.67 2.17 4.15 5.30 8.08

Return on Equity 18.00 18.48 6.35 8.78 13.35 13.64

Efficiency Ratio

Return on Assets 4.82 6.18 1.95 3.27 4.61 5.81

Return on Fixed Assets 3.21 10.92 20.07 24.17 3.21 10.03

Assets Turnover 0.79 0.64 0.90 0.79 0.87 0.72

Financial Ratio Analysis

Debt to Equity 3.51 2.47 2.15 1.62 2.38 1.74

Interest Coverage 2.31 1.54 3.32 2.81 6.60 6.91

Dividend Payout Ratio 0.00 0.00 29.05 23.30 0.00 0.00

Cash Coserage 0.09 0.15 1.56 0.31 1.70 1.31

Debt to Equity Under Terms and Conditions 1.46 1.17 0.74 0.71 0.69 0.58

of Bond Issuer and Bond Holders

Data per Share and Growth Ratio of usiness

Growth Ratio

Total Assets 8.01 2.29 4.60 3.18 19.43 18.36

Total Liabilities 23.13 17.64 1.39 0.01 41.33 49.84

Revenues from Construction Services 6.07 15.93 14.58 12.37 4.82 6.14

Cost of Services 0.43 11.78 2.36 8.73 6.22 9.25

Net Earning 362.87 294.43 147.09 164.41 270.01 270.01

Data per Share

Book Value 3.03 2.76 4.01 3.56 3.48 3.48

EPS 0.63 0.58 0.24 0.30 0.51 0.51

Dividend per Share 0.00 0.00 0.07 0.07 0.00 0.00

Note Restated

Net income loss attributable to equirs holders of the Company Annual Report 2008



Board of Directors Report

Yea kiidiii leccnibcr 2008

Iii 211 Ii id
ii

id laced pol ica LI
nccrta jut which threate ned the in vestment market and had negat ye Impact on the construction

iidiistr nnp nYs financial situation WLL5 also impacted by the world economic recession the oil price increases and the price fluctuations

of materials lie iIipan niiist control its expenses and merease its ellecti veness in order to save costs and to manitain its operations

Ilic ii xiii has continued its pronression as one of the preemi lent civil and infrastructure development contractors in the Thai

iiiaikei uc ii .hecreasine of investment activities in Thailand the Company has expanded its overseas business instead especially in

liidi lore the pans is undertaking the cii nstri let ion the Kol Dam Project the National I-I ighsvay Route H3 IC West Bengal the Delhi

lroje oirict No F3C-2 and No BC24 and has won the Kolkata Airport Passenger Terminal Building which is valued at 16000

NI ill Rupee. tie Til lahiPalta water pipel inc installation in Kol kata worth .873 Mill ion Rupees Other potential upcoming projects are

the Ii derihi.i Mcii mu anLi the rim road ni Kol kata ITO Cementation India Ltd which is subsidiary of the Company and is registered Ofl

tie SR ok seliiuiri 11 ui in Ill rds the Company strategic business base in India to develop its competitiveness

or die Los note projects in Thailand the Conipany is undertaking the Mae Moh ne Phase worth 89 Mill ion Baht the Center of

Ls.ccllence Hoildoir halalongkorn Hospital svorth 6.148 Million Baht and the Third ThanLao Friendship Bridge worth 761 Million Baht

The thai Goseriinieiii tins strong intention to proceed with the delayed Mcga Projects in order to stimulate the economy The Company firmly

belies cs their expenencc capabilities and competitiveness will prove well within its capabilities to undertake these prestigious projects

lhe nnj.Ii\ lois divcrsilicd its business into the energy sector by investing in Koh Kong Power Light which osvns the 3600 Megawatt

posser plait pi oe in Cambodia and svill supply electricity to Thailand The Company invested in Sin Rae Muang Thai Co. Ltd SRMT
in or icr to di vcr ii ins estment into mining business SRMT invested in Asia Pacific Potash Corporation Ltd APPC company which is

dcsclopnig potash nine in Thani APPC has been providing inlormation Oil the project to the local communities government agencies

aid bus wesse iii rLICr to promote knowledge and understanding about the project Regular community relation and public participative

programs were IirgLinicd in coordination with villagers in the mining concession area At present The project is working towards mining

license In Laos PIR the Company invested in the Sino Laos Aluminum Corporation which is engaged in the bauxite mining business and

iii the .iio Metal lust rv Co. Ltd svhich ill the iron mining business The Company also expected to he ass arded mining prolect and an

oil rastructLne des elnpnient proleet in Madagascar

II1L iCr us II tile Company recogr isc and appreciate the expertise loyalty and ded cation ot tl staff and employees svho continue

to CI iItri bute 4ieat is the success oF the Corii pans The Directors are convinced that these same attributes will ensure the ongoing grosvth and

prl
iiihi its II lie Iiiid II the benefit of the Company employees staff and the shareholders

Italian-thai Ievcloplndnt Public Compans Limited



Organization Chart
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Nature of Business

History Changes and Important Developments in the Previous Year

The Company sas founded on the 15 August 1958 having registered capital of Baht 2000000 under the name ITALIAN-THAI

DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION COMPANY LIMITED ITD The founders Dr Chaijudh Karnasuta Thai and Mr Giorgio Berlingieri

an Italian had the objective to establish Thai construction company

The Royal Seal of The Garuda svas awarded to the Company by His Majesty the King on 23 December 985 The Royal Seal of the

3aruda is the highest and most honourable achievement under the Royal Patronage of His Majesty the King The Company registered as

Public Company on 24 March 1994 and was listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand on 95 August 1994

The Company has achieved an excellent performance with high quality work for private clients and government authorities. The

Companys high standard of construction quality has been recognized by the Company being awarded ISO-9000 ISO-900l and ISO-9002

certification for the following

Italian Thai Industrial Complex at the Wiharn Daeng District Saraburi Province

Steel Fabrication Facilities at Samut Prakarn Province

Steel Fabrication Facilities at the Wiharn Daeng District Saraburi Province

Bangkok Mass Transit System Project of Mass Rapid Transit Authority of Thailand

Laem hahang Port Phase Section Proiect

SRT irack Doubling Project Baun Phachi Junction to Map Kabao and Baan Phachi Junction to Lopburi Station Project

Over Burden Removal and Coal Extraction at Mae Moh Mine Phase Lampang Province of Electricity Generating Authority of

Thailand

During the period of 45 September 2001 to December 2002.the Companys operations were conducted under Business Reorganization

Plan and the Central Bankruptcy Court ordered the termination of the Business Rehabilitation Process of the Company on 16 December

2002

April 2004 The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders No.1/2004 resolved to increase the registered capital from Baht

3738678180 to Baht 4593678180 and to approve thechange of the parvalueof theordinary shares from Baht

per share to Baht per Share

8th April 2004 The Company changed the par value of the ordinary shares from Baht lOper share to Baht per share

April 2004 The Company increased the registered capital from Baht 3738678180 to Baht 4593678180

17t5.19h January 2005 The Company offered domestically and internationally 455000000 newly issued ordinary shares to the public

24 January 2005 The Company registered the change of the paid-up capital from Baht 3738678180 to Baht 4138678180 after

offering 400J00000 newly issued ordinary shares at the par value of Baht 9.80

10 February 2005 The Company registered the change of the paid-up capital from Baht 4138678180 to Baht 4193678180

after allocating the over-allotment of shares numbering 55.000000 shares to the person being allotted shares at

the discretion of the Lead Underwriter

14 January 2008 The Extraordinaiy General Meeting of Shareholders No 1/2008 resolved as follows

To approved the issuance and offer 728000000 shares of convertible debentures of the Company

To approved an increase of the Companys registered capital of the Company by Baht 728000000 from

the existng registered capital
of Baht 4193678.180 to Baht 4921 .678180 due to the convertible debentures

issuing

To approve the allocation of 728000000 newly issued ordinary shares at the par value of Baht per

share

22 January 200K The Company registered the change of the paid-up capital from the existing registered capital
of Baht 4.193678180

to Baht 4921.678180

tel ianthai se 1op rile at Public Company Li ted



During the year 2008 there were significant changes to the Company as follows

The Company paid 27.06 million Baht for an increase in share capital of Sin Rae Muang Thai Co Ltd

The Company paid 75.00 million Baht for an increase in share capital of Italian-Thai Power Co Ltd

The Company bought back liabilities and shares of Palang Thai Kaowna Co Ltd from the previous shareholder As result the

Companys holding in this company was increased to 99.94

The Company invested in two new subsidiary companies Asia Logistics Development Co Ltd and Asia Industrial and

Port Corporation Co Ltd to be engaged in logistics
and port business with registered share capital at Baht million and million

Baht respectively

The Company jointly invested 50% interest in lTD-EQ Joint Venture ajoint venture between the Company and Sahakol Equipment

Co Ltd which is engaged in Over Burden Removal and Coal Extraction at Mae Moh Mine Phase Lampang Province

Shimizu-ITD Joint Venture and Shimizu-ITD Joint Venture ceased operations

subsidiary company has invested 30% of share capital amounting to 0.30 million Baht in Thai Contractors Asset Co Ltd

The Company paid 18.75 million Baht for an increase in share capital of Thai Contractors Asset Co Ltd

The Company paid 106.50 million Baht for an increase in share capital of Sino Lao Aluminum Corporation Limited

Business of Company Italian-Thai Development Public Company Limited Only

At present the business operations of lTD are involved in major categories

Buildings

Industrial Plants

Pipelines and Utility Works

Highways Railways Bridges and Expressways

Airports Ports and Marine Works

Dams Tunnels and Power Plants

Mining

Steel Structures

Telecommunications

Subsidiary Companies Joint Venture and Associated Companies

Line of business Subsidiary Companies Joint Venture and Associated Compnaies of Italian-thai Development Public Company Limited

as December 31 2008 as follow

Lines of Construction and Public Utilities Work including Supported Lines of Construction

Investment in Other Lines Real Estate Development and Consumer Products

Annual Report 2008



Review of Construction Operations for 2008

Over% ie

iiCciiiIiiks cspcciilI\ political fiktirs construction material price fluctuations and the world economic recession continued to

ha
.1 iicOai iii j.Ict the construction industry in 2008 In addition the reduced availability of government projects resulted in highly

conipetit is inirkci losses er the strong interitioii of the Govcrnment to proceed with the Mega Projects is good sign for the future of the

eon 5111k on ildi si The Company ii rio ly ie es that the experience capabilities and competitiveness svi II enable them to take
part

in

these
presi igiolls

psi peels

the 05 air se br was also uncertain of the economic situation Although there has been sonic construction of factory developments
sill

ip ic in II Ill ss sic lit buildings general the pn vate sector ins estment in construction propects contracted over the year

Ii tel Ins 11 Is crseas markets the Co
upany has maintained its business presence in the Asian region and the Middle East The mass

transit uid iii mmslm tare projects iii these iegionai areas continue to he highly profitable Furthermore the Company intends to expand into

such ciicres sCI il proccts ls Coal muinimig in Indonesia and Laos and Aluminum mining in aos

Airports

ic Is miibliliiiii

port spaimsiomi phase has been delayed due to the political amid economic uncertainity However the Company

lid mis liii ciii sail tiers 111k cmi La Corpocat on and Ohay ash Corporation are conhdent to he awarded the future expansion phase of this

\irpoi

lii 10111.1 fIle S.\ P.1 Aim
pot-i in \linicdahad svhich is valued at .220 Million Rupees is currently being progressed by the Consortium

01 1111 iim iii es Ill pn emit and P1111 ihha Co. Ltd for the Airport Authority of India AAI and was initially expected to he completed in

-eht-imai 2111 Il cm .1 lie\ res sed the ccii siruet ion plan in order to commence the extension phase Therefore the deadl iiie of completion

ill be
is 1st p.mm ii 1111 ic than ear Th Ci

rnpiiiiy
aid IT Cementation listed company on the stock exchange of ndi is undertaking

KoikItm \mm ri curer lernunal Huikhng lshich is slilued at 1600 Million Rupees and is expected to he completed in 2013

Il .111s Ii 11111
p5in\

is ndertu king PaL sc Airport ss eli is valued at 234 Mill ion Bnht and is about 23% complete

Buildings

OllillIlIw Is imms Ii Iscic comllpleted iii 288 include the New Arnari Orchid Pattaya worth 1.151 Million Baht the Saniui Village

almmcsl
tm 851 \II mm I1tlii the Riscrsidc G.trslcii Marina ssorth 72 Mullion Baht the Phulae Beach Resort svorth 420 Million Baht and

11111 is .111 lrt Iii irii 11 leet SI orth Million Baht The Company is Ill so scheduled to complete the Palm Laguna Resort and

oiilI1II1IIIIIII III III lmibllu muted Arab 1-nitrates si hich is valued at 846 Million Baht

ngsupics is ude lie Bai igkok has ciii nicul Ci pies Chaeng\vattana worth Ii .590 Million Baht the iriraj Hospital Towards

Mcdi Ill see II
ms ii 51111 lien st sia\\ ort .797 Million If alit the Cciii u-al Fest is Ill Paitayn Beach svorth .760 Million Baht the Banyan

icc Rssomi liii Sf1 sIIiliil ssoiih 1118 Million Haul the Iris ondonuniuni Phra Rant Sri Nakarin Road ssorth 700 Million Baht the

Reticti aid R1 silhIls 5ttiiui orthi 615 Million Haht the Mahidol Dentistry Building lbr $fiu Anniversary of Sorndetphrapuikhlao Hospital

ssiirtli 411 MillIIII lii the Mllhidol lciitistr Buililing Phase for 5fi5 Anniversary of Princess Sirindhorn ssorth Baht 525 Million Bahit

and lie elite cli emwe fill sing hill along Lorn Hospital \sor Ii 48 Mill ion Baht svh ich is expected to he completed in 20

Ixpresswas I-lighas Railwas and Bridges

1mm CIII II 1111 ss Is uie tm sic he Ri 111155 itrk Erlipect Ihuttanionthion front Petehkasem to the Southern Local Road svorth .034 Mill ion

111111 lie 110 sill Is cm It Bridges os the 111111 Ph ray Riser at Bang husvat svorth 98 Mill ion Baht the Roadsvork Project Khoohon phase

amid Imtilll\ 0111k liii fob 1111011 Bahit the Rolldsslirk Pro lct and
utility

svorks for Banghoii svorth 322 Million Baht the Roadsvork and

tili 15111 Is .111 111111 551 liii 26$ Mdi 00 111111 the 0115155 strk Project front long Yeepun to Eastern Ring Roach at Ratpatan worth 97

VI 11111111 011111 ms do urk PrIm cci for the Ifamigkok jos enunent Cemmter svorth Mill ion Bllht and the Third Thai Lao FriendshiP Bridge

ooiili I.7sI VImIlm1u 11110 hieli e\pecteI is cifimmrnence sarhy ui 2009

slitS mm em sels lim Im ss I\ 55 tim-k in 2118 lie company completed the Salakiesv Dongjong Road in Laos PDR ss orth 11 Mill ion

Li Il ummg in Is Ci st .15 rI mpeci iC mtde lie at Ona 11mg hsvay Route I-I West Bengal Project in India svorth 2446 Million Rupees and

ilic Ss sI lllis komsl Sectmomi lropect mum the
Phmlmppmmies worth 1312 Million Peso

tal man-thai Des lopment Public Company Li iii led



Industrial Plants

Industrial Plant prolects which were completed in 2UU include the ATC Complex worth 1.008 Million Baht the PTT Phenol Project

worth 403 Million Baht the NTS PBK Yard Development Project worth 350 Million Baht the civil works for Bangchak Petroleum PCLs Plant

No.4 worth 239 Million Baht Ongoing projects include the North Bangkok Combined Cycle Power Plant worth 12400 Million Baht which

is being performed by the Company and its partners Hitachi Co. Ltd and Sumitomo Corporation for EGAT lTDs share is 4037 Million

Baht the Combined Cycle Posver Plant for the Bangkok Government Center worth 692 Million Baht the civil work and building construction

for PTT PP Ethane Cracker worth 548 Million Baht the Rayong Refinery Companys Upgrading Project worth 310 Million Baht and the civil

work for Ethane Cracker worth 219 Million Baht The Company has also just signed the contract to construct the 66 Megawatt Gecco-One

Power Plant worth 830 Million Baht

Mining

The Company has been developing the Mawtaung Coal Mining project in Myanmar since 1998 which has total value of 1.623 Million

Baht This project is IOOU complete and the Company is investigating the presence of additional reserves in the suiTounding area with the

intention of obtaining further concession The Company has commenced Coal Mining development project in Indonesia worth 10.670 Million

Baht which includes construction of roads and sea port This project is 3U completed and is scheduled to be completed in 2018 Operational

work at the Mae Mob Mine Phase which is valued at II .543 Million Baht is 95T completed The Conipany and Sahakol Equipment named

lTD-SQ joint Venture has been awarded the 75 phase operational contract worth 21 .891 Million Baht which is scheduled to he completed in

2018 The Company has also been awarded contract to source and deliver liniestone to assist EGAT in the reduction of sulfur dioxide emissions

This project is worth 817 Million Baht and is 31 complete The Company is also contracted to source and deliver limestone to their subsidiary

company Thai Pride Cement in Saraburi Province and this contract which is valued at 691 Million Baht is 35c/ complete

Pipeline and Utility Works

Completed pipeline and
utility

works for 2008 include the following projects the HDPE pipeline installation in Laos worth 213 Million

Baht the conduit and manholes at Vibhavadi-Prompong worth 72 Million Baht the pipeline installation for PTT Phenol worth 67 Million

Baht the conduit and manholes at Bangna-Trad worth 20 Million Bahi The construction of the BMA Flood Protection Tunnel Project vvorth

2337 Million Baht which is being progressecl by the IN joint Venture the Company and Nishimatsu Construction Co Ltd. is currently 92C/

complete and is expected to be tinaliied in 2009 Other projects under construction include the Suvarnabhumi Airport Drainage Project Phase

worth 2.764 Million Baht 56U complete.the pipeline construction for the Bangkok Government Complex and Energy Complex Station worth

1.198 Million Baht 36U complete the Bangkadee Industrial Park Natural Gas Pipeline Project worth 173 Million Baht 78U complete the

Natural Gas Pipeline Project to the North Bangkok Combined Cycle Power Plant worth 803 Million Baht 67Y complete the water pipeline

installation for Asia Industrial Park worth 73 Million Baht 66U complete and the conduit and manholes at Borommaratchachonnani Road

Ratchaphruek Road worth 96 Million Baht

In terms of overseas projects the Company is constructing the Ho Chi Minh City Water Environmental Project Interceptor Sewer

Package in Vietnam which is valued at 329 Million Baht This project is currently 99U complete and is scheduled for completion in 2009 Also

in Vietnam the Company is progressing the design procurement and installation contract for water supply main vvhich crosses the Saigon

River and is valued at 64 Million Baht The Company aims to further expand its business in Vietnam since the Government of Vietnam has

many infrastructure development projects to he awarded in the near future

Ports Jetties River Protection Dredging Reclamation and Marine Works

In the reported year the Company completed the following projects the Shoreline Protection Project Samutsakorn worth 288 Million

Baht Koh Phi Phi
Jetty

in Krabi valued at 98 Million Baht Ongoing projects include the Flood Protection System for Bangyaprack Area

Phase vvorth 448 Million Baht Banghuasua in Sarnutprakarn Province worth 113 Million Baht the Flood Protection Wall Project along the

Chao Phraya River Bangkhen to Thewet vvorth 521 Million Baht the construction of watergate and pumping station at the Klong Aom-Non

Channel in Nonthanhuri Province vvorth 104 Million Baht the construction of Port No.3 of Mabtaput Tank Terminal Co.Ltd worth 356 Million

Baht the AO P0 Marine Construction Project Phuket svorth 196 Million Baht the shoreline protection project for Bangchak Refinery Plant

vvorth 53 Million Baht and the contract for the construction of reinforced concrete vvatergate on the Ping River valued at 434 Million Baht

This latter project forms part of the overall flood protection works for Chiangmai and is meant to protect both the business and ancient parts of

the city from flooding Once the question of land acquisition is resolved this Ping River Project is expected to commence

Annual Report 2008



Dams and Hydroelectric Power

The Company is undertaking two major dam projects in Laos and India The company along with its ITD-NCC joint venture partner

Nishimatsu Construction Co Ltd is involved in the construction of the Nam Theun Hydroelectric Project in Laos PDR with contract value

of 15.721 Million Baht This project is approximately 92 54 complete and is scheduled fbr completion in 2009 The Company is also constructing

the 800 Megawatt Kol Dam Project in northern India which is valued at 9166 Million Rupees This project is 51% complete In Thailand the

Company in association with Sinohydro is constructing 12 Megawatt electric power plant for the Chaopraya Dam The Companys stake in

this project is worth 453 Million Baht This project is 28% complete

Mass Rapid Transit Systems

In Taisvan the Company and Evergreen Construction are constructing the Nankang Underground Station Project which is valued at

12796 Million Taiwan Dollars and is currently 61 5/i complete with scheduled completion date in 2010

In India the Company and lTD Cementation India Ltd are undertaking the construction of two Delhi MRTS Projects Contract No

BC-21 and Contract No BC-24 which arc valued at 3306 Million Rupees and 9170 Million Rupees respectively These two projects are

currently 7054 and 2754 complete respectivel

In Thailand the Company is constructing the BTS Extension Sukhumvit Line Phase This project which expands the system network

and provides one more station has value 4225 Million Baht This project is 7654- complete with scheduled completion in 2009 For the

extension ol the mass rapid transit system in Bangkok the Company believes it is well placed to contest the tenders

Steel Fabrication

The Companys structural steel fabrication facilities at Wihan Daeng in Saraburi and TaiBan in Samut Prakarn have provided important

support to many ITI projects for example the BTS Extension Sukhumvit Line Phase the steel structure of the North Bangkok Combined

Cycle Power Plant and the steel structure for the Suvarnabhumi Airport Drainage Project The Company also provided services to an external

entity for the steel structure for the Marina Bay Sands Resort Casino in Singapore The total steel production of both factories in 2008 was

14523 Tons

Telecommunications

The completed telecommunication projects in 2008 included the design supply and installation of Fibre Optic Cables for Nokia Siemens

Networks Thailand Company Limited worth 89 Million Baht The ongoing projects include the installation of Fibre Optic Cables for the

MEAworth 80 Million 41% of complete thi
electricity

control and communication system II phase for Provincial Electricity Authority worth

720 Million Bahi 1054 of complete the subriarine cable extension to Koh Sriboya Koh Pu Koh Phi Phi Don Railae Bay Ton Sai Bay Aow

Nang Bay and Koh Lanta in Krabi province worth 797 Million Baht 79% of complete Since the cost of undersea electric cable installation

is lower than
pillar type installation the Company intends to apply this method to other offshore island projects

Outside Thailand

The global economic recession has had an impact on many investment projects However India as large developing country has

maintained great demand for infrastructure and mass transit development works LTD Cementation India Ltd which is subsidiary of the

Company and is registered on the Stock Exchange of India affords the Company strategic business base in India to develop its competitiveness

Tax privileges which can hell to reduce costs are an essential component in achieving competitive edge The Company has vvon Kolkata

Airport Passenger Terminal Building which valued at 16000 Million Rupees and is undertaking several other projects in India for example

the construction ot the Delhi MRTS Project Contract No BC-2 and Contract No BC-24 the National Highway Route NH-3 IC West Bengal

and the Kol Dani Project

In Vietnam the Company is undertaking the Ho Chi Minh City Water Environmental Project vvorth 329 Million Baht and the design

procurement and itistallation contract for water supply main which crosses the Saigon River worth 64 Million Baht

In Taiwan where the construction industry is highly competitive and as such any business expansion must be carefully considered The

Company in association with Evergreen Construction Co Ltd has been constructing the Nankang Underground Station Project in downtown

Taipei under contract valued at 12796 Million Taiwan Dollars
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In the Philippines many projects have been cancelled as result of political complications The Company has tended to focus on

projects with overseas sources of funding The Company is currently undertaking the Suyo-Cervantes Road and Bridge Project worth 1313

Million Peso

In Laos PDR the Nam Theun Hydroelectric Project is nearly to complete and is expected to be completed in 2009 The Company is

also contemplating the possibility of investing in potentially feasible aluminum and coal mining projects in Laos

By promoting business expansion in overseas markets the Company has to be aware of cultural differences country-specific laws and

taxes which may restrict the effectiveness of their business operation Furthermore the Company anticipates expanding the business into the

energy sector which may well lead to significant profit
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Shareholders and The Management

10 Major Shareholders as at February 20 2009

Number of shares

903.689 .470

595855.340

170831759

14883954

107296.620

II 30Y .211

62.419139

51 .430.600

49184.200

47.0 5.500

of shares

21.548

14.208

4.074

2.739

2.550

2.4

.488

1.226

1.174

1.121

Holding
Name of Major Shareholders

MR PREMCHAI KARNASUTA AND FAMII.Y

MRS NI \PORN CHARANACI-IITTA AND FAMILY

IHAI NVDR CO

HASI NOMINEES IMITED

ISB SI NCAPDRE NOMINEES PIE LU

ST\T SI RFVl RANK ANI TRUS OMPANY FOR AUSTRALIA

PIE 1.1 CII

JOVIRNMENI 01 SINGAPORE INVESTMENT CORPORATION

SOMERS .K I.IMITEI

TFI3 FOR MI THAI FUND INVESTMENT PLAN

tali an thai Deve lopuient Public Company Li united



Management

Manaeennt Structure

1.1 The executive structure of the Company is made up of three boards namely the Board of Directors the Audit Committee and

the Board of Management The Authority and Responsibility of each Board is as follows

Board of Directors

Authority and Responsibility

The Board of Directors has the overall authority and responsibility to direct manage and supervise the operations of

the Company all in accordance with the Law the regulations of the Company and the resolutions of the Shareholders

of the Company

Pursuant to the Conipanys regulations the Board of Directors has the authority to decide upon and osersee the

operations of the Company except for the following assignments that shall only be executed with the consent of

meeting of the Shareholders of the Company

2.1 Matters the Law stipulates shall only be performed upon the resolution of the Shareholders of the

Company

2.2 Certain business matters as stipulated by the Stock Exchange of Thailand and

2.3 Buying or selling
of assets having salue equal to or greater than fifty percent 5O of the total value of

the assets of the Company as stipulated by the Stock Exchange of Thailand

Audit Committee

Authority and Responsibility

Oversee the financial reports of the Company ss ith regard to accuracy sufficiency and reliability

Oersee the internal control system of the Company to ensure it is appropriate efficient and effective

Consider select and appoint the Independent Auditor of the Company

Osersee compliance by the Company with all applicable laws and statutory requirements

Oversee the prevention of conflicts of interest

Prepare an Audit Report by the Audit Committee for publication in the Annual Report of the Company

Act on other matters as directed by the Board of Directors

Board of Management

Authority and Responsibility

Determine ultimate goals and operational direction of the Company to accord with the current and forecasted economic

and market conditions

Determine policies and procedures fir the operation of the Company

Determine the policy consider and decide on the selection of relevant projects in which the Company should participate

tender and execute

Consider and approve the appointment transfer and discharge of staff at division head level and above

Consider and approve the adjustment of salaries wages and remuneration including consideration and recognition

of employee meritorious service

Appoint person or persons to act on behalf of the Board of Management for any assignment

Consider and approse expenditure on buying assets and other expenses of the Company

Review consider and comment on all matters related to Company operations

Review consider and comment on all matters involving the performance of the Companys various operating segments

and direct and control their management to ensure efficient economical and well-timed operation including compliance

with all contractual obligations to clients

10 Undertake all Company affairs not delegated to other Company segments

11 Undertake all other matters as directed by the Board of Directors
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.2 Names of the Members of each Board

Board of Directors

Pol.Lt Chatrachai Bunya-Ananta

Mr Premchai Karnasuta

Mrs Ni.japorn Charanachitta

Dr Krisorn Jittorntrum

Mr Pathai Chakornbundit

Mr Yuthachai Charanachitta

Mr Tawatchai Suthiprapha

Mr William Lee Zentgraf

Mr Peeti Karnasuta5

Chairman

Director

Director

Independent Director

Director

Director

Director

Independent Director

Director

Company Secretary

Mr Woravudh Hiranyapaisansakul

Remarks

He wa appointed to be Director on 24 March 2008 according to the resolution of the Board of Directors Meeting

Vo.4/3/2008

He was appointed to be the Company Secretary on June 2008 according to the resolution of the Board of Directors

Meeting No.5/6/2008

Audit Committee

Name4w
Pol.Lt Chatrachai Bunya.Ananta5

Dr Krisom Jittorntrum

Mr William Lee Zentgraf

Name
Mr Premchai Kamasuta

Mrs Nijaporn Charanachitta

Mr Pathai Chakornbundit

Mr Tawatchai Suthiprapha

Mr Weera Bunduwongse

Mr Somchai Tumrongwang

Mr Tawee Changpetch

Mr Anan Amarapala

Mr Thanin Bumrungsap

ID Dr Nattawuth Udayasen

II Mr Sompop Pin
ijchai

12 Mr Chatichai Chutima

13 Mrs Pienghathai Pongsuwan

Position

Audit Committee Chairman

Audit Committee

Audit Committee

Position

Remarks

He has adequate expertise and experience to review the creditability ofthe financial reports

Board of Management

Position

Director and President

Director and Senior Executive Vice President

Director and Senior Executive Vice President

Director and Senior Executive Vice President

Senior Executive Vice President

Senior Executive Vice President

Executive Vice President

Vice President Marine

Vice President Project

Vice President Project

Vice President Cost Engineering Analysis

Vice President Finance

Vice President lTD Group of Company and Contract Administration
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1.3 Rules and Regulations in Selection of Independent Directors

Independent Directors qualification

The Company has defined Independent Directors in compliance with rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange

Commission and the Stock Exchange of Thailand as follows

Holding shares not more than percent of voting shares of the Company its affiliated company and associated

company or shall be related person including related person under Section 258 of the Securities and Exchange

Act

Not being director management employee staff or advisor who receives regular salary of the Company its

affiliated company and associated company or shall be related person and must be resigned from the said positions

for more than year

Has no direct or indirect benefit or interest in finance and management of the Company and its affiliated company

and associated company or shall be related person who lack of independence

Not being close relative of any management or major shareholder of the Company its affiliated company and

associated company and not be appointed to oversee the benefit or interest of the director or major shareholder

Nomination Process

The Board of Directors will consult together to form the Independent Directors qualifications and to select the person who

would be useful to be an Independent Director from his/her experience ability and education and not person whose character

would prohibit him/her from being approved at Shareholders Meeting

1.4 Number of Board Meetings and Record of Board of Directors Attendance in 2008

Please see details under Management The Responsibilities of the Directors The Directors Meetings

1.5 Name of Directors and Management Controller if any and Company Secretarys Name

Please see details under Management 1.4 Names of the Members of Each Board

1.6 Business Relationship or Professional Services Between Independent Directors with the Company Subsidiary Companies

Associated Companies or Conflict of Interest

There were no business relationships or professional services between Independent Directors with the Company Subsidiary

Companies Associated Companies or any Conflicts of Interest

Selection of Directors and Management

The Company has set up transparent procedure to select Directors although it does not have Nominating Committee The

incumbent Board of Directors performs the initial selection and evaluation of candidates for vacated or newly created positions on the

Board of Directors and for all senior management positions within the Company

The Company announced on December 15 2008 that in future person who was nominated by the Shareholders as candidate

to be appointed Director would be considered for election at the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders For Shareholders to be

eligible to nominate person as Director they shall individually or as group hold not less than five percent of the total number of

lTDs ordinary shares

The Board of Directors jointly scrutinizes the qualifications of all appropriate candidates in compliance with Section 68 of the

Public Company Limited ActB.E 2535 by consideration of the profile experience expertise of several careers and performance in the

role of directorship in the past The candidates qualification shall also be subject to the prohibitions set out by the Announcement of the

Securities and Exchange Commission No Gor Jor 5/2548 which gives the requirements relating to the qualifications of executives of

company that issues securities The incumbent Board of Directors approved candidates for any vacant or nesv directorship shall then be

nominated to the shareholders at the Shareholders Meeting for approval by majority of votes of the Shareholders attending the said

meeting and eligible to vote

The Board of Directors shall appoint their preferred candidate for all senior management positions

Remuneration of the Board of Directors Audit Committee Board of Management and Management Staff

See details under Management Clause 5.6.3 Remuneration in the Year 2008
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41.Cporate Governance Practice Report 2008

In 288 the Conipany conducted its acti ties according to the Corporate Gos ernance Principles for the Listed Company 2006

ss hich
coiiipriscs

of paris

4.1 Die Rights of the Shareholders

4.2 The Treatnient to the Shareholders ss ith Equality

Rights of the Stakeholders

4.4 Information DisclosLire and Transparency

4.5 lhc Responsibilities of the Directors

4.1 The Rights of the Shareholders

The Conipa ny recogn i/c the shareholders have the right to control the operation of the Company through the appointment

of the Hoard ot Directors They also have the right to make the decision regarding the significant changes of the Company in the

Meet inc of the Shareholder

The Company has organi ced fair Shareholders Meetings which facilitated equitable rights among shareholders and arranged

the various steps for the meetings calling for the meeting dispatching documents notifying of the meeting agenda and the minutes

of the shareholders meeting according to legal requirements

In 2008 the Company also gave the shareholders an opportunity to propose the agenda and to nominate persons to be

appointed as Directors at the Aniuial General Meeting of Shareholders in advance Ia mail Email and Companys Website

Howes er shareholders who are eligible to do so must hold lTD ordinary shares for at least 12 months consecutis ely hefare the

date of proposing the issues

Independent Directors ci ill consider the shareholders proposals and then pass them to the Board of Directoo for their

consensus If the Board agrees that any issues are significant or beneficial to or the shareholders the Hoard cv II put the

said Issues in the meeting agenda remarked as agenda from shareholders ni the notice to shareholders or clarity them at the

Shareholders Meeting

In addition to facilitate the shareholders proposals setting process the shareholders are required to pros ide necessary

details as foliosss

Name address and telephone number of proposing hareholder for LTD to acquire any further information as ccci as

cc idence indicating proof of ho ding of shares for consedut is mont hs such as share certificates or iii official

dec larat ion from bioke

Purpose of the shareholders pioposal in detail including other useful information for the Boards consideration such

as i-cl cc ant facts artd data reason concerned ssue and expected heiteti for LTD

In the case of nomination of persons to he appointed as Directors at the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders the

shareholders are requested to attach the curriculum vitae cc orking experience and contact address in support of the

Audit Committee to consider and to further piss the matter to the Board of Directors far final decision

Hocvever after the deadline there ss crc no pioposals from the shareholders

The proxy form
gic es the opportunity for absent shaieholders to cast their cote at the Shareholders Meeting according to

their dccisions.The Board of Diiectors assigns not less than one Independent Diiector to he the proxy

For the agenda items at the Shaieholders Meeting svhich had any objections the Company cvill use the ote casting card

to ens Lire transparency and accountability For the agenda item to appoint the Directors the shareholders have an opportunity to

ote according to their tntet1tion for the whole set of Directors

In 2008 the Company held the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders No 2007 on 25 April 2007 at II .00 am
The ompany started to prepare the meeting agenda and invitation notices svith details of the agenda together with supporting

documents from early April 2008

lIthe meeting agendas nvitat ion notices details of the agenda pioxy gu dcli nes and the meeting piocednres and zliiLlel nes

ss crc approved by the Pies dent and the Board Diieetors in order to ensLue that the shareholders had sufficient and complete

information for decisions in voting and also to understand the proxy method and meeting procedure to maintain their rights

lhe Company delivered to shareholders the meeting invitation notice svith details of the agenda together svith supporting

documents days in ads ance the announcement on the website svas 14 days in advance and in the nesvspapers for consec utis days
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and days in advance of the meeting so that shareholders had reasonable time to thoroughly study such documents Additionally

the shareholders could make enquiries about the meeting agenda before the meeting to Corporate Sers ices Dis isbn Oit telephone

66 2716-1600 extension 3800-4 or by e-mail at cccsfa itd.co.th

In addition the Compan facilitated the shareholders to participate this meeting by using the Aniari Atrium Hotel on

New Petchburi Road as the venue The shareholders could register to participate the meeting and check an accuracy ol iccessary

documents hours before the meeting commenced The proxies for many shareholders could send proxy documents to the Company

for checking their accuiacy via facsimile any day before the meeting day

At the beginning of the meeting the chairman ads ised the shareholders of the method of sote castnig and tilL gut to

make enquiry and express their opinions on each agenda item

Pol .Lt Chartachai nyaananta Chairman of the Board of Directors had been admitted to hospital sti he ml
il not

participate in the Meeting Dr Krisorn Jittorntrum the Independent Director was the Chairman 01 the Meeting iii
Ins place

Mr Pre rnehai Karnasuta President Mrs ijaporn Charanachitta Mr Pathai Chakornbundit Mr lass aiclia Siit hi prapha

Mr Will lam Lee Zentgraf Mr Yuthachai Charanachitta and Mr Peeti Karnasuta the \ice President Li iiance and the cert died

auditor of Grant Thornton Limited also participated in the Meeting

The meeting proceeded with the presence of47 shareholders and or their proxies holding 2575.901.369 shares representing

61 .42Y of total shares All proposed agenda items were approved by the shareholders The Company also recorded all ote counting

questions and comments from shareholders in the meeting to ensure transparency The shareholders also had equal opporiiiiiit and

reasonable time to make enquiries and to express their opinions

The Company made clear minutes of the Shareholders Meeting and published them on the svehsite as the option for

shareholders who were unable to attend the actual meeting to know the meeting approvals

4.2 The Treatment to the Shareholders with Equality

Each shareholder has as many votes as he/she osvns shares and they have the right to nominate persons to he agpointed as

directors at the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

The Conipany has impleniented measures to prevent the internal abuse of confidential or privileged information by limiting

its distribution to top executives and Company othcers on need to know basis until it is released publicly Eniployi arc also

advised of the confidential nature of the information and the restrictions applying to its use including prohibit ion on the pn chase

or sale of Company securities on the basis of such confidential information Staff who failed to pi aetice according to these rules

svould he penaliied under the Companys rules and regulations Furthermore senior executives have the duty to report thair holdings

and each transaction of purchase sale or transfer of their security holdings in the Company to the Securities E\change uuuissmon

Such requirement is considered an important measure to effectively help control the use of the inside inforniation

4.3 The Rights of the Stakeholders

The Board of Directors recognizes the rights of all stakeholders such as shareholders employees customers partners

business competitors and general public They have therefore conducted themselves in accordance ss ith The Policy of Stakeholders

Treatment announced in 2004 as presented in the lTD Corporate Governance Handbook and the Companys internet vvehsite

The Company has also paid attention to the communication svith all stakeholders in order to exchange information opinions

and ads ice for sustainable
profit sharing The stakeholders svho consider they are treated unfairly by the Company Directors

Management or the staff are able to complain to the Corporate Sers ice Division on telephone 66 2716-1600 extension 3800-4

or by e-mail at ccesfwitd .co.th

4.3.1 Shareholders The Company has strived to achieve grosvth for the long term profits
and allocate partial piofits as

dividend The Company has also disclosed complete true and timely information

43.2 Employees The ompany has realized the importance of staff as the main mechanism to promote continuous

growth The Conipany has rewarded staff by paying them bonus and by improving their svelfare and security for example by the

establishment of pension fund providing healthcare services supporting scholarships for employees children who shosv good

study performance offering urgent loans and impros ing the ens ironment of their ssorkplace

Furthermore the Company has highly recognized safety and hygiene standards in construction actms ties svhmch niight

affect the employees and others
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Since thc employees skills are very important for the Companys performance in the year 2008 the Company provided

23 training courses to develop staff skills for each level of competency The training was separated into fields

General Field focusing on developing staff skills for each level of competency There are 12 courses relating to project

management lasv of construction supervisory skill problem solving etc

Support Field providing details of standardized work methods for staff members There are II courses relating to strategic

development coaching skill communication skill labor law etc

In addition to the Head Office Training Division the project sites also provide in-house training The training courses for

laborers focus on safety training programs to motivate them to work in safe ways and to develop their skills

4.33 Customers The ompany has provided good quality and standard construction service with out any complaints

43.4 Partners and Creditors The Company always tries to commit to agreements with all partners and creditors

4.3.5 Business Competitors The Company always competes in govemment and private sector bidding with honesty

knosvledge and transparency

43.6 General Public The Company emphasizes on occupational safety health and working environment management

in order to protect the community and the environment from the effects of the construction activities The construction units of the

Company therefore have to control and take care their working environment for example the prevention of oil leakage into soil

and ssater waste water treatmeni bad-smelling odour control vibration control dust prevention garbage disposal and an energy

sas np campaign

In case anyone from the community has made complaint to the Company saying that they have been affected by the

construction activities of the Company the representatives of the Company are required to investigate the facts solve the problems

and explain to them so they can anderstand the situation as soonest possible

The Company has supported many kinds of the community development projects such as projects and organizations for

children the handicapped and for the education system

4.4 Information Disclosure and Transparency

The Board of Directors has been deeply concerned to disclose sufficient complete reliable and timely information covering

the Companys financial import..tnt and general information which reflects the asset value and performance of the Company

The Corporate Services Division has provided information and activity nesvs directly to investors shareholders market

analysts the media and relevant authorities as well as through the Companys web site at www.itd.co.th The Division is able to

handle communications svith shareholders and facilitate investors and securities analysts on fair and equitable basis and comply

ss ith the lasvs rules and regulations of the Securities Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange of Thailand Interested parties

requiring specilie information can contact Corporate Services representatives on telephone 66 2716-1600 extension 3800-4

or by mail at eees@itd.co.dm

In addition during 2005 the Companys senior executives have disclosed financial/non-financial information and the

hasiness future of the Company and answered enquiries to investors analysts and interested persons as follows

94rCt-ctt CjTsiA$.S 2S Sessions Participants

One-on-one Meeting 30 45

Group Analysi Meeting 27

Quai terly Brieting

International Road hosv 53

Significant information disclosed on the Companys website is as follows

The Suntmary of Financial Information and Financial Ratio year latest

Annual Financial Statement year latest and the Latest Quarterly Financial Statement

Company Nesvs

Annual Report
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4.5 The Responsibilities of the Directors

4.5.1 The Structure of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors consists of members who are knowledgeable and with diverse experiences which are of

benefit to the Company The numbers of Directors are given below and are listed under Management Clause .4 Names

of the Members of Each Board

Executive Director Directors 44.45%

Non-Executive Director Directors 22.22%

Independent Directors Directors 33.33%

Each Director has been able to express their own opinions independently regarding the operation of the Company

and its annual strategic plan without intervention for the benefit of all shareholders and other stakeholders In addition

the structure of the Board consists of Independent Directors which accounts for third of the total number of Directors

on the Board and they were appointed by the Audit Committee The Chairman of the Audit Committee was also appointed

as the Chairman of the Board of Directors thereby providing balance of power and proper verification of the operations

The present Independent Directors are as follows

Pol.Lt Chatrachai Bunya-Ananta

Dr Krisorn Jittorntrum

Mr William Lee Zentgraf

Furthermore the Chairman of the Board of Director is an Independent Director and is not the same person as the

President Managing Director in order to provide checks and balances to the management of the Company

The authorities of the Chairman and the President are clearly defined and separated as follows

The Chairman Taking the role as the leader of the Board of Directors and the Chairman of the Directors Meetings

and Shareholders Meetings

The President Taking the role as the leader of the Board of Management and being authorized by the Board of

Directors to direct and control the management staff for the Companys goals achievement

The Company has appointed Mr Woravudh Hiranyapaisansakul to be the secretary of the Company who carries

out duties as stipulated under the Securities and Exchange Act No B.E 2551 and is responsible for advice to the

Director on laws and regulations support of the Directors activities and coordination with other parties to comply with

the resolution of the Board of Directors

4.5.2 The Subcommittee

The Board of Directors appointed the Audit Committee as the subcommittee to assist with the corporate governance

of the Company

The present members of the Audit Committee are as follows

Pol.Lt Chatrachai Bunya-Ananta Chairman Independent Director

Dr Krisorn Jittorntrum Director Independent Director

Mr William Lee Zentgraf Director Independent Director

And Manager of Internal Audit Division Secretary of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee held meetings during the year 2008 Agendas were sent to the Committee members to

study at least days in advance and all members of the Committee attended the meetings all of which lasted to hours

Conclusions regarding the performance of the Audit Committee are in the Report of the Audit Committee as referred to

the Annual Report of the Company

The Company does not yet have Remuneration Committee or Nominating Committee but the Board of

Directors has set up transparent procedure to determine appropriate levels of remuneration by comparisons with other

companies of similar size in the same industries and partly by the performance of the Company In any case the amount

of remuneration to be paid to Directors must be finally approved by meeting of the shareholders

The Company has also set up transparent procedure to select the Directors although it does not yet have

Nominating Committee
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In case any vacancy occurs in the Board of Directors by rotation the Board of Directors and/or the shareholders

will select the appropriate candidates who are then appointed by meeting of shareholders in the following manner

Each shareholder has as many votes as he/she owns shares

When electing Directors they may he elected one at time or in group With each election ho\vever the

principle of article abose must he followed No voter may divide his/her votes among several candidates or allot to

one candidate fesver votes than svhat he/she has

The candidates whom ieceis ing the highest votes shall he appointed to be Directors respectively until the number

of directors of the Company or the number of Directors to be elected at such election is reached If two or more candidates

receise an equal number of votes then the Chairman of the meeting shall cast his tie-breaking vote to decide the matter

At the Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders one third of the Directors shall retire If their number is not

esenly divisible by three then the number to be replaced must he the number closest to one third Those svho have served

longest in their prcsent positions as Directors are the first to be replaced Hosvever any retired Directors might be selected

to he the candidates for the next term

In ease of any vacancy occurs in the Board of Directors other than by rotation the Board of Directors shall elect

person who has the qualifications and who is not disqualified under the law to be the Director as replacenient at the

following meeting of the Board of Directors unless the remaining term is less than months New Directors shall he

supported by vote of not less than 3/4 of remaining Directors and be iii office for the remaining term of the Directors

whom they replace

4.5.3 The Roles and Responsibilities

4.5.3.1 Authorities and Responsibilities

The Board of Directors has participated in the setting up and approving visions missions targets
and strategies

of the Company The Board of Directors then monitors the progress tosvard these objectives In addition the Board of

Directors has also emphasized on having an effective internal control system internal audit process and management of

business risks for ensuring business success

The authorities and responsibilities of the Board of Directors are given under Management Clause Management

St rLmcturc

4.5.3.2 The Policy of Corporate Governance

Recognition of the importance ot good corporate gos ernance is essential in creating valueadded efficiency of

the organization which affects stakeholders confidence Pursuant to the meeting of the Board of Directors the Board has

approsed and officially announced lTD Corporate Governance Handbook which collects philosophies policies and

code of conduct about corporate gosernance of the Company It provides guidelines and progress report fir corporate

governance practices svli ich lead to es aluation and improvement procedures This handbook disclosed in the Company

it ranet and chsite http www.itd.co.th

ftc Policy of the Coiporate Governance must he cv iesved every year to suit for the situation In 2008 the

Hoard of Directors has iis iesved the Policy on the Corporate Governance and established the Policy on Corporate Social

Responsibility

4.5.3.3 Code of Ethical Conduct

Ihe Company has aniiounced code of ethical conduct for the Board of Directors Management and Staff to

perform the duties with honesty and integrity for the Company and every group of stakeholders The said code of conduct

us announced in the Company intranet and website

Furthermore the Company tried to promote code of ethical conduct and employees rules and regulations among

nesv staff on their orientation day The management must be the model of good practice and also be responsible for proper

care of all staff and subordinates to make sure that these rules and regulations are all
strictly observed and pmct iced

4.5.3.4 Conflict of Interest

The Company his established the policy to manage conflict of interest and implemented measumes to prevent the

iiiernal abuse of confidential or privileged information The said poi icy and measures have been disclosed in the Company

nt ranet and ebsite
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The Board of Directors knows the rules and requirements relating to conflicts of interest between related business

entities Where such conflicts have arisen they are shown in the table Related Party Transactions and in all cases have been

addressed in accordance with the Stock Exchange Regulations such that prices and conditions of procurement are the same

as would apply in normal third party arms length transactions The Related Party Transactions table provides details of

the parties concerned contract value reason necessity for relationship and is repeated in Form 56-I

4.5.3.5 Internal Control and Internal Audit Systems

The Company has setup its own effective internal control to enable the appropriate conduct of its business or work

activity
environments in conjunction with the internal audit The management of internal control is carried out based on

international standards under five principal elements as follows

Control Environment

Determining clear and measurable policies goals and directions of the Company as well as providing supervision

of business activities to meet the targets

Issuing the Business Ethics Policy and Employees Code of Conduct to guide the executives directors and

employees of all levels for their proper
and due conduct In this regard the Company through its corporate

relations will provide awareness of high value of honesty and integrity

Setting organizational structure with clear and appropriate command lines and scope of responsibilities The

Company has appointed assistants to each supervisory director for better supervision and effective performance

of all projects

Providing the specific job descriptions and work manuals for the employees as tool for performance of duties

and prevention of overlap or omission of works

Training Company personnel according to its Annual Human Resources Development Plan based on competency

principles It is the personal behavior-oriented development program that will help them to succeed in their

work and good performance

Setting up the Audit Committee with duties and responsibilities to supervise activities and duties as assigned

by the Companys Board of Directors

Setting up the Internal Audit Division as the Company realizes that the internal auditing is an important

mechanism for the effective internal control The audited svorksites will realize and improve their care in the

job performance

Risk Management

The Company conducts evaluation of the potential risks from internal and external factors to reasonably ensure

prevention of damages or mistakes Alternatively if the damages or mistakes actually occur the impact shall be

within acceptable level The risk management must be conducted continuously and regularly to monitor actual

exposures at any time

Control Activities

The Company has set the policies work plans and budgets procedures as well as control for achievements of

its goals The executives as well as all levels of staff should properly comply with them and shall not commit

any misconduct against the intent of laws regulations rules or orders

Information and Communications

The Company efficiently provides essential and current information for the perforniance of fls personnel The

executives as svell as all levels of employees should properly respond to the infrmationespecially with regard

to the accounting and financial information The SAP computer data control system is used for linkage between

the worksites and the head office for effective communication

The communications between the executives and the work operators or hetsveen worksites are operated for the

understanding and speed of work performances via electronic mail and intranet

Companys Corporate Service Division is responsible for investor reiations distribution of financial and general

information as well as critical information which may have an affect on stock prices for investors or the general

public
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Monitoring Program

The Companys Internal Audit Division inspects the operations and evaluates the internal control systems They

make such reports to the management and the Audit Committee of the Company If there are any potential risks

the management shall determine control measures to systematically and continuously resolve the problems

The Board of Directors opinion states that the Companys Internal Control System and the governance of its

subsidiaries were appropriate and adequate to protect its assets from being abused by the Companys directors

and executives

The audited worksites receive recommendations to correct their performances or to increase stringent control

measures The Internal Audit Division of the Company follows up evaluates and reports on the audit results to

the management and the Audit Committee of the Company on regular basis The Audit Committees opinion

states that the Companys Internal Control System was appropriate adequate and effective

The Certified Public Accountants opinion states that the Companys internal control system is adequate

appropriate and careful Also no defects were found to have significant impact against the Company

4.5.4 The Directors Meetings

The Board of Directors schedules regular meetings every three months The meeting agendas clearly state the

matters for acknowledgement or approval The Company serves the meeting notices including the agenda and attached

documents on each Director at least days in advance of the meeting so that they have enough time to review and study

them Normally each meeting takes about to hours The chairman allots adequate and appropriate time for discussion

on all agenda items which are prioritized in terms of significance

The minutes of meeting are prepared in writing and filed after inspection by the executives and Directors All such

documents are duly signed by the Directors and they are available for review by any interested persons

In 2008 four of Board of Directors Meetings were held Attendance by each and all of the members of the Board

\Vas as tollosvs

Name Number of attendance/total number of meeting times

Pol.Li Chartachai BunyaAnanta 2/4

Mr Premchai Kamasiita 4/4

Mrs Nijaporn Charanachiita 4/4

Dr Krisorn Jiiiorniruin 4/4

Mr William Lee Zentgraf 4/4

Mr Pathai Chakornbundit 4/4

Mr Ta aichai Stithipiapha 4/4

Mr Yutachai Charanachitta 4/4

Mr Pecti Karnasuia 3/4

Remarks

He ito.s ndoiitted to has pita during February June 2008

He was appointed to he Director on 24 March 2008 according to the resolution of the Board of Directors Meeting

No.4/3/2008

4.5.5 The Self Assessment of the Directors

In 2008 the Board of Directors conducted an annual self assessment of the effectiveness of their performances

This assessment is conducted every year
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4.5.6 Remuneration of Directors and Management Staff

4.5.6.1 Remuneration of Directors

The Company has determined the Remuneration of Directors clearly and transparently based on comparable

industry levels and for the efficiency required of supervising Directors Directors assigned to be the Audit Committee

receive additional remuneration for full discharge of their Audit Committee duties In any case the amount of remuneration

to be paid to directors must be finally approved by meeting of the shareholders

4.5.6.2 Remuneration of the Board of Management

The remuneration of the Board of Management members follows the principles and policy determined by the

Board of Directors and depends on the corporate and individual achievement

4.5.6.3 Remuneration in the year 2008

Remuneration in Cash

Remuneration of Directors

Remuneration amount

Duectots Position

Baht year

Pol.Lt Chartachai Bunya-Ananta Chairman the Board of Directors 750000

Chairman of Audit Committee

Mr Premchai Kamasuta Director 580000

Mrs Nijaporn Charanachitta Director 580.000

Dr Krisorn Jittomtrum Independent Director 580000

Audit Committee

Mr William Lee Zentgraf Independent Director 580000

Audit Committee

Mr Pathai Chakornbundit Director 580000

Mr Tawatchai Suthiprapha Director 580000

Mr Yutachai Charanachitta Director 58000

Mr Peeti Kamasuta Director 580000

Total
5390000

Remuneration of the Board of Management

The 13 members of the Board of Management received in totalremuneration amounting to Baht 62.134103

for the full discharge of their respective duties

The Company contributed an amount equal to two percent of the salary of those members of the Board

of Management and management staff of the Company who are members of the Registered Provident Fund

Other Remuneration of Directors

None

45.7 Director Development

The Directors of the Company have passed the IOD training programs as follows

Mrs Nijaporn Charanachitta Director Certification Program DCP

Mr Pathai Chakornbundit Director Certification Program DCP

Mr Yutachai Charanachitta Director Certification Program DCP
Directors Registration System and Director Manual

Direct Finance the Skill Update Program for Director

Mr Tawatchai Suthiprapha Director Accreditation Program DAP
Finance for Non Finance Director
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5jj.iiftrnal rii 1ion Control

See details ii iider \lanaenient Clause 5.3.5 Internal Control and Audit Syatern

Human Resrc

Total Nwiihei of l2inployees as of lccemher 2018 26.877

uiiihei ii nijilo ces by Major Categories

ieoried by oh classification

Inoiiieers 1.483

\ccountaiits 249

.\dininistrators

eneral mpoy ces 24.877

lotal 26877

6.1
ii eCt in ted the on

1ji1fl
business categories categories

Huiidins 11.250

Industrial Ilants 5.1129

FiJeIines and
tJtility Works 2.117

II cuss a\ spi essss iiys Rid Iss ay and Hridgcs 3126

ut Poits Jetties kis en Pi Olect Ion Dredging Reel aiiiat ion Marine Works .953

anis and Lililiels .690

\linin 1223

Steel Struntures 745

leci iii in ui eat ills 259

II ad lire 585

oIal 26877

llflllIO\i Niipihins in Ones iou years

IiiiI IU ib of eiliploees as of Ierentben 2006 j0.686

In.l ibi ol enlplo\ees as of Ianeniber 2017 29.134

Iotal uiiiihei of enlplo\ees as of II December 2008 26A77

\Iaj in ili
lisputes dun ug the Past Three Years

None

6S kniplisee henefits ion tile Year 2008

Hal 6458111 Salir Honus md Pros dciii Fund

6.6 Iniplosea ikill Ieseiopnient Polie

See deimi ndei
Nian.mgenieiit Iaue .2 Lniplo ees
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Board of Directors and Board of Management

Experience of Board ot Di rectors and Board of Management

PoI.Lt Chatrachai Hunva-anata Age years

Education

Economics Accountancy Wiles

Ads anccd NI ammagetiie nt Program lars rd Un
ersity

ISA
National IeJense College Program Bangkok

Chairman the Board of 1irectors

Italian lhu Ies elopinent Plc

Chairman of the Audit Committee

ItalianThai Ies elopiiient Plc

Eirector

Lii liii Ihai nleriiatioimal Ltd

tal anThai and Co. Lid

Boardmember

Iusit Thamn Olij

Hon Adsisor

Dtisit Thani oilcgc

Audit Committee MemIer

MB Property and Ie elopinent Coirtpany ml ted

Mr Prenichai Karnasuta Age 54 years

Education

Master of Basiness Administration tnmsersity of Southern California U.S .A\

.S in Mining Engineering Colorado School of Mines U.S.A

Director and President

ItalianThai les clopmnent Plc

1irector

Cliaroong Thai \ire Cable Plc

Imperial eclinology NI anagement Sers ices Plc

Siam Machinery and Iquipmnent Co. Lid

Tayakhee Co. I.td

am Concrele rick Products Co td

Fhai vlaruken Co. Id

Khunka Paliimgthai Ltd

C.P.K International o. ltd

Southern Industries 96 Co. Ltd

Siam Pacilme bIding 0. ltd

Aittari Co ltd

Ni pa Lodge Co td

ltalthai Ilolding Co. Ltd

Italthai Marine Co Ltd

Italthai Ties Co. Ltd

Palangthai Kaona Cii. .td

ITAC Joint Venture

My atiniar Ft Co. Ltd

Praram Square Co. Ltd

Thai Contractors Asset Cii. td

Nltapralarn Crushing Plant Co Ltd

Thai Pride Cement Co. Ltd

Bhaka Bhut Des elopnient Co Ltd

Nahathai o. Ltd

Kanika Co. .td

oy hai Corporation Plc

Chantahum ottntry Cluh Co. Ltd

Asian Steel Products Co. Ltd

Thai Nippon Steel Engineering Construction Corp Co. Ltd

Bankok Steel Wire Co. Ltd

Palit Paliingngan Co. Ltd

Prarani Square Hotel Ltd

Chantahuri Farm Co. td

Italthai Real Estate Co .1 .td

ItalianThai I.and Co. td

liar Orchid .odgc Co Ltd

Italthai Industrial Co. Ltd

Itaithai Engineeritig Co. td

ILil ianThai International Co. Ltd

PT Thailindo Bari Pratamna Co .td

Asian Steel Corporation Co. Ltd

MCR Holding Corporation Ltd

ATO Asia Turn-out Co Ltd

iatii Fiber Opt cs Co. Ltd

Metropolitan Water Sets ices Ci Ltd

Ihai Rent All Co. Ltd

MCRP Construction Ci Ltd

Amari Flotel Resort Co Ltd

III Cementation India Limited

DitImec Co. ltd

Board of Gos ernors Bangkok Pattana School

General Pieni Tinstilanonla Foundation

Roy iii Jrchid Sheraton Ilote
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Sarahuri onstruction Technology Co Ltd

Triam Karn Kha Co. td

Takolkiat o. l.td

Panoot o. Ltd

Lalasa Co Ltd

Wildemeic Co Ltd

Sarithorn Co Ltd

Koh Kong Poaer Light Co Ltd

Asia logistics Development Co Ltd

Asia nduti at and Port Corporation Co. td

Italian-l hai Scanska ndhy Joint Venture

ION Joint cnture

ITD-NSC .toint Venture

Mrs Nijaporn Charanachitta

Education

M.B.A Finance Unisersity of Wiscojisin Madison U.S.A

.A Facult of Art Chulalongkorn Uaiversity

Chairman

The rien tat Hotel Thailand Plc

Sankyu Fhai Co. Ltd

Arnari Co. Ltd

Director and Senior Executive Vice President

Italian-Thai Development Plc

Director

Italian-Thai Development Plc

ToyoThai Corporation Plc

AT Asia lum-out Co Ltd

Italian Thai International Co Ltd

ltalthai Industrial Co Ltd

Siam Concrete Brick Product Co Iid

Thai Maruken Co. Ltd

Aquathai Co Ltd

Asia Pacific Potash Corporation Co. Lid

Asia Steel Product Co Ltd

Bangkok Steel Wire Co Ltd

Bhaka Bhuini Development Co. Ltd

Bhantuwong Ltd

Chantahuri Country Club Ltd

Chantaburi Farin Co Itd

Chao Phra Development Corporation

Siam Pacihc Holding Co Ltd

Siam Sightseeing Co. Ltd

Sino Lao Aluminum Co. Ltd

ItalianThai Land Co. Ltd

Italian-Thai Power Co Ltd

Italthai Holding Co Ltd

Italthai Man nc Co. Ltd

Italthai Real Estate Co. Ltd

Italthai Tre Co Ltd

Tridauk o. I.td

Tongkrai Co Ltd

Tridayuk Co Ltd

Bhantuwong Co Ltd

Phannin Co Ltd

Lasalle Co Ltd

Asia Pacific Potash Corporation Co Ltd

Sino Lao Aluminum Co Ltd

Italian-Thai Power Co Ltd

Sin Rae Muang Thai Co Ltd

Lao Metal Industry Co Ltd

Ando Italian-Thai Joint Venture

Thai Ando Italian-Thai Joint Venture

ITD-EGC Joint Venture

Age 57 years

Amari Hotel Resort Co Ltd

Thai Barge Container Services Co Ltd

Charoong Thai Wire Cable Plc

Lasalle Co Ltd

Myanmar lTD Co. Ltd

Napralan Crushing Plant Co Ltd

Pacific-Thai Electric Wire Cable Co Ltd

Palangthai Kaona Co Ltd

Palit Palanguan Co. Ltd

Panoot Co Ltd

Phanin Co Ltd

Praram Square Co Ltd

Praram Square Hotel Co Ltd

PT Thai Lindo Bara Pratama Co Ltd

Sakdi Sin Prasit Co Ltd

Saraburi Construction Technolog Co Ltd

Sarithorn Co Ltd

Siam Machine Equipment Co Ltd

CPK International Co Ltd

Dithee Co Ltd

Takoikiat Co Ltd

Tayakhee Co.Ltd

Thai Contractors Asset Co Ltd

Thai Pride Cement Co Ltd

Thai Rent All Co. Ltd

Tongkrai Co. Ltd

lTD SPV Co. Ltd

Wildemere Co Ltd
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Kanika Co Ltd

Khunka Palangthai Co Ltd

Asia Logistics Development Co Ltd

ITAC Joint Venture

Koh Kong Power Light Co Ltd

Sin Rae Muang Thai Co T.td

Asia Industrial and Port Corporation Co Ltd

ITD-VIS Joint Venture

Dr Krisorn Jittorntrum Age 55 years

Education

Ph.D Computing Research GroupInstitute of Advance Studies The Australia National University

Independent Director

Italian-Thai Development Plc

Director

Asia Pacific Potash Corporation Co Ltd

Mr Pathai Chakornbundit Age 66 years

Education

B.Eng Civil Chulalongkorn University

Director and Senior Executive Vice President

Italian-Thai Development Plc

Director

Charoong Thai Wire Cable Plc Khunka Faifa Thai Co Ltd

Aquathai Co Ltd Khunka Palangthai Co Ltd

Asia Pacific Potash Corporation Co Ltd Koh Kong Power Light Co Ltd

Bhaka Bhumi Development Co Ltd Myanmar lTD Co Ltd

Palangthai Kaona Co Ltd Palit Palanguan Co Ltd

Italian-Thai Gypsum Co Ltd Sarithorn Co Ltd

Italthai Marine Co Ltd Italthai Trevi Co Ltd

Thai Maruken Co Ltd lTD Cementation India Limited

Thai Nippon Steel Engineering Construction Co Ltd ITD-EGC Joint Venture Co Ltd

Thai Pride Cement Co Ltd Asia Industrial and Port Corporation Co Ltd

Asia Logistics Development Co Ltd Sin Rae Muang Thai Co Ltd

ITAC Joint Venture lOT Joint Venture

Thai Ando Italian-Thai Joint Venture ITD-NSC Joint Venture

Mr Yuthachai Charanachitta Age 30 years

Education

Bachelor Degree in Economics Hamilton College USA

Director

Italian-Thai Development Plc The Oriental Hotel Thailand Plc

ltalthai Industrial Co Ltd Italthai Engineering Co Ltd

Amari Co Ltd Muanjai Co Ltd

Chao Phraya Development Corporation Co Ltd Baan Krating Co Ltd

Sakdi Sin Prasit Co Ltd Riverside Auction House Co Ltd

Amari Hotel and Resort Co Ltd Italian-Thai Power Co Ltd

Thai Contractors Asset Co Ltd
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Mr Fas%atchai Suthiprapha

Idticatioti

H.Ln Iii IuilalonLorn tJniveriy

lircctor and senior Executive Vice President

elopittelit
iIe

irector

\l \iii iiiiutCo.i.td

hitititi ur td

iLoiic IeeIopioeot o. Ltd

It liii iitttiie

rN lint iii ire

tarn Steel lower Co Ltd

Sarahuri Contruetion Iechflology Co Ltd

Ai lndutria and Port Corporat loll Co. Ltd

ITD-VIS Joint Venture

Sum itonio-ltaI ian Thai Joint Venture

\Ir %illiani Lee Zentgraf

Iducation

.ini iiirlri litnid ollege

ndependcnl Iirectiir udjt ornhiiittee v1ernher

ii
li

eliipiueiit Pie

lirector

ite Ciii lotel TIiiil.tiid tIc

\Ir Peeti Kartiasuta

Education

\ppl ed .niiltiie ni ertty of Saint Andrews

Iirector

Age 68 years

Age 27 years

hi ltseiopiueni PIe

ii nibli iiilli fltertai llltleltt Co. Ltd

1oIdui ii Ltd

10 Mr Weera Bniidussongse

Education

iatiiltio iii in itleerine ollege ert in Mechanical Engineering

Ro ii Irrir_ii ott Icpt Certificate

Senior Fsectitise ice President

es
eltiptitetit

Pie

iiector

liii iii iii Haiti Pititatitti Co Ltd

II Mr Sonicliai Iunirongsang

Iducation

t3.Inn oi itttaoitgkoin lliittetsity
Honour

Senior EecuIise ice President

hit Is eiopment Pie

12 \Ir Anan marapaIa

Idueation

H.trii it it huialoiinkotn t.fniversity

ice President Marine

Ii eloptitent Pie

13 Mr Thssee hangpetch

Iducation

ItIritg itt Iiiiittltntgkorti Jttietsity Ilonour

IxecLltise ice Iresidenl

iii
lot .t

eioptiient
PIe

P3 Global Energy Co. Ltd

Auo Siam Marine Co Ltd

ItalianThai Power Co Ltd

Age 76 years

Asia Pacific Potash Corporation Co. Ltd

Age 68 years

Age 62 years

Age 63 years

Age 65 years
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14 Mr Thanin Bumrungsap Age 60 years

Education

Masters Degree in Geotechnical Engineering

Asian Institute of Technology ALT Bangkok

Vice President Project

Italian-Thai Development Plc

Director

So Lao Aluminum Co Ltd

15 Dr Nattawuth Udayasen Age 59 years

Education

Ph .D University of Waterloo Canada

Vice President Project

Italian Thai Development Plc

16 Mr Sompop Pinijchai Age 51 years

Education

M.B.A Finance NIDA

Vice President Cost Engineering Analysis

ItalianThai Development Plc

Director

Italthai Marine Co. Ltd

17 Mr Chatichai Chutima Age 48 years

Education

Master of Economics from Ohio University U.S

Vice President Finance

ItalianThai Des clopment Plc

Director

Siam Pacilit Electric Wire Cable Co. Ltd ITI SPV Co Ltd

Siam Steel Syndicate o. Ltd

18 Mrs Pienghathai Pongsuwan Age 48 years

Education

Master Degree Management Sasin Gmaduate Institute of Business Administration of Chulalongkorn University

Vice President lTD Group of Company and Contract Administration

Italian-Thai Development Plc

19 Mrs Mathanee Vanichapol Age 68 years

Education

.Acc Accounting Chimlalongkorn University

Vice President Accounting

ItalianThai Development Plc
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Number of Shares Held by lTD Directors and Directors Remuneration

As December 2008

Pol.Lt Chartachai Bunya-Anant

Mr Premchai Karnasuta

Mrs Nijaporn Charanachitta

Dr Krisorn Jittorntrum

Mr Pathai Chakornbundit

Mr Yuthachai Charanachitta

Mr Tawatchai Suthiprapha

Mr William Lee Zentgref

Mr Peeti Karnasuta

Chairman the Board of Directors

Chairman of Audit Committee

Director

Director

Independent Director

Audit Committee Member

Director

Director

Director

Independent Director

Audit Committee Member

Director

Remuneration

Baht

750000.00

460000.00

580000.00

580000.00

580000.00

365000.00

580000.00

580000.00

580000.00

580000.00

365000.00

580000.00

Share Amount

12000

819544470

462653640

-0-

60000

33400000

-0-

-0-

33701000

Change

during the year

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-
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Report of the Audit Committee For the Year 2008

The Audit Committee of Italian-Thai Development Public Company Limited was duly appointed by the resolution of the Companys

Board of Directors at their meeting on 24 March 2008 The three members of the Audit Committee were appointed for three-year term

comprising

Pol.Lt Chartachai Bunya-Ananta Audit Committee Chairman

Dr Krisorn Jittorntrum Audit Committee Member

Mr William Lee Zentgraf Audit Committee Member

Mr Withit Ouaysinprasert the manager of Internal Audit Division serves as the secretary of the Audit Committee All members of the

Audit Committee are independent and duly qualified by the requirements of the Stock Exchange of Thailand As assigned by the Companys

Board of Directors the Committee has performed their duties and responsibilities in accordance with the directions of the Board of Directors

and in compliance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange of Thailand In 2008 they held Audit Committee Meetings each of which

was met by presence of all members except for the Chairmans absence in the and meetings due to his illness The significant activities

undertaken by the Audit Committee in the year 2008 were as follows

Review and approval of quarterly Financial Statement 2008 Annual Financial Statement Certified Public Accountants report

Financial Status report and Companys Performance report The Committees opinion states that the Financial report was accurate

and reliable

Review of the Company Internal Control System The Committees opinion states that the Companys Internal Control System

was appropriate adequate and effective

Review of legal compliance The Committees opinion states that the Company has complied with the laws relating to the Stock

Exchange of Thailand and the requirements thereof the public company act the labor law and the construction law

Selection and recommendation for appointment of the Certified Public Accountant of the Company The Committees opinion states that

Mr Somckid Tiatragul Certified Public Accountant no 2785 and/or Mrs Sumalee Chokdeeanant Certified Public Accountant

no 3322 from Grant Thornton Limited are qualified to be the Companys auditor in the year 2008

Review of the trade agreement with general conditions on transactions made between the Company or its subsidiaries and its directors

executives or connected persons The Committees opinion states that the transactions are accurate and transparent for elimination

of any conflict of interest

Review and approval of the 2008 Annual Audit Plan prepared by the Companys Internal Audit Division

Verification of the audit operation and approval of the audit reports prepared by the Internal Audit Division

Acknowledgement of the progress report on the remedy of mistakes in the performance of each worksite and making additional

suggestions to enhance the suitability and carefulness thereof

Review of risk management arising of the increases of steel and diesel oil prices in 2008 as well as measures to support the direct

impact to the Company

Pol.Lt Chartachai Bunya-Ananta

Audit Committee Chairman

Dated 25 March 2009
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Marketing and Competition

_ompet it nr ri the construction id ustr is miense due to chili ye decline in the number of construction projects in recent years and

he post poniri
ii the ds for the iZoveritinerit rliega projects New project awards are typical deterni ned through competi hidd ng

process arid after potential bidders
prerjrialil to hid on project the principal conipetilise consideration is the price of the hid This increase

Ii conipctitioii ii itistruction projects has led to price competition and general decrease in contract prices

Clients

Vve rlassits 1111 clients iii iso isay hs the type of client and by the location of client The type of client Is determined by whether they

are or the pubIs .01 ineludrrie stateoisnerl enterprises or in the prisate sector The location of the client is either doniestic or international

and is deterriiirieih ss liether the ii or 55
pci

form for the client is in Thailand or outside Thailand As of leceniher 31 200h the public sector

iccorritted for ape siiiiately h5 of our backlog us hue the
pris ate sector accounted fr appro\iniately 14.4 Domestic clients accounted

br approxiniaielu ofoum backlog of leember 31 200g while inteniational clients accounted for approxinrately l7.8Y

006 2007 2008
Backlog by Client Classification

AsofDecember3l ak

Pubis Secioi Hi kto 11 .0 85.6

Prisrure Se or ftikbo HI 14.4

.lotiii 100.0

lriuesiiL 69.5 69 82.2

hi rein at ii
al 31.5 .2 17.8

total Ot.t 1001 100.0

Prior io its \siiii firianral crisis that began in 1997 the public sector accounted for approxiniately 60 of our isork and the lrixat

sector accounicd loi
ipproxirriately

40 of our usork lurin the Asian financial crisis use experienced significant non pas nieltt of alirounts

owed to us roni iii pr ate sector property des eloper clients As result and because the puhl icse etor has generally been more act is than

lie
prr ate ser or iii

lie construction industry nec the \sian Ii narreial crisis use have foctrsed on obtaining public sector us ilk in hr land and

has been nor iii piiuirrg public sector us ork oLitside of Thailand

Partlu bu arise of the foregoing as well as our focus oii large infrastrxicture prxjeets substantial portion of our us ork is attributable

to uriuited nuiiiai of iuos eminent enterpi se We generally target large lnghprolrle contracts from public sector entities. \s result at any

point in time ii siiiitt number ol clients nay account for major portion of our rexenues and backlog ftc Electricity Generating ALithority of

Thailand tile hiriirrik \sset Dcseloprrieuit mpuny united tile Bangkok Metropolitan Admirustration Delhi Metro Rail Corporritiorr Ltd.

the National lou
rug .\uthorrty tire Mirustry of lransportatiori laisvari PTT Public Company Limited and Eleetricte de France Corrmpany

.ini ited toget icr counted for 37 .603 of our construct ion rex enues in 200 and 57.6 of our backlog its of December 200i

Competition

lhere ii iuore tliatr 571 corripaoies operating in the construction business who are members of the Thai Contractors Association

includin lIrai coinpan es foreign cottiprinies
arid joint entures hetss ecu Thai and foreign companies Competition is

rttainly
based on price

but key am tin ttitt affects the ability to priem
bid conipetitixeiy is the sourcing of materials The fluctuation of the price of rnateri ils has an

inipact upotr
ire instruction industry hecausu thu alLte of materials typically represettts approxintately 31 to 40Y of the entire pnect cost

ther thair the ro fail ity of uniaterials siginficant mornpetitiu
factors include the expertise arid experience of employ ces aird subcontractors

is us cli as joint in formation for
tecirnologicnil support arid business illiaimces

lhuai sihl sc or agencies ty picall only ulbous contractors uvimo nieet certain criteriu to hid for corrtracts Coristrurtion contrautors
irtay

be diu ned intu no tn nutiuins by les ci of expertise technical krious ledge and resource as ai lability ontractors su ho are classified in the highest

lexel typicalls qLiuilrfy to hid fom all types of contracts sshile contractors ssho are not classified ill the highest lesel are typically
excluded

roinu tiiddiniu ri muIr is us hichu require higher lex els of expertise We belies that many public sector clients fat Thailaiud hax classified us

in the highest fts ci
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The following table sets forth the construction contractors in Thailand that are listed on the SET and their reported revenues of each

for 2008

Revenues

Company Name of Total

million Baht

ItalianThai Development Public Company Limited 43698.8 40.3

Slim-Thai Engineering Public Company Limited 4716.8 13.6

CH Karnchang Public Company Limited 145 10.6

Power Line Engineei np Public Company Limited 9118.3

Syntee Construct ion Public Company Liii ted 6106.2 .6

Christiani Neilsen Thai Public Company Limited 5072.1 4.7

Nawarat Pattanakan luhl ic Coi puny Limitcd 3.800 .6 3.5

EMC Public Company Limited 2756.1 2.6

Uniq Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited 2276.0 2.1

Pie-Built Public Company Limited 2139.1 2.0

Aseon Construction Public Company Limited 1958.6 .8

SEAFCO Public Company Limited 1621.6 1.5

PAP Thailand Public Company Limited 468.7 .4

Posscr-P Public Company Limited 82.2

Total 108325.7 100.0

Source Stm Em c/iaIie o/ 1/iailammd

Note KTei /m Coimmoimctioim Pub//i onmpaimv Limited is e.ss/imdec/ becaioe ot io /mimuuitil .stateflieiit in 2038

There ate not only Thai conipanies but also foreign construction companies operating in Thailand However foreign construction

companies are restricted from the bidding in the government projects because of the governments regulation ss hich requires that the hiddeN

must he Thai juristic persons i.e juristic person who has Thai nationality shareholders holding more than 5OY of the shares The foreign

construction companies cannot set company or branch in Thailand to bid for government projects without majority of Thai nationality

shareholders except for the duration of specific and approved pi-ojects Generally this is only possible for projects undertaken by the public

sector or with Governnient support Therefore most foreign construction companies must he registered to undertake general construction business

in Thailand as cotripany in svhich Thai nationals own the majority of the shares and contribute the majority of the capital which elf ectis ely

restricts their participation in the Thai construction sector

As result of the above restrictions many foreign construction companies form joint ventures or act in consortium with.Tham construction

companies These arrangements often provide greater access for foreign companies to the Thai market and allow Thai companies including

our Company to benefit from the technical expertise and in some case financial strength of the foreign companies These arrangements tend

to be project-specific and usually dissolve when the project is eotipleted Our company has formed several such ventures for strategic reasons

and in fields where we seek to gaul experience

We also hid for projects in neighboring countries and other countries in Asia Creditable financial institutions such as the Asian

Development Bank the World Bank or JBIC financially support some of the major infrastructure projects for which we hid These projects are

open to international bidders with high qualification standards In India which we see as futtire large market as an alternatixe to China roost

local contractors failed to meet the required qualifications The majority of our competitors there were joint
sentures between local contractors

and foreign contractors from countries such as China Taiwan Korea Australia Japan or countries in Europe
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Risk Factors

Risks Related to Our Business

Our cnues and our potential revenue growth are highly dependent on Thai public sector contracts Go ernrnent policy

and the Thai econoni

We uildik sLibsiantlal portion of our operations in Thailand In 2008 we generated 58.694 of our construction service revenues in

TIi.ii laid Iii

iiioniy
and the construe ion sectot have tecently been shrinking in decrements Real GIP in Thailand grew .2 in 2006

PIt iii 2018 and real of the construction industry increased 4.34 in 2006 .6 in 2007 and .7Y in 2008 Source

Si \\ pied Let lioss long the rent econoni ic contraction will continue or whether severe financial or economic crisis will

oar iii iii
the mi mr tors that mas ads erse4 affect the Thai economy include

er .1 es in business industrial manufacturing or industrial actis ity in Thai land or in the region or globally

.S
ii

ml edit or other mincing resu Iti hg Iii loss er IC ni and for products and services provided by companies in the region

I- \ali.mie rate and oil pc fluctuations

pui
Ii med period of inflation or increase in regional interest rates

hiisi
ii taxation

ri immereence of Sexeie Acute Respiratory Syndrome conimonly known as SARS as ian influenza coninionly known as the

hi id ir the eiiiergence ui another highly nfictious disease in Thai land or in other countries in the region

Iii tistability terronsni or uiiilitary conflict in countries in the region or globally

ri iii uuiiiLion iii or increases in the les el of unrest in southern Thailand and

lie ag ul at ory political or ceo iouii ic des cI opme nts in or atiecti ng Thai land

\nr ecoiummus ecession or other deterioration in Thailands economy or decline in business industrial manufacturing or financial

ac Os its in Ii al am iii
11 ads erse ly

ati eeL our business inane ial condition results of our operations and prospects

In add
it mm mm muir business concentration in Thailand our business is also highly dependent on Thai public sector spending Our major

usto ilei .i Ii mm lO\e rn incnt and its state ow ned enterprises such as the Electricity Generating Authority of Thailand Dhanarak sset

es lopmuieuii oi ILLS mited Bangkok Metropolitan Adin inistration the National Housing Authority and PTT Public ompany Limited

ur uai puhl ii mi aiistoiliers accounted 74 and 74.34 of our construct ion revenues in 2007 and 2008 respectis ely and 83.04 and

oiii hart as of December .2007 and 2008 respectisely

iL LI liad pus ernmeni plans or Thai land pros ide for increased government expenditure on capital in frastructure pmojects

Cliii ni il_eta -ed uct ions by the Thai gus ernment ss oul adversely impact the amount ot ness public sector construction contracts

mo ed iid aitli liLa .11 any dist uption of our relationship ss ith the Gus ernment for any reason would materially affect our business hnancial

eommdiiioi uiauli iprrations piospects anr returns of investors

Ihe inlristructure prjects that undertake involve significant risks that could adversely affect our business financial

condition results of operations and prospects

gui Ii sO portion of our res ettur particularly those relating to large infrastructure projects are derived front contracts ss ith

mio Lit hii itt imis ciii Lent i.e ated ciii ties or pris ate coni panics holding concessions from govern ntent agencies within and outs ide Thailand

This asposca Li rtaiti risks not associated ss ith otliei ty pe of constttuction piojects For example many of these large infrastructure projects

ate Iii li ml
Ie si Ii aIm es It

iii increased iol it cal and public scrutiny our sv ork In addition these projects tend to be ic lative ly complex

Ii ir Ii

requm i-es ii ii nun it sigiti ficatit aittount ol esourees and working capital to these projects Such types of piojects are also subject to

delis
mu

niodilirmL due to ens iriutmnicntal considerations

Ocr ii se LI se pro peeLs are pub lie IL tided changes ilL p05 ernme lit budget and policy cons derat ions could result un de lays or changes

mm these
Pill IC La is nients to eimnstriict ion mpanies pros iding sers ices to these projects inclriding us may also he delayed as result of

disputes it Ii cmi Lime itt agettcy or Ic tiders to the pro eeLs Delays in pay ntents to us svould adversely affect our cash flows and any disputes

and baum ee ui hi ii CeL amA po1 try
eortsiderati Dos could affect orir reputation and the

availability
of financing for future projects all of svhich

55 ou Id ails ersely affect our business financial condition icsu Its of operations prospects and ieturns of investors
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If we are unable to accurately estimate the overall risks revenues or costs on our contracts or fail to agree to the pricing

of work done pursuant to unapproved change orders we may incur lower than anticipated profit or incur loss on the contracts

Substantially all of our construction contracts are either fixed price or fixed unit price contracts The terms of these contracts require us to

guarantee the price of our services on fixed price or fixed unit price basis and assume the risk that the costs associated with our performance

will not be greater than we anticipated As result we will only realize
profit on these contracts if we successfully estimate fir other factors

costs and avoid Cost oveiTuns Cost overruns whether due to inefficiency inaccurate estimates or other factors result in losver profit or los

on project Our project cost estimates are subject to number of assumptions Although we anticipate increased labor costs and materials

costs in our bids the revenue Cost and gross profit realized on fixed price or fixed unit price contract niay vary from the estimated aniounts

because of many factors including changes in job condition variations in labor and equipment productivity over the term of the contract and

unexpected increases in costs of materials and labor

Some of our construction contracts contain an escalation formula to accommodate unexpected increases in materials and labor costs

However we are typically required to bear some portion of the increase before we can make claim under the escalation formula In any event

the escalation formula may not cover the full increase in cost for our materials or labor If our estimates of the overall risk revenues or costs

prove inaccurate or circumstances change or if the escalation formula in our contracts does not cover the full increase in costs we may incur

lower profit or loss on our contracts which could materially and adversely affect our business financial condition results of operations

prospects and returns of investors

We are frequently required to perform extra or change order work as directly by the customer even if the customer has not agreed

in advance on the scope or price of the work to be performed This process may result in disputes over svhether the work performed is beyond

the scope of the work included in the original project plans and specifications or if the customer agrees that the work qualifies as extra work

the price the customer is willing to pay for the extra work Even when the customer agrees to pay for the extra work we may be required to

fund the cost of such work for lengthy period of time until the change order is approved and funded by the customer Also these unapproved

change orders contract disputes or claims result in costs to us that cannot be billed for period of time and therefore are reflected as unhilled

receivables in our balance sheet We cannot assure you that we will be able to invoice or recover the cost and profit margin for the extra or

change order work in full or at all which may lead to business disputes or may otherwise adversely affect our business financial condition

results of operations prospects and returns of investors

We are reliant on small number of clients

We generally target large government entities as clients As result at any point in time small number of clients may account for

substantial portion of our revenues and backlog The Electricity Generating Authority of Thailand Dhanarak Asset Des elopnient Company

Limited Bangkok Metropolitan Administration Delhi Metro Rail Corporation Ltd. the National Housing Authority Ministry of Transportation

Taiwan PTT Public Company Limited and Electricte de France accounted for 43.4% and 37.7% of our construction revenues in 2007 and

2008 respectively and 54.9% and 57.6% of our backlog as of December 31 2007 and 2008 respectively If any of these clients ceases to

provide us with nesv svork or if there are any significant disputes relating to any of our contracts with any of these clients this could temporarily

disrupt our business which could materially and adversely affect our business financial condition results of operations prospects and returns

of investors

Our failure to meet schedule requirements of our contracts could require us to pay liquidated damages

Substantially all of our contracts are subject to specific completion schedule requirements with liquidated damages charged to us if

we do not achieve the construction schedules Liquidated damages are typically levied at the rate of 0.1% of the contract value for each day

of delay that is deemed to be our responsibility subject to maximum liability
of 10% of the contract value Any failure to meet our schedule

requirements of our contracts could cause us to pay significant liquidated damages svhich could adversely affect our liquidity
and cash flows

and have material adverse effect on our business financial condition results of operations prospects and returns of investors

Our projects expose us to potential liability claims

We construct many projects where design construction or systems failures can result in substantial hazards or property damages to

third parties The mistakes of such projects subsequent to their completion can result in similar hazards and damages or environmental impacts

and pollution in noise dust smoke spreading collapse or crack of nearby buildings during construction or after construction Litigation arising

from any of these occurrences may take us to be defendant in lasvsuits asserting large claims or subject us to significant regulatory penalties

Although we maintain insurance policies svith coverage to the extent and in amounts sve believe prudent to protect us from these potential
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in Hat oii Ii out Insurance eii\era ssill be sufficient or the conditions in the insurance polie coser all eicliiltrlces 01 agaitist

tiar be liable suessfiil churn aCiinst us or an1 of our subsidiaries associated companies or joint selittires could

hi ii 001 Il 11110 .iiid 0llild Iii.ie inilisrial aciserse elfeek On our business fuiancial condition results of Operations pimpects and

uo stilts of operations depend on the tuning of new contract asards and the timing of the pcrhwniance of these contracts

lix ne ia\ dense iibsl1iiltili portion 010111 resenucs directly oriiidireetl from limited nuinhcroflargecoiistruetion

rI ii he done iindei contract and lherefire the tuning and alilOllilt of es enue that ss reeogni/e aries depending

ii ihc III ii lie siai.Ze of lie cOllsiniletion that is being peifot ned at any pai tieular time There is ty picilly less construetio

iii ii titi cmi ol coirstructioii projeCt resuitini in our reeogni inn less es enues at these stage compared ss ith the

ii
per

loi
iii ii

lie middle ol eonslriictiolr project \shen sse reeirenile Iliore rescnueslherefore.oui iesults of operations

Iii xi idiriC ill the lIMO troll and stltle of our contracts it ally jsarticuklr time and the composition of contracts ss thin our portfolio

it at lift ii

illillplediet is hetlier or svllin ssc ssiil receise assards of ness contracts lshieh frequently insolse lenethy and complex

rids pioccss ssfiich is affectrd hr nuirrherof factors incltcfiniz market conditions financing arrangements and gosernmental

ipfll\ ii Ii the tsettiies 11111 cmli floss 111110 our piOjeets can he delayed by nuniher of factors including asailabiliti of labor

ii fIr is iii cccl sing material and
cci Lupnletit front sLippliers and changes ill the scope of ss ork to he performed Ihese delays

ii lie Ii iii
idsersc effect in rurilpeltiuilla results br particcilar period As iesult of the fbreaoing our results of ieiuttiOns

.iucI ci Ii iilro axle siCllifie1llltl\ fnou period to period

titus uulit be able to lull realie the contract same ol our projects or the alue of our backlog

ii foe general illdic1iuor of our les ci ohs ork to he completed Back log represents our estimate of the cottt met value

if lid 11 ci itipleled ii ii iris ci nine under our executed project contract The contract riltue ill project represents the

tIll liii ii es icc etc under lie terms the contract if tii contract is perfoniiieci iii iccirrdanee is ith ik terms Our backlog antounted

Ii -i Li
it aid ifaht 4.hhf.It million as of lcceiiihei 2i07 and lcccttiher 2015 respectisely We

ltiay
lot realize the

pt Ii the rc\eiiue se expect it receise from our baekhre or if ise iealize resenue it flay lot result ill

piofits
lor

lccict itt rui hacklo is teriilinitcd sLlspelldeci or reduced ill scope it iruld result ill reduction to our backlog ishich

II ii II riliterilil extelit the nesenuc cash lions iitd
OperlitiltC prlit \\i ietutlis receise from the coittrticts Sic include in

ii el
pi llject is niar be reimbursed for entliri costs hut ss typically \sll.uld base rio contrartual

right to the total

el II sicklir Significant callcelllllons or delays of projects ili our back og colildl Itase niaterial idserse effect on our

II li ii tin results of ilperatiolls prospects and metlirns of nusestors

ur Iiiiihiluis to obtain bonds anti other linancing could limit the nuiiiber of lrOieCiS %e are able to pursue

II .1

III

111 .111

Ii

11111

S.

Ii .1 11

ii crulIlIlli

ill id\ ci Is

ill c0

ii lie dlnsiruelion imilLisiry arid lie are typically requm ed ill pars ide surety bonds to bid for and to secure our performance

Is Lii butts ii liturl surety boil_Is primarily depends upon our capitalization isorking capital past perloiiiillnce

It lii c\icnliII fxctoi iruclmidjir the oserail financial capacity of thc suieiy coiirpanics and banks Suiety companies

Iii ill dir ill tlliii risk luanaireilrelit polices and underss ruing siandards is loch flay change from line to

Milk xii iso .ini our ci rLlumn/itioli sonic pros dens irf surety bonds required us to pledge cash deposits or piovide

tb iflcrut to sectni our comniitgeiri irhl itrations under the bonds The pledges of cash affected our liquidity
and si orkltig

II ilic ci iipieiiirn rim busilress rein gailulatilrru i0\ idei of surety bonds has generally ilot reqiui
ed is to pledge cash

ill lid HI Icr iiI di lrculties ohtitlllng surety bonds after run business reorganization ss cannot assuue on that

in Nan die loud requiieJ lirn to ollciite our business eitliei on secured or unsecured hais on eounniercially

ainuid mite iaih mIt
.iiscisely affect ow business financial condition nesulis ol operaturuis pIospedts and

IC lime .iiiit itnili iimtciliii it pros ide irccded acldit ional
svorkuiig capital

tir II lance start-up costs If projects includuig

ii it arid equiplocilt befi me ise neccie parinent under cirntnact Ow ability to arramige fbi fInancing ssill depend ill part

ni ciririn ii such as .i
trill nciai instiiditroiis lelidiitg policr 11111 pies ailing

ntrket conditions as ssell as upoi our business

its of olemun rIms 11111 prospects Our inability to obtaiir adequate finantciiiir to fund Olin isorking callitlll recltuieitieitts

11111 ability in penionni our oblicaninlis wrden exIsting contracts and our ability to obtain ness contracts isitich could hase

It on ir in business lrntutcia doirdlutron prospects and tetutlis of itiyestos
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10 We may face intense competition liich could reduce our market share and profits

The constructioit business in Thai land and throughout Asia highly compctiti Ness project ass aids are is pica dctcnii ned hrori

competitive bidding process and after potential bidders prequal ly to hid on project the principal competitis considerat oil the gricc
of

the hid flicie is increasilg competition for constructioll projects in Thailand and other
pails

of Asia from both Tho and forcin eoiisi iIctioil

coinpan ies part
icul ar from China Japan and Korea some of ss horn has nanc and operational resources greatei than on rs cs nit

sve may need to ac ept loss er piofit inaigins or make other concessions in order for us to he able to successfully conipete II \s iic unable

to compete silece ss ui ly our el at niarket share and
piofi

Is Is oul he red riced svh ich Is ou LI inateri ly
and ads erse il cr1 Liii hi sine ss

financial condition results of operatioiis prospects and icturits of investors

11 Our participation in joint ventures exposes its to liability
for failures ol our joint venture partners

We someti nes enter into joint enture ariangeiuents ssith outside partners on joint
and sd eral basis so that ss can poiittl ill

and execute particular project ss heit ss req Li lie special iied cx pe rience or technology ss hen ss ss ant to pgi
ade iiLtr hi riding hg if lit oi

svhen we ss ant to reduce our financial or operational risk ss ith respect to such projects Success on these joint enture projects depends ii laiga

pait
on our ahihty to operate elf ectis

ely ss ith our joiitt xenturc partners and on ss hether our joint sentliie partners perform their onlricttli

obligations If one of our joint venture partner fails to perform or is financially unable to bear its portion of reriuied capital
LIllrihtitIns ssc

could he required to make additional inscstnlents anti preside additional sers ices to make UI for our partners shortfall In addiiioii if the oss nci

ot project is entitled to damages or penalties under joint senture contract br any reason sse corild he required to hear our out ntuie

shares of the damages or penal ties if our point utu ic paitner fails to pay Its share Furthermore if 55 arc uitib It 10 adeq Liite idrlie ss

partners performance issues the project oss tier may term nate the ro cct \S hi ch could result ii legal liability to Li Ii arni OLI reprit at IL it id

reduce our profit on project ss ich cold niateri
ally

and ads erse affect our business iii anc al condition resu is of opc at 105 prospects .Iiii

returns of its estors

12 We hase significant contingent liabilities that could materialize vvhich if the materialize could materiall and alverscls

affect our business financial condition results of operations and prospects

We have si gil Ii cant contingent liabilities that could arise Ltnder the terms of our bus ness reorgail
iat ion plan Linde lie su rely bonds

that we procure for our construction projects and under the terms of our guarantees ol our subsidiaries and under the ternis of ceit.i iii
If our

construction prjects

Business Reorganization Plan

We may he obligated to make principal and interest payments on the iestructured debt that we sold as pait of LLir husniess
reorgaul/.iI

II

plan Under the terms of our business reoreani ation plan sse tianslericd our non coie assets svith alue agieed hells ecu us iiid oLir err tI 1101

of Baht 4000.0 million to special puipose company ossned by our cicditors Iii return for the special puipose conipaity Issunhi ng utd aorecin2

to pay the remaining outstanding principal aniount of our debt totaling Baht .604.4 million

The
speciril purpose company is required to sell the non coie assets by June 31 2007 and use the pioeeeds to cpus lie out tndin

principal amounts under the assumed debt If all of non coie assets has not been sold by June 30 2007 the total oritstaiidimi pmeipal aniotuil

of the assumetf debt ss ill become immediately Lie and pay able on Lily 2117 If all of the non core assets has been sold by lLine 20

hut not all ot the outstanding principal amount of the assumed debt has been iepaid the total outstandiig pi ineipal litliOLitil of the osLInid

debt ss ill heconie tfuc and payable iii his equal installments eseiy six months heginniniz June 31 20f8 and ending June 30 211 togetliei

svith accrued interest at Miii iiii tim end ng Rate ii nor nced by Bangkok if an Plc SI am Coni mere al iink PIe nI iii Li lIt flil ifl lii tie

outstanding pri icipIl aniotlnt of the assumed debt on each such date In either ease the terms of our busIness reorgani/atlon pIlIn requuie LIs II

lend to the special prupose company an amount eqLial to the outstantli ig prmcipal anioLint of the assumed debt outstanding together ss lii thic

accrued inteiest if applicable on the reles ant pay ment dLIe dutIes so that the special uipose company IS able to make tile ierlluieLl pas iiicnts

If sve make the loan to the spec ill PUIO5C conipany 55 55 ill he reqn ed II stahl ish meserse in chat on to tile loan aniotuit because the spec il

purpose company does not has any opcrati ons of its 055 and the CLII leetab iii ty of lie loan ccc is able svoi LI he iemtIc hc outstand oi

principal amoLmnt of the ass tinted debt ss as hI iii ill ion as of Dccc itt her 2118

Surety Bonds and Guarantees

Our contimiLlent liabilities under suiely bonds amotlntcd IL Baht 21 .711 ntillion Baht 28.799 nimlllon as of Deceitihcr 2007 dULl

December 31 .2018 respectisely and our contingent liabilities under guarantees that we issuetf to Ilnancial institutioll 10 sccLlie credit Irilulids

granted by those fnlaneia itstitLttions to our sLihsidiltrie associated coltipanies anLI joint eittrnes amotlnted to Baht 8870 noihion
.1 in
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8670 nillion as of December 3l 2007 and December 3l 2008 respectively call on some of these bonds by project owner would result

in the financial institutions iding the bonds claiming the amounts paid under the bonds from us In addition claim on sonic of these

guarantees by financial institution could subject us to liabilities under the guarantees These factors may adversely affect our liquidity which

could materially amid adsersely attect our bus ness financial condition results of operations prospects and returns of investors

13 We may need to establish additional lrovisions for doubtful receivables and recognize additional losses on the diminution

in value of our investments

Historicall\ we incurred significant amounts of trade receivables from related and non-related
parties

and loan receivables from related

parties In addition sse also had significant amounts of insestments in related and other parties In 2001 we established provisions fordoubtful

accounts of Bahi t29.2 million and recognized los on the diminution in value of our investments of Baht 437.7 million

We had let current accounts receivable retention amounting to Baht 8698.3 million and Baht 11158.3 million as of December 31

2007 and December 31 2008 respectively

In addition future nonpayments of our trade and loan receivables and diminution in the value of our investments may result in our

has nip to establish pros isions equal to the amount of such ionpayment or the amount of such diminution in the future which could materially

and adsersels affect our business financial condition results of operations prospects and returns of investors

14 Our construction projects outside Thailand expose us to political and economic risks in those countries

We are sec np to increase the portio of our business that we undertake in countries outside Thailand Our work outside of Thailand

accounted tor 5jf and 41 .3Y of our construction revenues in 2007 and the 2008 respectively and 30.2% and 17.6% of our backlog as of

December 31 2007 and 2008 respectively mx luding projects in Cambodia India Laos Myanmar the Philippines Indonesia Vietnam United

\rab I.nimrates and Faissan We also expect to hid 6r and he assarded nesv construction contracts in these and other countries

The political economic and security situations in some of these countries has been unstable from time to time in the past and the

gosernments of sonic of these countries have occasionally intervened in the economies and made significant changes in policies of these

eoluitncs An example ol an set of intervention is an imposition of currency controls by country in svhich sve have project which could

affect our abihit io repatriate our earnings arising from the project out of that country Any future political instability or economic slowdown

or recession in thex countries could affect our existing contracts and/or result in slower grosvfh in the number and size of larger infrastructure

and construction piojecis sshieli could niaterially and adversely affect our business financial condition results of operations prospects and

returns of insestoi As our eoilstniction sers ice business increases in these countries in these countries our exposure to the political economic

and security risks oi these countries sv ill also increase

15 We are dependent upon the availability and cost of materials labor and sub-contractors

Materials used in our construction projects typically represent approximately 30X to 40Y of our total project costs. These materials

are global eonoiiodities and their
availability

and prices depend on local and global market conditions If there is shortage of these materials

pmrtieulirly ceilieni and steel we may find it difficult to obtain the amounts of these materials that sve require at price which we believe is

comiiierciall acceptable or at all which may materially and adversely affect our business financial condition results of operations prospects

and returns of mit br

Oui ability iii control labor costs and to manage large infrastructure projects is dependent upon our ability to attract and retain qualified

engineers architects and technicians ss ith sutfi cient experience in the engineering design and construction of such projects We have employed

and ssc expect to contimlue to employ sub coni actors to pertorm some of our construction activities We and our subcontractors are dependent

upon the asailahilit of svorkers particularly svhen the level of actis
ity in the construction industry is high If there is shortage of trained

engnleers architects technicians and other workers in Thailand sve may have difficulty hiring adequate numbers of skilled personnel and

other workers diiectly or through sub-contractors in the future We also cannot assure you that the costs of retaining or employing skilled

personnel or othei workers will not exceed our estimates svhich may materially and adversely affect our business financial condition results

of operat pect and returns of in estors
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Sales Structure

Italian-Thai Development Public Company Limited Subsidiary Companies Associated Companies Joint Ventures

2008 2007 2006

Sales Structure Baht Baht Baht

Million Million Million

Large-scale Building Construction 8789.82 19.04 162l1 .62 35.52 14715.03 34.53

Industrial Plants and Facilities 2164.50 4.69 2627.70 1.15 994.34 2.33

Pipelines and Tank Farms 2344.94 5.08 2182.04 3.39 1.64 .64 3.85

Highways RaiIwas Bridges and Expressway Systems 11515.66 24.95 7935.33 10.68 4.89516 11.49

Airports Jetties Deep-sea Ports and Marine Works 4182.93 9.06 3308.99 21.68 5299.94 2.44

Multi-purpose Hdro-clectric Darns Tunnels and Power Plants 5829.29 12.63 6296.76 13.74 4.89149 11.48

Steel Structures 64.61 0.14 335.79 11.61 39.39 .09

Telecommunications 652.14 1.41 299.81 0.13 1214.23 2.85

Mmmc 2316.46 5.02 1214.84 4.95 2146.72 5.04

10 Miscellaneous 7139.10 15.47 7070.16 15.29 5545.16 13.0

II Others 1157.72 2.51 .306.38 3.07 1227.52 2.88

Total Sales 46157.17 100.00 48789.38 111.00 42.611.62 111.00

Sale Growth Decline 5.40% 4.50 0.60

Related Party Transactions from Construction 1257.98 715.83 752.24

Related
Party

Transactions from misccllaneou 886.95 1144.66 813.94

Others 313.39 417.27 585.9

Total net aftcr provisions 43698.85 46.51 .62 41.458.53

Growth Decline 6.05% 14.96% 375

Subsidiary Companies Associated Companies Joint Ventures

Lines of Construction and Public Utilities Work including Supported Lines of Construction

of
2008 2007 2006

Company Name

Unit Thousand Baht
Holding Sales Sales Sales

Subsidiary Companies

Myanmar lTD Co Ltd 99.99 II .00

ItalianThai International Co Ltd 99.99 244960 1.07 70.921 .85 .221 .118

PT Thailindo Bara Pratama Co. Ltd 99.99 279829 1.23 15.461 1.08 9.8 12 1.58

Bhaka Bhuini Development Co. Ltd 99.99 254933 1.12 146.7 18 .73 130.068 1.80

Thai Pride Cement Co. Ltd 99.99 1382789 6.06 1279.255 6.37 .18 .005 6.69

Sin Rae Muangthai Co Ltd 99.99 12649 0.05 2605 .01 .00

ItalianThai and Co. .td 99.99 393

Italian-Thai Power Co. Ltd 99.99 524 57

Sarahuri Construction technology Co. Ltd 99.99 28547 0.13 2.273 .0

10 Nha Pralan Crushing Plant Co Ltd 99.9 44161 0.19 22.08 .11 43.913 .27

II Siani Concrete Brick Products Co Ltd 99.70 218637 0.96 376.415 .87 572.463 3.54

12 ltaltliai Marine Co. Ltd 86.96 993562 4.36 999.928 4.98 352.616 2.18

13 lTD Cementation India Limited 80.48 10363627 45.63 7848.567 39.09 5.237.762 32.41

14 ltalthai-Trevi Ltd 80.45 587721 2.58 618901 3.08 496870 3.17

IS Asian Steel Product Co. Ltd 69.90 256190 1.12 275.909 1.37 153.940 .95

16 Thai Maruken Co Ltd 50.96 325846 1.43 444551 2.2 348.157 2.15
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Company Name of
2008 2007 2006

Holding Sales Sales Sales

11746 0.024.257

32

2.83969

408573

84197 .52

29.398 08

60.00

60.00

60.0

60.00

55.00

.00

1391605

121224

106136

1567173

6.10

0.53

0.47

6.87

14.14

2.03

15

3.175909

518821

.0

9.03

3.2

1701.958 8.48 1280716 7.92

018

Unit Thousand Baht

Joint Ventures

Ill VIS Joint Venture

II Joint cirtirie

ltiiirn Fhri kinka
Llfldhy

Joint Venture

Ii owl Venture NT

Ill Nro trot

Ill III ciii iwortium Joint VenJur

hint \enture

Swiitoriir ttil iou Htii Joint \enture

III NC bull \eiituie

IN bull entule

II III Ill cr11 lint \enttite

ITI NS Jo iii \enti.iie

Ill SQ Joint noire

IT Joint Venture

IS Shiiriiir IIJ joint \enturc

16 Joint \cIitiItL

P.l II hunt \euituie

IS ION Joint entitle

115 John \rri toe

20 Joint \untuie

NV III AS Joint \enture

22 butt Nentitir eluieen Itoliutri Thai Pl.WC

23 eiireiit toni Joint Nenture

Assoeiated ompanies

Itil ion Iiii puin o. tO

\I \ri Iurunut .o. ii

uiaiti Par hr Iodiiie tO

Sino ao \Juniunuiti Corporation _o. tO

lhuii Rent id

\wui Steel oi poiit ion

\iianiariiiu oiitriietion SIN RH
MRP ojolt uctioti o. tO

v1RI Ihuulilitic oi tl ation o. JO

906 0.56

197897 1.22

2248 0.08

0.03

0.61

9.69

0.33

0.07

0.02

5859

138278

2209709

75575

15030

4.663

418

864

55

28834

65.38

IS .577

IS

43553

383

414.416

2004

974

74

14

158873

.14

0.52

2.57

22

2.06

0.79

.0

51.00

51.0

5150

5010

40111

40.01

40.00

40.00

39.00

35.00

25.00

25.00

25.00

.00

5118

498

46.6

3418

30.00

30.00

25.00

2441

24.00

.57457

1197

314.116

15156

1810

6317

II

13115

.765

77 .788

9.5

.1

.88

II

0.0

0.04

0.00

1.08

.11

0.48

122

179036 0.79

103406 0.45 15.320 0.08

1.486 0.01

7.639 0.05

41.227 .26

6.669 .04

40
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Investment in Other Lines Real Estate Development and Consumer Products

2008 2007 2006

Company Name of
_________________ __________

Unit Thousand Baht
Holding Sales Sales Sales

Subsidiary Companies

Asia Logistics Development Co. Ltd 99.93

Asia Industrial and Port Corporation Co. Ltd 99.93

Associated Companies

Praram Square Hotel Co Ltd 50.00 0.00

Chantahuri Farm Co Ltd 5.72 7.319 0.04 1.513 0.0

Pramam Squate Co Ltd 20.00 20 0.00

2280941 100.00 20.080.320 100.00
l6J65.l92

100.00

Annual Report 2008 41



lTD Investment in Related Companies

Company Name

Unit Thousand Beaht

Subsidiary Companies

Italian Thai niernationat

Co. Ltd

Myanmar Ltd

PT Thailindi Baia Pratama

Co Ltd

Bhaka Bhumi Ies elopmcnt

Co Lid

Thai Pride Cement Co. Ltd

Sin Rae Muaiigthai Co. Ltd

Italian Thai and Co Ltd

Italian Thai Eon ci Ci. Ltd

Sarahuri Constrnc tioli Technology

Co. Ltd

Nha Pralan Crnshing Plant Co.

Ltd

It Siam Concrete Brick Products

Co Ltd

Bangkok 0-27 16-1611 11-2716-141

ext 4201

Myaninar 9511 525 970 951 525-971

Indonesia It 1-628-522 111 625 41 77

3158 1166

Bangkok 0-27 6-16011 2716 1464

ext 5057

Bangkok 27161751 II 2716 0751

Bangkok -2716-1600 -2716-1418

ext 4201

Bangkok 0-27 16-1611 1-27 16- 141

ext 4201

Bangkok 0-2716-1161-4 1-2716-1169

Bangkok 0-2716-1601 1-27 16-1418

ext 420

Saraburi 3635-1155 t-3635-I 155

Patumthani 0-2511-2281-2 11-2511-2280

2387 1056 2387 1056

27161611 1127161600

ext 6076 ext 6076

27t6-1600 2716 1418

ext 4211

038-606024 038-606114

11191226 01 91 226

768-0600 768-0841

-2716-1600 1-27th 1418

ext 421

0-2716-1600 0-2716-1418

ext 42111

22312226 223 2230

Holding Conipany and ship charter

hire

Sers ice Agent or ITt

Coal digestion scm ices

Construction and real estate

Manufacture and distribution of

cement

Mining business

Not yet operational

Proclnction and distribution of

electricit

Manufacture distribution aiid

installation of

concrete panels

Rock quarrying processing and

distribution

\lanufactnre and distrihntion of

concrete products

for real estate

Production and sale of sessels and

equipment

koundatnon and piling ss ork

scm ices

Not yet operational

Manufacture and distribution of

steel pipes
for cix it construction

Construction services in India

Not yet operational

Not yet operational

Leasing/selling of sheet piles and

beams

Paid-up Capital

Amount

100.000 100

300.000 75

1.483 100

25.250 100

Million IDR

111 111

4.975 25

1.300.000 lOt

.000 1111

3.471941 99.23

11.000 1181

25111 25

250 25

As of 31 December 2008

lTDs investment in Related Companies in excess of 10% of the paid-up capital is reported below

Lines of business cover construction public utilities and support trades

Head FaxJ
Tel Nature of Business

Office E-mail

of

Holding

99.99

99.99

99.99

9999

99 99

99.99

99 99

99 99

9993

Italtliai Marine Co Ltd

Italthai1 rex Co fid

14 PaId Palane Ngan Co. Ltd

IS Asian Steel Prodnet C. Ltd

16 lTD Cementation India Ltd

17 Palang Thai Kains ia o. Ltd

Khunka Palang Iliai Ci Ltd

19 Thai Maruken Co Ltd

joint Ventures

rDVhS Joint \entui

ITD-NAWARA3 .1

ITAC Joint Venture

.000

84.081

460.000

5s .00

.000

21.1

115

Million INR

.000

.000

211.1881

Bangkok

Bangkok

Bangkok

Rayong

India

Bangkok

Bangkok

Bangkok

Bangkok

United

Arab

Emirates

Bangkok

100 99.91

100 99.71

100 86.96

tOll 811.45

1181 74.9

50 69 91

69.57

1111 99.94

100 61 48

100 5096

12716-16111 0-2716-1418

ext 4211

001-97-143- 01-97-143-

383-200 387 311

11-2716-1600 2716 1418

ext 4201

Track Douhl
nig

Contractor

Construction sers ices in United

Arab Ernirales

Design installation and
laying

of

telephone lines

300 1111

Thousand

AED
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Company Name

Unit Thousand Beaht

Italian-Thai Skanska Lundby

Joint venture

lTD NCC Joint Venture NT-2

lTD lTD Cern Consortium Joint

Venture

ITD-EGC Joint venture

lTD NCC Joint Venture

IN Joint Venture

10 lTD-lTD CEM Joint Venture

II lTD NSC Joint Venture

12 LTD SQ Joint Venture

13 Shimizu-ITD Joint Venture

14 ITO Joint Venture

15 lOT Joint Venture

ION Joint Venture

17 IDS Joint Venture

18 I.C.CT Joint Venture

19 NWRITDCNTASJoint

Venture

20 Joint Venture Evergreen Italian

Thai -PEWC

lTD Cemindia Joint Venture

Associated Companies

Italian-Thai Gypsum Co Ltd

ATO Asia Turnouts Co Ltd

Siam Pacific Holding Co Ltd

Sino Lao Aluminum

Corporation
Limited

Asia Steel Corporation

Anamarine Construction SDN

BHD

Head
Tel

Office

Bangkok 0-2716-1600

ext 4201

Laos 0-2716-1600

ext 4201

India 001-91-332-

511-2866

Taisvan 0-2716-1600

ext 4201

Bangkok 0-2716-1600

ext 4201

Bangkok 0-2716-1600

ext 4201

India 101-91-226-

768-0600

Bangkok 0-2716-1600

ext 420

Bangkok 0-2716-1600

ext 4201

Laos 0-2716-1600

ext 4201

Bangkok 0-2716-1610

ext 4201

Bangkok 0-2716-1600

ext 4201

Bangkok 0-2716-1600

ext 4201

Bangkok 0-2716-1600

ext 4201

Bangkok 0-2716-1600

ext 4201

Bangkok 0-2716-1600

ext 4201

Taiwan 001-886-

22788-2966

India 001-91-226-

768-0600

Nature of Business

Design and construction of tunnels

and underground posver lines

Construction of Nam Theun

Hydropower Project in Laos

Construction of an airport at India

Construction of underground

electrical train station in Taisvan

Construction of electrical

svork on Terminal Building of

Suvarnabhumi Airport

Construction of svater drainage

tunnel

Construction services in India

Dedicated pipelines project

Contractor for the overburden

and
lignite

removal services at

Mae Moh Mine

Contractor for bridge
construction

in Laos

Construction of Suvarnabhumi

Airport Terminal Building
and

Concourse Building

Airfield Pavement Construction for

Suvarnabhumi Airport

Contractor for Mass Rapid

Transit Project in Bangkok

Contractor for Construction of

Electrical Work on Terminal

Building
of Suvarnabbumi Airport

Construction for Ground

Improvement of Suvarnabhumi

Airport

Design and construction of Water

Treatment System

Construction services in Taisvan

Construction services in India

Construction in Saudi Arabia 105110 25

Production and distribution of 5000 100

turnouts for railway projects

Holding company 58625 100

Bauxite mine business Million 20

USD

Manufucture import
and

export
of

steel in the Philippines

Construction contractor in 65 Thousand 25

Malaysia RM

Paid-up Capital
of

Amount Holding

60.00

60.00

60.00

55.00

51.00

Faxi

E-mail

0-2716- 14 18

0-2716- 1418

00 1-9 1-3 32-

511-2866

0-2716-1418

0-2716- 1418

0-2716-1418

00 1-9 1-226-

768-0841

0-2716- 1418

0-2716-1418

0-2716-1418

0-2716- 1418

0-2716-1418

0-2716-1418

0-2716- 14 18

0-2716-1418

0-2716-1418

001-886-

22788-505

00 1-9 1-226-

768-0841

0-2642-5 123

0-3636-5311-20

0-2745-6118

prayoteccw

hotmail .com

001-632-788-

0141

Prasart@

itd.co.th

51 .00

51.00

50.50

50.00

40.00

40.00

39.Ot

35.0

25.00

25.00

25.00

20.00

50 .111

49.00

46.69

34.00

30.00

25.00

Bangkok 0-2245-0244

Bangkok 0-3636-5311-20

Bangkok 0-2745-6118

Laos 001-85-620-

680- 8288

Philippines
001-632-788-

0770

Malaysia 0-2716-1600

ext 450
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Paid-up Capital

Company Name

Unit Thousand Beaht

MCRP Construction Corporation

Co. ltd

TVICRP Ibid lug Corporation

Co. id

Other Conipanies

Bauuekok Steel \S ne Co. Ltd

lo oThm irpl II ttiitt Plc

Ihai Cont rictors ssets Co Ltd

Naru lhenn lou er Co. Ltd

Thai Rent All _td

Cltaruuntg iItai \\irc and Cable

Pie

Bangkok 127161600

ext 5808

Bangkok 0-2260-8505

Bangkok 023 9103

Laos 12716I 600

ext 42

Bangkok -2740-2681-7

Rattgkok 0-2745-6118

Amount

25 Million 25

leso

Nlillitst

Peso

3L110 10

61500 10

251000

128 Million 16.5

25188 10

1.999.288 100

Investment in other lines of business real estate development and consumer products

Head
Tel

Office

Philippines 111-632-788-

17

Philippines 111632788

0770

FaxJ

E-mail

81 -632-788-

1141

1-63 2-788-

0141

0-2716-1418

0-2260-8515

0-2319-1131

1-2716-148

11-2741-2688

0-2745-6118

Nature of Business

Construction contractor the

Philippittes

Holding compatly in the

Philippines

Prodttctiott and disirihtitioit of P.C

Wire and P.C Strand

Cotistrttcthtn contractor

Real estate developmet it

ydtoelectric power platut operator

Constrnetioit tuachinery retutal

Manufacture attd di strihtttion of

enamel coated wire and cable

of

Holding

2400

24.00

1998

16.25

518

15.0

15.01

12.9

FaxJ

E-mail

Head
Tel

Office

Battgkok

ext 4201

Bangkok

ext 420

Nature of Business

Paid-up Capital

Company Name

Unit Thousand Baht

Subsidiary Companies

\sua Logistics e\ elopment

C. ltd

\sia litdnstrcil iitd Port

Citlliuatnni .i Id

.ssociated .ompariies

lrarnut Square lotci .o. Ltd

hantahtiri tirnl td

lraiam Squat ltd

Other Companies

luuupeiial
Icchut lop

Maitageutieni 5cr icc Pie

Cvbcr lta orp ration Ci. Ltd

NIHome SPV .t o. Ltd

Amount

I_I 10

Battgkok

Bangkok

Bangkok

3-2246-2323

-598

22462323

of

Holding

90 93

5018

35.72

2158

16.83

027 16 141 Not yet operatioital

11-2716-141 Not Ct operatioital .000

0-2246-2323 Hotel business 118

2231-5993 Real estate development 61188

022462323 Developer of shopping center and 75100

cotttmercial arcas.etc

11265 14105 Initation and establishment ol 88235

Asiait LI it versity ol Scicitce aitd

Technolttgy

1632788 Real estate developnieutt

114 lMilliott Peso

02677320 Real estate des ebopment 10

10

10

75

Bangkok -2651-4105

PltuI
ippittes

311-632-788-

077

Bangkok -2677-3001

08 14.25

II .54
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Related Party Transactions

During the past year the Company and it yubyidiaricy had buine tramaction it ith elated partiet tiltich may hate produced conflicti of intereit The folloo ing table tuttimari/et the pertinent detailt of tuch

related party tiansactiont

Company DesCnption of Relations

The Value of

Transactions

Transactions

ending December

312008

Details of Transactions
Necessity and Reasonableness

of Connected Transactions

Stain Steel Sindicate

Co Ltd

Steel Bar Production

ltalihai Indutirial Co Ltd

Machinet Pant Tradinti

connected company

The ompanv held total of .1 of the total

ouitiandin tharet of Siam Steel Syndicate

Co Ltd

The Directory of the Company Mr Preuichai

Karnatuta and Mr Yuihachai Chaianachiita

and related
pertont

of the Direciort held total

of IS U- of the total outtiandine tharet of

Siam Steel
Syndicate

Co Lid

connected company

The Dneciort Mr Pietticliji kaittatuta

Mr
Nijaporn

Charanachitta and Mr Yuihachai

Charanachitta and related
pertons

of the

Directors held total of of the total

outstandiniz shares of ltalthai Indutiriat Co Ltd

The Directors of the Company Mr Premchai

Karnatuta Mrs Nijapoin Charanachiita and

Mr Yuihachai Charanachitta are the Directors of

ltalthai Industrial Co. Ltd

Retenue from office ienial Bahi lOS million

common area se ices and

utilitiet and sale of billet

scrap iron and contirucilont

tert ices

Resenue from Water Tank

installation and etaini up of

ii act iincry

Account receitable Baht fD million

ott of machines and parts Baht 91 96 ni Ilion

expentet Back Hoe rental

maintenance expentet.and

other ters icet expentet

am Steel Syndicate Co. Lid pact for

office rental common area scm icet and

utilitiet for an amount of Baht 2Th .000

pci
month and tale of billet

tcrap
iron

and construction sei icet is itti 60

dayt of credit iei in

The Company purchated
tteel bar for

contiruciton projects
ttiih 60 90 dast

of credit term

ltalthai Mai inc told the scrap iron io

Siam Steel Syndicate Co. Lid tsith

60 dayt of credit term

The Company intiatled Water Tank

and
iepaired

machiners for ltatthai

lndmtrial Co Lid

with 50 60 dayt
of credit term

The Company purchated machines and

pant and maintenance terticet from

ltalihai Indutirial Co tel

ttith 50 60 days credit term

Die irantactiommt ai bated on market

pi ic in and on arm lentti hasit

Utility chaiet are actual cost pricing

The trantacimotit are hated on cost plim

margin pric tug and on in length bati

Noi mat hutinett transaction

The ii antactiont are based on market

pricinu
and ott at ms leneth batit

The Pt ice of the yet ap ott it hated on

market pi ic tue and on army cmi eth batit

The transactions are bated on cmi plut

margin priciti and on arms lenth bati

Noi mal butinets irantacimon

Spare tpari
machines Back Hoe rental

and sert ices are hated oim market pricin

and on arm length
batit

The ii antaciton it ith

tubtidiarv

ltalthai Marine Co Ltd

Cott of materials

Accoutti payable

Sale of tci ap ott

Bahi lOS million

Baht 25.11 million

Ret enue from goods Bahi 5.67 niillion

Bahi 42.04 million

Account
payable

Baht 69.60 million



Amari Co tic

Hotel and Re lit

Auo Siam Marine Co Ltd

Oil Operation

ltalthai Engineering

Co. Ltd

Construction and Installation

of Gas and Air Conditioning

Systems

onnecteci .ompans

Fhe Director of the .ornpan Mi Premchai

Karnasuta Mrs Nijaporn Charanachitta and

Mr Yuthachai Charanachitta and related
persons

of the Directors held total of S6r of the

registered capital
of Amari Cci. Ltd

The Directors of the Company Mr Premchai

Karnasuta Mrs Nijaporn Charanachitta and

Mr Yuthachai Charanachitta are the Directors of

connected company

The Director of the Company Mr Premchai

Karnasuta held total of 8Oi of the reitistered

capital of Auo Siam Marine Co. Ltd

The Director of the Company Mr Premchai

Karnasuta is Director of Auo Siam Marine

connected company

The Directors of the Company Mr Premchai

Karnasuta Mrs Nijaporn Charanachitta and

Mr Yuthachai Charanachitta held total of

055 of the total outstanding shares of

ltalthai Engineering Ci. Ltd

The Directors of the Company Mrs Nijaporn

Charanachitta and Mr Yuthachai Charanachitta

are the Directors of Italthat Engineering Co Ltd

The Value of

Transactions
Transactions

ending December

312008

Res enite front con truction Baht 14 tin II iou

Resenue front sers ices

office rental common

services charge and utility

chaige

Account receivable The

Company has made the

provision
for this doubtful

debt for all over 12 months

debts at the amount of Baht

96.91 million

The Conipan performed the

coitsiflietioii sers ccs fot rtiai Oi cii ud

Hotel

with 30 days of credit terni

The Company performed ihe is orker

services marine rental and equipment

rental

Auo Siam Marine Co Ltd hired the

office
space

from the Company which

included common services and utilities

amounf to Baht 142200 per
month

The rental contracts is years and the

contract terminates on Nov 14.2011

The credit term is 30 60 days

The Company performed the worker

sersices and utilities
supply with 30 60

days of credit term

The Company employed Italthat

Engineering Co Ltd to install

mechanical and electrical systems of

building and the construction of ajetty

The credit term is 30 60 days

Necessity and Reasonableness

of Connected Transactions

rntal huitw triictin

The trattsactiiitt us based out i.osi plus

niargiut prucitug
atid on antis leneth basis

Occasional transactions depend on the

orders of Amari Co Ltd

Normal business transaction

he transaction is based on arm length

basis

Occasional transactions depend on the

orders of Auo Siam Marine Co Ltd

Normal business transaction

The transaction is based on arms length

basis

Occasional transactions depend on the

orders of ltalthat Engineering Co. Ltd

Normal business transaction

The transaction is based on approximate

market pricing and on arms length basis

Company Description of Relations

ser\ ices

Details of Transactions

Co Ltd

Baht 26 05 million

Baht 125.68 million

Advance receisable

Account receivable

Cost of the services

Account
payable

Retention payable

Baht 7683 million

Bahi ii million

Baht 26721 million

Baht 206 28 million

Baht 1796 million



Sakdi Sin Prasit Co Ltd

Real Estate

Plc

tVvire Cable Manufacturer

and Supplier

connected company

The Directors and the Executives of the Company

Mrs Nijaporn Charanachitta Mr Yuthaehai

Charanaehitta and Mrs Pienehathai Pomsuwan

held total of 40 of the registered capital of

Sakdi Sin Prasit Co Ltd

The Directors of the Company Mrs Nijaporn

Charanachitta and Mr Yuthachai Charanachitta

are the Directors of Sakdi Sin Prasit Co. Ltd

The Company held total of 90 of the total

outstaiidiiig hams of Chamoomig Thai Vimrc

Cable PcI

The Directors of the Company Mr Premchai

Karnasuta Mrs Nijaporn
Charanachitta and

Mr Pathai Chakornbundit are the Directors of

Charoong Thai Wire Cable PcI

The Value of

Transactions

Transactions

ending December

312008

Baht 80 mitlion

Cost of the construction

materials

Account pay ablu

The Company provided the

construction very ices of retainmn mtl

renovation and earth work at Hua Hum

Prachuabkirikan Province svith 30 60

days of credit term

The Company bought svire and cable

for construction projects
from

Charoong Thai ire Cable Plc

with 30 60 days of credit term

Necessity and Reasonableness

of Connected Transactions

Nornial business transaction

The transaction is based on cost plus

margin pricing and on ainis length basis

Occasional transactions depend on the

orders of Sakdi Siii Prasit Co Ltd

Normal business transaction

The transaction is based on market pricing

and on arms length basis

Company Description of Relations

Revenue fiom

con truction sers ice

Details of Transactions

Charoong Thai Wire Cable connected company Baht l4 57 million

Baht 89 81 million

Auo Po Grand Marina connected conipany Revenue from construction Baht 38.71 million The Company pros
ided jetty Normal business transaction

Co Ltd The Director of the Company Mr Premchai services construction services at Auo Po The transaction is based on cost plus

Hotel and Resort Karnasuta held share of Auo Po Grand

Marina Co Ltd

The Director of the Company Mr Premchai

Karnasuta is the Director of Auo Po Grand

Account receivable Baht 3l 73 million Phuket Province with 30 60 days of

credit term

marion pricing and on arms length
basis

Occasional transactions depend on the

orders of Auo Po Grand Marina Co Ltd

Marina Co Ltd
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II Medical Device

Manufacturei Thailand

Co Ltd

Medical Device

Manufacturer and Supplier

Retention receisable The

Company has set up full

provision for these doubtful

debts

The Value of

Transactions

ending December

312008

Baht 4.74 million

Necessity and Reasonableness

of Connected Transactions

Normal business transaction

The transaction is based on cost plus

margin pricing and on arms length basis

Occasional transactions depend on the

orders from Medical Des ice Manufacturer

Thailand Co Ltd

Company Description of Relations Transactions

connected company

The Conipany held 6.95 of the outstanding

shares of Medical Device Manufacturer

Thailand Co .Ltd

Details of Transactions

The Company constructed the

medical des ices factory with the

contract salue of Baht 94.89 million

and the construction period from

November 70 005 to October

2004

The Company receised the

construction service charge except

the retention payment for an amount

of Baht 4.74 million

The Company has made the
provision

for this doubtful debt for all over 12

months debts

12 Toyo Thai Corporation Plc connected company Revenue from construction

Contractor The Company held total of 16 25 of services

the total
outstanding

shares of Toyo Thai Account receivable

Corporation
Plc Retention receisable

The Directors of the Company Mr Premchai

Karnasuta Mrs Nijaporn Charanachitta and

Mr Yuthachai Charanachitta held total of

4.05 of the total outstanding shares of

Toyo Thai Corporation Plc and they are the

Diiectoi of this company

The Director of the CompanyMrs Nijaporn

Charanachitta is director of Toyo Thai Plc

Baht 588.28 million

Baht 65.60 million

Baht 2401 niillion

The Company prosided the civil

construction services in PTT PE

Ethane Cracker Project in Rayong

with 50 60 days of credit term

Normal business transaction

The transaction is based on cost plus

margin pricing
and on arms length basis

Occasional transactions depend on the

ordersof Toyo Thai Corporation Plc

II Auo Po Patana Co Ltd connected company Revenue from construction

Real Estate The Director of the Company Mr Premchai services

Karnasuta held share of Auo Po Patana Co

Ltd

The Director of the Company Mr Premchai

Karnasuta is the Director of Auo Po Patana

Co Ltd

Baht 696 million The Company pros ided the

construction services in the resort at

the Phuket Province ivith 50 60 days
of

credit term

Normal business transaction

The transaction is based on cost plus

margin pricing
and on arms length basis

Occasional transactions depend on the

orders of Auo Po Patana Co Ltd
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Company

17 Sarithorn Co Ltd

Real Estate

Description of Relations

Subsidiary of Bhakabhumi Development

Co Ltd Snbsidiary
of the Company

Transactions

Loan from Directors

The Value of

Transactions

ending December

31 2008

Baht 159.2j million

Details of Transactions

Sarithorn was financially supported by

the Director for an amonnt of Baht

II million with MLR interest rate

Necessity and Reasonableness

of Connected Transactions

Financial Support to connected

company which is unable to be hnanced

by other resources

IS Siam Fiber Optics Co. ltd connected company Cost of matenals

Fiber Optics
Manufacturer The Director Mr Premchai Kaniasuta is the Account Payable

and Supplier Director of Siani Fiber Optics Co .Ltd

The Company held total of 10 of the total

outstanding shares of Siam Fiber Optics

Co td

Baht 17.46 million

Baht IS 77 million

The Company bouht materials

Optical Fiber Cable for construction

projects
with 60 days of credit term

Normal Business transaction

The transaction is based on arms leimth

basis

19 Snwarnabhumi connected company Income from interior

Entertainment Co Ltd The Dire.tor Mr Peeti Karnasnia is the Director decr.ition

Entertainment Business of Suwarnabhumi Entertainment Co Ltd Account receivable

Baht 54.0 million

Baht 57 80 million

The Compans pros
ided the interior

deciiration service for the entertainment

complex at Snsarnabhumi Airport

The contract salue is Baht 57 III

million

Normal business transaction

The transaction is based on cost plus

margin pricing
and on arms length basis

Occasional transactions depend on the

orders of Suwarnabhumi Entertainment

Co. Ltd

Amari Estate Co Ltd connected Company Res eiiue from construction Baht 6.48 million

Real Estate The Director of the Company Mr Ynthachai

Charanachitta held share of Amari Estate

Co Ltd

The Director Mr Ynthachai Charanachitta is the

Director of Amari Estate Co Ltd

sers ices

Accouiit Reciesable

Ads ance Reciesihle

Baht 89 million

Baht 47 million

The transaction with

subsidiary

ltalthai Tres Co Ltd Res enue from Construction

sers ices

Baht 61 million

The Company prosided the

construction sers ices of Amari Hotel

Resident with 60 das of credit

terni

The Company proxided the piline work

sei vices for Amiri Hotel Resident is ith

61 days of credit iei ni

Noi iiial business trattsaction

The transaction is based in cost plus

margin pricine and on arms length basis

Occasional transactions depend on the

orders of Amari Estate Co Ltd

Normal business transaction

The Ii ansaction is based on cost plus

marein pricine and on arms length basis

Occasional transactions depend on the

orders of \mari Estate Co Ltd
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition

as at December 31 2008

Results of Operations

Overview

lTD is considered as the largest civil engineering and construction firm

in the Stock Exchange of Thailand as measured by total revenues of construction

companies listed in the Stock Exchange of Thailand SET The Companys

market share of the total construction industry revenues was 40.34% and 39.8OYr

for 2008 and 2007 respectively In 2008 the total revenue of the Company was

Baht 43 .699 million which mainly was the revenue from construction services

and the total expenses was Baht 46.355 million resulting in net loss attributable

to equity holders of the Company in the amount of Baht 2.656 million

As at December 31 2008 the Companys backlog was Baht 40552

million compared to Baht 42.896 million in December 31 2007 of which

over 85 .589 comprised public sector infrastructure development and 82.16%

comprised work in Thailand In addition to the Companys backlog at December

31 2008 as at March II 2009 the Company has signed new contracts valued

at Baht 8.006 million and has been awarded but has yet to sign contracts for

further Baht 3.145 million The Companys current backlog therefore has an

accumulated value of Baht 51 .703 million

Previous Year Operations Results

Revenues from Construction Work

Revenue from construction work was Baht 42.855 nii II ion in 2008

decrease from Baht 2768 million in 2007 or by approximately 6.07% due to

the decrease in construction revenues from completed and nearly completed

projects such as Aua Arthorn Housing Turnkey project ITD-NCC Joint Venture

NT2 Sport Complex at Nakonrachsima project King Power project and the

BTS Sukhumvit Extension project

Cost of Construction Work

The cost of construction work was equal to Baht 42200 million in 2008

decrease of Baht 181 million from 2007 or by approximately 0.43% however

the costs of construction work in the
plrt

of the allowance for loss on construction

work increased from 2007 Baht 296 niillion orby approximately 2335.48% which

mainly from the West Bengal project in India Baht 297 million in 2008

In 2008 the Companys gross prolit was Baht 655 niillion decrease

when compared to 2007 when the gross profit was Baht 3.241 million whereas the

Companys gross profit margin in 2008 was .53% decrease when compared to

2007 when the gross profit margin was 7.10% The main reasons for the decrease

were the gross loss Irom the joint ventures which constructed the Nam Theun

Hydroelectric dam project of approximately Baht .150 million the West Bengal

project in India of approximately Baht 460 million the underground electrical

train station in Taiwan project of approximately Baht 187 niillion the PTTPE

Ethane Cracker project of approximately Baht 122 million and IN Joint Ventures

of approximately Baht 81 million Moreover there were the decreases of gross

profit from some subsidiaries such as Thai Maruken Co Ltd Italthai Trevi

Co Ltd and Siam Concrete Brick Products Co. Ltd

Market shai ilicreasecl to 40.34% in 2008
/10/n

39.80% in 2007

Market Share

2007 2008

lTD Others

Bre log Baht 40552 toil/ion as a/2008 ni/tlic sector
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Administrative Expenses

In 2008.the Companys administrative expenses were llaht 1773 million

an increase of Baht 363 million or by approximately 25 .78Y compared to 2007

The main reasons were the increase of the administrative expenses of the Company

of approximately Baht 119 million such as bank fees additional income tax on

tax refund of 2005 administrative expense of West Bengal projecL moreover

subsidiary company accounted for allowance for damages of Baht 92 million due

to claim for compensation for alleged negligence The Court of First Instance

ordered the subsidiary to pay damages amounting to Bahi 92 million together

with fees The case is currently being appealed Furthermore there were the

increases of administrative expenses from new or recently operating subsidiaries

and joint ventutes such as lTD-lTD Cem JV lTD Cementation India Ltd and

PT rhailindo Bara Pratania Co Ltd

Reversal of Allowance Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Share of Loss from Investments Accounted for by Equity Method

The Company had loss of Baht million in 2008 from investments

accounted for by equity method decrease of Baht million from 2007 or by

approximately 85.46Y

Dividend Income and Shares of Profit from the Joint Ventures

In 2008 the Company received dividend income and shares of profit

from Joint ventures of Baht 75 million decrease of Baht 12 million from 2007

or by approximately l3.644 mainly froni the decrease of dividend income from

Charoong Thai Wire and Cable Plc

Interest Income

The Companys interest income in 2008 was Baht 133 million an increase

of Baht 80 niillion from 2007 or by approximately 151 951% because of the

increase of interest income from promissory notes receivable and government

bonds

Loss on Exchange Rate

In 2008 the Company recorded loss on exchange Baht 294 million an

increase of Baht 130 million from 2007 or by approximately 78.68Y mainly due

to the unrealised loss on exchange rate of some subsidiaries and
joint ventures

such as ltalthai Marine Ltd PT Thailindo Bara Pratama Co Ltd ITO Joint

Venture and lTD Cementation India Ltd

Other Income

The Companys other revenues in 2008 were Baht 637 million

2007 2008

2008
00

100
2007

200

30

The Company set up an allowance for doubtful accounts of net Baht 232

million which increased from the same period of the previous year by Baht 274

million or by approximately 653.27Y compared to the same period of 2007

The Company revised the allowance for doubtful accounts of Baht 42 million

according to the Companys policy to set up full allowance for doubtful accounts

fur the major private account receis able that have been overdue for more than

12 months and at 50 percent Or those accounts overdue for more than months

and the allowance of earned revenues not yet billed from the Palill Laguna project

in the United Arab Emirates of approximately Baht 278 million

2007 2008

Dividend Income and

Shares of Profit from Joint

Venture MB

iIJ

2007 2008

Imuers st Ins n/sic Ba/it 1.13 mi//ion in 08 inc rease

/5J95

Interest Income MB

100

50 .1
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ij
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decrease of Baht 113 million from 2007 or by approximately 5.09% This was

mainly because in 2007 the Company received the payment from the customers

previously catcgorised under doubtful accounts in some projects such as the

Jetty
at Songkhla project and Protection of Shore Erosion at Bangpakong and

Saniuthprakarn project and the gain froni sales of
right

to purchase shares of lTD

Cementation India Ltd The said transactions did not incur in 2008

Allowance for Impairment and Contingent Liabilities

The Company set up an allowance for impairment and contingent

liabilities of Baht 28 million in 2008 decrease of Baht million from 2007

or by approximately 10.43%

Interest Expenses

The Conipanys interest expense was Baht 1744 million in 2008 an

increase of Baht 445 million from 2007 or by approximately 34.29% The main

reason was the interest of debentures and convertible debentures

Corporate Income Tax for the Period

Corporate income tax was Baht 105 million in 2008 decrease of

Baht 58 million from 2007 or by approximately 35 .77% from the subsidiaries

and joint ventures of the Company such as lTD-lTD Ceni JV BC-24 Baht

42 million lTD Cementation India Ltd Baht 34 million and Thai Maruken

Co Ltd Baht IS million

Net Earnings Loss Attributable to Equity Holders of the

Company

As result of the forcgoing.the Companys net loss attributable to equity

holders of the Conipany was Baht 2656 million in 2008 decrease of Baht 3.667

million from 2007 or by approximately 362.77%
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Financial Statement

Total Assets

The Companys total assets were Baht 57230 million in 2008 an

increase of Baht 4243 million from 2007 or by approximately 8.01% due to

______________________
the following factors

Current Assets

Current assets were Baht 33598 million in 2008 an increase of Baht

3132 million from 2007 or by approximately l0.289 as result of the increase

of Baht 3.003 million in trade accounts receivable unrelated parties which was

mainly from the financial statement of lTD Cementation India Limited Italthai

Marine Co Ltd and from North Bangkok Power Plant Project and the increase

in government bonds the increase in retentions receivable and inventories and

work in progress

Property Plant and Equipment

In 2008the Company had property plant and equipment of Baht 15514

million an increase of Baht 507 million from 2007 or by approximately 3.38%

mainly from purchasing equipment for the Delhi Metro contract BC-24 India

project and the purchasing equipment of lTD Cementation India Ltd

Property Plant and

Equipment MB

Summary of Cash Flow Statement

Net cash provided by used in operating activities

Cash low lrcm investing activities 6.352.379

Cash flow from financing activities 4211 .051

Translation adjustment on foreign currency financial statement

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 3312.272

As shown in the table above in 2008 cash flow used in operating activities was at Baht 388 million because the increase of trade accounts

receivable unrelated parties the decrease of receipts in excess of contracts work in progress and the increase of retentions receivable

In 2008 cash flow used in investing activities amounted to Baht 3197 million mainly because the Company had invested in property

plant and equipment such as the equipment in for Delhi Metro contract BC-24 India project and the purchase of equipment of lTD Cementation

India Ltd as well as investment in other long -- term investments in Nam Theun Power Co. Ltd

The Company had financed by issuing conveitible debentures debentures and loans from financial institutions

The Companys liquidity was at normal level as shown in Current Ratio and Quick Ratio for the year ended 2008 being 1.12 times

and 0.47 tiiiies espectively

iota as sets Ba/it .57230 oji/Iwn at The rear em/ed

2008 increased 8.0/ v-n-v
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Cost of Investment

The Company intends to invest in the other business related to construction sers ices i.e manufacturing and providing construction

materials real estate development power business and mine business

Financial Resources

4.1 Short-term Debt The Companys short-term debt consists of

general working capital Baht loans and

project specific loans in Thailand and Internationally

It was the Companys practice to advance funds to its joint ventures for working capital The Companys short-term debt

svas incurred at the parent Company level and Branch levels in other countries

At December 31 2008 and 2007 the Company on consolidated basis had Baht 7353 million and Baht 4.974 million

respectively outstanding in bank overdrafts and loans from financial institutions On stand-alone basis the Companys

corresponding amounts were Baht 3042 million and Baht 3493 million respectively This kind of project tied debt will

normally be repaid as the projects progress with full repayment being achieved at project completion

4.2 Long-term Debt The Companys long-term debt consists of

long-term foreign loans for equipment purchases project finance and working capital and

long-term Thai Baht loans for purchasing equipment and project financing and working capital

The Company has used long-term loans for supporting the Companys long term projects As of December31 2008 and

2007 the Company had outstanding long-term loans of Baht 15447 million and Baht 9667 million respectively

43 Guarantees

As at December 31 2008 and 2007 there were outstanding guarantees of approximately Baht 28799 million and

Baht 21701 million respectively issued by financial institutions on behalf of the Company subsidiaries and its joint ventures

in respect of certain performance bonds required in the normal course of business of the Company subsidiaries and its joint

ventures

As at December 312008 and 2007 there were guarantees of approximately Baht 8670 million and Baht 8870 million

respectively issued by the Company to financial institutions and its ventures to secure credit facilities granted by those financial

institutions and ventures to subsidiaries associated and related companies and joint ventures The Company had issued guarantees

in proportion to its shareholding except for Italthai Trevi Co Ltd ltalthai Marine Co Ltd Aquathai Co Ltd Asian Steel

Product Co. Ltd and lTD Cementation India Limited for which the Company issued full guarantees for the credit facilities

Such guarantees were necessary for regular operation of the Company its subsidiaries and its joint ventures
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Auditors Remuneration

Thc annual renluneration of the external auditor for the year ended December 2008

Audit Fee

The Company or its subsidiaries paid an annual audit fee to

The external auditor amounting to II .161 .100 Baht

The audit firm ol the auditor connected person/enterprise of the auditor and his/her firm the amount of nil Baht

Non-audit Fee

In 2008 the Company paid non-audit fcc for other services to

Coser certification of recogni/ed income under projects

he external auditor amounting to 246 9Y7 Baht and must pay in the future for incomplete service the amount of nil Baht

The audit firm of the auditor connected person/enterprise of the auditor and his/her firm the aniount of nil Baht and must pay in the

luture for incomplete service the amount of nil Baht
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Dividend Policy

Subsidiary Companies

Myanmar lTD Co Ltd

PT Thailindo Bara Pratama Co Ltd

lTD Cementation India Ltd

Italian-Thai International Co Ltd

Bhaka Bhumi Development Co Ltd

Thai Pride Cement Co. Ltd

Sin Rae MuangThai Co.Ltd

Nha Pralarn Crushing Plant Co Ltd

Siam Concrete and Brick Products Co Ltd

10 Italthai Marine Co Ltd

LI Italthai Trevi Co Ltd

12 Asian Steel Product Co Ltd

13 Thai Maruken Co Ltd

14 Italian-Thai Land Co Ltd

15 Khunka Palangthai Thai Co Ltd

16 Palit Palangngan Co Ltd

17 Palangthai Koona Co Ltd

18 Italian-Thai Power Co Ltd

19 Saraburi Construction Technology Co Ltd

20 Asia Logistics Development Co Ltd

21 Asia Industrial and Port Corporation Co Ltd

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

Not less than 20% of net earnings from the Company as announced

provided there will be no effect on its performance

Not less than 30% of net earnings for the year

Not less than 30% of net earnings before taxes

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

Joint Venture

ITD-NCC Joint Venture NT-2

ITD-EGC Joint Venture

ITD-NAWARAT LLC Joint Venture

lTD-lTD Cem Joint Venture

ITD-VIS Joint Venture

ITD-NSC Joint Venture

ITAC Joint Venture

Italian-Thai Skanska Lundby Joint Venture

ITD-NCC Joint Venture

ID IN Joint Venture

None

None

None

None

None

None

Dividend paid as equal installments in the year following

declaration of net profit after tax and repayment of partner

advances

None

None

None

The Board of Directors policy is to pay dividends to the Companys shareholders in each year by using the original dividend policy

which is the Company will declare and pay dividends in the amount of at least 40% of net profit after provision for taxes provided that such

payment of any declared dividend will not impact the on-going operations of the Company

Dividend Policy

Dividend Policy
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Disputes Under Litigation

Disputes under litigation involving the Company which may have negative impact with the amount in dispute being greater than 5/

of the shareholders equity as at 31st December 2008 are as follows

1563/2540 Chonburi Provincial Court

1787 2548

81 May 1997

Chonhuri Province by Governor as Plaintiff et al Total of persons

Pornpenpratarn Company Li ted as Defendant et at Total of persons ItalianThai

Development Public Company Limited and Mr Premchai Karnasuta as the and

Defendants and Ms.Nipaporn Charanachitta as the Defendants respecti ely

Wrongful acts invasion of the States land rock blasting destroying the natural environment

and ci ni for damages

Baht 654888.949.69

The Court ordered on December 30 2005 to cancel the title deed No.424 to 427 Tewarak

Subdistrict Sichang Districk Cholburi Province cancel Possession Certificate Sor Khor

No to Sand No II Moo 3Thewawong Subdistrict Sichang Districk.Cholburi Province

is held by Mr.Thong Hongladaromp Defendant pay Plaintiff for damages at amount

of Baht 36255532.50 plus with 7.5Y of interests during June II 1992 to the date they pay

for Plaintiff Defendant pay Plaintiff for damages at amount of Baht 38.300000

plus ss ith .5Yt of interests during June II 1992 to the date they pay for Plaintiff

Defendant is responsible for court fees of Plaintiff by indicated attotney charge at amount

Baht 1.000000 At present this case is being appealed

In Appeal Court the Company has superior position to win because there are misunderstood

matters regarding facts and laws in the resolution of the Provincial Court

2902 2542 South Bangkok Civil Court

February 1999

ItalianThai Development Public Coitipany Li ited as Plaintiff et al

Modern Home Des elopntent Co. Ltd

Breach of Contraet

Baht 621 10029.36

The Court ordered temporary discharge of case from the Courts iegister and waited for

restructuring of the Defendant Now the Defendant has achieved all procedures for restructuring

and has to pay the Plaintiff amount Baht 591 .105025.04

This case would not have an effect against the Company because 00 allowance has been

made for this doubtful debt

13 November 2002

The Metropolitan Water Authority MWA the Respondent No

Italian-Thai Development Public Company Limited No.1 the Claimants Ondeo

Degremont No.2 Aquathai Co Ltd. No

On 25 December 2006 Respondeiit No tiled Petition to the Central Administrative

Court alleging that the said Court had issued the Injunctive Order to suspend the

execution of the Construction Contract for the Mahasawat Project by mistake

as caused by the false or negligence of the Claimants pursuant to the Section 263

Civil Procedure Code Therefore the Respondent No is clainiing the compensation

for damage from the Cliinints is they caused delay to the Construction Project

Civil Case Black Index Case No

Red Index Case No

Case Start Date

Plaintiff

lefendant

Nature of Charge or Case

Amount of Claim

urrent Status

Fxecutive Recommendation

Civil Case Black Index Case No

Case Start Date

Plaintiff

lefendant

Nature of Charge or Case

Amount of Claim

Current Status

Fxecutive Recommendation

Administrative ase Black Case Index No

Red Case Index No

Date of Commencement

Plaintiff

Defendant

Nature of Charge ur Case

2095/2545

1869/2549

The Central Administrative Court
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Amount of Claim 77111000.10 Baht

Case Status On 15 August 2008 the Central Administrative Court rendered judgment stating

that the exercise of rights for Injunctive Order by Claimants were proceeded without

distortion Moreover the Court did not issue such Order by any mistake Therefore

the Court may not order the Claimants to pay compensation under said Section 263

This equates with dismissal of the Respondent No petition

Later on 12 September 2007 the Respondent No lodged an appeal against such

judgment with the Supreme Administration Court Consequently the Claimants duly

tiled answer to such appeal on 29 November 2007 Then on 17 September 2008

the Supreme Administrative Court notified that October2008 was the ending date

for facts finding in the case The trial appointment by the Court will be notified prior

to giving decision

As background on 28 November 2002 the said Court had issued an Injunctive Order

as per the Petition made by the Claimants to suspend execution of the Construction

Project Contract pending final judgment or court order The said Court gave reasons

that after due trial of both parties evidence the Court was convinced that the Claimants

case had good grounds of claim Such grounds could substantiate the irregularity

charge against the order of Respondent No in opening of price proposal for only

one bidder Later the Respondent No appealed against such Injunctive Order

Finally on 27 June 2003 the Supreme Administrative Court decided to reverse the

Injunctive Order of the lower court The High Court gave reason that although the

court considered that the Claimants were eligible to proceed with such lawsuit the

court realized interest of the public rather than the companies i.e if this Project

was further delayed and the bidding had to be repealed and repeated the costs thereof

would he higher according to the status of economic condition This case became

finalized by the Judgment of the Central Administrative Court dismissing the complaint

of Claimants as read on 27 Nov 2006

Executive Recommendation The Claimants have
fully

sufficient grounds of defense The reason of such defense

is that the petition submitted by MWA has no compelling reasons over those reasons

and facts as determined by the Supreme Administrative Court in its final decision in

support of the Claimants position in this case Therefore the Claimants should not

he liable for the compensation as claimed

Litigation which may significantly effect the Company hut cannot be evaluated into monetary value

None

Litigation which is not derived from normal operation of the Companys business

None
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Auditors Report and Financial statements of

Italian-thai Development Public Company Limited and Subsidiaries

For the Year Ended 31 December 2008
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The Board of Directors Report on their Responsibilities for Financial Reports for the year 2008

The Financial Statements for Italian-Thai Development Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries have been prepared in accordance with the

policy of the Board of Directors which requires the compliance with generally accepted accounting principles and careful book-keeping to reflect

the accurate performance of the Company

The Financial Statements provide for the significant disclosure of additional substantial information as shown in the notes attached to the Financial

Statements as well as explanations and analysis for the benefit of the shareholders and general investors

The Compaiiys Board of Directors recognizes the importance of the Financial Statements by auditing the input financial data In this regard the

Board of Directors has appointed the Audit Committee comprising independent and non-executive members of the Board to oversee the quality of

financial reports Their opinion is shown in the Report of Audit Committee included in this Annual Report

Based Oil the management structure and internal audit system as mentioned above as well as the Audit Report produced by the certified public

auditor the Board of Directors is convinced that the Financial Statements for the Company and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2008 reasonably

represent an accurate statement of the financial status business performance and cash flow of the Company in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles

Mr Premehai Karnasuta Mrs Nijaporn Charanachitta

President Senior Executive Vice President
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Grant Thornton Limited

ra ntThornton thForCt Tower

87/1 Wireless Road Lumpini

Pathumwan Bangkok 10330 Thailand

66 205 8222

66 654 3339

REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR www.grantthornton.co.th

To the Shareholders of Italian-Thai Development Public Company Limited

have audtted the accompanytng consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2008 and 2007 of Italian-Thai Development Public Company

Limited and subsidiaries and the related consolidated statements of income consolidated statements of changes in shareholders equity and cash

flows for the years then ended have also audited of the separate balance sheet as at 31 December 2008 and 2007 of Italian-Thai Development

Public Company Limited and the related separate statements of income changes in shareholders equity and cash flows for the years then ended

Thesc financial statcmcnts arc the responsibility of the Companys management as to their correctness and completeness of the presentation My

responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audits did not audit the financial statements of two overseas project

offices two overseas branches two overseas subsidiaries and six overseas joint ventures with total assets as at 31 December 2008 and 2007 of Baht

16516 million and Baht 14897 million respectively and total revenues for the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007 of Baht 16926 million

and Baht 12835 million respectively Such total assets and revenues as included in the consolidated financial statements were based on financial

statements audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to me The two overseas project offices and two overseas branches financial

statements with total assets as at 31 December 2008 and 2007 of Baht 1.843 million and Baht 1528 million respectively and total revenues for the

years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007 of Baht 2099 million and Baht 390 million respectively as included in the separate financial statements

of Italian Thai Development Public Company Limited were audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to me My report in so

far as it relates to those overseas branches subsidiaries and joint ventures are based on the reports of those other auditors

Except for the matters discussed in the third fourth and fifth paragraphs conducted my audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing

standards Those standards require that plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are

free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial

statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the

overall financial statement presentation believe that my audits together with the reports of the other auditors as discussed in the first paragraph

provide reasonable basis for my opinion

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008 include unbilled receivables of Joint Venture proportionate to the

Company of Baht 711 million which represent the revenues for work done to one local customer government enterprise but have not been certified

to accept the work beyond the normal period of certification This was explained as an effect from the change in the management of such government

enterprise As result the Joint Venture has not been able to determine the age of the collection of such receivables Currently the Joint Venture is

rectifying the situation to make the collection

Based on the audit report of other auditor olan overseas subsidiary and joint venture trade accounts receivable as at 31 December 2008 and 2007

include claims of Baht 303 million and Baht 359 million respectively recognized in the earlier years which has been disputed by the customer

Of these claims the arbitrator had issued verdict in favour of the subsidiary of Baht 117 million and Baht 139 million respectively However

the total amount has still been disputed by the customer Trade accounts receivable of such subsidiary and joint venture as at 31 December 2008

and 2007 also include Baht 245 million and Baht 370 million respectively billed for interim work done but have not been certified to accept

the work by customers beyond the normal period of certification Considering the nature of the subsidiarys and joint ventures businesses the

management is unable to determine the age of the collection of such interim work Currently the subsidiary company and
joint venture are rectifying the

situation to make the collection

Based on the audit report of other auditor of an oversea project office the project office is in the process of reassessing the budgeted cost from the

fluctuation in niaterial costs and many significant factors affecting the costs originally estimated Such revision in the budgeted costs may impact the

percentage of completion and unbilled revenue and the provision for foreseeable loss that could not presently be determined However the Companys

management believes that the effect from the revision of the budgeted costs of the project office will not be significant to the consolidated financial

statements since the Company has already recorded some allowances for losses on construction project in the consolidated financial statements
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Based on my audits and the reports of other auditorsexcept for the effects on the consolidated financial statements for the years ended 31 December

2008 and 2007 which may occur and cannot presently be determined of the matters discussed in the third fourth and fifth paragraphs which depends

on the future judicial process and the certification of work done by the subsidiary and joint venture in the future and the adjustment for the costs

of construction project of overseas project office for which and other auditors can not presently determine due to scope limitation imposed by

circumstances the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all materials respects the consolidated financial position as at 31 December

2008 and 2007 and the consolidated results of operations and cash flows for the years then ended of Italian-Thai Development Public Company

Limited and subsidiaries and the separate financial position as at 31 December 2008 and 2007 and the results of operations and cash flows for the

year then ended of Italian-Thai Development Public Company Limited in conformity with generally accepted accounts principles

Without modifying my opinion above draw attention to the followings

As discussed in Note 43 to the financial statements at the beginning of 2007 the Company and local joint venture received letter from

The National Assets Examination Committee NAEC informing the appointment of the inspection subcommittee and inspection

responsibilities to investigate the facts on the procurement of baggage-handling system and the CTX bomb scanners for Suvarnabhumi

Airport and the inspection for cracks on the runways and taxiways at Suvarnabhumi Airport The Company so far has not received any

claim for damages The management believes that the Company and its joint venture referred to above do not have to be responsible for

any damage

As discussed in Note 15 to the financial statements the Company has investment in potash mine project of Baht 3236 million that the

request for mining license is being processed Currently the government agree to set up the national committee consist of represent from

Ministry of Industry Ministry of Interior Ministry of Natural Resources and Environment Ministry of Public Health and Ministry of Social

Development and Human Security to consider the process to resolve the potash mining operations in Udonthani to make the progress and

generate the benefits The Companys management believes that this project will generate benefits both for nearby areas and for the country

and the project will be approved by the government and operational as planned since the Ministry of Finance has jointly invested in this

project for 10% of the total registered capital The management of the Company believes that there will not be any impairment in the value

of investment

As discussed in Note to the financial statements the retained earnings as at January 2008 in the consolidated financial statements have

been restated to account for the write-off of negative goodwill of Baht 10.0 million as result of the change in accounting policy

MR SOMCKID TIATRAGUL

Certified Public Accountant

Registration No 2785

Bangkok Thailand

March 2009
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BALANCE SHEETS

Unit Thousand Baht

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash ad deposit iv liii banks

Restricted deposits with banks

Shortterm ins estinent

Current portion ol proniissory notes receivable

Trade accounts reccis able unrelated parties net

Trade accounts receivable related parties net

Shortterm loans and advances to related parties net

Earned revenues lot yet billed

Retentions receivable due within one year

Inventories and work in progress net

Other current assets

Income ins is thhe Id at sources

Refundable sal ne added tax

Advances for purchases of machine materials

and land awaiting development

Current portion of receivable from sale of land

Others

Total Current Assets

NON CURRENT ASSETS

Promissory notes receivable

Retentions ccci sable due after one year

Advances to subcontractors

Investments in subsidiaries associated companies

and joint entures net

Other long term investments net

Invest nient in potash mining project

Investment cost lower than net hook value if subsidiaries

Long term loans and advances to related part es net

Loan and advances to unrelated parties net

Land held for sale and development net

Property p1 alit and equipment net

Deferred charges

Goodwill

Other non curie lit assets

Total Non Current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

Notes 200872007 2008 2007

4047216 2.969.513 2624754 1.188.599

507290 633.527 469053 554824

479 467

300000 30000

10 8484719 5882996 3536845

II 1129006 1289470 1391432

12 96728 6594 1440875

10501685 11.869519 5145546

1544563 1525.881 1105656

13 4254802 3332.214 1508080

1242651 1.496.000 523574 972.984

372564 266392 45574 66.064

920695 887402 257557 322793

178 6222

195535 299957 69956

33598111 30.466.1541
18418902

636590 682231 636590 682231

80553 57891

132140 182213 54866 48198

8012644 7804.765

1563159 1379.369

Ihe accompany ng notes lorm an integral part II the Ii flflC al statements

14.1

14.2

IS

16

17

IS

19

ITALIAN THAI DLV ELOPMENT PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

2920115

1.881.962

.556240

5687.040

1.105230

1.354.013

144950

17754814

370599

1576335

3236149

362384

342304

558220

15513511

7616

500086

315362

23631849

249824

1.410604

3236149

10.036

185136

157.659

559190

15.006.526

18.147

500186

285.116

1.168.972

155 .7 14

1266234

88610

9971897

20

57229960 52.986.890

22.520.736

10.150728

107623 76.788

21701623 21.466765

40120525 39221.579
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BALANCE SHEETS

ITALIAN THAI DEVELOPMENT PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

Unit Thousand Baht Notes 2008 2007 2008 2007

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Bank overdrafts and short term loans from

financial institutions 21 7353305 4974288 3042164 3493462

Current portion of liabilities under trust receipts 267923 261560 148210 109980

Trade accounts payable unrelated parties 7870720 6.684477 4780923 3744453

Receipts in excess of contracts work in progress 191725 869603 191725 869603

Trade accounts payable related parties 22 1678456 1439394 1540355 1356395

Short-term loans and advances from related
parties

23 133630 449829 2054

Current portion of advances from customers

under construction contracts 4919323 363215 1407440 2079.742

Current portion of hire purchases payable 24 421629 385188 337195 363526

Current portion of long-term notes payable 300000 300000

Current portion of long-term loans 25 2282580 1689872 1546760 1149269

Current portion of debentures 26 705837 1055627 705837 1055627

Other current liabilities

Income tax payable 122957 112600 4.379

Value added tax payable 68633 60.159 60208 62180

Accrued expenses 1107796 1.505211 345091 359929

Reserve for project expenses 4900 25 .508 4900 25508

Allowance for contingent liabilities 612822 337304 612822 337.304

Advance received for land purchase 12555 206887

Accounts payable to related parties

for purchase of investments 62484 62484 56809 56809

Retentions payable 502348 521.436 341791 369668

Loan from directors 29 161743 181907

Others 1122716 692900 289466 208657

Total Current Liabilities 29904082 25155449 15713750 15646.491

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
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BALANCE SHEETS

ITALIAN THAI DEVELOPMENT PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

Unit Thousand Baht Notes 2008 2007 2008 2007

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY CONTINUED

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

Liabilities under trust receipts net of current portion 2055 23732 2055 23732

Advances from customers under constructioil contracts

net of current portion 817440 538846 205046 482327

Hire purchases payable net of current portion 24 573455 497736 223843 470261

Long-term notes payable 636590 682.231 636590 682.231

Long-term loans net of current portion 25 4700493 5534909 3835638 4272537

Debentures net 26 1991515 704565 1991515 704565

Convertiblc debentures net 27 4830231 4830231

Accrued interest on convertible debentures 27 102320 102320

Reserve for project expenses net of current portion 4900 4900

Deferred gain on transferring assets to special

purpose vehicle 38.1 229574 229574 229574 229574

Allowance for contingent liabilities net of cuiTent portion 76837 025217 76837 1025217

Allowance br losses on construction projects 28 639964 567160 628176 567.160

Other non current liabilities 30718 205236 78335 162693

Total Non Current Liabilities 14631192 lI014106 12840160 8.625197

TOTAL LIABILITIES 44535274 36169.555 28553910 24.271688

SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Share capital ordinary share at Baht par value

Registered 4.92 .678180 shares 2007

4.193.678.1 80 shares 27 4921678 4193678 4921678 4193.678

Issued and
fully paid up 4193678.180 shares 4193678 4193678 4193678 4193678

Share premium 5515363 5515363 5515363 5.515363

Unrealised gain loss on changes in value of investments 263782 75363 130918 224077

Translation adjustments for foreign currency financial statements 609057 52841 252381 32657

Surplus on dilution of investment in subsidiary company 149586 149.586

Retained earnings

Appropriated statutory reserve 34 427373 427 .373 419368 419368

Unappropriated 2413907 5352.990 1821505 4564748

Equity attributable to the Companys shareholders 11827068 15767l94 11566615 14.949891

Minority interests Equity attributable to minority

shareholders of subsidiaries 867618 1.050141

Total Shareholders Equity 12694686 16817335 11566615 14949.891

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY 57229960 52986890 40120525 39221579

The accompanying notes form an integral part
of the financial statements
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STATEMENTS OF INCOME

ITALIAN THAI DEVELOPMENT PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

Unit Thousand Baht Notes 2008 2007 2008 2007

REVENUES FROM CONSTRUCTION WORK
Revenues from construction work 29 42854526 45622502 24644379 29.315696

Total revenue from construction work 42854526 45622502 24644379 29.315696

COSTS OF CONSTRUCTION WORK

Costs of construction work 29 41891572 42368519 23580132 27247822

Allowance for loss on Construction work 28 308332 12660 469686 12.660

Total costs of construction work 42199904 42381179 24049818 27260482

Gross income 654622 3241323 594561 2055214

Administrative expenses 29 1773129 1409680 925046 806492

Reversal of allowance allowance for doubtful accounts 231743 41886 91314 57296

Income loss from construction work 1350250 1.873529 421799 1.191.426

Share of loss from investments accounted for

by equity method 1054 7249

Dividend income and shares of profit from the joint ventures 74591 86371 79901 307239

Loss from devaluation of investments 23601 385 23601

Interest income 132905 52.750 133437 74297

Loss on exchange rate 294219 164665 24200 135648

Other income 43 636823 749995 476096 644071

Allowance for project loss on related parties 1466343

Allowance for impairment and contingent liabilities 27670 30893 27670 30893

Income loss from operations 828874 2536237 1250963 2.026.891

Interest and financial expenses 1743775 1.298561 1199092 765064

Income tax 30 104928 163370 1707

NET INCOME LOSS 2677577 1074306 2450055 .260120

Net income loss attributable to

Equity holders of the Company 2655931 1010.734 2450055 1260.120

Minority interests 21646 63572

2677577 1074306 2450055 1.260120

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

Net income loss Baht per share 0.63 0.24 0.58 0.30

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Thousand shares 4193678 4193678 4193678 4193678

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

Annual Report 2008 69



STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

ITALIAN THAI DEVELOPMENT PUBLiC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

Equity attributable to the Companys shareholders

Unrealised gain Translation Surplus on
Retained earnings

Issued and
Share

loss on adjustments for dilution of
Minority

Total

paid-up
premium

changes in foreign currency investment in

Statutory
interests

share capital
value of financial subsidiary Unappropriated

reserve

Unit Thousand Baht Notes investments statements company

CONSOLIDATED

Balance-asatlJanuary2007 4193678 55i53o3 154944 i3i.742j 390369 4379260 380186 14982058

Unrealised loss on changes in

alue of inestments 79581 79.581

Translation adjustments for foreign

currency financial statements 84.583 8695 93278

Net income for the year
1.010734 1010734

Appropriation for
legal reserve 34 37004 37004

Surplus on dilution of investment

in subsidiary company
149 .586 149586

Minority interests for the year
63572 63572

Increase in minority interest from

capital increase 607 .496 607496

Dividend paid from subsidiary
_______________

9808 9808

Balance-asat3lDecember2007 4.193678 5515363 75363 52.841 149586 427373 5.352990 1050.141 16817335

Balance as at January 2008 4.193678 5515363 75363 52841 149586 427373 5352990 1050141 16817335

Negative goodwill written off 10036 10.036

Unrealised loss on changes in

value of investments 339.145 339145

Translation adjustments for foreign

currency financial statements 661898 143.221 805.119

Net loss for the year
2655931 2655.931

Dividcndpayment 31 293188 293.188

Minority interests for the year
21646 21.646

Dividend paid from subsidiary
_________ ______________

17656 17656

Balance-asat3l December2008 4.193678 5.515363 263782 609.057 149586 427373 2413907 867618 12694.686

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements



STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY CONTINUED

ITALIAN THAI DEVELOPMENT PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

Unrealised Translation
Retained earnings

Issued and gain loss on adjustments for ________________________
Share

paid-up changes in foreign currency Total

premium Statutory

share capital value of financial Unappropriated
reserve

Unit Thousand Baht Notes investments statements

SEPARATE F/S

Balance as at January 2007 4193678 5.515363 271.689 41.765 382364 3341632 13746.491

Unrealised loss on changes in value of investmenis t47612 476l2

Translation adjustments for foreign currency financial statements 9.108 9108

Appropriation for legal reserve 34 37004 37004

Net income for the year .260120 1.260120

Balance as at 31 December 2007 4.193.678 5515363 224077 32657 419368 4564748 14949891

Balance as at January 2008 4193.678 5515363 224077 32657 419.368 4.564.748 14949891

Unrealised loss on changes in value of ins estments 354995 354995

Translation adjustments for foreign currency financial statements 285038 285038

Net loss for the year 2450055 2450055

Dividend payment

Balance as at3l December2008

31

4193.678 5515363

293.188 293.188

130918 252381 419368 1821505 11566615

The accompanying notes form an integral part
of the hnancial statements



STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

ITALIAN THAI DEVELOPMENT PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

1Jng ThousdBaht 2008 2007 2008 2007

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income loss before taxation 2572649 1237676 2450055 1261827

Adjustments to reconcile net income loss to net cash provided

from used in operating activities

Unrealised loss gain on exchange rate 298884 2854 93153 1731

Dividend income and shares of profit from the joint ventures 74591 86371 79901 307239

Share of loss from investments accounted for by equity method 1054 7249

Allowance reversal of allowance for doubtful accounts 231743 41886 91314 57297

Loss from devaluation of investments 23601 385 23601

Depreciation and amortisation 2166838 2010804 1351643 1258685

Goodwill amortisation 22066

Interest and financial expenses 1743775 1298561 1199092 765064

Allowance for loss on construction work 308332 12660 469686 12660

Allowance for project loss on related parties 1466343

Allowance for impairment and contingent liabilities 27670 30893 27670 30893

Net income from operating activities before changes in

operating assets and liabilities 2131056 4512399 2169330 3101057

Decrease increase in operating assets

Trade accounts receivable unrelated parties 3003454 382865 864054 4316

Trade accounts receivable related parties 110952 195354 539260 718892

Loans and advances to related parties 132550 71388 551941 228007

Earned revenues not yet billed 1089373 2374408 541494 266894

Retentions receivable 739921 208220 700127 173026

Inventories and work in progress 649902 458506 154067 133647

Refundable value added tax 106172 162354 20490 3884

Advances to subcontractors 50073 248257 6668 152739

Advances for purchases of machine materials and

land awaiting development 33293 491237 65236 205.566

Cunent portion of receivables from sale of land 6044 80243

Other current assets 94003 96450 64575 60914

Increase decrease in operating liabilities

Trade accounts payable unrelated parties 1097496 399907 1036470 603119

Trade accounts payable related parties 239062 107640 183960 396970

Receipts in excess of contracts work in progress 677878 86652 677878 263046

Advances from customers under construction contracts 558702 995.581 949583 1795278

Value added tax payable 8474 1972 28265

Accrued expenses 419363 273119 36786 94671

Reserve tor project expenses 25508 48342 25508 48342

Advance received for land purchase 194332 18021

Retentions payable 19567 36143 27877 86560

Other current liabilities 482417 260865 43636 83548

Other liabilities 410046 21390 493028 34964

Cash received paid from operations 544334 863465 903558 139017

Income tax refund 945711 672370 878216 516533

Income tax payment
_______

789378 783457 433185 464087

Net cash provided from used in operating activities 388001 752378 458527 191463

The accompanying notes form an integral part
of the financial statements
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS Continued

ITALIAN THAT DEVELOPMENT PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

Notes

CONSOLIDATED F/S

2008 2007

SEPARATE F/S

2008Unit Thousand Baht 2007

Cash flows from investing activities

Decrease increase in cash at banks with maturity of more than

three months and restricted deposits 491881 428058 130320 31499

Decrease increase in temporary investments 12 39555

Decrease increase in loans and advances to unrealted parites 184645 19717 67104 17772

Increase in land held for sale and delopment 271716 42950

Increase in property plant and equipment net 2620603 1686847 1133233 722215

Decrease increase in deferred charges 665 61889

Increase in investments in subsidiaries and associated companies 119830 99069 162265 1610101

Cash received from dividend and shares of profit from

the joint ventures 74591 86371 79901 307239

Increase in other long-term investments 504876 54134 538785 27386

Decrease increase in other assets 61405 31293 61994 10341

Net cash used in investing activities 3197280 21 1667 1618952 2091393

Cash flows from financing activities

Interest payment 1679893 1345448 1045435 756734
Increase decrease in bank overdrafts and loans from

financial institutions 2376374 75430 453941 862009

Increase decrease in loans and advances from related parties 316199 503564 2054

Increase in long-term loans 12651 1596520 214951 38873

Increase decrease in hire purchases payable 56437 135665 328472 164.434

Increase decrease in liabilities under trust receipts 15314 95885 16553 194250

Increase decrease in loans from directors 20164 179238

Proceeds from monority interest from capital increase in subsidiary 757082

Payment for redemption of debentures 1057100 1057100

Proceed from issuance of debentures 1990184 1990184

Proceed from issuance of convertible debentures 4797615 4797615

Dividend payment 293188 293188
Dividend paid by subsidiary company 17656 9808

Net cash provided from financing activities 5833747 517900 3843221 1135322

Translation adjustment on foreign currency financial statements 805119 93279 285038 9108

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 1443347 748110 1480704 773716
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 2564162 3312272 1104360 1878076

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 4007509 2564162 2585064 1104360

Supplemental cash flows information

Non cash transactions

Unrealised gain on changes in value of investments 339145 79581 354995 47612

Transfer of receivable unrelated party to notes receivable 254359 682231 254359 682231

Transfer land held for sale and development to inventories

and work in progress 272686

Transfer loan to related parties to investments in

subsidiaries companies 44000 173985
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ITALIAN THAI DEVELOPMENT PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

GENERAL INFORMATION

Italian Thai Desclopment Public Company Limited the Company is incorporated and domiciles in Thailand The Company is principally engaged

in the construction business The Company has overseas branches and
project

offices Its registered office address is 20341132-161 New Petchhuri

Road Kwaeng Bangkapi Khet Huaykwang Bangkok

FINANCIAL CRISIS

lhe linancia crisis experienced by the United Stales over the
pasi year has had far reaching adverse effect on the global economy as evidenced by

sharp falls in share prices worldwide.tight squeeze on credit including interhank Iendingfailures of large financial institutions in the foreign countries

and i-educed consumer confidence The crisis has affected substantially business and financial plans of Thailand
enterprises

and asset values Despite

effhrts made governments of many countries and Thailand to contain the crisisincl to rcniedy the financial
liquidity

to gain public confidence

it remains unceitain as to svhen the global economy will return to its normalcy These financial statements have been prepared on the bases of facts

currently
known to the Company and on cstiinates and assumptions currently considered appropriate by inanagement They therefore could he

adversely afkcied hy an array
of future events

BASIS OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT PREPARATION

The accompanOng financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles
issued under the Accounting

Act BE 2543 and the Federation of Accounting ProfessionsAct BE 2547 and the regulations promulgated by the Securities Exchange Commission and

the Stock Exchange of Thailand concerning the piepitration and disclosure of financial information under the Securities Exchange Act BE 2535

The financial statement are officially prepare in accordance svith
statutory requirement and in Thai language in accordance svith accounting standards

enerniurated under the Accounting Profession Act BE 2547 The translation of these financial statements to other language must he in based on the

Thai version

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except as otherwise disclosed in the accounting policies

During year 2117 the Federation of Accounting Professions has announced various amendments to accounting standards svhich are effective for the

accounting periods beginning on or after January 2008 The Companys management considers that there is no significant impact to the Company

i-elating
to the amended accounting standards except for TAS 43 amendment 2007 Business Combination which states that the Company does not

have to ainorti/e the goodwill from business combination Such goodsvill
is instead to he tested for impairment and measured at cost less accumulated

impairment losses This accounting standard applies to goodwill arising from business combinations for which the agreenmeni date is on or after

Januaiy 2108 Previously recognized goodwill can he accounted for prospectively with the Company discontinuing the amortization of the goodwill

and instead testing for lipairment as from the beginning of the first fiscal year starting
on or after January 2008 The standard also suggests tIme

deiecognition of negative goodwill at the beginning of the year with corresponding adjustment to the opening balance of ictained earnings The

Compan has accordingly changed its accounting policy for its negative goodsvill by derecognizing the opening balance for negative goodwill of

Bahi 10.04 mi lion against the retained earnings as at January 2008

The effect of the change in accounting policy on the consolidated tinancial statement for the year ended 31 December 2008 is to i-educe the chaige to

the statement if income approximately aht 22.78 in ill ion

During the year 2008the Federation of Accounting Professions has announced amendments to certain accounting standards which are effective f6r the

accounting lieriodfs beginning on or after Jmuaiy 2009 The Companys management has assessed the effect of those amended accounting standards

and believes that they svill not significantly impact the Companys financial statements for the initial application of such standards

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

4.1 The consolidated financial statement include the financial statements of ItalianThai Development Public Company Limited its subsidiaries

and its ointly controlled joint ventures applying the proportionate consolidated method as follows

Percentage investment

Country of

Name of Entity by the Company
incorporation

Overseas subsidiaries

yimn mar lTD Co l.td Myan mar

PT Thai ndo Bara Pratama Indonesia

ITI Ce inentation India ni ted India

2008

99.99

99.99

69.57

2007

99-99

99-99

69.5

74 Italianthai Development Public Company Limtted



Percentage investment

Country of

Name of Entity by the Company
incorporation

2008 2007

Loyal subsidiaries

Italian-Thai International Co. Ltd Thailand 99.99 99.99

Bhaka Bhumi Development Co Ltd Thailand 99.99 99.99

Thai Pride Cement Co Ltd Thailand 99.99 99.99

Sin Rae Maang Thai Co Ltd Thailand 99.99 99.99

Nha Pralan Crushing Plant Co Ltd Thailand 99.91 99.91

Siam Concrete and Brick Products Co Ltd Thailand 99.70 99.70

ttalthai Marine Ltd Thailand 86.96 86.96

Italthai Trevi Co Ltd Thailand 80.45 80.45

Asian Steel Product Co Ltd Thailand 69.90 69.90

Thai Maruken Co Ltd Thailand 50.96 50.96

Italian Thai Land Co Ltd Thailand 99.99 99.99

Khunka Palangthai Co Ltd Thailand 61.48 61.48

Palit Palangngan Co. Ltd Thailand 74.93 74.93

Palang Thai Kaowna Co Ltd Thailand 99.94 61.48

Italian Thai Power Co. Ltd Thailand 99.99 99.99

Sarahuri Construction Technology Co Ltd Thailand 99.93 99.93

Asia Logistics Development Co Ltd Thailand 99.93

Asia Industrial and Port Corporation Co Ltd Thailand 99.93

Indirect overseas subsidiaries

Italian-Thai Development BVI Co. Ltd British Virgin Islands 99.99 99.99

Servicescom tnvestment Ltd British Virgin Islands 99.99 99.99

Ayeyarwady Multitrade Co Ltd Myanmar 99.99 99.99

lTD Cementation Projects India Limited India 99.99 99.99

Koh Kong Power Light Co Ltd Cambodia 93.00

Indirect meal subsidiaries

Aquathai Co Ltd Thailand 99.99 99.99

Sarithorn Co Ltd Thailand 99.99 99.99

Southern Industries 1996 Co Ltd Thailand 99.99 99.99

Overseas joint ventures proportionate consolidation

lTD NCC Joint Venture NT-2 Laos 60.00 60.00

lTD EGC Joint Venture Taiwan 55.00 55.00

Shimizu lTD Joint Venture Laos 49.00

Shimizu lTD Joint Venture Bangladesh 40.00

Joint Venture Evergreen Italian-Thai PEWC Taiwan 25.00 25.00

Joint Venture between Italian-Thai Development Pie And lTD India 20.00 20.00

Cementation India Limited

ITD-Nawarat L.L.C United Arab

Emirates 60.00 60.00

ITD-ITDCEM JV India 51.00 51.00

ITD-tTDCEM JV Consortium India 60.00

Locaijoint ventures proportionate consolidation

lTD VIS Joint Venture Thailand 65.00 65.00

lTD NSC Joint Venture Thailand 50.50 50.50

The Joint Venture of Italian-Thai Development PIe Thailand 60.00 60.00

together with Aleatel Contracting GmbH
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Percentage investment

Countiy of

Name of Entity by the Company
incorporation

2008 2007

Joint Venture of Italian-Thai Development Plc Thailand 60.00 60.00

and Skanska Lundby Aktieholag

lTD NCC Joint Venture Thailand 51.00 .00

IN Joint Venture Thailand 51.00 51.00

ITO Joint Venture Thailand 40.00 40.00

lOT Joint Venture Thailand 40.00 40.00

ION Joint Venture Thailand 39.00 39.00

IDS Joint Venture Thailand 35.00 35.00

I.C.C. joint Venture Thailand 25.00 25.00

NWR ITI CNT AS Joint Venture Thailand 25.00 25.00

lTD SQ JOINT VENTURE Thailand 50.00

4.2 During the year 2008 there are significant changes as follows

The Company paid for share capital increase in Sin Rae Muang Thai Co Ltd of Baht 27.06 million

The Company paid for share capital increase in Italian-Thai Power Co Ltd of Baht 75.00 million

The Company purchase debts and share capital in Palang Thai Kaowna Co Ltd from former shareholders This increases the Company

investment to 99.94C/c of share capital
in Palang Thai Kaosvna Co Ltd

The Company invested in two new subsidiary companies Asia Logistics Development Co Ltd and Asia Industrial and Port Corporation

Co. Ltdto be engaged in the transportation business and seaport businessrespectively with registered
share capital at Baht 1.00 million

and Baht .00 million respectively

The Company and Sahakol Equipment Co Ltd entered into Joint Venture agreement on behalf of LTD-SQ JOINT VENTURE 10 he

engaged in the overburden and lignite removal services at Mae Moh Mine Phase The Companys portion in the Joint Venture is

50.009 and Sahakol Equipment Co Ltd is 50.00%

Shirniiu lTD Joint Venture and Shimizu lTD Joint Venture discontinued their business

subsidiary company insested 30.00% in Allied Enterprise Co Ltd amounting to Baht 0.30 million

ffie company paid for the increase in share
capital

of Thai Contractor Assets Co Ltd which is related company of Baht 18.75

million

The Company paid for the increase in share capital of Sino Lao Aluminum Corporation Limited which is related company of Baht

106.50 million

4.3 The Company does not include the financial statements of Siam Pacific Holding Company Limited svhtch was established for the purpose of

joint
venture svith foreign partner company of which 46.69 percent and 4.30 percent totaling 50.99 percent of its shares tire held by the

Company and its subsidiaries because the Company has no control over such companies and such companies are not considered as subsidiaries

Ihere is no inaterial effect on the consolidated financial statements for such exclusion

4.4 Ihe financial statements of the overseas project offices branches subsidiaries and joint ventures are translated into Thai Baht with the exchange

rates at the balance sheet date for assets and liabilities and with the monthly average exchange rates as to revenues and expenses The resultant

differences ale shown under the caption Translation adjustment for foreign currency financial statements under the shareholders equity It

should not be construed that foreign financial statements will be realized at those rates

4.5 Material intercompany balances and intercompany transactions have been eliminated from the consolidated financial statements except for

intercompany profit which was included ui inventories at the end of the year which has
insignificant

effect to the consolidated financial

statements

4.6 Minority interests represent the portion of subsidiarys profit or loss and net assets that is not held by the Company

4.7 All subsidiaries and joint ventures have reporting date 31 December and have been prepared with the same accounting policies as for the

separate financial statements for the same accounting transactions or accounting events

4.8 Dilution gains that arise on shares issued by subsidiary and sold to third parties are recognised as surplus on dilution of investment in subsidiary

company svhich is presented in shareholders equity in consolidated financial statements
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4.9 The Companys financial statements for the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007 include the financial statements of two overseas project

offices two overseas branches two overseas subsidiaries and six joint ventures 2007 five joint ventures which were audited by their

auditors Their aggregate assets and revenues as included in the consolidated financial statements are as follows

2008 2007

Unit Million Baht Total assets Total Revenues Total assets Total Revenues

KOLDAM Project Office 1366 830 1678 209

West Bengal Project Office 564 247 742 586

Italian-Thai Development Public Co. Ltd

Philippines Branch 424 497 605 364

Italian-Thai Development Public Co. Ltd Taiwan Branch 1419 1602 923 26

lTD Cementation India Co. Ltd 10254 10364 8080 7849

PT Thailindo Bara Pratama 754 280 278 15

ITD-Cemindia Joint Venture 155 179 112 159

ITD-ITDCEM jV 1673 2210 707 516

ITD-ITDCEM JV Consortium 400 106

lTD EGC joint Venture 1298 1567 1413 702

Joint Venture Evergreen Italian-Thai PEWC

ITD-Nawarat L.L.C 132 121 352 409

Total 18446 18003 14897 12835

4.10 The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2007 of three overseas joint ventures which are included in the consolidated financial

statements were prepared by the management and have not been audited by their auditors Their aggregate assets as at 31 December 2007 were

Baht 103.52 million and their aggregate revenues for the year ended 31 December 2007 were Baht 0.38 million The financial statements year

2007 of those joint ventures after audited by their auditors in the year 2008 do not have significant differences

4.11 The consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2008 and 2007 and for the years then ended included the proportion of the assets liabilities

revenues and expenses of the joint Venture the balances of which are as follows

Consolidated

Unit Thousand Baht 2008 2007

Current assets 7792376 7535986

Non-current assets 971926 697.850

Current liabilities 7150474 4848169

Non-current liabilities 40731 60.137

Revenues 8738934 7416162

Expenses 10004410 7400254

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

5.1 Revenues recognition

Resenuesfrotn construction work

Revenues from construction work are recognized when services have been rendered taking into account the stage of completion The stage of

completion measured by the proportion of actual construction costs incurred up to the end of the year and the total anticipated construction

cost to be incurred to completion Provision for the total anticipated loss on construction projects will be made in the accounts as soon as the

possibility
of loss is ascertained

Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer Sales are represented

by the invoiced value excluding value added tax of goods supplied after deducting discounts and allowances

Interest IiCOOe

tnterest income is recognized on time period accrued basis

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the
right to receive the dividends is established
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5.2 ash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand cash at banks and all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months

or less and not subject to withdrawal restrictions

5.3 Trade accounts receivable and allowance for doubtful accounts

Trade accounts receivable are stated at the net realisable value The Company its subsidiaries and joint ventures provided allowances for

doubtful accounts for the estimated losses that maybe incurred in collection of receivables The allowances are generally based on collection

expericilces and analysis of debtor aging and the likelihood of settlement of debt on specific account basis

5.4 Earned revenues not yet hilled/receipt in excess of contract work in progress

The recognized revenues svhich have not yet been due as per contracts is presented as Earned revenues not yet
billed in the balance sheet

The installment amounts due and received according to the contracts but not yet recognized as revenue is presented as Receipt in excess of

coiliiaet ss ork in progress in the balance sheet

5.5 Inventories and vvork under construction

Inventories and work under construction are valued at the lower of weighted average cost and net realizable value and are charged to production

costs whenever consumed Management review and provide allovvance for the obsolete inventories from time to time

5.6 Investments

Investments in available-6r-sale securities arc stated at fair value Gains or losses arising fromchanges in the value 01 such Investments arc

separately shosvn as part of shareholders equity under the caption Unrealised gain/loss on changes in the value of investments When the

securities are sold the change is included in determining income

Investments in non-marketable equity securities which the Company classifies as other investments are stated at cost net of allowance br

opairment if any

Ins estinents in subsidiary associated companies and joint ventures are accounted br by cost method in the separate financial statements

Investments in associated companies are accounted for by equity method in the consolidated financial statements

The lair value of marketable securities is based on the latest hid
price

of the last working day of the year as quoted on the Stock Exchange

The weighted average method is used for computation of the cost of investments

The Company its subsidiaries and joint ventures recorded loss on impairment if any of investments in available-for-sale securities and other

investments in determining income when the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable value

5.7 Related parties

Related parties comprise enterprises and individuals that control or are controlled by the Company whether directly or indirectly or which

are under common control with the Company

They also include associated companies and individuals which directly or indirectly ovvn voting interest in the Company that gives them

significant
influence over the Company key management personnel directors and officers with

authority
in the planning and direction of the

Compan operations

Su/vx id/ar/es

Subsidiaries are those companies controlled by the Company Control exists vvhen the Company has the power directly or indirectly to govern

the financial amid operating policies of company so as to obtain benefits from its activities The binancial statements of subsidiaries are included

in the consolidated binancial statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases

Associates arc those companies in vvliich the Company has significant influence but not control over the financial and operating policies The

consolidated linancial statements include the Companys share of the total recognized gains and losses of associates by the equity accounting

method from the date that significant influence commences until the date that significant influence ceases When the Companys share of losses

exceeds its interest in an associate the Companys carrying amount is reduced to zero and recognition of further losses is discontinued except

to the extent that the Company has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate

Jo/ni me/i/urn

The joint venture company is coirmpany over vvhich activities are jointly controlled established by contractual agreement The consolidated

linaneial statements include the Companys proportionate share of thejoint venture Companys assetsliabilities revenue and expenses combined

with iteios of similar nature on line by line basis from the date that
joint

control commenced until the date that joint control ceases

Land held for sale and development

Land held for sale and development is valued at cost or net realisable value vvhichever is lovver
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5.9 Property plant
and equipment and depreciation

Property plant and equipment are stated at cost Cost is measured by the cash or cash equivalent price of obtaining the asset and bringing it to

the location and condition necessary for its intended use Plant and equipment in balance sheet are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation

and allosvance for loss on impairment of assets if any

Dcprcciation of plant and equipment is calculated by reference to their costs on the straight-line basis over the following estimated useful

lives

Buildings 20 years

Machinery and equipment 19 years

Furniture fixtures and office equipment 12 years

Motor vehicles years

Expenditures for addition renewal and betterment svhich result in substantial increase in asset current replacement value are capitalised

Repair and nlaintenanee costs are recognized as an expense when incurred

5.10 Goodwill

Goodwill in business combination represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of share of the identifiable net assets

which the Company acquired Negative goodwill in business combination represents the excess of the fair value of share of the identifiable

net assets svhich the Company acquired over the cost of acquisition

The Company has changed its accounting policy for goodwill effective from January 2008 as discussed in note

Goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and svhen circumstances

indicate that the carrying value may be impaired

5.11 Discount on debentures

Discount on dehentures.eomprising the difference between proceeds from debentures issuance and redemption value on maturity is recognized

in the statement of income by an amortization method over the period of the borrowings on an effective interest basis

5.12 Lease svhere the Company and subsidiaries are the lessee

Leases of equipment where the Company assumes substantially
all the benefits and risks of ownership are classified as finance leases Finance

leases are capitalized at the fair value of leases of assets or estimated present value of the underlying lease payments whichever is lower Each

lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to achieve constant rate on the finance balance outstanding Lease

payment deducted by financial charges is recognized as liabilities under financial lease agreements The interest expense is charged to statement

of inconie over the lease period Assets acquired under finance lease agreements are depreciated over the useful lives of the assets

Leases of assets under svhieh all the risks and benefits of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases

Payments made under operating leases are charged to statements of income on straight line basis over the lease period When an operating

lease is terminated before expiry date of the lease period any payment required to be made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognized as an

expense in the period in which termination takes place

5.13 Leases ss here Company and subsidiaries are the lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases are included in building and equipment in the balance sheet Depreciation is calculated over their expected

useful lives on basis consistent with other similar assets Rental income is recognized on straight line basis over the lease period

5.14 Hire purchases payable

These represent hire purchases payable less deferred interest The repayment subschedules of the hire purchase contracts are 24 60 months

The fixed assets acquired under hire purchase agreement are recorded as assets of the Company at their cash
price

and svill be
registered

in the

name of the Company upon the completion of payments

5.15 Impairment

As at balance sheet date the Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired If any

such indication exists the Company makes an estimate of the asset recoverable amount Where the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its

recoverable amount the asset is considered impaired and is svritten dosvn to its recoverable amount Impairment losses are recognized in the

income statement An asset recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use

5.16 Income tax

Income tax is provided for in the accounts based on the taxable profits determined in accordance with tax legislation
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5.17 Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Baht at the exchange rates ruling on the transaction dates Financial assets and liabilities

denominated in foreign currencies which are outstanding at the balance sheet date are translated into Baht at the exchange rates ruling on the

balance sheet date Gains and losses on exchange are included in determining income

5.18 Financial instruments

Financial assets in the balance sheet include cash and bank balances investments and trade accounts receivable and loan to

Financial liabilities in the balance sheet include trade accounts payable financial leases advance received and borrowings

The accounting policies for each particular transaction are disclosed under separate sections associated with each item

5.19 Employee benefits

Salary wages bonuses and contributions to the social security
fund and provident fund are recognized as expenses on an accrual basis

5.20 Provident fund

The Company and subsidiaries set up registered provident fund contributed by employees and by the Company and subsidiaries for which

assets arc held in separate trusteed fund and manages by authorized fund manager

The Company contributions are charged to the statement of income in the period which they relate

5.21 Segment information

Segment information is presented in respect of the Companys subsidiaries and joint ventures businesses The primary format geographical

segments is based on the Company subsidiaries and joint ventures management and internal reporting structure

5.22 Dividend payment

Dividend payment is recorded in the financial statements in the period in which they are approved by the Shareholders or Board of Directors

of the Company and subsidiaries

5.23 Earnings per share

Earnings per share are determined by dividing net income loss for the year by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding

during the year

5.24 Provisions for liabilities and expenses and contingent assets

The Company subsidiaries and joint ventures are recognized provisions for liabilities and expenses in the financial statements when the Company

subsidiaries and joint ventures have present legal or constructive obligations as result of past events with probable outflow of resources to

settle the obligation and where reliable estimate of the amount can be made The contingent asset will be recognized as separate asset only

when the realization is
virtually certain

5.25 Use at accounting estimates

Preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and

assumptions in certain circumstances affecting amounts reported in these financial statements and related notes Actual results could differ

tram these estimates

5.26 Derivatives

Forward exchange contracts

Receivables and payables arising from forward exchange contracts are translated into Baht at the rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet

Gains and losses from the translation are included in determining income

Cross currency and interest rate swap agreements

Payables and receivables arising from the cross currency swap agreements are translated into Baht at the rates of exchange ruling on the

balance sheet Unrealized gains and losses from the translation are included in determining income The differences under interest rate swaps

are recorded as adjustments to the interest expense relating to the financial obligations in the statement of income

Currency option agreement

Currency option agreements are contracts between two parties whereby the seller grants the buyer future option to buy call option or to sell

put option foreign currency at an exchange rate stipulated
in the agreement The Company enters into such agreements in order to manage

foreign exchange risk

The notional amounts of cross currency option agreements utilized by the Company to manage foreign exchange risk are not recognized as

assets or liabilities upon inception of the agreement but fees to be received or paid by the Company in respect of such agreements are amortized

on straight line basis over the term of the agreement
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES ASSUMPTION AND JUDGEMENT AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

6.1 Critical accounting estimates assumption and judgments

Estimates assumption and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors including expcciations

of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances are as follows

Construction revenue

The stage
of completion of any construction contract is assessed by management by taking into consideration all information available

at the reporting date In this process management carries out significant judgements about milestones actual work performed and the

estimated costs to complete the work Significant assumptions are required to estimate the total contract costs and the recoverable variation

works that will affect the stage
of completion Actual outcome in terms of actual costs or revenue may be higher or lower than estimated

at the balance sheet date which would affect the revenue and profit recognised in future years as an adjustment to the amounts recorded

to date

Claims income

claim is an amount that the contractor seeks to collect from the customer or another party as reimbursement for costs not included in the

contract price claim may rise from for example customer caused delays errors in
specifications

or design and disputed variations in

contract work The measurement of the amounts of revenue arising from claims is subject to high level of uncertainty and often depends

on the Outcome of negotiations Therefore claims are only included in contract revenue when

Negotiations have reached an advanced stage such that it is probable that the Customer will accept the claim and

The amount that is probable will be accepted by the customer can be measured reliably

Allowance for project
losses

The Company subsidiaries and
joint

venture review its construction work-in-progress to determine whether ether is any indication of

foreseeable losses Identified foreseeable losses are recognised immediately in the statement of income when it is probable that total

Contract costs will exceed total contract revenue as determined by the Company management

Impairment of receivables

The Company subsidiaries and joint venture account for allowance for doubtful accounts which equal to the estimated collection losses

that may be incurred in the collection of receivables The estimated losses are based on historical collection experience couple with

review of outstanding receivables at the balance sheet date

Allowance for obsolete slow-moving and defective inventories

The Company subsidiaries and joint venture maintain an allowance for obsolete slow-moving and defective inventories to reflect

impairment of inventories The allowance is based on consideration of inventory tumover and deterioration of each category

Impairment of investments

The Company subsidiaries and
joint venture treat investments as impaired when there has been significant or prolonged decline in

the fair value below their cost or where other objective evidence of impairment exists The determination of what is significant or

prolonged requires management judgment

Impairment of goodwill

The Company subsidiaries and joint venture annually review goodwill from investments in subsidiary companies to determine whether it

is
inipaired or not The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units are determined based on value-in-use calculations These calculations

require the use of estimates

Property plant
and equipment and intangible assets

Management determines the estimated useful lives and residual values for property plant and equipment and intangible assets of the

Company subsidiaries and
joint

venture Management will revise the depreciation and amortization charge where useful lives and residual

values previously estimated have changed or subject to be written down for their technical obsolescence or no longer in used

Impairment of assets

The Company subsidiaries and
joint venture consider the allowance for impairment of assets whether there is an indication that an asset

may be impaired If any such indication exists when there has been significant decline in the fair value below their cost the Company

subsidiaries and joint venture make an estimate of the asset recoverable amount The determination of recoverable amount is requires

judgment
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10 Leases

In determining whether lease is to be classified as an operating lease or finance lease management is required to use judgment regarding

whether
significant

risk and rewards of ownership of the leased asset has been transferredtaking into consideration terms and conditions

of the arrangement

II l.itigation

The Company subsidiaries and joint venture have contingent liabilities as result ofdisputes and
litigation Management of the Company

subsidiaries and
joint

venture has used judgment to assess of the results of the disputes and litigation and believes that no loss will result

lherefore no contingent liabilities are recorded as at the balance sheet date However actual results could differ from the estimates

6.2 Capital risk management

Objectises of the Company subsidiaries and
joint venture in the management of capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as going

concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce

the cost of capital In addition the Company subsidiaries and joint venture have to maintain debt to equity ratio as stipulated
in loan facility

agreements

In order to maintain or adiust the capital structure the Company subsidiaries and
joint venture may issue new shares or issue new debentures

to finance debts or sell assets to reduce debts

As at 31 December 2008 the total liabilities to total shareholders equity ratio in the consolidated financial statements is 3.771 the separate

financial statements total liabilities to total shareholders equity is 2.471

CASH AN CASH EQUIVALENTS

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

Unit Thousand Baht 2008 2007 2008 2007

ash and deposits svith banks 2397482 2969513 975020 .188599

Governimient bonds 1649734 1649734

Total 4047216 2969513 2624754 1.188599

Less Deposits svith maturity of more than months 39707 405351 39690 84239

Total Cash and cash equivalents 4007509 2564162 2585064 1104360

As at 31 Decemmiher 2008 the Company has temporary investments in government bonds of approximately Baht 1649.73 million for
period

of IS

days These hears interest ai the rate of 2.10-2.18 percent per annum

RESTRICTED DEPOSITS WITH BANKS

As at 31 December 2008 approximately Baht 43.67 million 2007 Baht 89.41 million of saving and fixed deposits of the Conipany and its subsidiaries

have been pledged svith banks as eollaterals for loans obtained by the Company to finance specific propects and saving deposits of approximately Bahi

365.92 million 2007 Baht 485.66 million have been pledged with the bank as collaterals for standby letters of credit Fixed deposits amounting to

Ilaht 97.70 million 2007 Baht 58.46 million have been pledged as required in the normal course of business of Company subsidiaries joint ventures

and the overseas branches These restricted deposits with banks arc mostly turned over within one year

PROMISSORY NOTES

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

Unit Thousand Baht 2008 2007 2008 2007

Pronussory Notes 936590 682231 936590 682.231

less Promissory Notes Current Portion 300000 300000

Net 636590 682231 636590 682.231

During the ycaF 2007 the ompany arranged with group of major debtors ic scheduling the collection of amount of receivables that have been long

outstandiiig nder such arrangement the debtors agreed to ay the Company by installments over to years by issuing various promissory notes

iiyihle to the ompany at different due dates Those pioillissory notes hear interest at the rate MLR 4.493% of MLR per annum The Company

used such promissory notes as collaterals for its borrowings fmm commercial bank on hack to back basis The borrowings hear interest at the

rate of MLR amid are included as part of long term borrowings loans As at 31 December 2008 and 2007 the outstanding balance of loans is totaling

Baht 936.S9 mullion and 682.23 million respectively with the hack to hack promissory notes totaling the same amount
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10 TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE UNRELATED PARTIES

The aging of outstanding trade accounts receivable balances as at 31 December 2008 and 2007 are as follows

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

Outstanding Ages
Unit Thousand Baht 2008 2007 2008 2007

Less than months 6011096 3956929 3168890 2605364

3-6months 952273 328676 201971 169272

6- 12 months 357759 527279 10966 66467

More than 12 months 1706492 1673062 641964 613532

Total 9027620 6485946 4023791 3454635

Less Allowance for doubtful accounts 542901 602950 486946 534520

Net 8484719 5882996 3536845 2920115

The Company has set up full allowance for doubtful accounts for the major private accounts receivable that have been overdued for more than 12

months and at 50 percent for those accounts overdued for more than months Trade accounts receivable as at 31 December 2008 and 2007 include

variation claims of Baht 302.61 million and Baht 359.28 million respectively recognized in the earlier years which has been disputed by the customer

Of these claims the arbitrator had issued verdict in favour of the subsidiary company of Baht 117.22 million and Baht 139.17 million respectively

However the total amount has still been disputed by the customer Trade accounts receivable of such subsidiary company and joint venture as at 31

December 2008 and 2007 also include Baht 244.87 million and Baht 369.93 million respectively billed for interim work done which have not been

certified by customers beyond normal periods of certification Considering the nature of the subsidiary company and joint ventures businesses the

management is unable to determine the age of such bills Management however believe that such receivable can be collected in full and therefore

has not set up any allowance for possible losses

11 TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE RELATED PARTIES

The outstanding balances as at 31 December 2008 and 2007 are as follows-

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

Unit Thousand Baht 2008 2007 2008 2007

Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures

eliminated from consolidated financial statements

ITO Joint Venture 219808 80979

JOT Joint Venture 67892 292106

Asian Steel Products Co Ltd 559 188

Thai Pride Cement Co Ltd 6799 7174

lTD NCC Joint Venture NT-2 1084489 728569

lTD VIS Joint Venture 4972 29927

lTD NCC Joint Venture 36 228

PT Thailindo Bara Pratama 368407 270 .442

Italian Thai International Co Ltd 31534 32589

IN Joint Venture 28713 41353

ITD-NSC Joint Venture 1177

Italthai Marine Co Ltd 7507 5305

Bhaka Bhumi Development Co Ltd 45435 25837

IDS Joint Venture 3039 14912

Siam Concrete and Brick Products Co Ltd 7105 4714

ITD-Nawarat L.L.C 44026 27926

Aquathai Co Ltd 2141 10605

Nha Pralan Crushing Plant Co Ltd 14877 10007

ltalthai Trevi Co Ltd 12616 9509

Italian-Thai Land Co Ltd 8205 8205

Italian-Thai Power Co Ltd 24809 3309

Saraburi Construction Technology Co Ltd 2853 680
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CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

Related compani

397204

86963

11552

51677

45673

101.084

23.202

228

5272

10243

21658

30781

18566

8639

10870

823612

110822

712790

78340 86927

2166 10.371

51677

13829 45 .673

125681 101.084

370 23.202

806 228

31732 10243

460

22487 21.658

87609 30781

18566

336 8279

57802

123

16027 10.813

437768 419502

101650 110.822

336118 308.680

olheLparticipants of joint ventures

ITO Joint Venture

lOT Joint Venture

lTD NCC Joint Venture

lTD NCC Joint Venture NT-2

IN Joint Venture

lTD VIS Joint Venture

ITD-Nawarat

Others

Total

Trade accounts receivable related parties Net

48588

175264

112

291428

20263

10.475

11.170

582

557882

1289470

2008 2007Unit Thousand Baht

ITD-ITDCEM JV

Others

Total

Less Allowance for doubtful accounts

Net

Associated compani

MCRP Construction Corporation Philippines

Si no Lao Aluminum Corporation Limited

Bangkok Steel Wire Co Ltd

Others

lotal

Less Allowance for doubtful accounts

Net

2008

37085

21073

2007

3988

2043980

1023056

1020924

687707

16839

395

18754

689301

12487

417

4300

1.610729

54651

1556078

635 .836

12417

417

4300

653040

635 .836

17.204

723695

687707

635836

16839

395

17156

670226

635836

706505

687707

35988 18 .798 34390

Related by way of common directors

Nam Thuen Power Co Ltd 167962

ltalthai Engineering Co. Ltd 78375

Siam Steel Syndicate PIe 2207

Iladaeng o. td

ltalthai Industrial Co. Ltd 15117

Ao Siam Marine Co. Ltd 125681

Ainari Co. Ltd 370

Nawarat Patanakarn Plc 806

Nishimatsu Construction Co. Ltd 131

Ao Po Grand Marina Co. Ltd 31732

Baan Ri ninani Chaopraya Co. Ltd 460

Asia Pacilic Potash Corporation Limited 22487

ToyoThai Corporation Ltd 87609

Ao Po Pattana Co. Ltd

Thai Rent All Co. Ltd 736

Suvarnnahhumi Entertainment o. Ltd 57802

Sarahuri Coal Co I.td 123

Others 19507

Total

--

611105

Less Allosvance for doubtful accounts 101650

Net 509455

Outstanding balances and portion of

131885

40735

18

374501

14069

1740

17611

3004

583563

1129006 1391432 1.881962
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The aging of outstanding balances of trade accounts receivable related parties as at 31 December 2008 and 2007 are as follows

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

Outstanding Ages
Unit Thousand Baht 2008 2007 2008 2007

Less than months 522951 958758 607427 1121022

3-6 months 132654 82.706 134134 151387

6- 12 months 236889 110.185 322255 252.776

More than 12 months 1025869 936350 2088158 1158086

Total 1918363 2087999 3151974 2.683271

Less Allowance for doubtful accounts 789357 798529 1760542 801309

Net 1129006 1289470 1391432 1881962

The Company has set up allowances for doubtful accounts at the full amount of the major accounts receivable that have been overdued for more than

12 months by evaluating risk factor for each receivable

During the year 2008 the Company has made provision for loss on non collection of trade receivable from related
parties

in the separate financial

statements totalling Baht 980.28 million since these related parties have loss from their operation and may not be able to repay their debts

12 SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES TO RELATED PARTIES

The outstanding balances as at 31 December 2008 and 2007 are as follows

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

Unit Thousand Baht
2008 2007 2008 2007

Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures

eliminated from consolidated financial statements

LTD EGC Joint Venture 1070494 912.296

Bhaka Bhumi Development Co Ltd 368330 208246

Siam Concrete and Brick Products Co Ltd 34569 34569

PT Thailindo Bara Pratama 97406 46.487

LTD Cementation India Limited 17342 111685

LTD NSC Joint Venture 41500

LTD NCC Joint Venture 811 26151

Shimizu LTD Joint Venture 34755

LTD Cemindia Joint Venture 126377 126377

LTD-Nawarat L.L.C 234435 186254

LTD ITDCEM JV 5267 5408

Others
73 73

Total 1955104 1733801

Less Allowance for doubtful accounts 515477 184.155

Net 1439627 1549646

Associated companies

Italian-Thai Gypsum Co Ltd 4600 4600 4600 4600

Sino Lao Aluminum Corporation Limited 1248 6594 1248 6594

Total 5848 11194 5848 11194

Less Allowance for doubtful accounts 4600 4600 4600 4.600

Net 1248 6594 1248 6594

Related company

Related by wa of common directors

Obayashi Corporation 1308

Total 1308
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CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

UlTheusÆnd Bsht 2008 2007 2008 2007

Outstanding balances and portion of other pjkjpants of

joint ventures

lTD Nawarat L.L.C 93774

lTD NCC Joint Venture 398

Total 94172

Short term loans and advances to Related
parties

net 96728 6594 1440875 .556240

Significant movements in the short-term loans and advances to related parties for the years ended 31 December 2008 are as follows

_______________
During the year

Unit Thousand Baht 2007 Increase Decrease 2008

Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures

LTD EGC Joint Venture 912296 158198 1070494

Bhaka Bhumi Development Co. Ltd 208246 223.884 63800 368330

Siam Concrete and Brick Products Co. Ltd 34.569 34569

PT Thailindo Bara Pratama 46487 50919 97406

lTD Cementation India Limited 111685 94343 17342

LTD NSC Joint Venture 41500 41500

lTD NCC Joint Venture 26151 25.340 811

Shirnizu LTD Joint Venture 34755 34755

LTD Cemindia Joint Venture 126377 126377

ITD-NAWARATL.L.C 186254 48293 112 234435

LTD LTDCEM JV 5408 34 175 5267

Other 73 73

Total 1.733801 481328 260025 1955104

Associated companies

Italian-Thai Gypsum Co Ltd 4600 4600

Sino Lao Aluminum Corporation Limited 6594 1229 6575 1248

Total 11194 1229 6575 5848

Total 1744995 482557 6600ti960952

During the year 2008 the Company has made provision for loss on non collection of short-term loan and advance from related parties in the separate

financial statements totaling amount 234.44 million in consideration that such parties have loss from its operation and may not be able to repay their

debts

13 INVENTORIES

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

Unit Thousand Baht 2008 2007 2008 2007

Construction in progress 333040 269616 16259 5541

Materials 3931852 3075367 1491821 1348472

Total

--

4264892 3344983 1508080 1354013

Less Provision 0r inventory obsolescence 10090 12769

Inventories net 4254802 3332214 1508080 1354013

During the year the movements in allowance for slow moving and obsolete inventories are as follows

Unit Thousand Baht

Balance as at January 2008 12769

Add Additional allowance during the year 4518

Less- Reversal of allowance for obsolete inventories 7197

Balance as at 31 December 2008 10090
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14 INVESTMENTS IN RELATED PARTIES

14.1 Investments in subsidiaries associated companies and joint ventures

Percentage of SEPARATE F/S

Paid-up
Nature of business shareholding Cost

Capital

Unit Thousand Baht 2008 2007 2008 2007

Investments in subsidiaries

Italian-Thai International Co Ltd Holding company and ship
charter hire 400000 99.99 99.99 400000 400000

Less Allowance for impairment
400000 400.000

Net

Bhaka Bhumi Development Co Ltd Construction and real estate 5075 99.99 99.99 5075 5075

Thai Pride Cement Co Ltd Manufacture and distribution of cement 1300000 99.99 99.99 1585000 1585000

Sin Rae Muang Thai Co Ltd Mining business 3500000 99.99 99.99 3499999 3472940

Nha Pralan Crushing Plant Co. Ltd Rock quarrying processing and distribution 1000 99.91 99.91 999 999

Less Allosvance for impairment 999 999

Net

Siam Concrete and Brick Products Co Ltd Manufacture and distribution of concrete products

and real estate 84000 99.70 99.70 82296 82296

ltalthai Marine Ltd Production and sale of vessels and equipment 460000 86.96 86.96 80000 80000

Italthai Trevi Co Ltd Foundation and piling work services 55000 80.45 80.45 55689 55.689

Asian Steel Product Co Ltd Manufacture and distribution of steel
pipes

for civil construction 20000 69.90 69.90 7004 7004

Thai Maruken Co Ltd Lease and sale of sheet piles and beams 20000 50.96 50.96 10196 10196

Italian-Thai Land Co Ltd Not
yet operational 10000 99.99 99.99 50 50

Less Allowance for impairment 50 Sf

Net

Palang Thai Kaowna Co. Ltd Not
yet operational 1000 99.94 61.48 650 265

Less Allowance for impairment 650 265

Net

Khunka Palang Thai Co Ltd Not yet operational
1000 61.48 61.48 265 265

Less Allowance for impairment
265 265

Net

Palit Palang Ngan Co Ltd Not
yet operational 1000 74.93 74.93 50 50

Less Allowance for impairment 50 50

Net

Italian Thai Power Co Ltd Production and distribution of
electricity 100000 99.99 99.99 100000 25000

Saraburi Construction Technology Co Ltd Manufacture distribution and installation of

concrete sheet 250 99.93 99.93 250 250

Asia Logistics Development Co Ltd Not yet operational
1000 99.93 999

Asia Industrial and Port Corporation Co Ltd Not yet operational
1000 99.93 999

Overseas companies

Myanmar LTD Co Ltd Service agent for Myanmar companies 1483 99.99 99.99 1483 1483

Thousand Baht

Less Allowance for impairment 1483 1483

Net

PT Thailindo Bara Pratama Coal
digestion

services 25250 99.99 99.99 108071 108071

Million IDR

LTD Cementation India Ltd Construction services in India 115 69.57 69.57 2143951 2143951

Million INR

Total Investments in subsidiaries net 7679529 7575472
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Percentage of SEPARATE F/S

Paid-up

Nature of business shareholding Cost

Capital

Unit Thousand Baht 2008 2007 2008 2007

Investment in joint venture

ITD-Nawarat LL.C Construction services in United Arab Emirates 300000 60.00 60.00 977 977

UAE

Total Investment in
joint venture

___________
977

Percentage of CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

Paid-up
Nature of business shareholding Equity Cost

Capital _______ _______

Unit Thousand Baht 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Investments in associated companies

Praram Square Hotel o. l.td Hotel Business 100000 50.00 50.00 50.000 50.10

Less Allowance impairment 50.000 50.000

Net

Italian-Thai Gypsum Co. l.td Construction in Saudi Arabia 10500 50.00 50.00 5250 5250 5.250 5.250

Less Allowance for impairment 5250 5.250 5250 5250

Net

ATO-Asia Turnouts Co. Ltd Production and distribution of

turnouts for railway projects 5.000 49.00 49.00 16955 3664 2450 2.450

Siam Pachic Holding Co. Ltd Holding company 58.625 46.69 46.69 27453 27.627 27373 27.373

Chantahuri Farm Co. ltd Real estate development 100.000 35.72 14.729 21429

Asia Steel Corporation Manufacture import and
export

of steel in
Philippines 20.000 30.00 30.11 12311 12301 7800 7.800

.css Allowance for impairment 12301 12.30 7800 7.800

Net

.--
-.

Bangkok Steel Wire Co. Ltd Production and distribution

of P.C wire 31300 19.98 19.98 97847 92.696 71603 71.613

Praram Square Co. Ltd Shopping center development 750.001 20.00 20.00 200000 50.00 200000 150.0011

Less Allowance for impairment 200000 51.000 200.000 150.000

Net

Thai Contractors Assets Co. Ltd Real estate development 375000 15.00 15.0 53896 37373 56250 37500

Overseas companies

Anamarine Construction SNI BHD Construction contractor in Malaysia 65.000 25.00 25.00 198 198 198 198

RM

less Allowance or impairment 198 198 198 198

Net

MCRP Construction Corporation Construction contractor in 25 24.00 24.00 12000 12001 12000 12.000

Philippines Philippines
Million Peso

Less Al loss anec br impairment 12000 12.001 12000 12.000

Net

MCRP Holding orporatlon Holding company in
Philippines 24.00 24.00 3000 3000 3000 3101

Philippines Million Pest

Less Allowance or impairment 3000 3.000 3000 3000

Net

Sino lao Aluminum Corporation Bauxite niine business 34.00 33.00 171623 61211 174462 67.961

Limited Million US

lotal Investments in associated companies net 367774 247299 332138 228316

Total Investments in subsidiary associated companies

and oint ventures net 367774 247299 8012644 7.804.765
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Percentage of CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

Paid-up
Nature of business shareholding Equity Cost

Capital

Unit Thousand Baht 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Investments in associated companies

held by Subsidiaries

Natureway Resources Co Ltd Holding company
40 30.00 30.00 296700 296700

Million USD

Less Allowance for impairment 296700 296700

Net

Siam Pacific Holding Co Ltd Holding company 58625 4.30 4.30 2525 2.525

Allied Enterprise Co Ltd
Holding_company

.000 30.00 300

Total 2825 2525

Total Investments net 370599 249824

The Company and its subsidiaries equity interest in the above associated companies are mostly determined based on the financial statements compiled

by the management of those companies and not yet
audited by those companies auditors However the Companys management believes that there

are no significant adjustments to be made to the consolidated financial statements

The Company regularly assesses the values of investments in each subsidiary/associated company and
joint

venture The allowance for impairment

is promptly taken up when there is reliable indication that the decline in value is quite certain

The significani
financial information of the associates in the aggregate amounts are summarized as follows

For the years ended 31 December

Unit Thousand Baht 2008 2007

Assets 2886363 .895.781

Liabililies 1514031 868870

Revenues 1988042 1584189

Net income 20848 55588

14.2 Other long term investments

Percentage of CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

Nature of business shareholding Cost Cost

Unit Thousand Baht 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Investments in other companies

Non-listed companies

Toyo-Thai Corporation
Ltd Construction contractor 16.25 16.25 52000 52000 52000 52000

Nam Theun Posver Co Ltd Hydroelectric posver plant
15.00 15.00 975117 446331 975117 446331

M-Home SPV Co. Ltd Real estate development 11.54 11.54 12 12 12 12

Less Allowance for impairment 12 12 12 112

Net

Siam Steel Syndicate Plc Manufacture and distribution for construction 5.45 5.45 55885 55.885 55885 55885

Siam Fiber Optics Co Ltd Manufacture and distribution of optic fibers 10.00 10.00 24000 24000 24000 24000

Medical Device Manufacturer Manufacture and distribution of

Thailand Limited medical products 6.95 6.95 50069 50.069 50069 50069

Less Allowance for impairment 50069 50069 50069 50069

Net

Sosuco Granite Co Ltd Rock quarrying and Distribution 5.00 5000 5.000

Less Allowance for impairment 5000 5.000

Net

Bell Deselopment Co. Ltd Formerly Real estate development 3.51 3.51 47313 47313 47313 47313

Time Regency Co Ltd

Less Allosvance for impairment 47313 47313 47313 47313

Net
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Percentage of CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

Unit Thousand Baht

The Bangkok Club Co Ltd

Less Allowance fdr impairment

Net

Imperial Technology Management

Service Plc

Less Allowance fr impairment

Net

Thai Rent All o. Ltd

Lao Metal lndustr o. Ltd

Advance payment for sflsrecpIil

The Exchange Square Co Ltd

Less Allowance for impairment

Net

Total Investment in other non listed

companies net

hi tedmpes

Charoong Thai Wire and Cable Plc

Add Unrealized gain loss from

changes in value of investments

Net market value

Cyber Bay Corporation Philippines

Add Unrealized
gain loss from

changes in value of investments

Net market value

K.C Property Plc

Add Unrealized loss from changes In

value of investments

Net market value

Nawarat Patanakarn Plc

Less Unrealized loss from chaitges In

value of invcvtmcnts

Net market value

Everlaud Plc

Add Lnrealized gain from changes In

value of investments

Net market value

Total Investment in other listed

companies net

Total Investments in other companies net

Nature otbustnesa shareholding

2008

Entertainment services 0.44

Initiation and establishment of Asian

University of Science and Technology 19.83

Construction machinery Rental

Manufacture steel vvires and steel rod

Real estate development

Cost Cost

2008 2007 2008 2007

3000 3000 3000 3000

1985 1985 1985 1985

2007

0.44

983

15.00

12.90

14.25

1.04

4.05

0.05

15.00

10.00

Manufacture and distribution of enamel

coated wire and cable 12.90

Real estate development 14.25

Real estate development 1.04

Construction services 4.05

Real estate development 0.05

1015 1.015 1015 1015

175000 17500t 175000 175000

84515 84515 84515 84515

90485 90485 90485 90485

13729 13729 7500 7500

10000 10000

5000 5000

5000 5000

1222231 683445 1216002 677216

308715 308715 308715 308715

116752 73672 116752 73672

191963 382387 191963 382387

195566 195566 59395 59395

69221 49249 66950 185420

126345 244815 126345 244815

9139 9139 9139 9139

2559 914 2559 914

6580 8225 6580 8225

100716 100716 100716 100716

78558 34243 78558 34243

22158 66473 22158 66473

111 III 111 III

142 142

111 253 111 253

347157 702153 347157 702153

1569388 1385.598 1563159 1379369
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Percentage of CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

Nature of business shareholding Cost Cost

Unit Thousand Baht 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Investments held by subsidiaries

Non-listed compnis

Premus Thailand Co Ltd Real estate management 10.00 10.00 1250 1250

Island Country Telecommunication Telecommunication services

Co Ltd 4.28 3053

Less Allowance for impairment
3053

Net

Bell Development Co. Ltd Real estate management
13.00 13.00 135226 135226

Formerly Time Regency Co Ltd

Less Allowance for impairment 135226 135226

Net

Listed companies

Charoong Thai Wire and Cable Plc Manufacture and distribution of enamel

coated wire and cable 0.80 0.80 19178 19178

Add Unrealized
gain loss from

changes in value of investments 13481 4578

Net market value 5697 23756

Total
6947 25006

Total Investments in other companies net 1576335 1410604 1563159 1379369

During the year 2008 Nam Theun Power Co Ltd requests for payment of share capital amount USD 15.76 million which equivalent to Baht

52879 million

The Company has pledged the shares of related company to secure the long term loan with Financial Institutions of related company

During the year 2008 the Company sold its investments in Chataburi Farm Co Ltd The Exchange Square Co Ltd and Sosuco Granite Co Ltd

with gain of approximately Baht 1.00 million

15 INVESTMENT IN POTASH MINING PROJECT

The Company has investment in potash mine project of Baht 3236 million that the request for mining license is being processed Currently the

government agree to set up the national committee consist of represent from Ministry of Industry Ministry of Interior Ministry of Natural Resources

and Environment Ministry of Public Health and Ministry of Social Development and Human Security to consider the process to resolve the potash

mining operations in Udonthani to make the progress and generate the benefits The Companys management believes that this project
will generate

benefits both for nearby areas and for the country and the project will be approved by the government and operational as planned since the Ministry

of Finance has jointly invested in this project
for 10% of the total registered capital The management of the Company believes that there will not he

any impairment in the value of investment

16 LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES TO RELATED PARTIES

The outstanding balances as at 31 December 2008 and 2007 are as follows

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

Unit Thousand Baht 2008 2007 2008 2007

Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures

eliminated from consolidated financial statements

ITO Joint Venture 528400 528400

LTD NCC Joint Venture 18360 69070

Italian-Thai International Co Ltd 245380 128546

IDS Joint Venture 220500 221500

IN Joint Venture 156291 115771

The Joint Venture of Italian-Thai Development Plc together with

Alcatel Contracting GmbH 105000 105.000

lTD NCC Joint Venture NT-2 198000 198000
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CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

Unit Thousand Baht 2008 2007 2008 2007

Southern Industries 1996 Co Ltd 24673

Nba Pralan Crushing Plant Co Ltd 12100 13000

Italian-Thai Land Co Ltd
554358 554358

Palang Thai Kaowna Co. Ltd 456350 280702

Khunka Palang Thai Co. Ltd 59066 58882

Paht Palang Ngan Co. Ltd 94456 94231

Italian- Fhai Power Co Ltd
220680 170

Stn Rae Muang Thai Co Ltd 21391

Others 9792 9792

Total
2900124 2401.094

Less Allowance for doubtful accounts 1668352 1266584

Nd
1231772 1.134510

Associated company

Sino Lao Alutrununi Corporation Limited 34462 34462 34462 34462

Allied Enterprise Co Ltd 116100

Total 150562 34462 34462 34462

Related compnja

Pladaeng Co ltd 59075 59075

Central Bay Reclamation and DevelopmenT Corp 35761 35761

Asia Pacilic Potash Corporation Limited 211822 150674

Total 247583 245510 59075

Less Allowance for doubtful accounts 35761 94836 59075

Net
211822 150674

Total long term loans and advances to related Companies net 362384 185136 1266234 1168972

Stgntlicant movements in the long term loans and advances to related parties for the year ended 31 December 2008 are as follows

During the year
2007 ---- 2008

Unit Thousand Baht Increase Decrease

Subsidiaries and .Ioint Ventures

ITO Joint Venture 528400 528400

ITD-NCC Joint Venture 69070 50710 18360

Italian-Thai International Co Ltd 128546 116834 245380

IDS Joint Venture 220500 220500

IN Joint Venture 115770 40521 156291

The Jotnt Venture of Italian-Thai Development Plc together with

Alcatel Contracting GmbH lOS .000 105040

LTD NCC Joint Venture NT-2 198.000 198000

Southern lttdustries 1996 Co Ltd 24673 24673

Nha Pralan Crushing Plant Co Ltd 13000 900 12100

Italian-Thai Land Co Ltd 554358 554358

Palang Thai Kaowna Co Ltd 280702 175648 456350

Khunka Palang Thai Co Ltd 58882 184 59066

Palit Palang Ngan Co Ltd 94231 225 94456

Italian-Thai Power Co Ltd 170 264680 44170 220680

Sin Rae Muang Thai Co Ltd 21391 21391

Others 9792 9792

Total 2401094 619483 120453 2900124
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During the period

2007 2008

Unit Thousand Baht Increase Decrease

Associated company

Sino Lao Aluminum Corporation Limited 34462 34462

Related company

Pladaeng Co Ltd 59075 59075

Total 2494631 619483 179528 2934586

During the year 2008 the Company has made provision for loss on non collection of long-term loan and advance from related parties in the separate

financial statements totaling amount 251.63 million in consideration that such parties have loss from its operation and may not be able to repay their

debts

17 LOAN AND ADVANCES TO UNRELATED PARTIES

As at 31 December 2008 the Company had outstanding balance of loan of USD 11.79 million 2007 USD 13.79 million to the Defense Ministry of

the Union of Myanmar to finance the construction of steel mill in Myanmar The Company will receive the repayment of this loan in the form of steel

processing services for 40.00 percent of such steel mill production capacity but not less than 100000 metric tons per annum for period of six years

after the construction of steel mill is completed Construction of the above plant is now complete and commences providing services The returns on

loan depend upon the extent of the demand for steel in Myanmar In the past the Company has already set up provision for loss in full amount The

Company does not take up interest income in the books but summarizes the amount for inclusion in its income tax computation

The Company rcappraised the value of these loans since the Company had consistently received loan repayments over the past years The

Company therefore reduced the associated allowance for loss to only USD II .79 million in accordance with the anticipated actual losses and reversed

the excess provision previously made to the account Reversal of allowance for doubtful accounts As at 31 December 2008 the Company has fully

recovered the advance referred above

Moreover the Company also has advanced cash of Baht 88.61 million for the investment in local company which is under the negotiation process

Currently has been no further development of the project because the Electricity Generating Authority of Thailand is in the process of concluding the

development plan for the capacity of Power plant Such cash advances are to support the acquisition of the concession license from the Government

of Cambodia to develop 3600 mega watt Coal-Fired Power Plant at Koh Kong

The Govemment of Cambodia is currently allowing three companies comprising Koh Kong Power Light Co Ltd Cambodia International Investment

Group and Gulf JP to develop the power plant If any one of the three companies can conclude the negotiation with the Electricity Generating Authority

of Thailand and Ministry of Energy it will be awarded the right to generate the Power Plant For the time being Koh Kong Power Light Co Ltd is

the most prospective winner for this project Should the Company not win the selection process the Company will write off the cash advance referred

to above to expense immediately

The subsidiary company entered into agreement with broker in Cambodia to perform contact and negotiate with Government of Cambodia to obtain

the license and permission for the development of 3.600 Megawatts Coal-fired Power Plant in Koh Kong Province The subsidiary company shall

pay USD 20.00 million with installments as described in the agreement and shall provide 5.00 of free shares for this project to broker As at 31

December 2008 the subsidiary company has paid cash to such broker totaling
Baht 252.68 million Such cash advance is considered as part of the

acquisition costs of concession to operate power plant in Cambodia

18 LAND HELD FOR SALE AND DEVELOPMENT

CONSOLIDATED

Unit Thousand Baht 2008 2007

Land held for sale and development 952721 1013090

Less Allowance for impairment
_________________

394501 453.900

Land held for sale and development net 558220 559190

Management believes that such assets are salable in the future at prices not less than their net carrying values
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19 PROPERTY PLANT AN EQUIPMENT

CONSOLIDATED

Unit Thousand Baht

.Januar\ 208

Reclassification

\cquisit ionTransler il

1isposals/ Frattsfer out

IralislatalIt adIlIStIllellE

31 December 288

Accumulated depreciation

January 208

Accumulated depreciatIon from reclassilical loll

Depreciation for the year

Iepreciat loll or sposal

Iranslal ion ad iistntcnt

31 December 2118

Net book alue

31 IIeceniber 207

5.58462

72.921

6.432

7.010

2.103.078

272.946

5.743

3299

2.366.982

2445333 3481.542

Furniture

fixtures and

Office

Equipment

191.633

13 .435

84.015

4.059

8367

276.957

Building

and factories

Site office

and

Temporary

Camps

Land

2445333

4384

1208

Machinery

and equipment

under

installation

19.228.406 466.957 34.365

104567 288121

2.556.278 109.095 1.269826

392.140 4.884 1.143892

502.049 10.248 22.456

735 .9642.449.209 5644099 20.785.928 560.920

Total

28069.68

183.554

40 2.204

11547.348

541.97

30176.120

13.063.155

2113618

263894

250.270

14 .662 .619

15.116526

10768.444

13.435

.756.657

254.092

238904

12018670

8459.962 275324 44 .365

31 Decelliher 2008 2.449209 3277117 8767.258 283963 735.964 15.5 13.5

Depreciation in 2007 income statement .922582

Depreciation in 2008 income statement 13.68

SEPARATE F/S

Furniture Site office Machinery

Building fixtures and and and equipment
Land Total

and factories Office Temporary under

Unit Thousand Baht Equipment Camps installation

CQ
January 2008 2247918 4056252 13.423131 434.604 281.449 21.443.354

Reclassification 51000 51000

Acquisitins/fransfer in 3749 54438 1.319.320 109095 956.293 2442895

Disposak/liansler oLtt 48 215.481 366 1.062.652 1.278.547

Iranslation adustnlent 233613 10.425 15.514 259.552

December 2108 2251667 4110642 4242357 532908 59.576 21297151

Accumulated depreciation

January 2018 .775555 8.349 167.900 11292626

AccLtntulated depreciation from reclassilicalion 3435 13435

Depreciation for the year 199676 .13 .403 80985 .312064

Depreciation for disposals 48 159669 42 159759

Iransatioit aduistmcnt 111.626 8052 119.678

31 Decenther 2018 1975 83 9195.814 254.226 .325.253

Net book value

December 2007 2.247.918 2.280.697 5.073.960 266704 281419 10.150.728

Decenther 2008 2.251.667 2135459 5146513 278682 159.576 9.971.897

Depreciation iii 2007 income statement .225.396

Depreciat ion in 2008 income statement .3 2.064
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The Company and its subsidiaries have mortgaged part
of the buildings with aggregate net book values of approximately Baht 447.89 million and

land of Bahi 403.55 million 2007 Baht 491.45 million and Baht 143.55 million respectively with bank as collaterals for long term loans from

such bank as discussed in Note 25 In addition the Company and its subsidiaries have mortgaged and granted power of attorney to mortgage land

with total value of Baht 4.91 million 2007 Baht 4.91 million with banks as collaterals for the issuance of letters of guarantees for the Company

and subsidiaries

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007 certain building machinery and equipment items of the Company subsidiaries and
Joint

ventures have been fully

depreciated but are still in use The original cost before deducting accumulated depreciation of those assets amounted to Baht 5910.98 million and

Baht 5570.37 million respectively SEPARATE F/S Baht 4775.13 million and Baht 4742.00 million respectively

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007 machinery equipment and vehicles with net book value amounting to Baht 1119.50 million and Baht 1436.80

million are acquired under hire purchase contracts as referred to in Note 24

20

Consolidated

Unit Thousand Baht 2008 2007

Cost 548948 548948

Less Accumulated amortization 48862 48862

Net hook value 500086 500086

The management has considered that the above goodsvill
has no any impairment

21 BANK OVERDRAFTS AND SHORT TERM LOANS FROM FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

The outstanding balances of bank overdrafts and short term loans from financial institutions as at 31 December 2008 and 2007 are as follosvs

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

Unit Thousand Baht 2008 2007 2008 2007

Bank overdrafts 2274344 67.7 17 62787 20018

Short term loans from financial institutions 5078961 4.90657 2979377 3.473.444

Total 7353305 4.974288 30421 6473A93462

These represent loans obtained from local and overseas linancial institutions in both Baht currency and foreign currenciesCi5 follosvs

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

Unit Million 2008 2007 2008 2007

Bahi 3845 5857 2396 5439

PHP 141 165 141 165

USD

NTD 455 400 455 400

INR 493 773

These loans are subject to interest at domestic market rate for Baht currency loans and at the rates based on market rate of India Taisvan Philippines

and SIBOR for foreign currency loans

As at 31 December 2008 part of loans amounting to Baht 2073.66 million 2007 Baht 1638.46 million are used to finance certain specific projects

project finance The banks require the Company to assign or transfer the proceeds from the projects into the Companys accounts with those

banks

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007 overdraft and short term credit facilities of the Company have not yet been drasvn down amounting to Baht

1517.12 million and Baht 873.00 million respectively

During the year 2007 the Company reclassified loan for investment in Potash mining project
from short-term loan to long-term loan see note 25

as the specific condition indicates that the Company will have to settle full amount within months from the date the subsidiary obtains mining

concession Hossever should the subsidiary not receive the approval for mining concession svithin 31 May 2008 the Company svill have to repay

Baht 165.00 million per quarter from August 2008
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22 TRADE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE RELATED PARTIES

The outstanding balances as at 31 December 2008 and 2007 are as follows

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

Unit Thousand Baht 2008 2007 2008 2007

Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures

eliminated Ironi consolidated financial statements

lOT Joint Venture 3589 4.650

l.C.C.T Joint vinturc 140887 40.887

IN Joint Venture 5670 28.020

Thai Maruken Co. Ltd 93690 75364

ITO Joint Venture 10762 5.085

ltalthai Trcvi o. Ltd 57460 119.611

Siam Concrete and Brick Products Co Ltd 58721 93340

LTD VIS Joint Venture 6633 7.317

LTD Cementation India Limited 124663 16.753

ITD-ITDCEM JV 95894 118164

Asian Steel Product Co Ltd 29713 222

Thai Pride Cement Co. Ltd 2619 78387

Nha Pralan Crushing Plant Co. Ltd 1809 997

Aquathai Co. ltd 72224 75232

Italthai Marine Co. Ltd 3984 1.225

Saraburi Construction Co. Ltd 7235

Others 8029 2.2 13

Total 723582 779466

Associated compani

MCRP Construction Corporation Philippines 79995 92099 79995 92.099

Bangkok Steel Wire Co. Ltd 58896 50301 22352 9.103

ATO-Asia Turnouts Ltd 44033 11735 41996 0.373

Total 182924 154135 144343 111575

Related compni

Related by way of common directors

Takenaka Corporation 234214 174417

Obayashi Corporation 90841 57336

ltalthai Industrial Co Ltd 127986 131133 69600 57.964

Siam Steel Syndicate Plc 123111 63498 123111 63 .394

Nishimatsu onstruction Co. Ltd 298423 232.840

Italthai Engineering Co Ltd 228173 131.976 224241 127758

Charoong Thai Wire Cable Plc 90812 106640 89813 106640

Nawarat Patanakarn Plc 90255 75705 77983 65528

Toyo-Thai Corporation Ltd 2846 17401 2846 17401

Thai Rent All Co. Ltd 39188 25170 38891 24529

Amarine Estate Co. Ltd 24720 24720

Siam Fiber Optics Co Ltd 15775 15775

Others 9196 34873 5450 2140

Total 1375540 1150989 672430 465.354

96 Italian-thai Development Public Company Limited



CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

Unit Thousand Baht 2008 2007 2008 2007

Outstanding balances and portion of

Qth Lprt pants in joint ventures

lOT Joint Venture 2153 8790

I.C.C.T Joint Venture 105665 105665

ITO Joint Venture 6457 3051

lTD VIS Joint Venture 2321 256

IN Joint Venture 2778 13730

Others 618 473

Total 119992 134270

Total 1678456 1439394 1540355 1356395

23 SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES FROM RELATED PARTIES

The outstanding balances as at 31 December 2008 and 2007 are as follows

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

Unit Thousand Baht 2008 2007 2008 2007

Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures

eliminated from consolidated financial statements

LTD Cementation India Limited 967

ITD-ITDCEM JV 1087

Total 2054

Associated company

Thai Contractors Asset Co Ltd 9964

Total 9964

Related companies

Nam Theun Power Co I.td 54855 208674

Obayashi Corporation 221142

Nawarat Patanakarn Plc 68138

Saraburi Coal Co Ltd 20000

Others 673 13

Total 123666 449829

Short term loans and advances from related parties 133630 449829 2054

Significant movements in the short term loans and advances from related parties
for the year ended 31 December 2008 are as follows

During the year
___________

Unit Thousand Baht 2007 Increase Decrease 2008

Associated company

Thai Contractors Asset Co Ltd 9964 9964

Total 9964 9964

Related compank

Nam Theun Power Co. Ltd 208674 153819 54855

Ohayashi Corporation 221 .142 221142

Nawarat Patanakarn Plc 68138 68138

Saraburi Coal Co. Ltd 20000 2000

Others 13 660 673

Total 449829 68798 123666

Net 449829 78762 394961 133630
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24 HIRE PURCHASES PAYABLE

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

Unit Thousand Baht 2008 2007 2008 2007

Hire purchases payable less than year 504285 437264 382839 411914

Hire purchases payable period 2-5 years 671843 572.83 261454 542508

Total 1176128 1.010.095 644293 954422

Less defend interest 181044 127.17 83255 20635
Less Current portion of hire purchase 421629 385.1 88 337195

Ne 573455 497736 223843 470.261

The ahos hire purchases payable are for machinery equipment arid vehicles leases with scheduled repayment terms of years

25 LONG TERM LOANS

As at 31 Dcceoiher 2008 and 2007 the Conipany and its subsidiaries have outstanding long term loans as follows

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

Unit Thousand Baht 2008 2007 2008 2007
Long term loans 6983073 7224781 5382398 5421816

Less Current portion 2282580 1689.872 1546760 1149269

Net 4700493 5.534.909 3835638 4.272537

Movements
iii

the long term loans during the year ended 31 December 2008 are summarized helosv

Unit Thousand Baht CONSOLIDATED
F/S

SEPARATE F/S

Balance as at January 2008 7224781 5421.806

Add Additional borrowings 2.428316 2.060257

ess Repayment 12.614.347 12.102.317

Less Translation adjustment 65.677 2642

Balance as at 31 December 2008 6.983073 5382398

The Company has loan agreement with local commercial hank for Baht 3299.00 million included in the above beginning balance for investment

in potislr mile project The loan is collateralized by the pledge of share certificates of the group of related companies The Company will have to

settle full amount within months from the tate thc subsidiary obtauis mining concession Ilowever should the subsidiary not receive the approval for

ruining concessuni within May 2008 the Company will have to repay the loan by installments at Baht 65.00 mill ion per quarter starting August

2008 During the year the Company has repaid Baht 330.00 million fbr this loan

During the year 2008 the ompany entered into agreement svith commercial bank for refinance debt of Baht 914.41 million from EXIM Bank which

hears interest at the rate of THFIX .25Y per annum During the year the Company has repaid Baht 114.31 million for this loan

During the year 288 the Company entered into loan agreernent with foreign hank for purchase of machineries amounting to EUR 14.11 million for

which EUR 12.51 million or equivalent to Elaht 620.93 million has been drawndown This loan bears interest per annum at EURIBOR

During the year 2008 the Company entered into loan agreement with local commercial hank few the hedged line of Khongjeam dam
project development

amounting to Baht 200.00 rail lion for svhich Baht 50.00 mi Ilion has been drawndosvn This loan bears interest per annum at MLR

Moreover during the year the Company entered into loan agreement with local commercial hank for development of 3.61 Megasvatts Coalfired

Power Plant ri Koh Kong Province amounting to Baht 68010 million for which Baht 227.56 million has been drasvndown This loan hears interest

at the rate of Ml .R pm an nuni

The Company and subsidiaries have registered the mortgages of
part

of their land and construction thereon with net carrying value as at 31 Deceinher

2008 of t-taht 8b2 .39 million 2007 Baht 3.00 million and the deeds of lrypothecation of certain machinery located overseas as collaterals for

loans

The loans of the ompany and its subsidiares hear interest at the rate of minirnumsi loan rate MLR

In addit ion the loan
agreenierrt contains covenants relating to various matters such as the payment of dividend and un itat ions on the provision of

loans

As at Deceirrhcr 2008 and 2007 the longterm credit facilities of the Company have not yet been drasvndown amounting 10 Baht 904.75 rail ion

and Baht 389 million respectively
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26 DEBENTURES NET

CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE F/S

Debenture Life Date of issue Maturity date Interest rate --
Unit Thousand Baht pa 2008 2007

years 20 September 2006 20 September 2009 7.00 704565 704.565

years 23 September 2008 23 September 2010 6.50 1992787 .055627

Total 2697352 1.760.192

Less Current portion of debentures 705837 .055 .627

Debentures net of current portion
1991515 704565

On 23 September 2008.the Company issued subordinate unsecured debentures with principal amount of Baht2.000 million which are issuedto specific

person with twoyear tenuie and with face value of Baht .000 These bear interest rate at 6.50 percent per annuni which is payable quarterly The

debentures will he redeemed on 23 September 2010 The Company will use the proceeds from this issuance to repay debts and/or use for working

capital in business expansion

In addition the debentures were issued with covenants relating to various matters such as the decrease in share capital the merger the payment of

dividend and Ii mitations on the provision of loans

The movement of debentures during the year ended 31 December 2008 in the consolidated and separate financial statements is as follows

Unit Thousand Baht CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE F/S

Beginning balance 1.760.192

Additions 2000000

Repayment
1.057.100

Costs of issuing debentures 9816

Amortization of costs of issuing debentures 4.076

Current portion
705.837

Ending balance .991 .515

27 CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES NET

At Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders No 1/2008 held on 14 January 2008 the shareholders approved the issuance of convertible debentures

of the Company not more than USD 200.000.000 or an equivalent amount in any other currency svith
mitturity

not exceeding years 11cm the date

of issuance unit of convertible debenture can be converted to ordinary shares based on the par value of debenture divided by the convertible price

of debenture The conversion price
shall be considered by Board of Directors or itny persons assigned by Directors However the conversion price

should not he less than the market price based on the average closing price
of the Companys shares in Stock Exchange of Thailand for IS days before

the date of conducting of the hookhuilt for the convertible debentures The shareholders approved an increase of the Companys registered capital by

Baht 728.000000 from the existing registered capital of Baht 4.1 936781 80 to Baht 4.92 .678.1 80 by issuing
728.000.000 ordinary shares at the par

value of Baht per share to reserve for the conversion of the convertible debentures

On 10 June 2008 the Company issued unsecured convertible debentures of USD ISO million svhich were offered to foreign investors hut not he

offered or sold within the l.Jnited States or to US person and
juristic person in relation to Regulation The convertible debentures were registered

as listed securities on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited uncter the Securities Act of Singapore

The convertible debentures are issued at par svith face value of US 100001 per debenture Interest is payable semiannually in arrears at an annual

interest rate of 4.Sr/ Each debenture is convertible at any time up to maturity at an initial conversion ratio at 310621.63 shares per debenture

fixed exchange rate of 32.04 Baht USI and initial conversion price
of 10.3148 Baht Debentureholders have the right to convert debentures

starting
from July 2008 hut not less than seven business days prior to the maturity date However the Company has cash settlement option in lieu

of delivering ordinary shares to the debentureholders

The Company presented part
of accrued interest for convertible bond which paid the dehentureholders svhen they exercise the right to convert to

common shares separately in the balance sheets
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The nominal value of the convertible debentures will be redeemed as follows

Unitt 14380 Redemption DaW Redemption amount

1st 10 December 200ff 101750.00

2nd 10 June 2009 103570.00

3rd 10 December 2009 05462.80

4th lOJune2OlO 107431.31

5th 10 December 2010 109478.56

6th l0June20ll 111607.71

7th 10 December 2011 113822.02

8th lOJune2Ol2 116124.90

9th lODecember2Ol2 118519.89

10th 10 June 2013 121010.69

At any time after 10 June 2010 but not less than seven business days prior to the maturity date the Company has an option to early convert or redeem

all of the convertible debentures

Initial convertible debentures comprise the frllowing

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

Unit 1housand Baht 2008 2008

Convertible debentures 4942401

Less Issuing convertible debentures costs 112170

Convertible debentures net 4830231

The movement of convertible bonds during the year ended 31 December 2008 in the consolidated and separate financial statements is as follows

Unit Thousand Baht CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE F/S

Beginning balance

Additions 4897.925

Cost of
issuing convertible debentures 122257

Amortization of costs of issuing convertible debentures 10087

Unrealised losses on exchange rates 44.476

Ending balance 4830231

In case dehentureholders svill not convert and hold the debentures to maturity interest expense on the convertible debentures is calculated using the

effective interest method by applying the effective interest rate of 8.52% per annum inclusive of the costs of issuing convertible debentures and yield

to maturity

No
potential

dilution in earnings per share arose from the convertible debentures because the average share price during this year was lower than

the exercise price

On II June 2008 the Company and its subsidiaries entered into various hedge agreements to hedge fireign currency and interest rate risks of which

the details arc as follows

The Company entered into cross currency swap and interest rate swap agreemcilts with financial institution to make cross currency swap

for the Companys convertible debentures for USD 50.00 million for Baht 1634.00 million and to swap interest rate at 4.50 percent per annum

on USI for 5.77 percent per annum on Baht The term of the agreement is for three years

The Company entered into call spread and coupon swap agreement with financial institution to exchange the Companys convertible

debentures for USD 50.00 million at Baht 32.60 per USD with condition to exchange the IJSD at market rate if the exchange rate is more

than Baht 35.60 per USD and to obtain compensation of Baht 3.00 per USD and to swap interest rate at 4.50 percent per annum on USD

for MonthFlX plus 2.45 percent pci annum on Baht The term of the agreement is for three years

The Company entered into foreign currency forward agreement with financial institution for the Companys convertible debentures for USD

50.00 million at 33.70 Baht per USI with condition to take the foreign currency option if the exchange rate reaches Baht 35.00 per USD

The Company has paid premium for this contract of USD .39 million and will amortize this over the agreement period The term of the

agreement is for three years

The Company presented part
of accrued interest for convertible bond which paid the debentureholders when they exercise the

right to convert

to common shares separately
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28 ALLOWANCE FOR LOSS ON CONSTRUCTION PROJECT

During the year the Company assessed and revised its projections for the delay in the project National Highway Route NH-3 IC in India and the
project

Nankang Station Underground Civil and EM Construction rot CL 305 in Taiwan This caused significant
increase in cost of construction The

Company has recognized provision for loss on the construction project amounting to Baht 469.69 million in the income statement As at 31 December

2008 allowance for losses on construction projects is outstanding of Baht 628.18 million in the balance sheet

The Company believes that the delay which resulted in the loss is not the fault of the Company and is currently negotiating with the contractor Since

there is uncertainly as to whether the cost will be recoverable the Company has not recognized revenue on such project

29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year the Company and its subsidiaries had significant business transactions with related parties which have been concluded on commercial

terms and bases agreed upon in the ordinary course of businesses between the Company and those companies as follow

Transfer pricing policy

Tum-key construction service income

Construction service income not including the procurements of materials

Land rental income

Sales of equipment

Sales of investment

Purchases of construction materials

Turn-key construction expenses

Hire of construciion services not including procurements of materials

Purchases of investment

Interest on loans

Below is summary of significant related party transactions during the year-

Cost plus margin

Cost or cost plus margin

Mutually agreed

Cost or mutually agreed

Market price

Approximate market price

Cost plus margin

Cost

Approximate net book value

Mutually agreed rate

Unit Million Baht

Transactions with subsidiaries and joint ventures

eliminated from consolidated financial statements

Construction services and other income

Sales of equipment

Purchases of construction materials and services

Purchases of equipment

Construction services and other income

Purchases of construction materials and services

Purchases of equipment

Construction services and other income

Land rental income

Purchases of construction materials and services

Purchases of equipment

174

217

4129

33

1462

173

16

114

1027

33

866

171

Transactions with associated companje

Transactions with related compaju

CONSOLIDATED SEPARATE F/S

For the years ended 31 December For the years ended 31 December

2008 2007 2008 2007

1384 1539

39 211

892 1196

52 41

18 172

212 121

16

3370 876

1009 702

95 91

Furthermore the Company also has
significant

transactions with its related parties in respect of loans and advances

The outstanding balances of the above transactions are presented as separate items in the balance sheet

Loans from directors

As at 31 December 2008 subsidiary company and indirect subsidiary company have loans from directors amounting to Baht 159.23 million 2007

Baht 179.40 million which amount of Baht 11.51 million bears interest at the rate of MLR per annum
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30 INCOME TAX

The Company has operation losses there is not subject to obligation to pay income tax for the year ended 31 December 2008

Income tax or the branch in Taiwan has been calculated based on 25.00 percent of taxable income

Income tax Ow the cars ended December 2008 01 subsidiaries and joint ventures in Thailand have been calculated at the ate of 3.OOYi on the

net income at tel adding hack certain expenses which are not allowable for tax computation purposes and the deduction of tax losses brought lorw aid

111111
pieS iOtiS Cats

Income tax presented in the consolidated It nancial statements is an income tax ol the overseas branc hex and subsidiaries that has been calculated in

accoidanue xx itli accountine standard and/or tax laxv of those countries

31 tIVIDEND PAYMENT

At the rdi iiar\ General Shareholder Meeting 1/255 held on 25 April 2008 the shareholders approve the appropriation of dividends torn the

opcratioits or the year 2007 of Baht 0.07
tier

share or 4.193678180 ordinary shares
totalitig

Baht 293.19 million

32 PROVIDENT FUND

The Compans subsidiaries oint ventuies and its employees have
jointly

established provident fund in accordance svith the Provident Fund Act

.L 2530 Ftothi employees and the Company contributed to the futid monthly at the rate of 2.00 5.00 percent of basic salary lhe lund which is

managed nansa sset Management Limited xvii he paid to employees upon term nation in accordance xvi th the lund rules Dun ng the yeats

2008 and 2117 the omliany and its subsidiaries cotitributccl Baht 35.79 million and Baht 29.00 million respectively to the fund SEPARATE F/S

l-3iiht 31.16 iiiillion and Baht 26.90 million respectively

33 COST OF CONSTRUCTION WORK

As at Dccciiibcr 2008 and 2007 construction costs of the Company its subsidiaries and its proportionate interests in Joint ventuics.after adjustment

to idled gains or losses tecognized for curretit constrtictioti projects amounted to Baht 32337.04 ntil lion and BLiht 14 .991.6 million expect ively

SIiPARA1L I/S Baht 88135.56 mill ion and Baht 113.784.61 mit lion respectively

34 STATUIORY RESERVE

Pursuant to Section 116 of the Public Limited Company Act BE 2535 the Company is required to set aside as
statutory reserve at least 5fifil% of

its net income alter deducting accumulated deficit brought forxvard if any until the reserve reaches 10.00% of the
registeied capital.The statutor

reserve is not ix ai lable for dividend distributions

During the ear 2117 the Cottipany ptoposcd appropriation for additional statutory reserve from net income of Baht 37.00 mill ion to bring the reserve

to 1100
peidditt

of the authorized shaie capital

35 IIRECTORS REMUNERATION

Iitectors ieiuiineration repiesents the beitehits paid to the Companys directors in accordance with section 90 of the Public Conipanies Act exclusive

of salaries and elated henehits payable to execLitive ditectors The directors iemuneration has been approved at the Cottipany Annual General

Meeting

36 EXPENSES BY NATURE

gil
Ii en it expenses by natuie are as follows

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

Unit Thousand Baht 2008 2007 2008 2007

Salary and \xagcs and other employee benefits 6906488 8757837 5059345 5.222915

Depreciation 2113618 .920479 1312064 1.225.396

Amortisatiori 53220 112391 39579 33.289

Allowaitce or loss on construction xvork 308332 2660 469686 12660

Ioss roni dcx il nation of investments 23.601 385 23611

Rental expense 1086898 667394 658823 667394
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37 GUARANTEES

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007 the Company has outstanding guarantees of approximately Baht 28799.47 million and Baht 21701.31 million

respectively issued by financial institutions on behalf of the Company its subsidiaries and its joint ventures in respect of certain performance bonds

required in the normal course of businesses

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007 the Company had outstanding guarantees of approximately Baht 8670.30 million and Baht 8870.00 million

respectively issued to financial institutions and its ventures to collateralize credit facilities granted by those financial institutions and joint venture

partners to subsidiaries associated related companies and joint ventures The Company issued guarantees in proportion to its shareholding except

for ltalthai Trevi Co Ltd ltalthai Marine Co Ltd. Aquathai Co. Ltd. Sarithorn Co. Ltd Asian Steel Product Co. Ltd. and lTD Cementation India

Limited for which the Company issued full guarantees for the credit facilities

38 COMMITMENT

38.1 Under the Companys rehabilitation plan executed in 2002 the plan administrator lTD Planner Company Limited arranged for the

establishment of Special Purpose Vehicle SPV under Thai Laws This SPV was established as private company svith registered
share

capital
of Baht 0.10 million consisting of 19000 ordinary shares of Baht 5.00 each and 1.000 preference shares of Baht 5.00 each The plan

administrator novatcd debt to the SPV through allocation of these ordinary shares to the creditors in proportion to the amount of debt novated

svhile the preference shares will be allocated to the Companys directors Those creditors comprise unsecured financial creditors under the master

rescheduling agreement and debts to unsecured debenture holders amounting to Baht 3604.00 million The Company has transferred its

non-core assets to the SPy in exchange for the SPV to assume the debt obligations of the Company It has to complete the sale of the non-core

assets within 30 June 2007 Under the stipulations of the rehabilitation plan there are no interest charges on the novated debt until 30 June

2007 If all of the non-core assets have not been sold off by 30 June 2007 and not all debts have been settled the SPV has to
pmly

off all

outstanding debt on July 2007 However if all of the non-core assets have been sold off by 30 June 2007 hut not all debts have been settled

the SPV will repay the outstanding portion of the novated debt in five equal installments on 30 June and 30 December of each year from 30

June 2008 to 30 June 2010 with interest on the remaining debt at the rate of average interest rate of MLR quoted two business days before the

first day of the relevant interest period by Siam Commercial Bank Plc Bangkok Bank Plc and Krung Thai Bank Plc minus 3Y per annum

commencing July 2007 Interest will be paid on the same dates as principal repayment from 30 June 2008 onwards Under the facility

agreement between the Company and the SPV the Company is obliged to extend loans to the SPV in amounts equal to the principal and interest

svhich hase to he paid to the creditors in the manner discussed above As at 31 December 2008 the outstanding balance of loans amounted to

Baht 919.23 million

As the Company has obligations to provide loans to the special purpose vehicle discussed above based on the principals of conservatism

Baht 229.57 million by svhich the transfer price under the rehabilitation plan exceeds the net book value of the non-core assets which the

Company has transferred to the special purpose vehicle as mention above is not recognized as gain in the income statement hut is recorded

as Deferred gain from transfer of assets to special purpose vehicle in the balance sheet

38.2 As at 31 Deceinher 2008the Company and
joint ventures had the outstanding cominitments with major subcontractors classified by currencies

as follows

Baht equivalent
____________

Currency
_________

Unit Million Baht CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

Baht 3.356 3162

NTD 2.540 2.540

USD

INR 1.735 .735

38.3 As at 31 2008 the Coilipany its subsidiaries and its joint ventures had the following outstanding commitments proportionately of

the Company in respect of purchases of materials machinery and software and related services

Baht equivalent

Currency
...____________ ________

Unit Million Baht CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

Baht 145 78

EUR 159 83

USD 100 36

INR 410 10

SEK 64

NOK

NTD
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38.4 As at December 2008 the Company had outstanding commitment of Baht 18.75 million and USD 48.80 million in respect of uncalled

portion of investments in two associated companies and two related companies and uncalled portion of investments in subsidiary company

of Baht .75 million

39 CONTIN LIABILITIES

During the year 1997 the Company and seven other parties were jointly sued for compensation totaling approximately Baht 655.00 million

On 30 December 2005.the Court of First Instance ordered the defendant to pay of damages amounting to Baht 440.00 million plus interest at

the rate of 7.50 percent per annum from II June 1992 to the payment date On 17 March 2006 the Company submitted an appeal and petition

to stay execution to the order of the Court Chonburi Province Copies of the appeal and the petition have been considered to the plaintiff and

the outcome of the case has not yet been known The Company believes that there will he no damage from such case The Company therefore

has not set up any provision in its accounts

On March 2003 court case was brought against subsidiary company claiming for compensation totaling approximately Baht 126.00 million

or alleged negligence in driving sheet piles on top of pipelines belonging to third party company resulting in damage to its property On 22

September 2006 the Court of First Instance ordered the subsidiary to pay damages amounting to Baht 92.00 million together with fees On 20

December 2006 the subsidiary submitted an appeal and petition to stay execution of the order to the Civil Court Copies of the appeal and

the petition have been considered to the plaintiff and the outcome of the case has not yet been known However the management of subsidiary

company assessed the situation and eel that it is high chance for the subsidiary to he responsible for such claims for damage The subsidiary

company therefore set up full allowance for damage in its accounts

Since the year 2000 certain customers of the Company have taken legal actions against the Company subsidiary company and joint venture

for breach of service agreements claiming compensation totaling approximately Baht 215.00 million 2007 Baht 86.00 million The cases

are currently pending for judgment from the Civil Courts amount of Baht 80.00 million and pending for the adjustment of arbitrator amount of

Baht 135.0 million Management is of the opinion that such lawsuits are normal part of business and some are brought without proper

justification grounds and believes that no material liabilities will be incurred as result of the lawsuits discussed above Therefore.the Company

has not set provision for those in the accounts

40 FINANCIAL INFORMATION BY SEGMENT

The operations of the Company its subsidiaries and its joint ventures for the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007 are mainly engaged in single

industry segment turn key construction services and are conducted in the following geographical segments

CONSOLIDATED F/S

Grand total

Unit Million Baht 2008 2007

Revenues from construction services 42855 45.623

Cioss
profit loss 655 3241

Administrative expenses 1773 1.40

Reversal of allowance allowance for doubtful accounts 232 42

Share of loss from investments accounted for by equity method

Dividend income and shares of profit from the joint ventures 74 86

loss from des aluation of investment 24
Interest income 133 53

Loss on exchange rate 294 165

Other income 637 75

Allowance Ior impairment and contingent liabilities 28 31

Interest and financial expenses 1744 1298

Income tax 105 163

Minority interests 22 64

Net income loss for the year 2656 .01

For the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007
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As at and 31 December 2008 and 2007

Local Overseas Total Elimination Grand total

2008 2007

15514 15007

41716 37920

57230 52927

Unit Million Baht 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Property plant and equipment net 12295 12422 3219 2569 15514 14991 16

Other assets 36278 34.860 15401 13727 51679 48587 9963 10667

Total asset 48573 47.282 18620 16296 67193 63.578 9963 10651

41 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

41.1 Financial risk management

The Companys financial instrument principally comprise cash and cash at banks pledged deposits at banks trade accounts receivable loans

investments bank overdrafts and short-term loans from financial institutions loans hire purchase payables debentures and long-term loans

The financial risks associated with these financial instruments and how they are managed are described below

Credit risk

The Company has exposure to credit risk primarily with respect to trade accounts receivable loans and other receivables The Company

manages the risk by adopting appropriate credit control policies and procedures and therefore does not expect to incur material financial losses

In addition the Company does not have high concentration of credit risk since it has large customer base The maximum exposure to credit

risk is limited to the carrying amounts of receivables loans and other receivables as stated in the balance sheet

interest rate risk

The Companys exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to its cash at banks bank overdrafts and short-term loans from financial institutions

short-term loans hire purchase payables debentures and long-term borrowings However since most of the Companys financial assets and

liabilities hear floating interest rates or fixed interest rates which tire close to the market rate the interest rate risk is expected to be minimal

Farein currency risk

The Companys exposure to foreign currency risk arises mainly from trading transactions and borrowings that are denominated in foreign

currencies The Company seeks to reduce this risk by entering into forward exchange contracts when it considers appropriate Generally the

forward contracts mature within one year

The balances of financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at 31 December 2008 are summarized below

Financial Financial Average exchange rate

Foreign currency assets liabilities as at 31 December 2008

Million Million Baht per foreign currency unit

USD 22 191 34.9438

JPY 56 619 t3864

EUR 13 49.2662

VND 499 12707 0.002

Forward exchaiige contracts which remain outstanding on 31 December 2008 are summarized below

Currency Balance Million Forward contract exchange rate

JPYbuy 127 0.3184

EURhuy 14 44.7610-48.8560

GBPbuy 60.2107-61.0480

NOK buy 5.7850 5.8485

SEK buy 16 4.9750 5.0245

USD sell 82 31.5322 34.8400

EUR sell 48 .3746
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Bcloss is the summary of the Groups toreign currency denominated assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2008 which were unhedged

CONSOLIDATED F/S Net

Unit Thousand Baht

Cash and cash cpu isalents

Land

ther current is ets

Trade accounts payable

Short term loan rout related patties

Accrued expenses

Other current iahi lities

13ook value of let assets

Portion holdinii

Net cash outilon on acquisition
of subsidiaries

Palang Thai

Total

Kaowna Co Ltd

41 248

49.487 95765

158

8.783

92533 120659 9992161

224.461

48 170 278

55.851 71.301 11.036.567

61.48 74.93

EUR

Million

USD

Million

Assets in foreign curtency

Trade accounts payable

Trade accounts payable related
parties

lire pa chase payahles

Ads inces received from customers tinder construction contracts

Retentions payable

Loans 0111 iinancial institutions

JPY

Million

189

863

801

619

13

43

VND

Million

499

12.717

SEPARATE F/S Net

EUR USD JPY VND

Million Million Million Million

Assets in foreign currency 22 56 499

Trade accounts pa able 40

lrade accounts payable related
Ixilties

lirc pufthase pavables 619

Loans rout linaneial institutions 13

The Coitipans and subsidiaries svil earn futute revenues in foreign currencies in an amount of approximately USD 306.22 million INR 39374.27

million lIlll.37 million NTI 2023.26 million and JPY II 3.06 million

lii addition tile Company and subsid aries have foreign currency exposure risk svith
respect

to their investments in subsidiaries joint ventures

and associated companies in oserseas which are not covered by tile hedges against foreign currency risk

41.2 Fair values of hnancial instruments

nice ilic maJority of the Company hnancial instruments are shortterm in nature or hear lloating interest rates their fair value is ilot expected

to he immaterially ciiffereiit from the amounts presented in the balance sheets

air al ue is the amnoutit or svhic Ii an asset can be exchanged or liability settled betsveen knosvledgeable xviii
ing parties

in an arms length

transact mon The fair value is detent med by reference to the market
price

of the financial instrument or by using ait appropriate valuation

technique depending on the nature of tile instrument

42 AC QUISlTlO OF INVESTMENT

in tie 2117 the Company invested in oid nary shares of Italian Thai Land Co Ltd Khun Ka Palang Thai Co Ltd Pal it Palang Ngan

o. l.tcl and Palang Thai Kaowna Co Ltd which were purchased from Special Purpose Vehicle SPV

File hook sal uc assets and abilities acqun-ed at the acquisition date are summarized belosv

Italian Thai

Land Co Ltd

70.429

8.783

329.927

224.461

30

492.769

Palit Palang

Ngan Co Ltd

46

36634

51

Khun Ka Palang

Thai Co Ltd

58

39.215

108

456.097

30

416646

99.99 61.48

50 50 50 51 200
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The book value of assets and liabilities approximately their fair value except the fair value of land which is approximately Baht 317.00 million The

Company however has not recognized the difference in land values because of the fluctuation in current economic condition may have some effect

to such land values

43 OTHERS

On 17 January 2007 the National Assets Examination Committee NAEC issued an order appointing an inspection subcommittee to

investigate the procurement of baggage-handling system and the CTX bomb scanners for Suvamabhumi Airport Subsequently on 14 February

2007 the Company and joint venture received the accusation letter from the NAEC to give the full cooperation with the investigation

committee There was an unofficial disclosure from the investigation subcommittee that cracks on the runways and taxiways at Suvarnabhumi

Airport was caused by the higher level of underground water not caused by the poor performance of the construction

The Companys management believes that the cracks on the runways and taxiways are not the fault from the poor performance of the

construction undertaken by the Joint Ventures Therefore no provision is required in the accounts

subsidiary company obtained the notice to change an electric cable in accordance with agreement with Government Enterprise The Company

management does not expect to incur the
significant

loss

On 23 January 2008 Italian-Thai Power Co Ltd 99.99% subsidiary entered into the MOU with the Electricity Generating Public Company

Limited and Ratchaburi Electricity Generating Holding Public Company Limited to conduct the study for investment in the 3600 MW Koh

Kong Posver Project in Koh Kong Province Cambodia The shareholding structure has been preliminary agreed that the Electricity Generating

Public Company Limited and Ratchaburi Electricity Generating Holding Public Company Limited will hold 70.00% and Italian-Thai Power

Co Ltd will hold 30.00% of this project

During the year the Company made revision for the accounting estimate for budget cost for significant project because this project was

completed As result the profit was recognized for the year ended 31 December 2008 of approximately Baht 475.00 million This is
significantly

affected the result of its operations for this year

Most of other income in statements of income are represented by equipment rental land rental transportation income and reversal of provision

which are included in consolidated financial statements of Baht 433.98 million and separate financial statements of Baht 281.89 million

44 RECLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Certain amounts in the financial statements issued in the previous year as presented herein for comparative purpose have been reclassified to conform

with the current year classification with no effect on previously reported net income or shareholders equity

45 APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements were authorized by the Companys authorized director on March 2009
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ITALIAN-THAI DEVELOPMENT PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

Ref CSD 036/2009 June 2009

Securities and Exchange Commission

Office of International Corporation Finance

450 Fifth Street N.W
Washington D.C 20549

Re Italian-Thai Development Public Company Limited

Information Furnished Pursuant to Rulel2g3-2b

Under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Ladles and Gentlemen

We are submitting this letter and the enclosed documents listed in

Annex to supplement the submission of documents pursuant to Rule 2g 3-2

under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 The enclosed documents should

bring file on the Company up to date

Enclosures

Mr Chutima

Vice President Finance Division

E-Mail cccs@itd.co.th

2034/132-161 ITALTHAI TOWER NEW PETCHBURI ROAD BANGKA.PI HUAYKWANG BANGKOK 10320 THAIlAND

qi$iJ.i P.O BOX 1011 NEW PETCHBURI TEL 66 716-1600 FAX 66 716-1488 www.itd.co.th

Registration No 0107537000939



82-4299

Italian-Thai Development Public Company Limited

Annex

Financial Statement as of December 31 2008

Financial Statement as of March 31 2009

Annual Report 2008

Minutes of Annual General Meeting of Shareholders No 1/2009

The Report of material events field with the Stock Exchange of Thailand

SET from January May 2009



82-4299

Minutes of Annual General Meeting

of Shareholders

No.1/2009

Of

Italian-Thai Development Public

Company Limited



Minutes of Annual General Meeting of Shareholders No.1/2009

of

italian-Thai Development Public Company Umited

April 27 2009

The Head Office Meeting Room 37th floor

2034/132-161 New Petdthurl Road Bangkapl Huaykwang Bangkok Thailand

The directors who oartlcioated the Meetina were as follows

Pol Lt Chartachal Bunya-ananta

Mr Premchal Kamasuta

Mrs.Njapom Charanachitta

Mr Pathai Chakornbundit

Mr Tawatchal Suthiprapha

Mr Yuthachal Charanachitta

Mr William Lee Zentgraf

Mr Peed Kamasuta

The directors who were absent from the Meeting were as follows

Dr Kilsom Jittomtrum

The Manaaement who participated the Meeting was as follows

Mr Chatichal Chutima

The Indeoendent Auditor who participated the Meeting was as follows

Mr.Somddd ileitrakul the certified auditor No.2785 of Grant Thornton Umited

The Ieaal consultants who partidpated the Meeting were as follows

Mr ChinnawatThongpakdee

Mrs Yaowarote Klinboon

Of Weerawong Chinnavat Peangpanor Ltd

PcI LI Chartachal Bunya-ananta Chairman of the Board of Directors and the Chairman of Audit Committee

was the Chairman of the Meeting

The 345 shareholders and shareholders proxies representing 1991135082 shares or equaling to 47.48

of the total paid-up shares of Italian-Thai Development Public Company Umited attended the Meeting and

thus constituted quorum pursuant to the Articles of Assodatlon of the Company

During the conducting of the Meeting there were additional shareholders who registered to attend the

Meeting Therefore the total shareholders and shareholders proxies were 440 persons representing

2198030397 shares or equaling to 52.41 of the total paid-up shares of the Company Including

The number of shareholders who attended the Meeting was 195 persons representing

1420008963 shares equaling to 64.60% of the total paid-up shares

The number of shareholders proxies was 245 persons representing 778021434 shares equaling

to 35.40% of the total paid-up shares

The Meeting started at 2.05 p.m

The Chairman convened the Meeting and Informed the shareholders regarding voting for each agenda Item

Shareholders or proxies who wanted to abstain or not approve should cast their votes on the voting cards

and then the Companys officers would count the votes One share was equal to one vote The Company

would use computer system to count the voting by deducting the abstaining votes and disapproving votes

from the total shares represented In the Meeting and being entitle to vote and the resolution of the vote

would be presented on the projector screen

The Meeting preceded with the following agenda



Agenda To consider and certify the Minutes of Annual General Meeting of Shareholders No

1/ 2008
The Chairman proposed the Minutes of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders No.1/ 2008 held on April

25 2008 which had been sent to shareholders together with the notice of the Meeting to the Meeting be

certified Such Minutes and The Chairman asked the Meeting and there were no questions

The Chairman then asked the Meeting to consider the proposed matter in this agenda item

After due consideration the Meeting by the majority votes of 2155649997 shares equivalent to 98.07

of the shares represent at the Meeting with the disapproval of 30000 shares equivalent to 0.00% and the

abstention of 42350400 shares equivalent to 1.93% resolved that the Minutes of the Annual General

Meeting of Shareholders No.1/ 2008 be certified

Agenda To consider and acknowledge the 2008 operation results

Mr Premchai Karnasuta the President presented an overview of the Companys operating results in 2008

The total revenues of the Company were Baht 43699 million The net losses were Baht 2450 million The

information relevant to the Companys financial status will be presented by Mr Chatichai Chutima in the

following agenda item

The Company backlog as of 31 December 2008 was Baht 40522 million and as of 11 March 2009 the

Company had signed Baht 8006 million of additional contracts and Baht 3145 million of incoming contracts

Therefore the backlog as of 11 March 2009 was Baht 51703 million Mr Premchai summarized the major

construction projects as follows

The backlog as of 11 March 2009 Million Baht
ITD lTD Cern PT Total

Thailindo

The contracts signed during Jan 2009-11 Mar 2009 8006 8006

The awarded contracts which waiting for signing 3145 7237 10382

Sum 11151 7237 18388

Backlog as of 31 Dec 2008 40552 15393 36594 92539

Total 51703 22630 36594 110927

Low Price Bidder Negotiating 101203 101203

The major of construction projects were as follows

Completed construction projects in 2008

Name of the projects
Value MB During

Baan Ua-Arthorn Housing Project Turnkey 12139 2006 2008

Maw Taung Coal Mining Project Myanmar 1623 1998 2008

New Amari Orchid Pattaya Chonburi 1150 2004 2008

ATC Complex Civil Works Rayong
833 2006 2008

Samui Village Hotel Suratthani
853 2005 2008

Palm Lagoona Condominium Resort Dubai 845 2005 2008

Riverside Garden Marina Bangkok 728 2005 2008

Phu Bia gold and copper Mining Civil Works Laos PDR 429 2006 2008

Phulay Beach Resort Krabi
421 2004 2008

10 TNS BPK Yard Development Project Chachoengsao 417 2006 2008

Ongoing domestic projects

Name of the projects Value MB During

Mae Moh Coal Mine Phase Lampang 11543 2000 2009

Mae Moh Coal Mine Phase Lampang 10945 2008 2020

Bangkok Government ComplexJangwattana Rd Bangkok 6590 2006 2009

Siriraj Hospital Towards Medical Excellence in Southeast Asia 5797 2007 2011

Bangkok



Name of the projects
Value MB During

BTS Extension Sukhumvit Line Phase Bangkok 4159 2006 2009

North Bangkok Combined Cycle Power Plant Project Bangkok 4048 2007 2010

Suvarnabhumi Airport Drainage Project Phase Bangkok 2765 2006 2009

The BMA Flood Protection Tunnel Project Bangkok 2328 2003 2009

Central Festival Pattaya Beach Chonburi 1760 2007 2009

10 The Pipeline construction for the Bangkok Government Complex and 1149 2008 2009

Energy Complex Station Bangkok

11 Banyan Tree Resort and Spa Samui Suratthani 1119 2008 2009

12 The Bridges over the Chao Phraya River at Bangkhuwat Pathumthani 982 2008 2009

13 Distribution System Dispatching Center Project Phase 889 2008 2009

14 Phuttamonthon Petchkasem to the Southern Local Road Bangkok 849 2008 2009

15 The reduction of Sulfur dioxide emissions Lampang 817 2008 2009

16 The Natural Gas Pipeline Project to the North Bangkok Combined Cycle 803 2008 2009

Power Plant

Remarks lTD portion only

Ongoing overseas projects

Name of the projects Value MB During

The Coal Mining Development Project Indonesia 36594 2007 2018

The Nam Theun Hydroelectric Project Laos 15471 2005 2009

Nankang Underground Station Project CL305 Taiwan 13542 2003 2010

Kolkata Airport Passenger Terminal Building India 10542 2008 2011

The Delhi MRTS Project Contract No.BC-24 India 6560 2008 2010

Kol Dam Hydroelectric Project India 6029 2003 2010

The Delhi MRTS Project Contract No.BC-21 India 2175 2006 2009

The National Highway Route NH-31 West Bengal India 1690 2006 2010

S.V.P.I Airport Ahmedabad India 1046 2007 2009

10 The Suyo Cervantes Road Section Project Philippines 984 2006 2009

11 Pakse Airport Laos PDR 234 2008 2009

12 Ruaychai Plaza Building Phase Beijing
98 2006 2009

Remarks On behalf of PT Thailindo On behalf of lTD-lTD Cern On behalf of Joint Venture

The contracts signed during an 2009-11 Mar 2009

Name of the projects Value MB During

The Medical Excellence Center Chulalongkorn Hospital Bangkok 6317 2009 2013

The civil and architectural works for GHECO-ONE 660 megawatt 830 2009 2011

Power Plant Rayong Province

The Kuborn Road Improvement Project stage Bangkok 327 2009 2010

The 96 Luangta Maha Boowa Nanasampanno Building Udonthani 171 2009 2010

The Utility works the Kuborn Road Improvement Project
126 2009 2010

stage Bangkok

The Kasikorn Bank Extension Bangkok 125 2009 2009

Others 110

Total 8006

Remarks 111 portion only Excluding VAT 7%



The awarded contracts which were waiting for signing

Name of the projects
Value MB During

The Pratunam Shopping and Hotel Building Bangkok 935 2009 2013

Banyan Tree Resort Phase Suratthani 847 2009 2011

The water pipeline installation -Tallah-Palta Kolkata India 629 2009 2010

The Naresuan Hydropower Project Phitsanulok 468 2009 2010

The Metro Park Sathorn Phase Bangkok 266 2009 2010

Total 3145

Remarks lTD portion only Excluding VAT 7%

Low Price Bidder Negotiating

Name of the projects Value MB During

Aluminium Plant and Infrastructure for SLACO Laos PDR 36000 2009 2013

Hyderabad Metro Rail India 26312 2009 2013

Kolkata Ring Road India 24585 2009 2013

Road Construction and Mining for Khot Coal Mine 7500 2009 2019

Improvement of National Highway Route 18 3583 2009 2011

Pathumphon-Attapeu Laos PDR

The Third Thai-Lao Friendship Bridge Nakhon Phanom 1646 2009 2012

Khammuan

Times Regency Condominium Bangkok 1200 2009 2011

Sara Sin Bridge Project Phuket 353 2009 2011

Others
24

Total 101203

Other new potential domestic projects

Name of the projects Approximated Value MB
Mass Rapid Transit System MRT Phase Routes 236800

Mass Rapid Transit System MRT Phase The others 553057

Track Doubling Project
300000

Suvarnabhumi Airport Extension Phase 73700

Motor way Project Bangpa-In Saraburi Nakhorn Ratchsima 50000

Track Rehabilitation
30000

Potash Mining
24400

Khlong Toei Drainage Project Bangkok 7000

Map Ta Put Deep Sea Port 5200

10 Expressway Project
1993

Bangpli -Suksawasde to Industrial Ring Road

11 The water pipeline installation Project Chantaburi 1870

Contract No.1

Total 1284020



Other new potential projects in India

Name of the projects Approximated Value MB
BOT Road Packages in Madhya Pradesh Maharashtra in 88600

Maharashtra in Orrisa in Andhra Pradesh in Rajasthan

Chennai Mass Transit 46000

Waste Water Micro Tunnel 26000

Eastern Dedicated Freight Corridor Design Engineering 19600

Procurement Construction and Commissioning of Double Track

Electrical Railway Lines

Total 180200

Other new potential overseas projects

Name of the projects Approximated Value MB
Dhaka Chittagong Expressway in Bangladesh 47000

Central Kalimantan Port in Indonesia 41900

Padang Port and Railroad at West Sumatra in Indonesia 27900

Koh Kong Power Plant in Cambodia 20100

Land Reclamation and Infrastructure Work in Bahrain 17900

Upper Carnali Hydropower Project in Nepal 12500

Sakoa Port and Railroad in Madagascar 12200

Nam Ngum Hydropower Project in Laos PDR 12000

Coal Mining in Madagascar 10000

10 Kariwa Low Dam in Philippines 5900

Total 207400

Mr Premchai Karnasuta emphasized that the experience of the Company

and the improvement of skill in overseas working especially in airport and mass rapid transit would benefit

to the operation both in aspects of backlog and performance

The vision to expand its overseas business and the investment in energy and mining sector contributed to

the backlog which increased to Baht 212000 million which was record high in five decades This backlog

comprised of Baht 100545 million of awarded contracts which were waiting for signing and Baht 111585

million of low price bidding contracts excluding the contracts which were in process of bidding

The experience and knowledge of cultural legal and tax differences and the decreasing of material prices

were also benefit to the Companys performance Also the Company gained advantage from cost of main

constructions material which were declining oil price and steel price which help increase the Companys

profit

The Directors of the Company recognized and appreciated the expertise loyalty and dedication of all staff

and employees who continue to contribute greatly to the success of the projects and the ongoing growth

and profitability of the Company for the benefit of the Companys employees staff and the shareholders

The Chairman then asked the Meeting to consider the proposed matter in this agenda item

Miss Ratree Visitsurawong the representative of the Thai Investors Association requested the Chairman to

reveal the estimated income in 2009

The Chairman explained that the information regarding income would be discussed in the next agenda and

that the income in 2009 was hard to estimate due to the uncertainty of bidding

Mr.Hungchia Arkawaskul shareholder7asked Mr Premchai Karnasuta regarding



Was all the revenue from overseas construction services received in US Dollars Did the Company

hedge these revenues

Does the Company have capital enough to support the incoming projects If it havent what

sources would the Company use in supporting these incoming projects

Does the low price bidding in new projects cause any losses to the Company

Mr Premchai Karnasuta explained that the contract price estimation of incoming overseas projects covered

all expenses which had been the cause of losses For the sufficiency of capital the Company focuses to bid

in mega projects financed and guaranteed by governments such as the Kolkata Ring Road in India which

equivalent to Baht 30000 million and was 50%-cost sharing with the government of India PPP project and

Kolkata Airport For these projects the Company is able to find financial support from the financial

institutions in India

Mr Chatichai Chutima explained that the Company received payment for overseas construction in currencies

used in the construction country With regards to exchange rate hedging the Company received income

from overseas construction service in term of local currencies These incomes were hedged by the natural

hedging

Mr Basant Kumar Dugar shareholder asked why the Company did not raise domestic loan to finance

the projects in India because the interest rate in Thailand is 6% lower than in India which is rated at 14%

Mr Chatichai Chutima explained that there are the legal restrictions in capital transfer to India

The Chairman then asked the Meeting to consider the proposed matter in this agenda item

After due consideration the Meeting by the majority vote of 2155649997 shares equivalent to 98.07 of

the total shares presented at the meeting with the disapproval of 36000 shares equivalent to 0.00% and

the abstention of 42344400 shares equivalent to 1.93% resolved that the operating results in the year

2008 be acknowledged

Agenda To consider and approve the Companys Balance Sheets and Profit and Loss

Statements for the year ended December 31 2008

The Chairman assigned Mr Chatichai Chutima Vice President of Finance to present the financial results of

the Company For the Companys Balance Sheets and Profit and Loss Statements for the year ended

December 31 2008 which were considered by the audit committee and audited by the Companys certified

auditor

Mr Chatichai Chutima explained regarding revenues in 2008 74.3% of revenues were from government

projects The revenues from private projects were 25.7% The Companys revenues from domestic projects

were 58.7% and from overseas projects were 41.3% which comprise of 30.63% from India 4.94% from

Laos PDR 3.65% from Taiwan and 2% from others As at 31 December 2008 the total assets were Baht

57230 million the total liabilities were Baht 44535 million and the total shareholders equities were Baht

12695 million

The Companys revenues from construction in 2008 were Baht 42855 million The gross profit was 2.25%

The other expenses and the allowance for loss from investment were Baht 2726 million due to The Nam

Theun Hydroelectric Project Laos PDR The National Highway Route NH-31 West Bengal India and Palm

Lagoona Condominium Resort Dubai United State of Arab Emirates

The Chairman then asked the Meeting to consider the proposed matter in this agenda item

Mr Basant Kumar Dugar shareholder asked why the Company could not take profit in India

Mr Premchai Karnasuta explained that the Company faced the problem of material price increases in

previous projects However the incoming projects have good margin

Mr.Boonprasit Rojanapreuk shareholder asked whether the liabilities management due to the debt to the

equity ratio being 3.51 and the interest coverage ratio being 2.31 would affect the Companys nanagement



or not He further asked the board of directors to explain the process of debt management of the Company

and capital increase plan if any

Mr Chatichai Chutima Vice President of Finance explained that the debt to equity ratio was calculated in

accordance with the Stock Exchange of Thailands notification which equal to 3.51 for the total debt of the

Company including the debt with no interest bearing If we consider only the interest bearing debts the

Company still has room for financing by debenture issuing In addition the Companys capability for paying

of interest was 2.31 which represent that the Company was capable of paying interest therefore it would

not affect the Companys management

The Chairman then asked the Meeting to consider the proposed matter in this agenda item

After due consideration the Meeting by the majority votes of 2155529997 shares equivalent to 98.07% of

total shares represented in the meeting with the disapproval of 76400 shares equivalent to 0.00% and the

abstention of 42424000 shares equivalent to 1.93 resolved that the Companys Balance Sheets and

Profit and Loss Statements for the year ended December 31 2008 be approved

Agenda To consider and approve the omission of allocation of partial profits as legal reserve

The Chairman assigned Mrs Nijaporn Charanachitta to explain that according to the Public Company

Limited Act of 1992 B.E 2535 the Company must allocate not less than 5% of its annual net profit

excluding retained loss if any to reserve fund until the reserve fund reaches not less than 10% of the

registered capital

With the reference to the Companys Financial Statement for the period ending 31st December 2008 the

Companys net losses for the year ended 31st December 2008 was Baht 2450055000 The Company

therefore shall not allocate the partial profit as legal reserve The total amount of legal reserve of the

Company as of 31 December 2008 was Baht 419368260

The Chairman asked the Meeting and there were no questions

The Chairman then asked the Meeting to consider the proposed matter in this agenda item

After due consideration the Meeting by the majority votes of 2155679997 shares equivalent to 98.07

of the total shares presented at the meeting with the disapproval of 961400 shares equivalent to 0.04%

and the abstention- of 41389000 shares equivalent to 1.88% resolved that the omission of allocation of

partial profits as legal reserve be approved

Agenda To consider and approve the omission of the dividend payment for the 2008

accounting period

The Chairman assigned Mrs Nijaporn Charanachitta to present that the Companys policy is to pay dividends

to the Companys shareholders in each year by using the original dividend policy which is the Company will

declare and pay dividends in the amount of at least 40% of net profit after provision for taxes provided that

such payment of any declared dividend will not impact the on-going operations of the Company

On March 25 2009 the Board of Directors Meeting passed the resolution of the approval of the omission of

the dividend payment for the year 2008 accounting period

According to the balance sheet and profit and loss statements of the Company for the year ended December

31 2008 the Company had losses in the amount of Baht 2450055000

The Chairman asked the Meeting and there were no questions

The Chairman asked the Meeting to consider the proposed matter in this agenda

After due consideration the Meeting by the majority votes of 2155509997 shares equivalent to 98.07% of

the total shares presetted at the meeting with the disapproval of 1001400 shares equivalent to 0.05%



and the abstention of 41519000 shares equivalent to 1.89% resolved that omission of the dividend

payment for the 2008 accounting period be approved

Agenda To consider and approve the appointment of new directors in place of directors

retiring by rotation and determination of remuneration for the Board of Directors and the Audit

Committee

Not More

than

1400000

The Chairman asked he Meeting to consider the proposed matter in this agenda Jtem

The Chairman assigned Mrs Nijaporn
Charanachitta to inform the Meeting that since Pol.Lt Chatrachai

Boonya-Ananta Dr Krisorn Jittorntrum and Mr Premchai Karnasuta retired from the office by rotation but

they could be reappointed for another term The Shareholders could consider the attachment of the Resume

of these directors

Mrs Nijaporn Charanachitta also proposed the Meeting to determine the remuneration of directors and the

Audit Committee and explained that the Company does not yet have remuneration committee but the

Board of Directors has set up transparent procedure to determine appropriate levels of remuneration by

comparisons with other companies of similar size in the same industries and partly by the performance of

the Company In any case the amount of remuneration to be paid to directors must be finally approved by

meeting of the Board of Directors The remuneration of directors and the Audit Committee of the last three

years were as follows

The Remuneration of the Board of Directors three years comparison

No Name Position Baht/year

2009 2008 2007

Pol Lt Chatrachai Bunya-ananta Chairman of the 750000 750000 700000

Board of Directors

Independent

Director

Mr Premchai Karnasuta Director 580000 580000 550000

Mrs Nijaporn Charanachitta Director 580000 580000 550000

Dr Krisorn Jittorntrum Independent 580000 580000 550000

Director

Mr William Lee Zentgraf Independent 580000 580000 550000

Director

Mr Pathal Chakornbundit Director 580000 580000 550000

Mr Tawatchai Suthiprapha Director 580000 580000 550000

Mr Yuthachai Charanachitta Director 580000 580000 550000

Mr Peeti Karnasuta Director 580000 580000

Total 5390000 5390000 5100000

The Remuneration of the Audit Committee three years comparison

No Name Position Baht/year

2009 2008 2007

Pol.Lt Chatrachai Bunya-ananta Chairman of the

Audit Committee

Salary 385000 385000 360000

Bonus 75000 150000

Dr Krisorn Jittorntrum Audit Committee

Salary 315000 315000 300000

Bonus 50000 100000

Mr William Lee Zentgraf Audit Committee

Salary 315000 315000 300000

Bonus 50000 100000

Total 1190000 1310000



Mr.Prasert Semanasuwan shareholder commented that the remuneration of the Audit Committee for the

year 2009 is higher than the last two years

Mrs Nijaporn Charanachitta explained that the remuneration that proposed the shareholders to consider

could not identify the amount of bonus which depends on the operation results in 2009

Mr Basant Kumar Dugar shareholder commented that the remuneration of directors should rely on the

performance of the Company

Mrs Nijaporn Charanachitta explained that the remuneration includes bonus item which relies on the

performance of the Company

After due consideration the Meeting by the majority votes of 2138369297 shares equivalent to 97.29

of the total shares presented at the Meeting and being entitled to vote with the disapproval of 18242300

shares equivalent to 0.83% and the abstention of 41418800 shares equivalent to 1.88% resolved that

the reappointment of Pol.Lt Chatrachai Boonya-Ananta be approved

The Meeting by the majority votes of 2155650197 shares equivalent to 98.07 with the disapproval of

991400 shares equivalent to 0.04% and the abstention of 41418800 shares equivalent to 1.88%

resolved that the reappointment of Dr Krisorn .ittorntrum be approved

The Meeting by the majority votes of 2155620197 shares equivalent to 98.07 of the total shares

presented at the Meeting and being entitle to vote with the disapproval of 991400 shares equivalent to

0.05% and the abstention of 41418800 shares equivalent to 1.88% resolved that the reappointment of

Mr Premchai Karnasuta be approved

The Meeting by the majority votes of 2139284297 shares equivalent to 97.33% of the total shares

presented at the Meeting with the disapproval of 17340700 shares equivalent to 0.79% and the

abstention of 41538800 shares equivalent to 1.89% resolved that the remuneration for the Board of

Directors not more than 5390000 Baht/year and for the Audit Committee not more than 1400000

Baht/year for the year 2009 be approved

Agenda To consider and approve the appointment of an auditor and determination of

remuneration of the auditor for the year 2009

The Chairman informed the Meeting that the resolution of the meeting of the Audit Committee and the

Board of Directors had approved to proposed Mr Somckid Tiatrakul Certified Public Accountant Thailand

No 2785 and or Mrs Sumalee Chokdeeanant Certified Public Accountant Thailand No 3322 of Grant

Thornton Limited and the remuneration of the independent auditors for the year 2009 with total value of

Baht 3881000

The Chairman asked the Meeting and there were no questions

The Chairman asked the Meeting to consider the proposed matter in this agenda item

The Meeting by the majority votes of 2156437597 shares equivalent to 98.11 of the total shares

presented at the Meeting with the disapproval of 83800 shares equivalent to 0.00% and the abstention of

41509000 shares equivalent to 1.89% resolved that the appointment of Mr Somckid Tiatrakul Certified

Public Accountant Thailand No 2785 and or Ms Sumalee Chokdeeanant Certified Public Accountant

Thailand No 3322 of Grant Thornton Limited to be the independent auditor for the year 2009 and the

determination of the auditors remuneration with total value of Baht 3881000 be approved

Agenda To consider and approve the amendment of Clause of the Companys Memorandum

of Association and increase of the Objectives of the Company Clauses 55 56 and 57

The Chairman assigned Mrs Nijaporn Charanachitta to inform the Meeting regarding the details of the

amendment of Clause of the Companys Memorandum of Association and increase of the Objectives of the

Company Clauses 55 56 and 57

/2



Mrs Nijaporn Charanachitta explained that for supporting the business operation of Aquathai Co Ltd

subsidiary of Italian-Thai International Company Limited the Company Subsidiary the Company deems it

proper to propose for approval in the Meeting to amend the Companys Memorandum of Association in its

Clause and increase of the Objectives of the Company Clauses 55 56 and 57 as follows

Present

No The objectives
of the Company are 54 items

Amendment to

No The objectives of the Company are 57 items

The additional objectives are

55 To provide services of consultancy engineering project management design

procurement construction and operation relating to the consumption and disposal of

water works and waste water treatment plants for industry and municipality

56 To provide services of maintenance for waste water treatment plants and other water

systems

57 To provide services for the study of properties examination and testing of quantity

qualification and efficiency of water waste water sludge and air in the zones of

municipalities industry and other areas including inspection of waste water treatment

plants and water works supply plants

The Chairman asked the Meeting and there were no questions

The Chairman asked the Meeting to consider the proposed matter in this agenda item

The Meeting by the majority votes of 2092182497 shares equivalent to 95.18 of total shares presented

at the meeting and being entitle to vote with the disapproval of 70400 shares equivalent to 0.00% and the

abstention of 105777500 shares equivalent to 4.81% resolved that the modification of prospectus of the

Company No.3 and the objectives of the Company No 5556 and 57.be approved by vote more than

three-fourths

After the vote of for Agenda Mr Hungchia Arkawaskul shareholder proposed the directors to estabUsh

shareholders company visit and encouraged the Management to handle the Companys business against

the economic crisis

Mr Premchai Karnasuta thanked to the shareholders and was pleased to establish shareholders company

visit The shareholders who were interested in this activity can inform their name and contact information to

Mrs Kanyakorn Dej-Udom of the Corporate Service Division

There was no other business so the Chairman adjourned the meeting at 4.05 p.m

YAL
Signed

Pol.Lt.Chatrachai Boonya-Anaflta

The Chairman of the Meeting
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The Stock Exchange of Thailand News Detail Page of

The Stock Exchange of Thailand

/Vci DE
Symbol lTD

Source lTD

Headline Signed Contract

Date/Time 22 Jan 2009 183300

The Translation

Italian-Thai Development Public Company Limited is pleased to inform

SET that on 16th January 2009 the Company signed contract with Bangkok

Metropolitan Authority to proceed with the Kuborn Road Improvement Project

2nd stage from the improvement section to Hatairaj road The details of the

contract are as follows

Description of worksThe construction of lanes of reinforced concrete

pavement including walkways street islands pedestrian bridge drainage

lighting traffic signs and utility system The total length of the

road is 4600 meter and total width of the road is 30 meter

Contract Value Bt 349.98 million Including VAT

Period of Works 600 days

http //www.set.or.th/set/newsdetails.dOtYPe Htime 1232623980000filenamedat%2Ffl.. 6/2/2009



The Stock Exchange of Thailand News Detail Page of

The Stoek Exchange of Thailand

Symbol lTD

Source lTD

Headline Signed Contract

Date/Time 29 Jan 2009 091000

The Translation

Italian-Thai Development Public Company Limited is pleased to inform

SET that on 8th January 2009 the Company signed contract with Doosan Heavy

Industries and Construction Co Ltd to proceed with the civil and

architectural works for GHECO-ONE 660 megawatt Power Plant Rayong Province

The details of the contract are as follows-

Description of works The construction of the civil and architectural

works for 660 megawatt power plant including

66000 cu.m of concrete and 8000 tons of

reinforced steel The main buildings include-

Boiler

Steam Turbine

CW Pumping Station

Waste Water Treatment

etc

Contract Value Bt 887.75 million Including VAT

Period of Works 1069 days

EJ1

http//www.set.orth/set/newsdetails.dotype Htime 1233 195000000filenamedat%2F.. 5/28/2009



The Stock Exchange of Thailand News Detail Page of

The Stock Exchange of Thailand

Symbol lTD

Source lTD

Headline Signed Contracts

Date/Time 04 Feb 2009 131500

The Translation

Italian-Thai Development Public Company Limited is pleased to inform SET that

the Company signed two contracts as follows

Name of Project Client Contract Value

Including VAT

The Construction Department of Baht 327400000
of the Official Center Public Works and lTD Portion Equivalent to

Ampornsatharn Town Country Baht 271732547.76

Palace Planning or approximate 82.997%

Bangkok

Signing date Dec 2008

Period of work 360 days

The Construction Mahidol University Baht 522900000
of Asias Excellent

Center for Tropical

Diseases

Bangkok

Signing date Jul 2008

Period of work 675 days

Remark

On behalf of the Consortium of lTD and Team Electric Engineering Limited

Partnership between Italian-Thai Development Public Company Limited and Team

Electric Engineering Limited Partnership

The details of the contract works are as follows

The Construction of the Official Center Ampornsatharn Palace Bangkok

Description of worksThe construction of storey office building with

basement floorhaving total service of area of 6900 m2

The Construction of Asias Excellent Center for Tropical Diseases Bangkok

Description of worksThe construction of 17 storey reinforced concrete

building with basement floors totalling 20 floors

including all architectural structural

and electrical works communication and fire alarm

systems air conditioning and ventilation system sanitary

and fire fighting systemsmedical gas system lifts and

escalators building automatic system BAS
and research rooms

http//www.set.or.th/set/newsdetails.dotype Htime 1233728100000filenamedat%2F.. 5/28/2009



The Stock Exchange of Thailand News Detail Page of

The Stock Exchange of Thailand

N4z4Ls- D4E
Symbol lTD

Source lTD

Headline Signed Contract

Date/Time 12 Feb 2009 130700

The Translation

Italian-Thai Development Public Company Limited is pleased to inform SET that

on the 6th February 2009 the Company signed contract with King

Chulalongkorn Memorial Hospital Thai Red Cross Society to proceed with the

construction of Patients Ward and Building of Medical Excellence Center The

details of the contract are as follows-

Description of works The construction of reinforced concrete building of 29

storeys with basement floors with curtain walls

including architectural works air conditioning and

ventilation system medical gas system building

automatic control system air tube system for

delivery of documents and medical parcel and automatic

transportation system for documents and parcels

Contract Value Bt 6579 million Including VAT

Period of Works 56 months

http//www.set.or.th/set/newsdetails.dotypeHtime 1234418820000filenamedat%2F 5/28/2009



The Stock Exchange of Thailand News Detail Page of

The Stoek Exchange of Thailand

Symbol lTD

Source lTD

Headline Notification of the Closing Date of Register Book

Date/Time 23 Feb 2009 090100

The translation

Subject Notification of the Closing Date of Register Book for Interest

Payment of ITD1O9A

Refer to The Letter of Bank of Ayudhya No Bor Thor Lor 0103/2009 dated

February 12 2009

Italian-Thai Development Public Company Limited the Company would like to

inform you that the Company will close the registered book for determining the

rights of debentureholders to receive the interest payment of the debenture

issue No 1/2008 of the Company maturing 2010 ITD1O9A the details are shown

in the referenced letter from the registrar of the debenture

Please be informed accordingly

Translation

No Bor Thor Lor 0103 /2009

12 February 2009

Attention The Managing Director

Italthai Development Public Company Limited

Subject Notification and determination of the closing date

of the share transfer register to determine holders with rights to interest

payment on the Debenture Issue No.1/2008 of the

Italian Development PcI maturing 2010 ITD1O9A

As registrar of the Debenture Issue 1/2008 of the Italian

Development PcI maturing in 2010 ITD1O9A the Bank of Ayudhya Plc is

pleased to inform you that an interest rate of 6.S% per annum will be used in

the calculation of interest payment during the 90 days covering 23 December

2008 22 March 2009 and that the share transfer register will be closed for

the determination of holders with rights to interest payment on March 2009

at 12.OOh as the interest payment will be made on 23 March 2009

Sincerely yours

Mr Manop Phaka

VP Securities Service Department

Bank of Ayudhya PcI

Securities Service Department

Tel 02 296-4494

i1

http//wwwset.or.th/set/newsdetails.dotypeHtime 1235354460000filenamedat%2F.. 5/28/2009



The Stock Exchange of Thailand News Detail Page of

aQnttthJctI11iu
The Stock Exchange of Thailand

News DI
Symbol lTD

Source lTD

Headline Signed Comtract

Date/Time 25 Feb 2009 130800

The Translation

Italian-Thai Development Public Company Limited is pleased to inform SET that

on the 19th February 2009 the Company signed contract with Wat Pa Ban Tad

to proceed with the construction of the 96 Luangta Maha Boowa Nanasampanno

Building The details of the contract are as follows

Description of works The construction of 10 storey building

including infrastructure

Contract Value Bt 183 million Including VAT

Period of Works 540 days

http //www.set.or.th/set/newsdetails.dotype Htime 1235542080000filenamedat%2F.. 5/28/2009



Stock Exchange of Thailand News Detail Page of

The Stoek Fxchange of Thailand

Nis ØI
Symbol lTD

Source lTD

Headline Operation Result

Date/Time 03 Mar 2009 140500

The translation

With reference to the Companys financial statements for the period ending 31st

December 2008 submitted to SET on 3rd March 2009 The Companys net loss in

2008 was Baht 2655.93 million This was decrease from the same period of the

previous year of Baht 3666.67 million or 362.77%

The Company wishes to explain the reasons contributing to the profits
of less

than 20% as follows

The Companys gross profit was Baht 654.62 million which decreased from

the same period of previous year by Baht 2586.70 million or 79.80% The main

reasons were the gross loss from the joint ventures which constructed the Nam

Theun hydroelectric dam project of approximately Baht 1150 million the West

Bengal project in India of approximately Baht 460 million the Underground

electrical train station in Taiwan project of approximately Baht 187 million

the PTTPE Ethane Cracker project of approximately Baht 124 million and IN

Joint Ventures of approximately Baht 81 million Moreover there were the

decreases of gross profit from some subsidiaries such as Thai Maruken Co

Ltd Italthai Trevi Co Ltd and Siam Concrete Brick Products Co Ltd

The Companys administrative expenses were Baht 1773.13 million which

increased from the same period of previous year by Baht 363.45 million or

25.78% The main reasons were the increases of the administrative expenses of

the Company of approximately Baht 119 million such as bank fees additional

income tax on tax refund of 2005 administrative expense of West Bengal

project moreover subsidiary company accounted for allowance for damages of

Baht 92 million due to claim for compensation for alleged negligence The

Court of First Instance ordered the subsidiary to pay damages amounting to

Baht 92 million together with fees The case is currently being appealed

Furthermore there were the increases of administrative expenses from new or

recently operating subsidiaries and joint ventures such as lTD-lTD Cem JV lTD

Cementation India Ltd PT Thailindo Bara Pratama Co Ltd

The Company set up an allowance for doubtful accounts of net Baht

231.74 million which increased from the same period of the previous year by

Baht 273.63 million or 653.27% compared to the same period of 2007 The

Company revised the allowance for doubtful accounts of Baht 41.89 million

according to the Companys policy to set up full allowance for doubtful

accounts for the major private accounts receivable that have been overdue for

more than 12 months and at 50 percent for those accounts overdue for more than

months and the allowance of earned revenues not yet billed from the Palm

Laguna project in the United Arab Emirates of approximately Baht 278 million

The Companys loss on exchange rate was Baht 294.22 million which

increased from the same period of the previous year by Baht 129.55 million or

78.68% The main reasons were the unrealised loss on exchange rate of some

subsidiaries and
joint

ventures such as Italthal Marine Ltd PT Thailindo Bara

Pratama Co Ltd ITO Joint Venture and lTD Cementation India Ltd

The Companys other income was Baht 636.82 million which decreased from

the same period of the previous year by Baht 113.17 million or 15.09% because in

2007 the Company received the payment from the customers as previously category

under doubtful account in some projects such as the Jetty at Songkhla project

and

Protection of Shore Erosion at Bangpakong and Samuthprakarn project and the gain

from sales of right to purchase shares of lTD Cementation India Ltd The said

transactions did not incur in 2008

The Companys interest and financial expenses were Baht 1743.78 million

which increased from the same period of the previous year by Baht 445.21

million or

34.29% The main reason was the interest of debentures and convertible

debentures
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as detailed in the companys note to financial statement No 26 and 27
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Symbol lTD

Source lTD

Headline Audited Yearly F/S And Consolidated F/S F45-3

Date/Time 03 Mar 2009 084900

Audited Yearly F/S and Consolidated F/S F45-3

Reports Audited yearly and consolidated statements as follows

Name ITALIAN-THAI DEVELOPMENT PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

Audited

In thousands

Ending 31 December

The Consolidated Financial Statement

For year

Year 2008 2007

Net profit loss 2655931 1010734

EPS baht 0.63 0.24

The Company Financial Statement

For year

Year 2008 2007

Net profit loss 2450055 1260120

EPS baht 0.58 0.30

Auditors Opinion

Qualified Opinion with an emphasis of matters

Comment Please see details in financial statements auditors report

and remarks from SET SMART

The company hereby certifies that the information above is correct

and complete In addition the company has already reported and

disseminated its financial statements in full via the SET Electronic

Listed Company Information Disclosure ELCID and has also submitted

the original report to the Securities and Exchange Commission

Signature

Position

Authorized to sign on behalf of the company
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The Stock Exchange of Thailand

JAI

Symbol lTD

Source lTD

Headline Form to Report on Names of Members and Scope of Work

Date/Time 26 Mar 2009 083700

F24-1

Form to Report on Names of Members and Scope of Work of the Audit

Committee The Board of Directors meeting of Italian-Thai Development Public

Company Limited No 9/3/2009 held on March 25 2009 resolved the meetings

resolutions in the following manners

Appointment of the audit committee/Renewal for the term of audit committee

Chairman of the audit committee Member of the audit committee

As follows

the appointment/renewal of which shall take an effect as of

Determination/Change in the scope of duties and responsibilities of the

audit committee with

the following details

To review the Companys internal control system and internal audit

system to ensure that they are suitable and efficient to determine an

internal audit units independence as well as to approve the appointment

transfer and dismissal of the chief of an internal audit unit or any other

unit in charge of an internal audit

To consider select and nominate an independent person to be the

Companys auditor and to propose such persons remuneration as well as to

attend non-management meeting with an auditor at least once year

To review the Connected Transactions or the transactions that may

lead to conflicts of interests to ensure that they are in compliance with the

laws and the Exchanges regulations and are reasonable and for the highest

benefit of the Company

To perform any other act as assigned by the Companys board of

directors with the approval of the audit committee

To prepare and to disclose in the Companys annual report an

audit committees report which must be signed by the audit committees

chairman and consist of at least the following information

the appointment/renewal of which shall take an effect as of March

252009

The audit committee is consisted of

Chairman of the audit committee Pol.Lt.Chatrachai Bunya-Anata remaining

term in office years

Member of the audit committee Dr Krisorn Jittorntrum remaining term in

office years

Member of the audit committee Mr.William Lee Zentgraf remaining term in

office years

Secretary of the audit committee Mr.Withit Ouaysinprasert

Enclosed hereto is copy of the certificate and biography of the audit

committee the chairman of the audit committee and has adequate expertise

and experience to review creditability of the financial reports

The audit committee of the Company has the scope of duties and

responsibilities to the Board of Director on the following matters

To review the Companys financial reporting process to ensure that it

is accurate and adequate

To review the Companys internal control system and internal audit

system to ensure that they are suitable and efficient to determine an
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internal audit units independence as well as to approve the appointment

transfer and dismissal of the chief of an internal audit unit or any other

unit in charge of an internal audit

To review the Companys compliance with the law on securities and

exchange the Exchanges regulations and the laws relating to the Companys

business

To consider select and nominate an independent person to be the

Companys auditor and to propose such persons remuneration as well as to

attend non-management meeting with an auditor at least once year

To review the Connected Transactions or the transactions that may

lead to conflicts of interests to ensure that they are in compliance with the

laws and the Exchanges regulations and are reasonable and for the highest

benefit of the Company

To review the adequacy and effectiveness of all risk management

processes in consultation with both internal audit division and the external

auditors

To prepare and to disclose in the Companys annual report an audit

committees report which must be signed by the audit committees chairman and

consist of at least the following information

7.1 an opinion on the accuracy completeness and creditability of

the Companys financial report

7.2 an opinion on the adequacy of the Companys internal control

system

7.3 an opinion on the compliance with the law on securities and

exchange the Exchanges regulations or the laws relating to the Companys

business

7.4 an opinion on the suitability of an auditor

7.5 an opinion on the transactions that may lead to conflicts of

interests

7.6 the number of the audit committee meetings and the attendance

of such meetings by each committee member

7.7 an opinion or overview comment received by the audit committee

from its performance of duties in accordance with the charter and

7.8 other transactions which according to the audit committees

opinion should be known to the shareholders and general investors subject to

the scope of duties and responsibilities assigned by the Companys board of

drectors and

To perform any other act as assigned by the Companys board of

directors with the approval of the audit committee

The Company hereby certifies that

The qualifications of the aforementioned members meet all the requirements

of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and

The scope of duties and responsibilities of the audit committee as stated

above meet all the requirements of the Stock Exchange of Thailand

Signed Director

Mrs.Nijaporn Charanachitta

Seal

Signed Director

Mr.Pathai Chakornbundit
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The Stock Exchange of Thailand

Symbol rrD

Source

Headline Announce date and Agendas of AGM and omission of dividend

Date/Time 26 Mar 2009 084400

The translation

The Board of Directors Meeting of Italian-Thai Development Public

Company Limited No 9/3/2009 on March 25 2009 passed resolutions regarding

the following matters

Consideration and approval the omission of the dividend payment for

the 2008 accounting period

Consideration and approval of holding the Annual General Meeting of

Shareholders No 1/2009 on April 27 2009 at 2.00 p.m at Meeting room 37th

floor 2034/132-161 Italthai Tower New Petchburi Road Bangkapi Huay Kwang

Bangkok to consider the following matters

To consider and certify
the Minutes of Annual General Meeting of

Shareholders No 1/2008

To consider and acknowledge the 2008 operational result

To consider and approve the Companys Balance Sheet and Profit

and Loss Statement for the year ended December 31 2008

To consider and approve the omission of allocation of partial

profits as legal reserve

To consider and approve the omission of the dividend payment for

the 2008 accounting period

To consider and approve the appointment of new directors in place

of directors retiring by rotation and determination of

remuneration for the Board of Directors and the Audit Committee

To consider and approve the appointment of an auditor and

determination of remuneration of the auditor for the year 2009

To consider and approve the amendment of clause of the

Companys memorandum of Association by increasing clause 5556

and 57 of the objects

To consider other business if any

Consideration and approval to confirm the Record Date for the right

to attend the meeting on Wednesday April 2009 and collect the names of

shareholders as stipulated in the Securities and Exchange Act B.E 2535 Section

225 by closing the share registration book on Thursday April 2009

Please be informed accordingly
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The Stock Exchange of Thailand

Symbol

Source rID

Headline Publication of the 2009 Annual General Shareholders Meeting

Date/Time 30 Mar 2009 090100

The translation

Re Publication of the 2009 Annual General Shareholders Meeting

invitation on the company website

The Board of Directors of Italian-Thai Development Public Company Limited the

Company had recently resolved to hold the 2009 Annual General Shareholders

Meeting on Monday April 27 2009 at 2.00 p.m at Meeting room 37 floor Head

Office 2034/132-161 Italthai Tower New Petchburi Road Bangkapi Huaykwang

Bangkok Thailand

The Company would like to inform SET that the Company has posted the Invitation

of the 2009 Annual General Shareholders Meeting with all relevant documents on

the

Company website at www.itd.co.th since March 27 2009 for consideration the

Company will post the 2008 the Company Annual Report post on our website as soon

as possible

Yours sincerely

Mrs.Nijaporn Charanachitta

Senior Executive Vice President
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Symbol lTD

Source lTD

Headline lTD Announces Resolutions Made by Shareholders

Date/Time 28 Apr 2009 090700

lTD Announces Resolutions Made by Shareholders

Italian Thai Development Public Company Limited ITD announced resolutions

made by Annual General Meeting of Shareholders No 1/2009 held on April 27

2009 at 2.05 p.m at Meeting room on 37th floor Head Office New Petchburi

Road Bangkok At the beginning of the Meeting 440 shareholders attended the

Meeting with 2198030397 shares in aggregate which was equal to 52.41 and

thus constitutes quorum the Meeting has resolved as follows

To certify
the Minutes of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders No

1/2008 Be certified by majority votes as follows

Approved 2155649997 or 98.07 Disapproved 30000 Votes or 0.00%

Abstained 42350400 Votes or 1.93

To acknowledge the year 2008 operation result

Be acknowledged by majority votes as follows

Approved 2155649997 votes or 98.07 Disapproved 36000 Votes or 0.00%

Abstained 42344400 Votes or 1.93

3.10 approve the Companys Balance Sheets and Profit and Loss Statements for

the year ended December 31 2008

Be approved by majority votes as follows

Approved 2155529997 votes or 98.07 %.Disapproved 76400 Votes or 0.00%

Abstained 42424000 Votes or 1.93

To approve the omission of allocation of partial profits as legal reserve

According to the balance sheet and profit and loss statements of the Company

for the year ended December 31 2008 the Company had losses in the amount of

Baht 2450055000

Be approved by majority votes as follows

Approved 2155679997 votes or 98.07 Disapproved 961400 Votes or 0.04%

Abstained 41389000 Votes or 1.88

To approve the omission of the dividend payment for the year 2008

accounting period According to the balance sheet and
profit

and loss

statements of the Company for the year ended December 31 2008 the Company

had losses in the amount of Baht 2450055000

Be approved by majority votes as follows

Approved 2155509997 votes or 98.07% Disapproved 1001400 Votes or 0.05%

Abstained 41519000 Votes or 1.89

To approve the re-appointment Pol.Lt Chatrachai Bunya-Ananta and Dr

Krisorn Jittorntrum Independent Directors and Mr Premchai Karnasuta

Director who resign by rotation into their office for another term

Be approved by not less than 66.67% of the total votes represented by the

shareholders attending the Meeting and having the voting rights as follows

6.1 Pol.Lt Chatrachai Bunya-Ananta

Approved 2138369297 votes or 97.29 Disapproved 18242300 Votes or

0.83% Abstained 41418800 Votes or 1.88%

6.2 Dr Krisorn Jittorntrum

Approved 2155650197 votes or 98.07% Disapproved 961400 Votes or 0.04%

Abstained 41418800 Votes or 1.88%
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6.3 Mr Premchai Karnasuta

Approved 2155620197 votes or 98.07% Disapproved 991400 Votes or 0.05%

Abstained 41418800 Votes or 1.88%

And be approved the determination of the remuneration of the Board of

Directors which is not more than Baht 5390000 per year and the remuneration

of the Audit Committee which is not more than Baht 1400000 per year and be

approve by not less than 66.67% of the total votes represented by the

shareholders attending the Meeting and having the voting rights as

follows

Approved 2139284297 votes or 97.33 Disapproved 17340700 Votes or

0.79%

Abstained 41538800 Votes or 1.89

To approve the appointment Mr Somkid Tiatrakul certified public

accountant Thailand No.2785 and/or Mrs Sumalee Chokdeeanant certified

public accountant Thailand No 3322 of Grant Thornton Limited to be the

auditors for the accounting year ended December 31 2009

and to determine the auditors remuneration at the amount of Baht 3881000

per year

Be approved by majority votes as follows

Approved 2156437597 votes or 98.11% Disapproved 83800 Votes or 0.OO%

Abstained 41509000 Votes or 1.89%

To approve the amendment of Clause of the Companys Memorandum of

Association and increase of the Objectives of the Company Clauses 55 56 and

57 as follows

55 To provide services of consultancy engineering project management

designprocurement construction and operation relating to the consumption and

disposal of water works and waste water treatment plants for industry and

municipality

56 To provide services of maintenance for waste water treatment plants and

other water systems

57 To provide services for the study of properties examination and testing of

cluantity qualification and efficiency of water waste water sludge and air

in the zones of municipalities industry and other areas including inspection

of waste water treatment plants and water works supply plants

Be approved by not less than 75% of the total votes represented by the

shareholders attending the Meeting and having the voting rights as follows

Approved 2092182497 votes or 95.18% Disapproved 70400 Votes or 0.00%

Abstained 105777500 Votes or 4.81

Please be informed accordingly
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Symbol lTD

Source lTD

Headline Signed contract

Date/Time 11 May 2009 085600

Translation

Italian-Thai Development Public Company Limited is pleased to nform

SET that on May 2009 the Company signed contract with the Department of

Highways Ministry of Transportto proceed with the Construction of the Mekong

Bridge at Nakhon Phanom or The Third Thai-Lao Friendship Bridge Nakhon

Phanom Khammuan The details of the contract works are as follows

Description of works

Precast prestressed concrete bridge across the Mekong River

with total length of 1423.10 with traffic lanes of total

width of 9.50 and each shoulder width of 1.05

Asphalt concrete surfacing on bridge

Concrete pavement road 25 cm thick pavement on both

approaches

Border control building and facilities

Street lighting traffic markings traffic signs drainage works

and incidental works

Value Baht 1723.23 million Including VAT

Period of Works 900 days

cw
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Symbol lTD

Source lTD

Headline Publication of the Minutes of the AGM 1/2009

Date/Time 11 May 2009 131100

The translation

Re Publication of the Minutes of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

No.1/2009 on the Companys Website

The Annual General Shareholders Meeting No.1/2009 of Italian-Thai Development

Public Company Limited the Company was held on Monday April 27 2009

copy of the Minutes of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders No.1/2009 is

attached and the Company posted the Minutes on the Companys website at

www.itd.co.th on May 11 2009

Please be informed accordingly
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Source lTD

Headline Notification of the Closing Date of Register Book

Date/Time 15 May 2009 094000

The translation

Sjbject Notification of the Closing Date of Register Book for Interest

Payment of ITD1O9A

To The President

The Stock Exchange of Thailand

Refer to The Letter of Bank of Ayudhya No Bor Thor Lor 0295/2009 dated May

2009

Italian-Thai Development Public Company Limited the Company would like to

inform you that the Company will close the registered book for determining the

rights of debentureholders to receive the interest payment of the debenture

issue No 1/2008 of the Company maturing 2010 ITD1O9A the details are shown

in the referenced letter from the registrar of the debenture

Please be informed accordingly

Translation

No Bor Thor Lor 0295/2009

May 2009

Attention The Managing Director

Italthai Development Public Company Limited

Subject Notification and determination of the closing date of the

share transfer register to determine holders with rights to interest payment

on the Debenture Issue No.1/2008 of the Italian Development PcI maturing 2010

ITD1O9A

As registrar of the Debenture Issue 1/2008 of the Italian Development

Fcl maturing in 2010 ITD1O9A the Bank of Ayudhya Plc is pleased to inform

you that an interest rate of 6.5% per annum will be used in the calculation of

interest payment during the 92 days covering 23 March 2009 22 June 2009 and

that the share transfer register will be closed for the determination of

holders with rights to interest payment on June 2009 at 12.OOh as the

interest payment will be made on 23 June 2009

Sincerely yours

Mr Manop Phaka

VP Securities Service Department

Bank of Ayudhya PcI

Securities Service Department

Tel 02 296-4494
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Symbol lTD

Source lTD

Headline Reviewed Quarter and Consolidated F/S F45-3

Date/Time 15 May 2009 172200

Reviewed Quarter-i and Consolidated F/S F45-3

Report Reviewed Quarterly Financial Statements

Name ITALIAN-THAI DEVELOPMENT PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

Reviewed

In thousands

Ending 31 March

The Consolidated Financial Statement

Quarter

Year 2009 2008

Net profit loss 8636 66808

EPS baht 0.00 0.02

The Company Financial Statement

Quarter

Year 2009 2008

Net profit loss 94721 72662

EPS baht 0.02 0.02

Type of report

Qualified Opinion with an emphasis of matters

Comment Please see details in financial statements auditors

report and remarks from SET SMART

The company hereby certifies that the information above is

correct and complete In addition the company has already reported

and disseminated its financial statements in full via the SET

Electronic Listed Company Information Disclosure ELCID and has

also submitted the original report to the Securities and Exchange

Commission

Signature

Mrs.Nijaporn Charanachitta

Position Senior Executive Vice President

Authorized to sign on behalf of the company
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Symbol lTD

Source lTD

Headline Operation Results

Date/Time 20 May 2009 140200

The translation

With reference to the Companys financial statements for the period ending 31st

March 2009 submitted to SET on 15th May 2009 The net income attributable to

the Companys shareholders in the first quarter of 2009 was Baht 8.64 million

This was decrease from the same period of the previous year of Baht 58.17

million or 87.07%

The Company wishes to explain the reasons contributing to the decrease of net

income attributable to the Companys shareholders more than 2O% as follows

The Companys income tax was Baht 70.47 million which increased from the

same period of previous year by Baht 47.62 million or 208.41% The said

income tax was mainly from the profit on the Delhi Metro contract BC-24 project

However the Companys income before income tax was Baht 72.25 million

which increased from the same period of the previous year by Baht 19.46

million or 36.86% for the main reasons as follows

Administrative expenses were Baht 290.92 million which decreased from

the same period of the previous year by Baht 169.18 million or

36.77% The main reason was in the first quarter of 2008 subsidiary company

accounted for allowance for damage of Baht 92 million due to claim for

compensation for alleged negligence The said transactions did not incur

in the first quarter of 2009

Other income was Baht 235.73 million which increased from the same

period of the previous year by Baht 136.35 million or 137.20% The main

reasons were from the claims from the project owner from the lTD NCC

Joint Venture NT-2 and the Kol dam hydroelectric power project

Gain on exchange rate was Baht 51.98 million which increased from the

same period of the previous year in which the loss on exchange was

Baht 67.94 million by Baht 119.92 million or 176.5O% The main reasons

were the unrealized gain on exchange from the loan for purchase of

equipment of the Delhi Metro contract BC-24 project and the Mae Moh

mining phase project and the unrealised gain from subsidiaries and joint

ventures
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Symbol lTD

Source lTD

Headline to sign contract

Date/Time 21 May 2009 131200

Translation

Italian-Thai Development Public Company Limited is pleased to inform

SET that on April

2009 the Company signed contract with the Oversee Construction Co Ltd

to proceed with

the Pratunam Shopping and Hotel Building Bangkok The details of the

contract works are as

follows

Description of works Design and construction of an 18 storey Shopping

and Hotel

Building and storey service building

Contract Value Baht 1498.59 million Including VAT

Period of Works 540 days
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REVIEW REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Grant Thornton Limited

18 Floor Capital Tower

All Seasons Place

87/1 Wireless Road Lumpini

Pathumwan Bangkok 10330 Thailand

66 205 8222

66 654 3339

www.grantthornton.co.th

To the Board of Directors of Italian-Thai Development Public Company Limited

have reviewed the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2009 of Italian-Thai

Development Public Company Limited and subsidiaries and the related consolidated statements of

income changes in shareholders equity and cash flows for the three-month periods ended 31 March

2009 and 2008 have also reviewed of the separate balance sheet as at 31 March 2009 of Italian-Thai

Development Public Company Limited and the related separate statements of income changes in

shareholders equity and cash flows for the three-month periods ended 31 March 2009 and 2008 These

financial statements are the responsibility of the Companys management as to their correctness and

completeness of the presentation My responsibility is to issue report on these financial statements

based on my reviews did not review the financial statements of two overseas branches two overseas

subsidiaries and six overseas joint ventures with total assets as at 31 March 2009 comprising 26.l8% of

consolidated assets and total revenues for the three-month period ended 31 March 2009 comprising

39.88% of consolidated revenues Such total assets and revenues as included in the consolidated

financial statements were reviewed by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to me My

report in so far as it relates to those overseas project offices branches subsidiaries and joint ventures

are based on the reports of those other auditors

Except for the matters discussed in the third fourth and fifth paragraphs conducted my reviews in

accordance with auditing standard applicable to review engagement That standard requires that plan

and perform the review to obtain moderate assurance as to whether the financial statements are free of

material misstatements review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company personnel and

analytical review procedures applied to financial data and thus provides less assurance than an audit in

accordance with generally accepted auditing standards Accordingly do not express such an audit

opinion on the reviewed financial statements

Certified Public Accountants and International Business Consultants

Member of Grant Thornton Internationai Ltd

Grant Thornton International is not worldwide partnership

Member firms of the international organizations are independently owned and operated
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The consolidated financial statements for the three-month period ended 31 March 2009 include the

financial statements of associated companies for which investments are accounted for by the Company

by the equity method with assets comprising 0.59% of consolidated assets Those financial statements

were based on financial information complied by the management of such associated companies which

have not been reviewed by auditors because the associated companies are not under the control of the

Companys management However the investments in such companies are not significant to the

consolidated financial statements Nevertheless was informed by the Company management that the

financial statements of those associated companies as at 31 December 2008 have already been audited

by auditors without significant adjustments

The consolidated financial statements as at 31 March 2009 include unbilled receivables of Joint

Venture proportionate to the Company of Baht 707.57 million which
represent

the recognized

revenues for work done to one local customer government enterprise
but have not been certified to

accept the work beyond the normal period of certification This was explained as an effect from the

change in the management of such government enterprise As result the Joint Venture has not been

able to determine the
age

of the collection of such receivables Currently the Joint Venture is rectifying

the situation to make the collection

Based on the report of other auditor of an overseas subsidiary company trade accounts receivable as at

31 March 2009 include variation claims of Baht 275.25 million for which income had been recognized in

the earlier years which has been disputed by the customer Of these claims the arbitrator had issued

verdict in favour of the subsidiary company of Baht 112.23 million However the total amount has still

been challenged by the customer Trade accounts receivable of such subsidiary company as at 31 March

2009 also include Baht 234.44 million billed for interim work for work done which have not been

certified by customers beyond normal periods of certification Considering the nature of the subsidiary

companys business management is unable to determine the
age

of such bills Currently the subsidiary

company is rectifying the situation to make the collection

Based on my review and the reports
of other auditors except for the effects on the consolidated

financial statements for the three-month period ended 31 March 2009 of the review
scope

limitation

described in the third paragraph
and

except
for the impact which may occur and cannot yet

be

assessed of the matter as discussed in the fourth and fifth paragraphs
which depends on the judicial

process
in the future and which other auditor unable to assess due to scope limitation imposed by

circumstance nothing has come to my attention that causes me to believe that the accompanying

financial statements are not presented fairly in all material
respects

in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles

Certified Public Accountants and International Business Consultants

Member of Grant Thornton International Ltd

Grant Thornton International is not worldwide partnership

Member firms of the internatinnal organizations are independently owned and operated
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Without modifying my above review report
draw attention to the followings

As discussed in Note 25 to the financial statements at the beginning of the year 2007 the Company

and local joint venture received letter from The National Assets Examination Committee

NAEC requesting cooperation
for the inspection of baggage-handling system and the CTX

bomb scanners for Suvarnabhumi Airport and the inspection for cracks on the
runways

and

taxiways at Suvarnabhumi Airport The Company so far has not received any claim for damages

The management believes that the Company and its joint venture referred to above do not have to

be responsible for any damage

As discussed in Note to the financial statements the Company has investment in potash mine

project of Baht 3236 million that the
request

for concession for potash mining from government is

being processed Currently the Minister of Industry
had agreed to set up the committee consisting

of representative
from Ministry of Industry Ministry of Interior Ministry of Natural Resources and

Environment Ministry of Public Health and Ministry of Social Development and Human Security

to consider the
process

to resolve the potash mining operations in Udonthani to make the project

materialized The Companys management believes that this project will generate benefits both for

nearby areas and for the country and the project will be approved by the government and

operational as planned since the Ministry of Finance has jointly invested in this project for IO% of

the total registered capital The management of the Company believes that there will not be any

impairment in the value of investment

have previously audited the consolidated financial statements of Italian-Thai Development Public

Company Limited and its subsidiaries and the separate financial statements of Italian-Thai

Development Public Company Limited for the
year

ended 31 December 2008 in accordance with

generally accepted auditing standards and issued my report dated March 2009 expressed qualified

opinion thereon with exceptions on the effect of the collectibility of trade accounts receivable of an

overseas subsidiary and joint venture which are under the judicial process
and the follow up for

certification to support the billing for long outstanding work done unbilled receivables of Joint

Venture proportionate to the Company which represent
the recognized revenues for work done to one

local customer government enterprise but have not been certified to accept
the work beyond the

normal period of certification and the non-assessable of the effect of project office that was in the

process of revising its the budgeted project cost with emphases on the notification from The

National Assets Examination Committee to investigate the Company and joint venture involvement in

the procurement of baggage-handling system
and the CTX bomb scanners for Suvarnabhumi Airport

Certified Public Accountants and International Business Consultants

Member of Grant Thornton International Ltd

Grant Thornton International is not worIide partnership

Member firms of the oternational organizations are independently owned and operated



GrantThornton

the Companys investment in potash mine project which the concession is still being processed

from the government that management believes not to be subject to impairment and the adjustment

to write-off the negative goodwill as result of the change
in accounting policy The consolidated and

separate balance sheets as at 31 December 2008 presented for comparative purposes are an integral

part
of such audited financial statements have not performed any auditing procedures subsequent to

such report
date

MR SOMCKID TIATRAGUL

Certified Public Accountant

Registration No 2785

Bangkok Thailand

15 May 2009

Certified Public Accountants and International Business Consultants

Member of Grant Thornton International Ltd

Grant Thornton International is not worldwide partnership

Membnr firms of the international organizations are independently owned and operated



ITALIAN THAI DEVELOPMENT PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

BALANCE SHEETS

AS AT 31 MARCH 2009 AND 31 DECEMBER 2008

Unit Thousand BahI

CONSOLIDATED SEPARATE F/S

31 March 2009 31 December 2008 31 March 2009 31 December 2008

Unaudited Unaudited

Notes but reviewed Audited but reviewed Audited

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and deposits with banks 3485351 4047216 2097639 2624754

Restricted deposits with banks 488922 507290 449791 469053

Short-term investment 479 479

Current
portion

of peomissory notes receivable 675000 300000 675000 300000

Trade accounts receivable unrelated parties net 8393992 8484719 3798841 3536845

Trade accounts receivable related parties net 1483701 1129006 1477717 1391432

Short-term loans and advances to subsidiaries and

related parties net 105231 96728 1423009 1440875

Earned revenues not yet
billed 10284145 10.501685 5084446 5145546

Retentions receivable due within one year 1439957 1544563 1100936 1105656

Inventories and work in
progress net 3551438 4254802 1236361 1508080

Other current assets

Income tax withheld at sources 1179797 1242651 623059 523574

Refundable value added tax 407366 372564 51107 45574

Advances for purchases of machine and materials 1104292 920695 262183 257557

Current portion of receivable from sale of land 178 178

Others 226383 195535 82510 69956

Total Current Assets 32826232 33598111 18362599 18418902

NON CURRENT ASSETS

Promissory notes receivable 239862 636590 239862 636590

Retentions receivable due after one year 114685 80553

Advances to subcontractors 128202 132140 50451 54866

Investments in subsidiaries associated companses

and joint ventures net 7.1 356201 370599 8038510 8012644

Other long term investments net 7.2 1634221 1576335 1624617 1563159

Investment in potash mining project 3236149 3236149

Long term loans and advances to subsidiaries and

related parties net 443080 362384 1338666 1266234

Loan and advances to unrelated parties net 10 342071 342304 88610 88610

Land held for sale and development net 558220 558220

Property plant and equipment net 11 15234167 15513511 9700098 9971897

Deferred charges 4832 7616

Goodwill 500086 500086

Other non current assets 387666 315362 96806 107623

Total Non Current Assets 23179442 23631849 21177620 21701623

TOTAL ASSETS 56005674 57229960 39540219 40120525

The accompanying notes form an integral part
of the interim financial statements



ITALIAN THAI DEVELOPMENT PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

BALANCE SHEETS

AS AT 31 MARCH 2009 AND 31 DECEMBER 2008

Unit Thousand Baht

CONSOLIDATED SEPARATE F/S

31 March 2009 31 December 2008 31 March 2009 31 December 2008

Unaudited Unaudited

Notes but reviewed Audited but reviewed Audited

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EOUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Bank overdrafts and short term loans from financial institutions 12 8009667 7353305 3203460 3042164

Current portion of liabilities under trust receipts 266857 267923 161464 148210

Trade accounts payable unrelated parties 7674002 7870720 4351473 4780923

Receipts in excess of contracts work in progress 484266 191725 484266 191725

Trade accounts payable
related

parties
13 1711780 1678456 1386320 1540355

Short-term loans and advances from related parties 14 113615 133630 2054

Current portion of advances from customers under construction contracts 4023591 4919323 1279306 1407440

Current portion of hire purchases payable 385142 421629 302019 337195

Current portion of long-term loan guaranteed by notes payable 675000 300.000 675000 300000

Current portion of long-term loans 15 2115463 2282580 1619428 1546760

Current portion of debentures 16 706139 705837 706139 705837

Other Current liabilities

Income tax payable 17943 122957

Value added tax
payable 101381 68633 101301 60208

Accrued
expenses 878226 1107796 274626 345091

Reserve for project expenses 4900 4900 4900 4900

Allowance for contingent liabilities 621322 612822 621322 612822

Advance received for land
purchase 7204 12555

Accounts payable to related parties for purchase of investments 62484 62484 56809 56809

Retentions payable 468755 502348 337376 341791

Loan from directors 18 165276 161743

Others 1118185 1122716 241370 289466

Total Current Liabilities 29611198 29904082 15806579 15713750

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

Liabilities under trust receipts net of current portion 1416 2055 1416 2055

Advances from customers under construction contracts

net of current portion 814074 817440 250145 205046

Hire purchases payable net of current portion 544372 573455 156826 223843

Long-term loan guaranteed by notes payable 239862 636590 239862 636590

Long-term loans net of current portion
15 4363977 4700493 3478766 3835638

Debentures net 16 1992726 1991515 1992726 1991515

Convertible debentures net 17 4834552 4830231 4834552 4830231

Accrued interest on convertible debentures 150381 102320 150381 102320

Deferred gain on transferring assets to special purpose vehicle 229574 229574 229574 229574

Allowance for contingent liabilities net of current portion 76837 76837 76837 76837

Allowance for losses on construction projects 630772 639964 629773 628176

Other non current liabilities 28125 30718 75742 78335

Total Non Current Liabilities 13906668 14631192 12116600 12840160

TOTAL LIABILITIES 43517866 44535274 27923179 28553910

The accompanying notes form an integral part
of the interim financial statements



ITALIAN THAI DEVELOPMENT PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

BALANCE SHEETS

AS AT 31 MARCH 2009 AND 31 DECEMBER 2008

CONSOLIDATED

31 March 2009 31 December 2008

Unaudited

but reviewed Audited

Unit Thousand Baht

SEPARATE F/S

31 March 2009 31 December 2008

Unaudited

but reviewed Audited

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EOUITY CONTINUED

SHAREHOLDERS EOUITY

Share capital ordinary share at Baht
par

value

Registered -4921678180 shares

Issued and fully paid up -4193678180 shares

Share premium

Unreahsed loss on changes in value of investments

Translation
adjustments

for
foreign currency

financial statements

Surplus on dilution of investment in
subsidiary company

Retained earnings

Appropriated statutory reserve

Unappropriated

Equity attributable to the Companys shareholders

Minority interests Equity attributable to minority

shareholders of subsidiaries

Total Shareholders Equity

4921678

4193678

5515363

321249

580499

149586

427373

2422543

11806795

681013

12487808

4921678

4193678

5515363

263782

609057

149586

427373

2413907

11827068

867618

12694686

4921678

4193678

5515363

184815

242780

419368

1916226

11617040

11617040

4921678

4193678

551 5363

130918

252381

419368

1821505

11566615

11566615

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

/.lhv

56005674 57229960 39540219 40120525

P9
Director

The accompanying notes form an integral part
of the interim financial statements



ITALIAN THAI DEVELOPMENT PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES Unaudited but reviewed

STATEMENTS OF INCOME

FOR THE THREE MONTH PERIODS ENDED 31 MARCH 2009 AND 2008

Unit Thousand Baht

CONSOLIDATED SEPARATE F/S

Notes 2009 2008 2009 2008

REVENUES 1823

Revenues from construction work 10460781 10980094 5736605 6435819

Revenues from sale and services 333275 444346

Total revenues 10794056 11424440 5736605 6435819

COSTS 1819

Costs of construction work 9939518 10287447 5319383 5961852

Costs of sale and service 311513 354269

Total costs 10251031 10641716 5319383 5961852

Gross income 543025 782724 417222 473967

Dividend income and shares of profit from the joint ventures 31418

Interest income 38737 22898 37585 24356

Gain on exchange rate 51977 40731

Other income 235727 99378 195722 93147

Income before expenses 869466 905000 722678 591470

Sellingexpenses
19 11147 6265

Administrative
expenses

19 290922 460105 190162 227756

Director and executive compensation 19 15169 14317 15169 14317

Loss on exchange rate 67944 49545

Reversal of allowance allowance for doubtful accounts 83447 10155 95555 3865

Allowance for project loss on related parties 174708

Allowance for impairment and contingent liabilities 8500 8500

Total expenses 242291 538476 292984 295483

Income from operations 627175 366524 429694 295987

Share of
profit loss from investments accounted

for by equity
method 33148 6610

Income before financial expenses and income tax 594027 373134 429694 295987

Financial
expenses 521776 320342 334973 223325

Income before income tax 72251 52792 94721 72662

Income tax 70471 22850

NET INCOME 1780 29942 94721 72662

Net income attributable to

The Companys shareholders 8636 66808 94721 72662

Minority interests 6856 36866

1780 29942 94721 72.662

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

Net income Baht per share 0.00 0.02 0.02 0.02

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Thousand shares 4193678 4193678 4193678 4193678

The accompanying notes form an integral part
of the interim financial statements



ITALIAN THAI DEVELOPMENT PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

FOR THE THREE MONTH PERIODS ENDED 31 MARCH 2009 AND 2008

Unaudited but reviewed

Unit Thousand Baht

Note share capital premium

Balance as at lJanuary 2008 4193678 5515363

Unrealised loss on changes in value of investments

Translation adjustment foe
foreign currency

financial statements

Expenses recognized in shareholders
equity

Net income for the period

Total income expenses recognized in the period

Minority interests for the period

Balance as at 31 March 2008

Balance as at January 2009

Unrealised loss on changes in value of investments

Translation adjustment for foreign currency

financial statements

Income expenses recognized in shareholders equity

Net income for the period

Total Income expenses recognized in the period

Dividend paid from subsidiary

Minority interests for the period

Balance as at 31 March 2009

28558

57467 28558

57467 28558

Equity attributable

Retained
earnings to the Companys

Statutory reserve Unappropriated shareholders

340321 73357

341725 73357

28558

28909

8636 8636

8636 20273

CONSOLIDATED

Issued and

paid-up

Equity attributable to the Companys shareholders

Foreign currency

Unrealised gain financial statements Surplus on dilution

Share loss on changes in translation of investment in

value of investments adjustment subsidiary company

52841 14958675363

1404

1404

1404

Minority

interests

427373

340321

340321

5363026

Total

15777230 1050141 16827371

1404 1404

66808 66808

340321 66808 274917

4193678 5.515363 73959 287480 149586 427373 5429834 15502313

4193678 5515363 263782 11827068

57467 57467

609057 149586

413678

415082

66808

348274

36866

16442231

73357

36866

939918

427373 2413907 867618 12694686

57467

4.193678 5515363 321249 580499 149586 427373 2422543 11806795

177458

177458

177458

7291

6856

681013

148900

206367

8636

197731

2291

6856

12487808

The accompanying notes form an integral part
of the interim financial statements



ITALIAN THAI DEVELOPMENT PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

FOR THE THREE MONTH PERIODS ENDED 31 MARCH 2009 AND 2008

SEPARATE F/S

Issued and

paid-up

Unrealised gain

loss on changes in

Note share capital Share premium value of investments

Unaudjted but reviewed

Unit Thousand Baht

Foreign currency

financial statements

translation Retained earnings

adjustment Statutory reserve Unappropriated Total

Balance as at iJanuary 2008

Unreahsed loss on changes in value of investments

Translation adlustment for
foreign currency financial statements

Expenses recognized in shareholders equity

Nrt income for the period

Balance as at 31 March 2008

Balance as at January2009

Unreahsed loss on changes in value of investments

Translation adjustment for foreign currency
financial statements

Income expenses recognized in shareholders
equity

Net income for the period

Balance as at 31 March 2009

419368 4564748 14949891

22920

__________________ ___________________
130082

153002

72662

14869551

419368 1821505 11566615

53897

9601

9601

224077 326574193678 5515363

22920

22920

4193678 5515363 201157

4193678 5515363 130918

53897

53897

130082

130082

72662

97425 419368 4637410

252381

94721

4193678 5515363 184815 242.780 419368 1916226

9601

44296

94721

11617040

The
accompanying notes form an integral part of the interim financial statements



ITALIAN THAI DEVELOPMENT PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES Unaudited but reviewed

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE THREE MONTH PERIODS ENDED 31 MARCH 2009 AND 2008

Unit Thousand Baht

CONSOLIDATED SEPARATE F/S

2009 2008 2009 2008

Cash flows from operating activities

Income before taxation 72251 52792 94721 72662

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided

from used in operating activities

Unrealised loss gain on exchange rate 39590 33022 41492 21264

Share of losses profit from Investment accounted for by equity method 33148 6610

Allowance reversal of allowance for doubtful accounts 83447 10155 95555 3865

Dividend income and share of profit from the joint ventures 31418

Depreciation and amortisation 599526 507700 349754 330969

Financial
expenses 521776 320342 334973 223325

Allowance for
project loss on related parties 174708

Allowance for impairment and
contingent liabilities 8500 8500

Net income from operating activities before changes in

operating assets and liabilities 1191344 897091 794191 652085

Decrease increase in operating assets

Trade accounts receivable unrelated parties 102660 247379 240164 132366

Trade accounts receivable related
parties 257640 459132 164952 704852

Loans and advances to subsidiaries and related parties 88117 259218 53857 17593

Earned revenues not yet billed 213895 727954 61100 472530

Retentions receivable 71596 11224 4718 17229

Inventories and work in
progress 703364 64467 271719 77646

Refundable value added tax 34802 11518 5533 3884

Advances for subcontractors 3938 32681 4415 6566

Advances for purchases of machine and materials 183597 97473 4626 8688

Receivables from sale of land 6044

Other current assets 34563 106665 16269 71509

Increase decrease in operating liabilities

Trade accounts payable unrelated parties 278396 210539 429450 278479

Trade accounts payable related parties 33324 88384 154035 29862

Billing in excess of contract work in
progress 292541 49038 292541 49038

Advances received from customers under construction contracts 899098 147510 83035 297423

Value added tax payable 32748 41093 885

Accrued
expenses 229570 748858 70465 35771

Advance received for land 5351 1028

Retentions payable 34072 871 4415 400

Other current liabilities 114887 393790 99697 50594

Other liabilities 11785 77819 996 133900

Cash received paid from operations 473532 1168589 142283 447716

Refund income tax 15696

Income tax payment 128696 253287 99485 111754

Net cash provided from used in operating activities 360532 1421876 42798 559.470

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Interim financial statements



ITALIAN THAI DEVELOPMENT PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES Unaudited but reviewed

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS Continued

FOR THE THREE MONTH PERIODS ENDED 31 MARCH 2009 AND 2008

Unit Thousand Baht

CONSOLIDATED SEPARATE F/S

2009 2008 2009 2008

Cash flows from investing activities

Decrease in cash at banks with maturity of more than three

months and restricted deposits 29000 183907 30960 32652

Decrease in loans to unrelated parties 233 35497 33552

Decrease in land held for sales 87052

Proceed from disposal fixed assets 150821 48458

Purchase of fixed assets 457184 114096 115670 8945

Decrease in deferred
charges

77 2505

Increase in investments in subsidiary and associated companies 18750 25866 37600

Dividend income and shares of profit from the joint ventures 31418

Decrease increase in other long-term investments 115355 15366 115355 5672

Decrease increase in other assets 79330 73082 3789 2733

Net cash provided from used in investing activities 490488 137149 142266 16720

Cash flows from financing activities

Interest payment 356960 358995 228912 230408

Increase in bank overdrafts and loans from financial institutions 683913 1284465 188847 709987

Increase decrease in loans and advances from related parties 20.01 360 2.054 410

Increase decrease in
long-term

loans 525361 65686 305932 248584

Decrease in hire purchases payable 53491 76408 90114 68348

Increase decrease in liabilities under trust receipts 1705 238056 12615 111077

Increase decrease in loans from directors 3533 10533

Dividend paid from subsidiary 2291

Net cash provided from used in financing activities 272377 1141911 425550 274134

Translation adjustment on foreign currency financial statements 148900 413679 9601 130082

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 551233 556495 515417 398698

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 4007509 2564162 2585064 1104360

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period Note 3456276 2007667 2069647 705662

Supplemental cash flows information

Non cash transactions

Unrealised gain on changes in value of investments 57467 1404 53897 22920

The accompanying notes form an integral part
of the interim financial statements



ITALIAN THAI DEVELOPMENT PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 MARCH 2009 AND 2008 Unaudited but reviewed

With comparative information as at 31 December 2008 audited

GENERAL INFORMATION

1.1 Corporate information

Italian Thai Development Public Company Limited the Company is incorporated and domiciled in

Thailand The Company is principally engaged in the construction business The Company has overseas

branches and
project

offices
totaling places Its registered

office address is 2034/132-161

New Petchburi Road Kwaeng Bangkapi Khet Huaykwang Bangkok

1.2 Significant event

The world economy was worsen from the financial crisis since the latest of financial
reporting and has

affected all business enterprises and the Company The Company has prepared these financial statements

on the information currently known and on estimates and assumptions currently considered appropriate by

management These financial statements therefore could be adversely affected by uncertainties of future

events

The Companys objective and policies for managing capital credit risk and liquidity risk is disclosed in its

financial statement for the
year

ended 31 December 2008 As at 31 March 2009 the Company has sufficient

capital and liquidity to run its
operations

1.3 Basis for the preparation of interim financial statements

These interim financial statements are prepared in accordance with Accounting Standards Pronouncement

No 41 amended 2007 Interim financial reporting whereby the Company chooses to present
its interim

financial statements in the condensed form However additional line items are presented in the balance

sheets and the statements of income changes in shareholders equity and cash flows in the same manner as

the annual financial statements

The interim financial statements are intended to provide information in addition to those included in the

latest annual financial statements Accordingly they focus on new activities events and circumstances to

avoid repetition of information previously reported These interim financial statements should therefore be

read in
conjunction with the latest annual financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008

The interim financial statements are officially prepared in Thai language The translation of the interim

financial statements to other language must be in compliance with such official financial
report

in Thai



1.4 Basis of consolidation

The interim consolidated financial statements are prepared with the same basis as that applied for the

consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008 with no changes in the

shareholding structure of the subsidiaries and
joint ventures during

the current period except for the

following matter

On March 2009 the Company Nawarat Patanakarn Plc Aheadall Co Ltd and Quest Energy

L.L.C entered into Joint Venture agreement on behalf of QINA Contracting L.L.C to be engaged

in the construction business in UAE The Companys portion
in the Joint Venture is 24%

The consolidated financial statements for the three-month period ended 31 March 2009 include the

financial statements of investments in associated companies accounted for by equity
method with assets

comprising O.59% of consolidated assets Those financial statements were based on financial information

complied by the management of such associated companies which have not been reviewed by auditors

because the associated companies are not under the control of the Companys management However such

financial statements do not have significant effect to the consolidated financial statements Nevertheless

the financial statements of such companies as at 31 December 2008 have already been audited with

insignificant differences from the management prepared financial information

The consolidated financial statements as at 31 March 2009 and 31 December 2008 and for the three-month

periods
ended 31 March 2009 included the

proportion
of the assets liabilities revenues and

expenses
of the

Joint Venture the balances of which are as follows

Unit Thousand Baht

Consolidated

31 March 2009 31 December 2008

Current assets 7131338 7792376

Non-current assets 863754 971926

Current liabilities 6383263 7150474

Non-current liabilities 253815 40731

Unit Thousand Baht

For the three-month periods ended

31 March

2009 2008

Revenues 2631900 2235328

Expenses 2679191 2188437

10



1.5 Summary of significant accounting policies

The interim financial statements are prepared
with the same accounting policies and methods oi

computation as were used for the financial statements for the
year

ended 31 December 2008 except for

the application of accounting standards which had been amended
during 2008 and announced by the

Federation of Accounting Professions which are effective for the
accounting periods beginning on or after

January 2009 The Companys management has assessed the effect of those amended accounting

standards and believes that they do not significantly impact the Company for the initial application of such

standards

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Unit Thousand Baht

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December

2009 2008 2009 2008

Cash and deposits with banks 2095351 2397482 707639 975020

Government bonds 1390000 1649734 1390000 1649734

Total 3485351 4047216 2097639 2624754

Less Deposits with maturity of

More than months 29075 39707 27992 39690

Cash and cash
equivalents net 3456276 4007509 2069647 2585064

As at 31 March 2009 and as at 31 December 2008 the Company has temporary investments in government

bonds and bill of exchange of approximately Baht 1390.00 million and 1649.73 million for period of 30 days

and 15 days respectively
These bears interest at the rate of 1.15 percent per annum and 2.10-2.18 percent per

annum respectively

RESTRICTED DEPOSITS WITH BANKS

As at 31 March 2009 saving and fixed deposits of the Company and its subsidiaries totaling approximately Baht

42.10 million 31 December 2008 Baht 43.67 million have been pledged with banks as collaterals for loans

obtained by the Company to finance specific projects and saving deposits of approximately Baht 350.79 million

31 December 2008 Baht 365.92 million have been pledged with the bank as collaterals for standby letters of

credit Fixed deposits amounting to Baht 96.03 million 31 December 2008 3aht 97.70 million have been

pledged as required in the normal course of business of Company subsidiaries joint ventures and the overseas

branches These restricted deposits with banks are mostly turned over within one year

11



TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE UNRELATED PARTIES

The aging of outstanding trade accounts receivable balances as at 31 March 2009 and 31 December 2008 are as

follows

Unit Thousand Baht

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December

Outstanding Ages 2009 2008 2009 2008

Less than months 6093741 6011096 3547547 3168890

months 854821 952273 139816 201971

12 months 332897 357759 8761 10966

More than 12 months 1653911 1706492 589627 641964

Total 8935370 9027620 4285751 4023791

Less Allowance for doubtful accounts 541378 542901 486910 486946

Net 8393992 8484719 3798841 3536845

The Company has set up full allowance for doubtful accounts for the major private accounts receivable that

have been overdued for more than 12 months and at 50 percent for those accounts overdued for more than

months Trade accounts receivable as at 31 March 2009 and 31 December 2008 include variation claims of

Baht 275.25 million and l3aht 302.61 million respectively recognized in the earlier
years

which has been

disputed by the customer Of these claims the arbitrator had issued verdict in favour of the subsidiary

company of Baht 112.23 million and Baht 117.22 million respectively However the total amount has still been

disputed by the customer Trade accounts receivable of such subsidiary company as at 31 March 2009 and 31

December 2008 also include Baht 234.44 miiiion and Baht 244.87 million respectively billed for interim work

done which have not been certified by customers beyond normal periods of certification Considering the nature

of the subsidiary companys businesses the management is unable to determine the
age

of such bills

Management however believe that such receivable can be collected in full and therefore has not set up any

allowance for possible losses

12



TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE RELATED PARTIES

The
outstanding balances as at 31 March 2009 and 31 December 2008 are as follows

Unit Thousand Baht

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures

eliminated from consolidated financial statements

ITO Joint Venture

JOT Joint Venture

Asian Steel Products Co Ltd

Thai Pride Cement Co Ltd

lTD NCC Joint Venture NT-2

IT VIS Joint Venture

lTD NCC Joint Venture

PT Thailindo Bara Pratama

Italian Thai International Co Ltd

IN Joint Venture

Italthai Marine Co Ltd

Bhaka Bhumi Development Co Ltd

IDS Joint Venture

Siam Concrete and Brick Products Co Ltd

IT-Nawarat L.L.C

Aquathai Co Ltd

Nha Pralan Crushing Plant Co Ltd

Italthai Trevi Co Ltd

Italian-Thai Land Co Ltd

Italian-Thai Power Co Ltd

Saraburi Construction Technology Co Ltd

lTD-lTD CEM JV

lTD-SQ Joint Venture

Others

Total

Less Allowance for doubtful accounts

Net

31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December

2009 2008 2009 2008

219808

67892

559

6799

1084489

4972

36 36

219808

67251

701

21895

1148729

1364

383444

33095

30914

1473

51928

3088

7828

47789

1354

16233

663

8205

27770

4656

35522

15470

25962

2155178

1197391

957787

368407

31534

28713

7507

45435

3039

7105

44026

2141

14877

12616

8205

24809

2853

37085

6008

15065

2043980

1023056

1020924
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Unit Thousand Baht

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December

2009 2008 2009 2008

Associated companies

MCRP Construction Corporation Philippines 687707 687707 635836 635836

Sino Lao Aluminum Corporation Limited 21558 16839 21558 16839

Bangkok Steel Wire Co Ltd 292 395 292 395

Thai Contractors Assets Co Ltd 32204

Others 11420 18754 9575 17156

Total 753181 723695 667261 670226

Less Allowance for doubtful accounts 687707 687707 635836 635836

Net 65474 35988 31425 34390

Related companies

elated by way of common directors

Nam Thuen Power Co Ltd 216195 167962

Italthai Engineering Co Ltd 72270 78375 71157 78340

Siam Steel Syndicate Plc 13559 2207 13190 2166

Italthai Industrial Co Ltd 6177 15117 6177 13829

Ao Siam Marine Co Ltd 127974 125681 127974 125681

Amari Co Ltd 370 370 370 370

Nawarat Patanakarn Plc 4490 806 4490 806

Nishimatsu Construction Co Ltd 1020 131

Ao Po Grand Marina Co Ltd 31732 31732 31732 31732

Baan Rimnam Chaopraya Co Ltd 460 460 460 460

Asia Pacific Potash Corporation Limited 22666 22487 22666 22487

Toyo-Thai Corporation Ltd 65166 87609 65166 87609

Thai Rent All Co Ltd 696 736 336 336

Suvamnabhumi Entertainment Co Ltd 57802 57802 57802 57802

Saraburi Coal Co Ltd 32214 123 114 123

Amari Estate Co Ltd 15634 9369 11361 5895

NWR SBCC Joint Venture 67035 67035

Others 13260 10138 13220 10132

Total 748720 611105 493250 437768

Less Allowance for doubtful accounts 4745 101650 4745 101650

Net 743975 509455 488505 336118
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Unit Thousand Baht

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December

2009 2008 2009 2008

Less than months

months

612 months

More than 12 months

Total

Less Allowance for doubtful accounts

Net

657567

75131

187506

1255949

2176153

692452

1483701

522951

132654

236889

1025869

1918363

789357

1129006

538875 607427

114904 134134

126491 322255

2535419 2088158

3315689 3151974

1837972 1760542

1477717 1391432

The Company has set up allowances for doubtful accounts at the full amount of the major accounts receivable

that have been overdued for more than 12 months by evaluating risk factor for each receivable

During the period the Company has made provision for loss on non collection of trade receivable from related

parties in the separate financial statements totaling Baht 174.34 miilion since these related
parties have significant

loss from their operations and may not be able to
repay

their debts

131885

40350

131885

40735

Outstanding balances and portion of other

participants of joint ventures

ITO Joint Venture

JOT Joint Venture

ITO NCC Joint Venture

lTD NCC Joint Venture NT-2

IN Joint Venture

lTD VIS Joint Venture

ITI-Nawarat L.L.C

Others

Total

Trade accounts receivable related parties Net

The aging of outstanding balances of trade

31 December 2008 are as follows

Outstanding Ages

18 18

459492 374501

15148 14069

477 1740

19115 17611

7767 3004

674252 583563

1483701 1129006 1477717 1391432

accounts receivable related
parties as at 31 March 2009 and

CONSOLIDATED F/S

31 March 31 December

2009 2008

Unit Thousand Baht

SEPARATE F/S

31 March 31 December

2009 2008
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Total

Less Allowance for doubtful accounts

Net

Related company

elated by way of common directors

Obayashi Corporation

Sahakol Equipment Co Ltd

Total

1063612

403197

34569

67500

113259

16604

234808

5237

During the period the Company obtained the confirmation from related company to settle its debt to the

Company immediately when it can sell its asset The Company has re-assessed that company and noted that it has

enough assets to pay for its debts and does not have significant obligation with other creditors The Company

therefore reversed allowance for doubtful accounts of Baht 96.91 million in the statement of income for the

three-month period ended 31 March 2009

SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES TO SUBSIDIARIES AND RELATED PARTIES

Unit Thousand Baht

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December

2009 2008 2009 2008

Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures

eliminated from consolidated financial statements

lTD EGC Joint Venture

Bhaka Bhumi Development Co Ltd

Siam Concrete and Brick Products Co Ltd

Thai Pride Cement Co Ltd

PT Thailindo Bara Pratama

lTD Cementation India Limited

lTD NCC Joint Venture

lTD Cemindia Joint Venture

ITD-Nawarat L.L.C

lTD ITDCEMJV

Others

Total

Less Allowance for doubtful accounts

Net

Associated companies

Italian-Thai Gypsum Co Ltd

Sino Lao Aluminum Corporation Limited

1070494

368330

34569

97406

17342

811

126377

234435

5267

73 73

1938859 1955104

515850 515477

1423009 1439627

4600 4600 4600 4600

1248 1248

4600 5848 4600 5848

4600 4600 4600 4600

1248 1248

1308 1308

10000

11308 1308
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31 March 31 December

2009 2008

Associated companies

Italian-Thai Gypsum Co Ltd

Sino Lao Aluminum Corporation Limited

Total

January

2009

1070494

368330

34569

97406

17342

811

126377

234435

5267

73

738

811

126377

30

234808

5237

73

Total 1960952 118593 136086 1943459

CONSOLIDATED F/S

Unit Thousand Baht

SEPARATE F/S

31 March 31 December

2009 2008

Outstanding balances and portion of other

participants of joint ventures

IT Nawarat L.L.C

IT NCC Joint Venture

Total

Short term loans and advances to

Related parties net

93923 93774

398

93923 94172

105231 96728 1423009 1440875

Significant movements in the short-term loans and advances to

month period ended 31 March 2009 are as follows

subsidiaries and related parties for the three-

Unit Thousand Baht

During the period 31 March

Increase Decrease 2009

Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures

IT EGG Joint Venture

Bhaka Bhumi Development Co Ltd

Siam Concrete and Brick Products Co Ltd

Thai Pride Cement Co Ltd

PT Thailindo Bara Pratama

lTD Cementation India Limited

IT NCC Joint Venture

lTD Cemindia Joint Venture

ITD-NAWARAT L.L.C

lTD ITDCEMJV

Other

Total

6882 1063612

403197

34569

67500

113259

16604

34867

67500

15853

373

1955104 118593 134838 1938859

4600 4600

1248 1248

5848 1248 4600
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INVESTMENTS IN RELATED PARTIES

7.1 Investments in subsidiaries associated companies and joint ventures

Unit Thousand Baht

Percentage SEPARATE F/S

of shareholding Cost

Paid-up 31 Mar 31 Dec 31 Mar 31 Dec

Nature of business
Capital

2009 2008 2009 2008

Percent Percent

Investments in subsidiaries

Italian-Thai International Co Ltd Holding company 400000 99.99 99.99 400000 400000

Less Allowance for impairment 400000 400000

Net

Bhaka Bhumi Development Co Ltd Construction and real estate 5075 99.99 99.99 5075 5075

Thai Pride Cement Co Ltd Manufacture and distribution of cement 1300000 99.99 99.99 1585000 1585000

Sin Rae Muang Thai Co Ltd Mining business 3500000 99.99 99.99 3499999 3499999

Nha Pralan Crushing Plant Co Ltd Rock quarrying processing and distribution 1000 99.91 99.91 999 999

Less Allowance for impairment 999 999

Net

Siam Concrete and Brick Products Manufacture and distribution of concrete

Co Ltd products and real estate 84000 99.70 99.70 82296 82296

Italthai Marine Ltd Production and sale of vessels and equipment 460000 86.96 86.96 80000 80000

Italthai Trevi Co Ltd Foundation and
piling work services 55000 80.45 80.45 55689 55689

Asian Steel Product Co Ltd Manufacture and distribution of steel pipes for

civil construction 20000 69.90 69.90 7004 7004

Thai Maruken Co Ltd Lease and sale of sheet
piles

and beams 20000 50.96 50.96 10196 10196

Italian-Thai Land Co Ltd Not
yet operational 10000 99.99 99.99 50 50

Less Allowance for impairment 50 50

Net

Palang Thai Kaowna Co Ltd Not
yet operational 1000 99.94 99.94 650 650

Less Allowance for impairment 650 650

Net

Khunka Palang Thai Co Ltd Not yet operational 1000 61.48 61.48 265 265

Less Allowance for impairment 265 265

Net

Palit Palang Ngan Co Ltd Not
yet operational 1000 74.93 74.93 50 50

Less Allowance for impairment 50 50

Net

Italian Thai Power Co Ltd Production and distribution of
electricity 100000 99.99 99.99 100000 100000

Saraburi Construction Technology Manufacture distribution and installation of

Co Ltd concrete sheet 250 99.93 99.93 250 250

Asia Logistics Development Co Ltd Not
yet operational 1000 99.93 99.93 999 999

Asia Industrial and Port Corporation Not
yet operational 1000 99.93 99.93 999 999

Co Ltd
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Unit Thousand Baht

Percentage SEPARATE F/S

of shareholding Cost

Paid-up 31 Mar 31 Dec 31 Mar 31 Dec

Nature of business
Capital

2009 2008 2009 2008

Percent Percent

Overseas companies

Myanmar lTD Co Ltd Service agent for Myanmar companies 1483 99.99 99.99 1483 1483

Thousand Baht

Less Allowance for impairment 1483 1483

Net

PT Thailindo Bara Pratama Coal digestion services 25250 99.99 99.99 108071 108071

Million IDR

lTD Cementation India Ltd Construction services in India 115

Million INR 69.57 6957 2143951 2143951

Total Investments in subsidiaries net 7679529 7679529

Investment in joint ventures

ITD-Nawarat LL.C Construction services in United Arab Emirates 300000 60.00 60.00 977 977

UAE

QINA Contracting LL.C Construction services in United Arab Emirates 24.00 7116

Million UAE

Total Investment in joint ventures
8093 977
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Unit Thousand Baht

Percentage CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

of shareholding Equity Cost

Paid-up 31 Mar 31 Dec 31 Mar 31 Dec 31 Mar 31 Dec

Nature of business Capital 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Percent Percent

Investments in associated companies

Italian-Thai Gypsum Co Ltd Construction in Saudi Arabia 10500 50.00 50.00 5250 5250 5250 5250

Less Allowance for impairment 5250 5250 5250 5250

Net

ATO-Asia Tumouts Co Ltd Production and distribution

of turnouts for railway

projects 5000 49.00 49.00 21526 16955 2450 2450

Siam Pacific Holding Co Ltd Holding company 58625 46.69 46.69 27453 27453 27373 27373

Asia Steel Corporation Manufacture import and

export of steel in Philippines 20000 30.00 30.00 12301 12301 7800 7800

Less Allowance for impairment 12301 12301 7800 7800

Net

Bangkok Steel Wire Co Ltd Production and distribution

of P.C wire 313000 19.98 19.98 60787 97847 71603 71603

Praram Square Co Ltd Shopping center development 750000 20.00 20.00 200000 200000 200000 200000

Less Allowance for impairment 200000 200000 200000 200000

Net

Thai Contractors Assets Co Ltd Real estate development 375000 15.00 15.00 71987 53896 75000 56250

Overseas companies

Anamarine Construction Construction contractor in 65000 25.00 25.00 198 198 198 198

SND BHD Malaysia RM

Less Allowance for impairment 198 198 198 198

Net

MCRP Construction Corporation Construction contractor in 25 24.00 24.00 12000 12000 12000 12000

Philippines Philippines Million Peso

Less Allowance for impairment 12000 12000 12000 12000

Net

MCRP Holding Corporation Holding company in 24.00 24.00 3000 3000 3000 3000

Philippines Philippines Million Peso

Less Allowance for impairment 3000 3000 3000 3.000

Net

Sino Lao Aluminum Bauxite mine business 33.00 33.00 171623 171623 174462 174462

Corporation Limited Million USD

Total Investments in associated companies net 353376 367774 350888 332138

Total Investments in subsidiary associated companies

and
joint ventures net 353376 367774 8038510 8012644
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Unit Thousand Baht

Percentage CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

of shareholding Equity Cost

Paid-up 31 Mar 31 Dec 31 Mar 31 Dec 31 Mar 31 Dec

Nature of business Capital
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Percent Percent

Investments in associated

companies held by

Subsidiaries

Natureway Resources Co Ltd Holding company 40 30.00 30.00 296700 296700

Million USD

Less Allowance for impairment 296700 296700

Net

Siam Pacific Holding Co Ltd Holding company 58625 4.30 4.30 2525 2525

Allied Enterprise Co Ltd Holding company 1000 30.00 30.00 300 300

Total 2825 2825

Total Investments net 356201 370599

The Company and its subsidiaries
equity

interest in the above associated companies are generally determined

based on the financial statements compiled by the management of those companies and not yet
audited by

those companies auditors However the Companys management believes that there are no significant

adjustments to be made to the consolidated financial statements

The Company regularly assesses the values of investments in each subsidiary/associated company and joint

venture The allowance for impairment is promptly taken up when there is reliable indication that the decline

in value is quite certain
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7.2 Other long term investments

Unit Thousand Baht

Percentage of CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

shareholding Cost Cost

31 Mar 31 Dec 31 Mar 31 Dec 31 Mar 31 Dec

Nature of business 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Percent Percent

Investments in other companies

Non-listed companies

Toyo-Thai Corporation Ltd Construction contractor 16.25 16.25 52000 52000 52000 52000

Nam Theun Power Co Ltd Hydroelectric power plant 15.00 15.00 1090471 975117 1090471 975117

M-Home SPV Co Ltd Real estate development 11.54 11.54 12 12 12 12

Less Allowance for impairment 12 12 12 12

Net

Siam Steel Syndicate Plc Manufacture and distribution

for construction 5.45 5.45 55885 55885 55885 55885

Siam Fiber Optics Co Ltd Manufacture and distribution

of
optic

fibers 10.00 10.00 24000 24000 24000 24000

Medical Device Manufacturer Manufacture and distribution

Thailand Limited of medical products 6.95 6.95 50069 50069 50069 50069

Less Allowance for impairment 50069 50069 50069 50069

Net

Bell Development Co Ltd Real estate development 3.51 3.51 47313 47313 47313 47313

Less Allowance for impairment 47313 47313 47313 47313

Net

The Bangkok Club Co Ltd Entertainment services 0.44 0.44 3000 3000 3000 3000

Less Allowance for impairment 1985 1985 1985 1985

Net 1015 1015 1015 1015

Imperial Technology Management Initiation and establishment of

Service Plc Asian University of Science

and Technology 19.83 19.83 175000 175000 175000 175000

Less Allowance for impairment 84515 84515 84515 84515

Net 90485 90485 90485 90485

Thai Rent All Co Ltd Construction machinery Rental 15.00 15.00 7500 7500 7500 7500

Lao Metal Industry Co Ltd Manufacture steel wires and

steel rod 10.00 10.00 10000 10000 10000 10000

Total Investment in other non listed

companies net 1331356 1216002 1331356 1216002
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Unit Thousand Baht

Percentage of CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

Shareholding Cost Cost

31 Mar 31 Dec 31 Mar 31 Dec 31 Mar 31 Dec

Nature of business 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Percent Percent

Listed companies

Charoong Thai Wire and Cable Plc Manufacture and distribution of

enamel coated wire and cable 12.90 12.90 308715 308715 308715 308715

Add Unrealized loss from changes in value

of investments 174238 116752 174238 116752

Net market value 134477 191963 134477 191963

Cyber Bay Corporation Philippines Real estate development 14.25 14.25 195566 195566 59395 59395

Add Unrealized
gain loss from changes

in value of investments 62866 69221 73305 66950

Net market value 132700 126345 132700 126345

K.C Property Plc Real estate development 1.04 1.04 9139 9139 9139 9139

Add Unrealized loss from changes in value

of investments 4295 2559 4295 2559

Net market value 4844 6580 4844 6580

Nawarat Patanakam Plc Construction services 4.05 4.05 100716 100716 100716 100716

Less Unrealized loss from changes in value

of investments 79566 78558 79566 78558

Netmarketvalue 21150 22158 21150 22158

Everland Plc Real estate development 0.05 0.05 111 111 111 111

Add Unrealized loss from changes in value

of investments 21 21

Net market value 90 111 90 111

Total Investment in other listed

companies net 293261 347157 293261 347157

Total Investments in other

companies net 1624617 1563159 1624617 1563159

Investments held by subsidiaries

Non-listed companies

Premus Thailand Co Ltd Real estate management 10.00 10.00 1250 1250

Bell Development Co Ltd Real estate management 13.00 13.00 135226 135226

Less Allowance for impairment 135226 135226

Net

Listed companies

Charoorig Thai Wire and Cable Plc Manufacture and distribution of

enamel coated wire and cable 0.80 0.80 19178 19178

Add Unrealized loss from changes in

value of investments 10824 7252

Net market value 8354 11926

Total 9604 13176

Total Investments in other companies net 1634221 1576335 1624617 1563159
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During the period the Company paid addition share capital in Nam Theun Power Co Ltd amount

USD 3.26 miilion which equivalent to Baht 115.35 million

The Company has pledged the shares of related company to secure the long term loan with Financial

Institutions of related company

INVESTMENT IN POTASH MINING PROJECT

The Company has investment in potash mine project of Baht 3236 million that the
request

for concession for

potash mining from government is being processed Currently the Minister of Industry had
agreed to set up the

committee consisting of representative from Ministry of Industry Ministry of Interior Ministry
of Natural

Resources and Environment Ministry of Public Health and Ministry of Social Development and Human

Security to consider the
process to resolve the potash mining operations in Udonthani to make the project

materialized The Companys management believes that this project will
generate

benefits both for
nearby areas

and for the country and the project will be approved by the government and
operational as planned

since the

Ministry of Finance has jointly invested in this
project

for 10% of the total registered capital
The management

of the Company believes that there will not be any impairment in the value of investment

LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES TO SUBSIDIARIES AND RELATED PARTIES

The outstanding balances as at 31 March 2009 and 31 December 2008 are as follows

Unit Thousand Baht

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December

2009 2008 2009 2008

Subsidiaries and joint Ventures

eliminated from consolidated financial statements

ITO
Joint Venture 528400 528400

lTD NCC Joint Venture 18360

Italian-Thai International Co Ltd 246081 245380

IDS Joint Venture 220500 220500

IN Joint Venture 158331 156291

The Joint Venture of Italian-Thai Development

Plc together with Alcatel Contracting GmbH 105000 105000

lTD NCC Joint Venture NT-2 198000 198000

Nha Pralan Crushing Plant Co Ltd 11900 12100

Italian-Thai Land Co Ltd 555044 554358

Palang Thai Kaowna Co Ltd 456350 456350

K.hunka Palang
Thai Co Ltd 59066 59066

Palit Palang Ngan Co Ltd 94456 94456
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CONSOLIDATED F/S

Unit Thousand Baht

SEPARATE F/S

Associated companies

Related companies

Central Bay Reclamation and Development Corp

Asia Pacific Potash Corporation Limited

Total

Less Allowance for doubtful accounts

Net

Total long term loans and advances to related

Companies net

96816 34462

116100 116100

212916 150562

230164 211822

265925 247583

35761 35761

230164 211822

443080 362384 1338666 1266234

Significant movements in the long term loans and advances to subsidiaries and related parties for the three-

month period ended 31 March 2009 are as follows

The Joint Venture of Italian-Thai Development

Plc together with Alcatel Contracting GmbH

lTD NCC Joint Venture NT-2

Unit Thousand Baht

31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December

2009 2008 2009 2008

Italian-Thai Power Co Ltd 232678 220680

Sin Rae Muang Thai Co Ltd 35991 21391

Others 9792 9792

Total 2911589 2900124

Less Allowance for doubtful accounts 1669739 1668352

Net 1241850 1231772

Sino Lao Aluminum Corporation Limited

Allied Enterprise Co Ltd

Total

96816 34462

96816 34462

35761 35761

January During the period

Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures

ITO Joint Venture

ITD-NCC Joint Venture

Italian-Thai International Co Ltd

IDS Joint Venture

IN Joint Venture

31 March

2009 Increase Decrease 2009

528400 528400

18360 18360

245380 701 246081

220500 220500

156291 2040 158331

105000 105000

198000 198000
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January

2009

Unit Thousand Baht

During the period 31 March

Increase Decrease 2009

Nha Pralan Crushing Plant Co Ltd

Italian-Thai Land Co Ltd

Palang Thai Kaowna Co Ltd

Khunka Palang Thai Co Ltd

Palit Palang Ngan Co Ltd

Italian-Thai Power Co Ltd

Sin Rae Muang Thai Co Ltd

Others

Total

12100

554358

456350

59066

94456

220680

21391

9792

2900124

200 11900

555044

456350

59066

94456

232678

35991

9792

18560 2911589

Associated company

10 LOAN AND ADVANCES TO UNRELATED PARTIES

62354 96816

92379 18560 3008405

As at 31 March 2009 the Company also has advanced cash of Baht 88.61 million for the investment in local

company which is under the negotiation process Currently there has been no further development in the

project
because the Electricity Generating Authority of Thailand is in the process of concluding

the development

plan for the capacity of Power plant Such cash advances are to support
the

acquisition
of the concession license

from the Government of Cambodia to develop 3600 mega watt Coal-Fired Power Plant at Koh Kong

The Government of Cambodia is currently allowing
three companies comprising Koh Kong Power Light Co

Ltd Cambodia International Investment Group and Gulf JP to develop the power plant If any one of the three

companies can conclude the negotiation with the Electricity Generating Authority of Thailand and Ministry of

Energy it will be awarded the right to generate
the Power Plant For the time being Koh Kong Power Light

Co Ltd is the most prospective winner for this project Should the Company not win the selection process the

Company will write off the cash advance referred to above to expense immediately

The subsidiary company entered into agreement with broker in Cambodia to perform contact and negotiate

with Government of Cambodia to obtain the license and permission for the development of 3600 Megawatts

Coal-fired Power Plant in Koh Kong Province The subsidiary company shall pay USD 20.00 million with

installments as described in the agreement and shall provide 5.00 o/ of free shares for this project to broker As

at 31 March 2009 the subsidiary company has paid cash to such broker totaling Baht 227.56 million Such cash

advance is considered as part of the acquisition costs of concession to operate power plant in Cambodia

686

11998

14600

30025

Sino Lao Aluminum Corporation Limited 34462

Total 2934586
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11 PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the three-month period ended 31 March 2009 the Company and subsidiary companies have following

movements in property plant and equipment

Unit Thousand Baht

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

Net book value at iJanuary 2009 15513511 9971897

Purchases of fixed assets transfer in 451972 115522

Disposal of fixed assets transfer out 123375 99865

Depreciation for the period 585707 339011

Accumulate depreciation for disposal of fixed assets 87561 72999

Translation adjustment 109795 21444

Net book value at 31 March 2009 15234167 9700098

12 BANK OVERDRAFTS AND SHORT TERM LOANS FROM FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

The outstanding balances of bank overdrafts and short term loans from financial institutions as at 31 March

2009 and 31 December 2008 are as follows

Unit Thousand Baht

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December

2009 2008 2009 2008

Bank overdrafts 2401057 2274344 67342 62787

Short term loans from financial institutions 5608610 5078961 3136118 2979377

Total 8009667 7353305 3203460 3042164

These represent loans obtained from local and overseas financial institutions in both Baht currency and foreign

currencies as follows

Unit Million

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December

2009 2008 2009 2008

Baht 4111 3845 2565 2396

PHP 126 141 126 141

USD 14

NTh 455 455 455 455

INR 3332 493
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These loans are subject to interest at domestic market rate for Baht
currency

loans and at the rates based on

market rate of India Taiwan Philippines and SIBOR for foreign currency loans

As at 31 March 2009 part of loans amounting to Baht 2162.94 million 31 December 2008 Baht 2073.66

million are used to finance certain specific projects project finance The banks require the Company to assign

or transfer the proceeds from the projects into the Companys accounts with those banks

As at 31 March 2009 and 31 December 2008 overdraft and short term credit facilities of the Company have not

yet been drawn down amounting to Baht 468.29 million and Baht 1517.12 million respectively

13 TRADE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE RELATED PARTIES

The outstanding balances as at 31 March 2009 and 31 December 2008 are as follows

1005

140887

15861

80892

10940

26413

82994

4973

43594

69866

38970

7338

893

57618

417

3956

4913

591530

3589

140887

5670

93690

10762

57460

58721

6633

124663

95894

29713

2619

1809

72224

3984

7235

8029

723582

CONSOLIDATEL F/S

31 March 31 December

2009 2008

Unit Thousand Baht

SEPARATE F/S

31 March 31 December

2009 2008

Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures

eliminated from consolidated financial statements

JOT Joint Venture

J.C.C.T Joint Venture

IN Joint Venture

Thai Maruken Co Ltd

ITO Joint Venture

Italthai Trevi Co Ltd

Siam Concrete and Brick Products Co Ltd

lTD VIS Joint Venture

lTD Cementation India Limited

lTD-ITO CEM JV

Asian Steel Product Co Ltd

Thai Pride Cement Co Ltd

Nha Pralan Crushing Plant Co Ltd

Aquathai Co Ltd

Italthai Marine Co Ltd

Saraburi Construction Co Ltd

Others

Total
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Unit Thousand Baht

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December

2009 2008 2009 2008

Associated companies

MCRP Construction Corporation Philippines 79890 79995 79890 79995

Bangkok Steel Wire Co Ltd 43957 58896 16626 22352

ATO-Asia Turnouts Ltd 31977 44033 30881 41996

Total 155824 182924 127397 144343

Related companies

elated by way of common directors

Takenaka Corporation 219627 234214

Obayashi Corporation 82659 90841

Italthai Industrial Co Ltd 219084 127986 84582 69600

Siam Steel Syndicate Plc 127756 123111 127756 123111

Nishimatsu Construction Co Ltd 307635 298423

Italthai Engineering Co Ltd 186927 228173 183677 224241

Charoong Thai Wire Cable Plc 107454 90812 105873 89813

Nawarat Patanakarn Plc 93987 90255 80773 77983

Toyo-Thai Corporation Ltd 1807 2846 1807 2846

Thai Rent All Co Ltd 42041 39188 41698 38891

Amarine Estate Co Ltd 21811 24720 21811 24720

Siam Fiber Optics Co Ltd 18256 15775 18256 15775

Others 3948 9196 1160 5450

Total 1432992 1375540 667393 672430

Outstanding balances and portion of

other participants in joint ventures

JOT Joint Venture 603 2153

I.C.C.T.Joint Venture 105665 105665

ITO Joint Venture 6564 6457

lTD VIS Joint Venture 1741 2321

IN joint Venture 7772 2778

Others 619 618

Total 122964 119992

Total 1711780 1678456 1386320 1540355

29



14 SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES FROM RELATED PARTIES

The outstanding balances as at 31 March 2009 and 31 December 2008 are as follows

Unit Thousand Baht

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December

2009 2008 2009 2008

Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures

eliminated from consolidated financial statements

lTD Cementation India Limited 967

ITD-ITDCEMJV 1087

Total 2054

Associated company

Thai Contractors Asset Co Ltd 7675 9964

Total 7675 9964

Related companies

Nam Theun Power Co Ltd 38315 54855

Nawarat Patanakarn Plc 67458 68138

Others 167 673

Total 105940 123666

Short term loans and advances from

related parties
113615 133630 2054

Significant movements in the short term loans and advances from related parties for the three-month period

ended 31 March 2009 are as follows

Unit Thousand Baht

January During the period 31 March

2009 Increase Decrease 2009

Associated company

Thai Contractors Asset Co Ltd 9964 2289 7675

Total 9964 2289 7675
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Related companies

Nam Theun Power Co Ltd

Nawarat Patanakarn Plc

Others

Total

Net

Unit Thousand Baht

January During the period 31 March

2009 Increase Decrease 2009

54855

68138

16540

680

673 506

123666 17726

133630 20015

15 LONG TERM LOANS

As at 31 March 2009 and 31 December 2008 the Company and its subsidiaries have outstanding long term

loans as follows

Unit Thousand Baht

SEPARATE F/S

31 March 31 December

2009 2008

Outstanding balance at 31 March 2009

Less Current
portion

Net

6479440

2115463

4363977

6983073

2282580

4700493

5098194

1619428

3478766

5382398

1546760

3835638

Movements in the long-term loans during the three-month period ended 31 March 2009 are summarized below

CONSOLIDATED F/S

Unit Thousand Baht

SEPARATE F/S

Balance as at January 2009

Add Additional borrowings

Less Repayment

Less Translation adjustment

Balance as at 31 March 2009

6983073

61347

516149

48831

6479440

5382398

54547

311200

27551

5098194

38315

67458

167

105940

113615

CONSOLIDATED F/S

31 March 31 December

2009 2008

The Company entered into loan agreement with foreign bank for purchase of machineries amounting to EUR

14.10 million for which EUR 1.18 million or equivalent to Baht 54.55 million has been drawndown This loan

bears interest per annum at EURIBOR
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The Company and subsidiaries have registered the mortgages of
part

of their land and construction thereon with

net carrying value as at 31 March 2009 of Baht 845.61 million 31 December 2008 Baht 862.39 million and

the deeds of hypothecation of certain machinery located overseas as collaterals for loans

The loans of the Company and its subsidiaries bear interest at the rate of minimum loan rate MLR

In addition the loan agreement contains covenants relating to various matters such as the payment of dividend

and limitations on the provision of loans

As at 31 March 2009 and 31 December 2008 the long-term credit facilities of the Company have not yet been

drawndown amounting to Baht 792.08 million and Baht 904.75 million respectively

As at 31 March 2009 the Company was unable to maintain some financial ratio as stipulated in the loan

agreement However management believes that the Company will receive the consent from bank to relieve the

maintenance of such financial ratio

16 DEBENTURES NET

The movement of debentures during the three-month period ended 31 March 2009 in the consolidated and

separate financial statements is as follows

Thousand Baht

Balance at January 2009 2697352

Amortization of costs of issuing debentures 1513

Current
portIon 706139

Balance at 31 March 2009 1992726

17 CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES NET

The movement of convertible bonds during the three-month period ended 31 March 2009 in the consolidated

and separate financial statements is as follows

Thousand Baht

Balance at January 2009 4830231

Amortization of costs of issuing convertible debentures 4886

Unrealised losses on exchange rates 565

Balance at 31 March 2009 4834552

No potential dilution in
earnings per share arose from the convertible debentures because the

average
share

price during this year was lower than the exercise price
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The Company entered into various hedge agreements to hedge foreign currency
and interest rate risks

The Company presented part of accrued interest for convertible bond to be paid to the debentureholders when

they exercise the right to convert to common shares separately

18 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the period the Company and its subsidiaries had significant business transactions with related
parties

which have been concluded on commercial terms and bases agreed upon in the ordinary course of businesses

between the Company and those companies as follow

Transfer pricing policy

Turn-key construction service income Cost
plus margin

Construction service income not including the procurements of materials Cost or cost plus margin

Land rental income
Mutually agreed

Sales of equipment Cost or mutually agreed

Sales of investment Market
price

Purchases of construction materials Approximate market price

Turn-key construction expenses Cost plus margin

Hire of construction services not including procurements of materials Cost

Purchases of investment Approximate net book value

Interest on loans Mutually agreed rate

Below is summary of significant related
party

transactions during the period

Unit Million Baht

CONSOLIDATED SEPARATE F/S

For the three-month periods ended 31 March

2009 2008 2009 2008

Transactions with subsidiaries and joint ventures

Construction services sales income and other income 390 577

Sales of equipment 31

Purchases of construction materials and services 182 252

Transactions with associated companies

Construction services sales income and other income 35 32 20 32

Purchases of construction materials and services 15 46 13 22

Transactions with related companies

Construction services sales income and other income 502 1009 132 229

Sales of equipment

Purchases of construction materials and services 342 259 269 157

Purchases of equipment 16 15
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During the period subsidiary company diversified its business by providing specialist to assist related

company to do mine development Such subsidiary company received fee of Baht 30.00 million for the first

time

Furthermore the Company also has significant transactions with its related parties in respect of loans and

advances

The outstanding balances of the above transactions are presented as separate items in the balance sheet

Loans from directors

As at 31 March 2009 an indirect subsidiary company have loans from directors amounting to Baht 164.19

million 31 December 2008 Baht 159.23 miliion which amount of Baht 17.31 million 31 December 2008

Baht 11.51 million bears interest at the rate of MLR
per annum

19 EXPENSES BY NATURE

Significant expenses by nature are as follows

Unit Thousand Baht

CONSOLIDATED SEPARATE F/S

For the three-month periods ended 31 March

2009 2008 2009 2008

Salary wages and other employee benefits 1697317 1642710 1221534 1190119

Depreciation 585707 503831 339011 323262

Amortisation 13450 9295 10743 6570

Rental expenses 217191 282410 140433 129013

Raw materials and supply used 4053087 4464168 2491354 2888402

20 GUARANTEES

As at 31 March 2009 and 31 December 2008 the Company has outstanding guarantees
of approximately Baht

24854.75 million and Baht 28799.47 million respectively issued by financial institutions on behalf of the

Company its subsidiaries and its joint ventures in
respect

of certain performance bonds required in the normal

course of businesses The Company does not expect to have loss from these guarantees
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As at 31 March 2009 and 31 December 2008 the Company had outstanding guarantees
of approximately Baht

8668.77 million and Baht 8670.30 million respectively issued to financial institutions and its ventures to

collateralize credit facilities granted by those financial institutions and joint venture partners to subsidiaries

associated related companies and joint ventures The Company issued
guarantees

in
proportion to its

shareholding except for Italthai Trevi Co Ltd Italthai Marine Co Ltd Aquathai Co Ltd Sarithorn Co Ltd

Asian Steel Product Co Ltd and lTD Cementation India Limited for which the Company issued full

guarantees
for the credit facilities The Company does not expect to have loss from these guarantees

21 COMMITMENT

21.1 Under the facility agreement between the Company and the SPV the Company is obliged to extend loans

to the SPV for amounts equal to the principal and interest which have to be paid to the creditors As at 31

March 2009 the outstanding balance of loans amounted to Baht 927.73 million

21.2 As at 31 March 2009 the Company and joint ventures had the outstanding commitments with major

subcontractors classified by currencies as follows

Unit Million Baht

Baht equivalent

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

Currency

Baht 3544 3330

NTD 2443 2443

USD 141

INR 1699 1699

21.3 As at 31 March 2009 the Company its subsidiaries and its joint ventures had the following outstanding

commitments proportionately of the Company in respect of purchases of materials machinery and

software and related services

Unit Million Baht

Baht equivalent

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

Currency

Baht 390 275

EUR 7958 101

USD 3713 29

INR 246 10

SEK 293

NOK 56

NTD
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21.4 As at 31 March 2009 the Company had outstanding commitment of USD 45.54 million in
respect

of

uncallable portion of investments in associated company and two related companies and uncallable

portion of investments in subsidiary company of Baht 0.75 million

22 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the year 1997 the Company and seven other parties were jointly sued for compensation totaling

approximately
Baht 655.00 million On 30 December 2005 the Court of First Instance ordered the

defendant to pay of damages amounting to Baht 440.00 million plus interest at the rate of 7.50
percent per

annum from 11 June 1992 to the payment date On 17 March 2006 the Company submitted an appeal and

petition to stay
execution to the order of the Court Chonburi Province Copies of the appeal and the

petition
have been considered to the

plaintiff Currently the outcome of the case has not
yet

been known

The Company believes that there will be no damage from such case The Company therefore has not set up

any provision in its accounts

On March 2003 court case was brought against subsidiary company claiming for compensation

totaling approximately
Baht 126.00 million for alleged negligence in driving sheet piles on top of pipelines

belonging to third
party company resulting

in damage to its property On 22 September 2006 the Court

of First Instance ordered the subsidiary to pay damages amounting to Baht 92.00 million
together with court

fees On 20 December 2006 the subsidiary submitted an appeal and petition to
stay

execution of the order

to the Civil Court Copies of the
appeal and the petition have been considered to the plaintiff So far the

outcome of the case has not yet
been known However the management of subsidiary company assessed

the situation and feel that it is high chance for the subsidiary to be
responsible

for such claims for damage

The subsidiary company therefore set up full allowance for damage in its accounts

Since the
year 2000 certain customers of the Company have taken legal actions against the Company

subsidiary company and
joint venture for breach of service agreements claiming compensation totaling

approximately Baht 353.52 million The cases are currently pending for judgment from the Civil Courts

amount of Baht 219.04 million and pending for the adjustment of arbitrator amount of Baht 134.48 million

Management is of the opinion that such lawsuits are normal
part

of business and some are brought

without proper justification grounds and believes that no material liabilities will be incurred as result of the

lawsuits discussed above Therefore the Company has not set provision for those in the accounts

23 FINANCIAL INFORMATION BY SEGMENT

The
operations

of the Company its subsidiaries and its joint ventures for the three-month periods ended 31

March 2009 and 2008 are mainly engaged in
single industry segment turn key construction services and are

conducted in the following geographical segments
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Unit Million Baht

Consolidated

For the three-month periods ended 31 March 2009 and 2008

Local Overseas Total Elimination Grand total

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Revenues from

construction services

5879 6018 4968 5267 10847 11285 386 305 10461 10980

Revenues from

sales and services
469 642 469 642 136 198 333 444

Gross profit 501 528 42 255 543 783 543 783

Interest income 39 23

Gain on exchange rate 52

Other income 236 99

Selling expenses 11

Administrative expenses 291 460

Director and executive compensation 15 15

Loss on exchange rate 68

Reversal of allowance allowance for doubtful accounts 83 10

Allowance for impairment and contingent liabilities

Share of profit loss from investments accounted for by equity method 33

Financial expenses 522 320

Income tax 70 23

Minority interests 37

Net income for the period 67

Unit Million Baht

As at 31 March 2009 and 31 December 2008

Local Overseas Total Elimination Grand total

31 Mar 31 Dec 31 Mar 31 Dec 31 Mar 31 Dec 31 Mar 31 Dec 31 Mar 31 Dec

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Property plant and

equipment net 12043 12295 3191 3219 15234 15514 15234 15514

Other assets 36151 36278 14438 15401 50589 51679 9817 9963 40772 41716

Total assets 48194 48573 17629 18620 65823 67193 9817 9963 56006 57230

24 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Foreign currency risk

The Company has exposure to foreign currency risk from trading transactions and borrowings that are

denominated in foreign currencies The Company seeks to reduce this risk by entering
into forward exchange

contracts when it considers appropriate Generally the forward contracts mature within one year
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The balances of financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at 31 March 2009 are

summarized below

Financial Financial Average exchange rate

Foreign currency assets liabilities as at 31 March 2009

Million Million Baht per foreign currency unit

USD 25 150 35.5270

JPY 141 498 0.3624

EUR 14 47.0201

VND 1338 7810 0.0020

INR 14 0.6928

Forward exchange contracts which remain outstanding on 31 March 2009 are summarized below

Currency Balance Million Forward contract exchange rate

JPY buy 136 0.3713

EURbuy 12 46.817548.4400

GBP buy 49.8400 61.6200

NOK buy 5.7850 5.8485

SEKbuy 16 3.99005.0245

USD sell 75 31.532235.7550

Below is the summary of the Groups foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2009

which were unhedged

CONSOLIDATED F/S Net

EUR US JPY VND INR NOK

Million Million Million Million Million Million

Assets in foreign currency
25 274 1338 14

Trade accounts payable 25 863 21

Hire purchase payables 498

Advances received from customers under

construction contracts 7789

Loans from financial institutions 14
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SEPARATE F/S Net

EUR USD JPY VND INR

Million Million Million Million Million

Assets in foreign currency
25 141 1338 14

Trade accounts payable
21

Hire purchase payables
498

Advances received from customers under

construction contracts 7789

Loans from financial institutions 14

In addition the Company and subsidiaries have foreign currency exposure risk with respect to their

investments in subsidiaries joint ventures and associated companies in overseas which are not covered by the

hedges against foreign currency
risk

25 OTHERS

On 14 February 2007 the Company and joint venture received letter from the NAEC to give the full

cooperation with the investigation
committee to investigate the cracks on the runways and taxiways at

Suvarnabhumi Airport which the Company and the joint venture participated in the construction and

installation of equipment So far the Company and the joint venture have not received any
accusation for

the damages The Companys management believes that the cracks on the runways and taxiways are not the

fault from the poor performance of the construction undertaken by the Joint Ventures

subsidiary company obtained the notice to change an electric cable in accordance with agreement with

Government Enterprise but the Company management does not expect to incur the significant loss

26 SUBSEQUENT EVENT

In April and May 2009 Nam Thuen Power Co Ltd called for addition paid-up
share capital totalling USD

1.45 niillion and USD 4.29 million respectively

27 RECLASSIFICATION

Certain amounts in the interim financial statements for the three-month period ended 31 March 2008 presented

for comparative purpose were reclassified to conform with interim financial statements for the three-month

period ended 31 March 2009 presentation

28 APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements were authorized by the Companys authorized director on 15 May 2009
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To the Shareholders of Italian-Thai Development Public Company Limited

have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2008 and 2007 of Italian-Thai

Development Public Company Limited and subsidiaries and the related consolidated statements of income

consolidated statements of changes in shareholders equity and cash flows for the years
then ended have also

audited of the separate balance sheet as at 31 December 2008 and 2007 of Italian-Thai Development Public

Company Limited and the related separate statements of income changes in shareholders equity
and cash flows for

the years then ended These financial statements are the responsibility of the Companys management as to their

correctness and completeness
of the presentation My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial

statements based on my audits did not audit the financial statements of two overseas project offices two overseas

branches two overseas subsidiaries and six overseas joint ventures with total assets as at 31 December 2008 and

2007 of Baht 16516 million and Baht 14897 million respectively and total revenues for the
years

ended 31

December 2008 and 2007 of Baht 16926 million and Baht 12835 million respectively Such total assets and

revenues as included in the consolidated financial statements were based on financial statements audited by other

auditors whose reports have been furnished to me The two overseas project offices and two overseas branches

financial statements with total assets as at 31 December 2008 and 2007 of Baht 1843 million and Baht 1528 million

respectively and total revenues for the
years

ended 31 December 2008 and 2007 of Baht 2099 million and Baht 390

million respectively as included in the separate financial statements of Italian Thai Development Public Company

Limited were audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to me My report in so far as it relates to

those overseas branches subsidiaries and joint ventures are based on the reports of those other auditors

Except for the matters discussed in the third fourth and fifth paragraphs conducted my audits in accordance with

generally accepted auditing standards Those standards require that plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes

examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit

also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as

evaluating the overall financial statement presentation believe that my audits together with the reports of the

other auditors as discussed in the first paragraph provide reasonable basis for my opinion

Certified Public Accountants and International Business Consultants

Member of Grant Thornton International Ltd

Grant Thornton International is not worldwide partnership

Member firms of the international organizations are independently owned and operated
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The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008 include unbilled receivables of Joint

Venture proportionate to the Company of Baht 710 million which
represent

the revenues for work done to one

local customer government enterprise but have not been certified to accept the work beyond the normal period of

certification This was explained as an effect from the change sn the management of such government enterprise As

result the Joint Venture has not been able to determine the age of the collection of such receivables Currently the

Joint Venture is rectifying the situation to make the collection

Based on the audit report of other auditor of an overseas subsidiary and joint venture trade accounts receivable as

at 31 December 2008 and 2007 include claims of Baht 303 million and Baht 359 million respectively recognized in

the earlier
years

which has been disputed by the customer Of these claims the arbitrator had issued verdict in

favour of the subsidiary of Baht 117 million and Baht 139 million respectively However the total amount has still

been disputed by the customer Trade accounts receivable of such subsidiary and joint venture as at 31 December

2008 and 2007 also include Baht 245 million and Baht 370 million respectively billed for interim work done but

have not been certified to accept the work by customers beyond the normal period of certification Considering the

nature of the subsidiarys and joint ventures businesses the management is unable to determine the age of the

collection of such interim work Currently the subsidiary company and joint venture are rectifying the situation to

make the collection

Based on the audit report of other auditor of an oversea project office the project office is in the process
of

reassessing the budgeted cost from the fluctuation in material costs and many significant factors affecting the costs

originally estimated Such revision in the budgeted costs may impact the percentage
of completion and unbilled

revenue and the provision for foreseeable loss that could not presently be determined However the Companys

management believes that the effect from the revision of the budgeted costs of the project office will not be

significant to the consolidated financial statements since the Company has already recorded some allowances for

losses on construction project in the consolidated financial statements

Based on my audits and the reports of other auditors except for the effects on the consolidated financial statements

for the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007 which may occur and cannot presently be determined of the

matters discussed in the third fourth and fifth paragraphs which depends on the future
judicial process and the

certification of work done by the subsidiary and joint venture in the future and the adjustment for the costs of

construction project of overseas project office for which and other auditors can not presently determine due to

scope
limitation imposed by circumstances the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all matenals

respects the consolidated financial position as at 31 December 2008 and 2007 and the consolidated results of

operations and cash flows for the years then ended of Itahan-Thai Development Public Company Limited and

subsidiaries and the separate financial position as at 31 December 2008 and 2007 and the results of operations and

cash flows for the year then ended of Italian-Thai Development Public Company Limited in conformity with

generally accepted accounts principles cin-r

Certified Public Accountants and International Business Consultants

Member of Grant Thornton International Ltd

Grant Thornton International
is

not worlrtwide partnership

Member firms of the international organizations are independently owned and operated
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Without modifying my opinion above draw attention to the followings

As discussed in Note 43 to the financial statements at the beginning of 2007 the Company and local joint

venture received letter from The National Assets Examination Committee NAEC informing the

appointment of the inspection subcommittee and inspection responsibilities to investigate the facts on the

procurement of baggage-handling system and the CTX bomb scanners for Suvarnabhumi Airport and the

inspection for cracks on the runways and taxiways at Suvarnabhumi Airport The Company so far has not

received any claim for damages The management believes that the Company and its joint venture referred to

above do not have to be responsible for
any damage

As discussed in Note 15 to the financial statements the Company has investment in potash mine project of

Baht 3236 million that the request
for mining license is being processed Currently the government agree to

set up the national committee Consist of represent from Ministry of Industry Ministry of Interior Ministry of

Natural Resources and Environment Ministry of Public Health and Ministry of Social Development and

Human Security to consider the process to resolve the potash mining operations in Udonthani to make the

progress and generate the benefits The Companys management believes that this project will generate benefits

both for nearby areas and for the
country

and the
project

will be approved by the
government

and operational

as planned since the Ministry of Finance has jointly invested in this project for IO% of the total registered

capital The
management

of the Company believes that there will not be
any impairment

in the value of

investment

As discussed in Note to the financial statements the retained
earnings as at January 2008 in the

consolidated financial statements have been restated to account for the write-off of negative goodwill of Baht

10.0 million as result of the change in accounting policy

MR SOMCKID TIATRAGUL

Certified Public Accountant

Registration No 2785

Bangkok Thailand

March 2009

Certified Public Accountants and International Business Consultants

Member of Grant Thornton International Ltd

Grant Thornton International is not worlÆwide partnership

Member firms of the international organizations are independently owned and operated



ITALIAN THAI DEVELOPMENT PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

BALANCE SHEETS

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

Unit Thousand Baht

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

Notes 2008 2007 2008 2007

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and
deposits

with banks 4047216 2969513 2624754 1188599

Restricted
deposits

with banks 507290 633527 469053 554824

Short-term investment 479 467

Current portion of promissory notes receivable 300000 300000

Trade accounts receivable unrelated parties net 10 8484719 5882996 3536845 2920115

Trade accounts receivable related parties net II 1129006 1289470 1391432 1881962

Short-tenn loans and advances to related
parties net 12 96728 6594 1440875 1556240

Earned revenues not yet
billed 10501685 11869519 5145546 5687040

Retentions receivable due within one
year

1544563 1525881 1105656 1105230

Inventories and work in
progress

net 13 4254802 3332214 1508080 1354013

Other current assets

Income tax withheld at sources 1242651 1496000 523574 972984

Refundable value added tax 372564 266392 45574 66064

Advances for purchases of machine matenals and

land awaiting development 920695 887402 257557 322793

Current portion of receivable from sale of land 178 6222

Others 195535 299957 69956 144950

Total Current Assets 33598111 30466154 18418902 17754814

NON CURRENT ASSETS

Promissory notes receivable 636590 682231 636590 682231

Retentions receivable due after one year 80553 57891

Advances to subcontractors 132140 182213 54866 48198

Investments in subsidiaries associated companies

and
joint ventures net 14.1 370599 249824 8012644 7804765

Other long term investments net 14.2 1576335 1410604 1563159 1379369

Investment in potash mining project
15 3236149 3236149

Investment cost lower than net book value of subsidiaries 10036

Long term loans and advances to related parties net 16 362384 185136 1266234 1168972

Loan and advances to unrelated parties net 17 342304 157659 88610 155714

Land held for sale and development net 18 558220 559190

Property plant
and equipment net 19 15513511 15006526 9971897 10150728

Deferred charges 7616 18147

Goodwill 20 500086 500086

Other non current assets 315362 285116 107623 76788

Total Non Current Assets 23631849 22520736 21701623 21466765

TOTAL ASSETS 57229960 52986890 40120525 39221579

The accompanying notes form an integral part
of the financial statements



ITALIAN THAI DEVELOPMENT PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

BALANCE SHEETS

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

Unit Thousand Baht

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

Notes 2008 2007 2008 2007

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EOUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Bank overdrafts and short term loans from financial institutions 21 7353305 4974288 3042164 3493462

Current portion of liabilities under trust receipts 267923 261560 148210 109980

Trade accounts payable unrelated parties 7870720 6684477 4780923 3744453

Receipts
in excess of contracts work in

progress
191725 869603 191725 869603

Trade accounts payable
related parties

22 1678456 1439394 1540355 1356395

Short-term loans and advances from related parties
23 133630 449829 2054

Current portion
of advances from customers under construction contracts 4919323 3639215 1407440 2079742

Current portion of hire purchases payable
24 421629 385188 337195 363526

Current portion
of

long-term notes payable
300000 300000

Current portion of long-term
loans 25 2.282580 1689872 1546760 1149269

Current portion of debentures 26 705837 1055627 705837 1055627

Other current liabilities

Income tax payable
122957 112600 4379

Value added tax payable 68633 60159 60208 62180

Accrued expenses 1107796 1505211 345091 359929

Reserve for
project expenses 4900 25508 4900 25508

Allowance for
contingent

liabilities 612822 337304 612822 337304

Advance received for land purchase 12555 206887

Accounts payable to related parties
for purchase of investments 62484 62484 56809 56809

Retentions payable
502348 521436 341791 369668

Loan from directors 29 161743 181907

Others 1122716 692900 289466 208657

Total Current Liabilities 29904082 25155449 15713750 15646491

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

Liabilities under trust receipts net of current portion 2055 23732 2055 23732

Advances from customers under construction contracts

net of current portion
817440 1538846 205046 482327

I-lire purchases payable net of current portion
24 573455 497736 223843 470261

Long-term notes payable 636590 682231 636590 682231

Long-term loans net of current portion
25 4700493 5534909 3835638 4272537

Debentures net
26 1991515 704565 1991515 704565

Convertible debentures net 27 4830231 4830231

Accrued interest on convertible debentures 27 102320 102320

Reserve for
project expenses net of current portion 4900 4900

Deferred
gain on transferring assets to special purpose vehicle 38.1 229574 229574 229574 229574

Allowance for
contingent

liabilities net of current portion 76837 1025217 76837 1025217

Allowance for losses on construction
projects

28 639964 567160 628176 567160

Other non current liabilities 30718 205236 78335 162693

Total Non Current Liabilities 14631192 11014106 12840160 8625197

TOTAL LIABILITIES 44535274 36169555 28553910 24271688

The accompanying notes form an integral part
of the financial statements



ITALIAN THAI DEVELOPMENT PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

BALANCE SHEETS

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

Unit Thousand Baht

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

Notes 2008 2007 2008 2007

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY CONTINUED

SHAREHOLDERS EOUITY

Share capital ordinary
share at Baht par value

Registered 4921678180 shares 2007 4193678180 shares 27 4921678 4193678 4921678 4193678

Issued and fully paid up 4193678180 shares 4193678 4193678 4193678 4193678

Share premium 5515363 5515363 5515363 5515363

Unrealised
gain loss on changes in value of investments 263782 75363 130918 224077

Translation
adjustments

for foreign currency
financial statements 609057 52841 252381 32657

Surplus on dilution of investment in subsidiary company 149586 149586

Retained earnings

Appropriated statutory reserve 34 427373 427373 419368 419368

Unappropriated 2413907 5352990 1821505 4564748

Equity attributable to the Companys shareholders 11827068 15767194 11566.615 14949891

Minority interests Equity attributable to minority

shareholders of subsidiaries 867618 1050141

Total Shareholders Equity 12694686 16817335 11566615 14949891

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY 57229960 52986890 40120525 39221579

______________________ Director I7

The accompanying notes form an integral part
of the financial statements



ITALIAN THAI DEVELOPMENT PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

REVENUES FROM CONSTRUCTION WORK

Revenues from construction work

Total revenue from construction work

COSTS OF CONSTRUCTION WORK

Costs of construction work

Allowance for loss on construction work

Total costs of construction work

Gross income

Administrative expenses

Reversal of allowance allowance for doubtful accounts

Income loss from construction work

Share of loss from investments accounted for by equity
method

Dividend income and shares of profit from the joint ventures

Loss from devaluation of investments

Interest income

Loss on exchange rate

Other income

Allowance for project loss on related parties

Allowance for impairment and
contingent

liabilities

Income loss from operations

Interest and financial expenses

Income tax

NET INCOME LOSS

Unit Thousand Baht

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

Notes 2008 2007 2008 2007

29 42854526 45622502 24644379 29315696

42854526 45622502 24644379 29315696

29 41891572

28 308332

42199904

654622

29 1773129

231743

1350250

1054

74591

132905

294219

43 636823

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

Net income loss Baht per share 0.63 0.24 0.58 0.30

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Thousand shares 4193678 4193678 4193678 4193678

42368519

12660

42381179

3241323

1409680

41886

1873529

7249

86371

23601

52750

164665

749995

30893

2536237

1298561

163370

1074306

1010734

63572

1074306

23580132

469686

24049818

594561

925046

91314

421799

79901

385

133437

24200

476096

1466343

27670

1250963

1199092

2450055

2450055

2450055

27247822

12660

27260482

2055214

806492

57296

1191426

307239

23601

74297

135648

644071

30.893

2026891

765064

1707

1260120

1260120

1260120

Net income loss attributable to

Equity holders of the Company

Minority
interests

27670

828874

1743775

30 104928

2677577

265593

21646

2677577

The accompanying notes form an integral part
of the financial statements



ITALIAN THAI DEVELOPMENT PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

Equity attributable to the Companys shareholdees

Translation

Unit Thousand Baht

CONSOLIDATED

Issued and Unrealised
gain

paid-up loss on changes in

Notes share
capital Share premium value of investments

adjustments for

foreign currency

financial statements

Surplus on dilution

of investment in Retained earnings

subsidiary company Statutory reserve Unappropriated

Minority

interescs Total

Balance as at January 2007

Unrealiscd loss on changes in value of insesiments

Translation
adiusiments for

foreign currency

financial statements

Net income for the
year

Appropeiatioo foe
legal reserve

Surplus on dilution of investment

in
subsidiary company

Minority interests foe the
year

Increase in rninoory interest from
capital increase

Dividend
paid from subsidiary

Balance as at 31 December2007

Balance as at lJanuaiy 2008

Negative goodwill seorten off

Unemlised loss on changes in value of invesrmenrs

Translation adtusrmenrs for
foreign currency

financial statements

Net loss for the year

Dividend payment

Minority interests for the
year

Dividend
paid from subsidiary

Balance as at 31 December 2008

4193678 5515363

34

31

79581

380186 14982058

79581

84583
8695 93278

37004

1010734

37004

1010734

149586
149586

63572 63572

607496 607496

4193678 5515363 75363 52841 149586 427373 5352990

9808

1.050141

9808

I681735

4193678 5515363 75363 52841 149586 427373 5352990 1050141 16817335

339145

10036 10036

339145

661898
143221 805119

2655931 2655931

293188 293188

21646 21646

4193678
17656 17656

The
accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial sratemrnis



ITALIAN THAI DEVELOPMENT PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

paid-up

Notes share capital

Balance as at IJanuary 2007
4193678

Untrained loss on changes in value of Investments

Translation adjustmei-its for foreign currency fmancial statements

Appropriation for legal resene 34

Net Income for the
year

Balance as at 31 December2007

Balance as at Januaiy 2008

Unrealised loss on changes in value of mvestrnents

Translation adjustments for foreign currenc fmancial statements

Net los for the year

Dividend payment

Balance as at 31 December 2008

Unit Thousand Bahi

382364 3341632 13746491

47612

9118 9108

4564748 14949891

354995

285038

2450055

_________________
293188

11566615

SEPARATE F/S

Issued and

Retained earnings

Statutozy reserve Unappropriated Total

Translation

Unrealised
gain adjustments for

loss on changes in foreign currency

Share premium value of investments financial statements

5515363 271689 41765

47612

37004 371

_____________________
1260121

4193678 5515363 224077 32657 419368 4564748

4193678 5515363 224077 32657 419368

354995

285038

2451 55

_______________________ ___________________ ______________________ ____________________
2931 88

4193678 551 5363 130918 252381 419368 1821505

31

1261 1121

14949891

The accompanying notes form an integral parr of the financial statements



ITALIAN THAI DEVELOPMENT PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

Unit Thousand Baht

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

2008 2007 2008 2007

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income loss before taxation 2572649 1237676 2450055 1261827

Adjustments to reconcile net income loss to net cash provided

from used in operating activities

Unrealised loss gain on exchange rate 298884 2854 93153 1731

Dividend income and shares of
profit

from the
joint ventures 74591 86371 79901 307239

Share of loss from investments accounted for by equity method 1054 7249

Allowance reversal of allowance for doubtful accounts 231743 41886 91314 57297

Loss from devaluation of investments 23601 385 23601

Depreciation and arnortisation 2166838 2010804 1351643 1258685

Goodwill amortisation 22066

Interest and financial expenses 1743775 1298561 1199092 765064

Allowance for loss on construction work 308332 12660 469686 12660

Allowance for
project

loss on related
parties 1466343

Allowance for impairment and contingent
liabilities 27670 30893 27670 30893

Net income from operating activities before changes in

operating assets and liabilities 2131056 4512399 2169330 3101057

Decrease increase in operating assets

Trade accounts receivable unrelated parties 3003454 382865 864054 4316

Trade accounts receivable related parties 110952 195354 539260 718892

Loans and advances to related
parties 132550 71388 551941 228007

Earned revenues not yet
billed 1089373 2374408 541494 266894

Retentions receivable 739921 208220 700127 173026

Inventories and work in
progress 649902 458506 154067 133647

Refundable value added tax 106172 162354 20490 3884

Advances to subcontractors 50073 248257 6668 152739

Advances for
purchases

of machine materials and

land awaiting development 33293 491237 65236 205566

Current portion of receivables from sale of land 6044 80243

Other current assets 94003 96450 64575 60914

Increase decrease in operating liabilities

Trade accounts payable
unrelated

parties 1097496 399907 1036470 603119

Trade accounts payable
related

parties 239062 107640 183960 396970

Receipts
in excess of contracts work in

progress 677878 86652 677878 263046

Advances from customers under construction contracts 558702 995581 949583 1795278

Value added tax payable 8474 1972 28.265

Accrued expenses 419363 273119 36786 94.671

Reserve for
project expenses 25508 48342 25508 48342

Advance received for land purchase 194.332 18021

Retentions
payable 19567 36.143 27877 86560

Other current liabilities 482417 260865 43636 83.548

Other liabilities 410046 21390 493028 34964

Cash received paid from operations 544334 863465 903558 139017

Income tax refund 945711 672370 878216 516533

Income tax payment 789378 783457 433185 464087

Net cash provided from used in operating activities 388001 752378 458527 191463

The accompanying notes form an integral part
of the financial statements



ITALIAN THAI DEVELOPMENT PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS Continued

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

Unit Thousand Baht

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

2008 2007 2008 2007

Cash flows from investrng activities

Decrease increase in cash at banks with maturity of more than

three months and restricted deposits 491881 428058 130320 31499

Decrease increase in temporary investments 12 39555

Decrease increase in loans and advances to unrealted
parstes 184645 19717 67104 17772

Increase in land held for sale and delopment 271716 42950

Increase in property plant and equipment net 2620603 1686847 1133233 722215

Decrease increase in deferred charges 665 61889

Increase in investments in subsidiaries and associated companies 119830 99069 162265 1610101

Cash received from dividend and shares of
profit

from the
joint ventures 74591 86371 79901 307239

Increase in other long-term investments 504876 54134 538785 27386

Decrease increase in other assets 61405 31293 61994 10341

Net cash used in investing activities 3197280 2111667 1618952 2091393

Cash flows from fmancing activities

Interest payment 1679893 1345448 1045435 756734

Increase decrease in bank overdrafts and loans from

financial institutions 2376374 75430 453941 862009

Increase decrease in loans and advances from related
parties 316199 503564 2054

Increase in long-term loans 12651 1596520 214951 1388731

Increase decrease in hire purchases payable 56437 135665 328472 164434

Increase decrease in liabilities under trust receipts 15314 95885 16553 194250

Increase decrease in loans from directors 20164 179238

Proceeds from monority interest from capital increase in subsidiary 757082

Payment for redemption of debentures 1057100 1057100

Proceed from issuance of debentures 1990184 1990184

Proceed from issuance of convertible debentures 4.797615 4797615

Dividend payment 293188 293188

Dividend paid by subsidiary company 17656 9808

Net cash provided from financing activities 5833747 517900 3843221 1135322

Translation adjustment on foreign currency financial statements 805119 93279 285038 9108

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 1443347 748110 1480704 773716

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 2564162 3312272 1104360 1878076

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year Note 4007509 2564162 2585064 1104360

Supplemental cash flows information

Non cash transactions

Unrealised
gain on changes in value of investments 339145 79581 354995 47612

Transfer of receivable unrelated party to notes receivable 254359 682231 254359 682231

Transfer land held for sale and development to inventories

and work in
progress 272686

Transfer loan to related
parties to investments in

subsidiaries companies 44000 173985

The accompanying notes form an integral part
of the financial statements



ITALIAN THAI DEVELOPMENT PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

GENERAL INFORMATION

Italian Thai Development Public Company Limited the Company is incorporated and domiciles in

Thailand The Company is principally engaged in the construction business The Company has overseas

branches and project offices Its registered office address is 2034/132-161 New Petchburi Road Kwaeng

Bangkapi Khet Huaykwang Bangkok

FINANCIAL CRISIS

The financial crisis experienced by the United States over the past year
has had far reaching adverse effect on

the global economy as evidenced by sharp falls in share prices worldwide tight squeeze on credit including

interbank lending failures of large financial institutions in the foreign countries and reduced consumer

confidence The crisis has affected substantially business and financial plans of Thailand
enterprises and asset

values Despite efforts made by governments of many countries and Thailand to contain the crisis and to

remedy the financial liquidity to gain public confidence it remains uncertain as to when the global economy will

return to its normalcy These financial statements have been prepared on the bases of facts currently known to

the Company and on estimates and assumptions currently considered
appropriate by management They

therefore could be adversely affected by an array of future events

BASIS OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT PREPARATION

The accompanying financial statements have been
prepared

in accordance with the generally accepted accounting

principles issued under the Accounting Act B.E 2543 and the Federation of Accounting Professions Act B.E 2547

and the
regulations promulgated by the Securities Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange of Thailand

concerning
the

preparation
and disclosure of financial information under the Securities Exchange Act B.E 2535

The financial statement are officially prepare
in accordance with

statutory requirement and in Thai language in

accordance with accounting standards enermurated under the Accounting Profession Act B.E 2547 The

translation of these financial statements to other language must be in based on the Thai version

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except as otherwise disclosed in the

accounting policies



During year 2007 the Federation of Accounting Professions has announced various amendments to accounting

standards which are effective for the accounting periods beginning on or after January 2008 The Companys

management considers that there is no significant impact to the Company relating to the amended accounting

standards except for TAS 43 amendment 2007 Business Combination which states that the Company does not

have to amortize the goodwill from business combination Such
goodwill

is instead to be tested for impairment

and measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses This
accounting

standard
applies to goodwill arising

from

business combinations for which the agreement date is on or after
January 2008 Previously recognized goodwill

can be accounted for
prospectively

with the Company discontinuing the amortization of the goodwill and instead

testing for impairment as from the beginning of the first fiscal
year starting on or after

January 2008 The

standard also suggests
the

derecognition
of negative goodwill at the beginning of the year with corresponding

adjustment to the opening balance of retained
earnings

The Company has accordingly changed its accounting

policy
for its negative goodwill by derecognriing the opening balance for

negative goodwill
of Baht 10.04 million

against
the retained earnings as at January 2008

The effect of the change in accounting policy on the consolidated financial statement for the
year

ended 31

December 2008 is to reduce the charge to the statement of income approximately Baht 22.78 million

During the
year 2008 the Federation of Accounting Professions has announced amendments to certain

accounting standards which are effective for the accounting periods beginning on or after January 2009 The

Companys management has assessed the effect of those amended accounting standards and believes that they

will not significantly impact the Companys financial statements for the initial
application of such standards

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

4.1 The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Italian-Thai Development Public

Company Limited its subsidiaries and its jointly controlled joint ventures applying the proportionate

consolidated method as follows

Country of Percentage investment

Name of Entity incorporation by the Company

2008 2007

Overseas subsidiaries

Myanmar lTD Co Ltd Myanmar 99.99 99.99

PT Thailindo Bara Pratama Indonesia 99.99 99.99

lTD Cementation India Limited India 69.57 69.57

Local subsidiaries

Italian-Thai International Co Ltd Thailand 99.99 99.99

Bhaka Bhumi Development Co Ltd Thailand 99.99 99.99

Thai Pride Cement Co Ltd Thailand 99.99 99.99

Sin Rae Muang Thai Co Ltd Thailand 99.99 99.99
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Country of Percentage
investment

Name of Entity incorporation by the Company

2008 2007

Nha Pralan Crushing Plant Co Ltd Thailand 99.91 99.91

Siam Concrete and Brick Products Co Ltd Thailand 99.70 99.70

Italthai Marine Ltd Thailand 86.96 86.96

Italthai Trevi Co Ltd Thailand 80.45 80.45

Asian Steel Product Co Ltd Thailand 69.90 69.90

Thai Maruken Co Ltd Thailand 50.96 50.96

Italian Thai Land Co Ltd Thailand 99.99 99.99

Khunka Palangthai Co Ltd Thailand 61.48 61.48

Palit Palangngan Co Ltd Thailand 74.93 74.93

Palang Thai Kaowna Co Ltd Thailand 99.94 61.48

Italian Thai Power Co Ltd Thailand 99.99 99.99

Saraburi Construction Technology Co Ltd Thailand 99.93 99.93

Asia Logistics Development Co Ltd Thailand 99.93

Asia Industrial and Port Corporation Co Ltd Thailand 99.93

Indirect overseas subsidiaries

Italian-Thai Development BVI Co Ltd British Virgin 99.99 99.99

Islands

Servicescom Investment Ltd British Virgin 99.99 99.99

Islands

Ayeyarwady Multitrade Co Ltd Myanmar 99.99 99.99

lTD Cementation Projects India Limited India 99.99 99.99

Koh Kong Power Light Co Ltd Cambodia 93.00

Indirect local subsidiaries

Aquathat Co Ltd Thailand 99.99 99.99

Sarithorn Co Ltd Thailand 99.99 99.99

Southern Industries 1996 Co Ltd Thailand 99.99 99.99

Overseas joint ventures proportionate consolidation

lTD NCC Joint Venture NT-2 Laos 60.00 60.00

lTD EGC Joint Venture Taiwan 55.00 55.00

Shirnizu lTD Joint Venture Laos 49.00

Shimi2u lTD Joint Venture Bangladesh 40.00

Joint Venture Evergreen Italian-Thai PEWC Taiwan 25.00 25.00

Joint Venture between Italian-Thai Development Plc And India 20.00 20.00

lTD Cementation India Limited
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Country of Percentage investment

Name of
Entity incorporation by the Company

2008 2007

ITD-Nawarat L.L.C United Arab 60.00 60.00

Emirates

ITD-ITDCEMJV India 51.00 51.00

ITD-ITDCEM JV Consortium India 60.00

Local joint ventures proportionate consolidation

lTD VIS Joint Venture Thailand 65.00 65.00

lTD NSC Joint Venture Thailand 50.50 50.50

The Joint Venture of Italian-Thai Development Plc Thailand 60.00 60.00

together with Alcatel Contracting GmbH

Joint Venture of Italian-Thai Development Plc Thailand 60.00 60.00

and Skanska Lundby Aktiebolag

lTD NCC Joint Venture Thailand 51.00 51.00

IN Joint Venture Thailand 51.00 51.00

ITO Joint Venture Thailand 40.00 40.00

JOT Joint Venture Thailand 40.00 40.00

JON Joint Venture Thailand 39.00 39.00

IDS Joint Venture Thailand 35.00 35.00

I.C.C.T Joint Venture Thailand 25.00 25.00

NWR JTD CNT AS Joint Venture Thailand 25.00 25.00

lTD SQ JOINT VENTURE Thailand 50.00

4.2 During the year 2008 there are significant changes as follows

The Company paid for share capital increase in Sin Rae Muang Thai Co Ltd of Baht 27.06 million

The Company paid for share capital increase in Italian-Thai Power Co Ltd of Baht 75.00 million

The Company purchase debts and share capital in Palang Thai Kaowna Co Ltd from former

shareholders This increases the Company investment to 99.94% of share capital in Palang Thai

Kaowna Co Ltd

The Company invested in two new subsidiary companies Asia Logistics Development Co Ltd and

Asia Industrial and Port Corporation Co Ltd to be engaged in the transportation
business and

seaport

business respectively with registered share capital at Baht 1.00 million and Baht 1.00 million

respectively
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The Company and Sahakol Equipment Co Ltd entered into Joint Venture agreement on behalf of

lTD-SQ JOINT VENTURE to be engaged in the overburden and
lignite removal services at Mae

Moh Mine Phase The Companys portion in the Joint Venture is 50.00% and Sahakol Equipment

Co Ltd is 50.00%

Shimizu lTD Joint Venture and Shimizu lTD Joint Venture discontinued their business

subsidiary company invested 30.00% in Allied Enterprise Co Ltd amounting to Baht 0.30 million

The Company paid for the increase in share capital of Thai Contractor Assets Co Ltd which is related

company of Baht 18.75 million

The Company paid for the increase in share capital of Sino Lao Aluminum Corporation Limited which

is related company of Baht 106.50 million

4.3 The Company does not include the financial statements of Siam Pacific Holding Company Limited which

was established for the purpose of joint venture with foreign partner company of which 46.69 percent

and 4.30 percent totaling 50.99 percent of its shares are held by the Company and its subsidiaries because

the Company has no control over such companies and such companies are not considered as subsidiaries

There is no material effect on the consolidated financial statements for such exclusion

4.4 The financial statements of the overseas project offices branches subsidiaries and joint ventures are

translated into Thai Baht with the exchange rates at the balance sheet date for assets and liabilities and with

the monthly average exchange rates as to revenues and expenses The resultant differences are shown under

the caption Translation adjustment for foreign currency financial statements under the shareholders

equity It should not be construed that foreign financial statements will be realized at those rates

4.5 Material intercompany balances and intercompany transactions have been eliminated from the consolidated

financial statements except for intercompany profit which was included in inventories at the end of the

year which has insignificant effect to the consolidated financial statements

4.6 Minority interests represent
the portion of subsidiarys profit or loss and net assets that is not held by the

Company

4.7 All subsidiaries and joint ventures have reporting date 31 December and have been prepared with the same

accounting policies as for the separate financial statements for the same accounting transactions or accounting

events

4.8 Dilution gains
that arise on shares issued by subsidiary and sold to third parties are recognised as surplus on

dilution of investment in subsidiary company which is presented in shareholders equity in consolidated

financial statements
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4.9 The Companys financial statements for the
years

ended 31 December 2008 and 2007 include the financial

statements of two overseas project offices two overseas branches two overseas subsidiaries and six joint

ventures2007 five joint ventures which were audited by their auditors Their aggregate assets and

revenues as included in the consolidated financial statements are as follows

Unit Million Baht

2008 2007

Total Total

Total assets Revenues Total assets Revenues

KOLDAM project office 1366 830 1678 1209

West Bengal Project office 564 247 742 586

Italian-Thai Development Public Co Ltd

Philippines Branch 424 497 605 364

Italian-Thai Development Public Co Ltd

Taiwan Branch 1419 1602 923 26

lTD Cementation India Co Ltd 10254 10364 8080 7849

PT Thailindo Bara Pratama 754 280 278 15

ITD-Cemindia Joint Venture 155 179 112 159

ITD-IIDCEMJV 1673 2210 707 516

ITD-ITDCEMJV Consortium 400 106

ITDEGCJoint Venture 1298 1567 1413 1702

Joint Venture Evergreen Italian-Thai PEWC

ITD-Nawarat L.L.C 132 121 352 409

Total 18446 18003 14897 12835

4.10 The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2007 of three overseas joint ventures which are

included in the consolidated financial statements were prepared by the management and have not been

audited by their auditors Their
aggregate assets as at 31 December 2007 were Baht 103.52 million and their

aggregate revenues for the year
ended 31 December 2007 were Baht 0.38 million The financial statements

year 2007 of those
joint ventures after audited by their auditors in the

year
2008 do not have significant

differences
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4.11 The consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2008 and 2007 and for the
years

then ended

included the proportion of the assets liabilities revenues and
expenses

of the Joint Venture the balances of

which are as follows

Unit Thousand Baht

Consolidated

2008 2007

Current assets 7792376 7535986

Non-current assets 971926 697850

Current liabilities 7150474 4848169

Non-current liabilities 40731 60137

Revenues 8738934 7416162

Expenses 10004410 7400254

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

5.1 Revenues
recognition

Revenues from construction work

Revenues from construction work are recognized when services have been rendered
taking into account

the
stage of completion The stage of completion measured by the proportion of actual construction costs

incurred up to the end of the
year

and the total anticipated construction cost to be incurred to completion

Provision for the total
anticipated loss on construction projects will be made in the accounts as soon as the

possibility of loss is ascertained

Sales ofgoods

Sales of goods are recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have

passed to the buyer Sales are represented by the invoiced value excluding value added tax of goods

supplied after deducting discounts and allowances

Interest income

Interest income is
recognized on time period accrued basis

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive the dividends is established

5.2 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand cash at banks and all highly liquid investments with an

original maturity of three months or less and not subject to withdrawal restrictions

15



5.3 Trade accounts receivable and allowance for doubtful accounts

Trade accounts receivable are stated at the net realisable value The Company its subsidiaries and joint

ventures provided allowances for doubtful accounts for the estimated losses that may be incurred in

collection of receivables The allowances are generally based on collection experiences and analysis of

debtor aging and the likelihood of settlement of debt on specific account basis

5.4 Earned revenues not yet billed/receipt in excess of contract work in
progress

The recognized revenues which have not yet
been due as per contracts is presented as Earned revenues

not yet
billed in the balance sheet The installment amounts due and received according to the contracts

but not yet recognized as revenue is
presented as Receipt in excess of contract work in progress in the

balance sheet

5.5 Inventories and work under construction

Inventories and work under construction are valued at the lower of weighted average cost and net

realizable value and are charged to production costs whenever consumed Management review and provide

allowance for the obsolete inventories from time to time

5.6 Investments

Investments in available-for-sale securities are stated at fair value Gains or losses arising from changes

in the value of such investments are separately shown as part of shareholders equity under the caption

Unrealised gain/loss on changes
in the value of investments When the securities are sold the

change is included in determining income

Investments in non-marketable equity securities which the Company classifies as other investments

are stated at cost net of allowance for impairment if any

Investments in subsidiary associated companies and
joint ventures are accounted for by cost method

in the
separate

financial statements Investments in associated companies are accounted for by equity

method in the consolidated financial statements

The fair value of marketable securities is based on the latest bid price of the last working day
of the

year as

quoted on the Stock Exchange

The weighted average
method is used for computation of the cost of investments

The Company its subsidiaries and joint ventures recorded loss on impairment if any of investments in

available-for-sale securities and other investments in determining income when the carrying amount

exceeds its recoverable value
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5.7 Related parties

Related
parties comprise enterprises and individuals that control or are controlled by the Company

whether directly or indirectly or which are under common control with the Company

They also include associated companies and individuals which directly or indirectly own voting interest in

the Company that
gives

them
significant

influence over the Company key management personnel

directors and officers with authority in the planning and direction of the Companys operations

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are those companies controlled by the Company Control exists when the Company has the

power directly or indirectly to govern the financial and operating policies of company so as to obtain

benefits from its activities The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated

financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases

Associates

Associates are those companies in which the Company has significant influence but not control over the

financial and operating policies The consolidated financial statements include the Companys share of the

total recognized gains and losses of associates by the equity accounting method from the date that

significant
influence commences until the date that significant influence ceases When the Companys

share of losses exceeds its interest in an associate the Companys carrying amount is reduced to zero and

recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Company has incurred legal or

constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate

Joint venture

The joint venture company is company over which activities are jointly controlled established by

contractual agreement The consolidated financial statements include the Companys proportionate share

of the joint venture companys assets liabilities revenue and expenses combined with items of similar

nature on line by line basis from the date that joint control commenced until the date that joint control

ceases

5.8 Land held for sale and development

Land held for sale and development is valued at cost or net realisable value whichever is lower

5.9 Property plant
and equipment and

depreciation

Property plant and equipment are stated at cost Cost is measured by the cash or cash equivalent price of

obtaining the asset and bringing it to the location and condition necessary for its intended use Plant and

equipment in balance sheet are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and allowance for loss on

impairment of assets if any
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Depreciation of plant and equipment is calculated by reference to their costs on the straight-line basis over

the following estimated useful lives

Buildings 20 years

Machinery and equipment 19 years

Furniture fixtures and office equipment 12 years

Motor vehicles years

Expenditures for addition renewal and betterment which result in substantial increase in asset current

replacement value are capitalised Repair and maintenance costs are recognized as an expense when

incurred

5.10 Goodwill

Goodwill in business combination represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of

share of the identifiable net assets which the Company acquired Negative goodwill in business

combination represents the excess of the fair value of share of the identifiable net assets which the

Company acquired over the cost of acquisition

The Company has changed its accounting policy for goodwill effective from January 2008 as discussed in

note

Goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses Goodwill is tested for impairment

annually and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired

5.11 Discount on debentures

Discount on debentures comprising the difference between proceeds from debentures issuance and

redemption value on maturity is recognized in the statement of income by an amortization method over

the period of the borrowings on an effective interest basis

5.12 Lease where the Company and subsidiaries are the lessee

Leases of equipment where the Company assumes substantially all the benefits and risks of ownership are

classified as finance leases Finance leases are capitalized at the fair value of leases of assets or estimated

present value of the underlying lease payments whichever is lower Each lease payment is allocated

between the liability and finance charges so as to achieve constant rate on the finance balance

outstanding Lease payment deducted by financial charges is recognized as liabilities under financial lease

agreements The interest expense is charged to statement of income over the lease period Assets acquired

under finance lease agreements are depreciated over the useful lives of the assets
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Leases of assets under which all the risks and benefits of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor

are classified as operating leases Payments made under operating leases are charged to statements of

income on straight
line basis over the lease period When an operating lease is terminated before expi.ry

date of the lease period any payment required to be made to the lessor by way of
penalty is recognized as

an expense in the
period

in which termination takes place

5.13 Leases where Company and subsidiaries are the lessor

Assets leased out under
operating

leases are included in
building

and equipment in the balance sheet

Depreciation
is calculated over their

expected
useful lives on basis consistent with other similar assets

Rental income is recognized on straight line basis over the lease period

5.14 Hire purchases payable

These represent hire purchases payable less deferred interest The repayment subschedules of the hire

purchase contracts are 24 60 months The fixed assets acquired under hire purchase agreement are

recorded as assets of the Company at their cash price and will be registered in the name of the Company

upon the completion of payments

5.15 Impairment

As at balance sheet date the Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that

an asset may be impaired If any such indication exists the Company makes an estimate of the asset

recoverable amount Where the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount the asset is

considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount Impairment losses are recognized in

the income statement An asset recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in

use

5.16 Income tax

Income tax is provided for in the accounts based on the taxable profits determined in accordance with tax

legislation

5.17 Foreign currencies

Foreign currency
transactions are translated into Baht at the exchange rates ruling on the transaction dates

Financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies which are outstanding at the balance

sheet date are translated into Baht at the exchange rates ruling on the balance sheet date Gains and losses

on exchange are included in determining income

5.18 Financial instruments

Financial assets in the balance sheet include cash and bank balances investments and trade accounts

receivable and loan to
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Financial liabilities in the balance sheet include trade accounts payable fmancial leases advance received

and borrowings

The accounting policies
for each particular transaction are disclosed under separate sections associated

with each item

5.19 Employee benefits

Salary wages bonuses and contributions to the social security fund and provident fund are recognized as

expenses on an accrual basis

5.20 Provident fund

The Company and subsidiaries set up registered provident fund contributed by employees and by the

Company and subsidiaries for which assets are held in
separate

trusteed fund and manages by authorized

fund manager

The Company contributions are charged to the statement of income in the period which they relate

5.21 Segment information

Segment information is presented
in

respect
of the Companys subsidiaries and joint ventures businesses

The primary format geographical segments is based on the Company subsidiaries and joint ventures

management and internal
reporting structure

5.22 Dividend payment

Dividend payment is recorded in the financial statements in the period in which they are approved by the

Shareholders or Board of Directors of the Company and subsidiaries

5.23 Earnings per share

Earnings per share are determined by dividing net income loss for the year by the weighted average

number of common shares outstanding during the
year

5.24 Provisions for liabilities and expenses and contingent assets

The Company subsidiaries and joint ventures are recognized provisions for liabilities and
expenses

in the

financial statements when the Company subsidiaries and joint ventures have
present legal or constructive

obligations as result of past events with probable outflow of resources to settle the obligation and where

reliable estimate of the amount can be made The contingent asset will be recognized as separate asset

only when the realization is virtually certain

5.25 Use of accounting estimates

Preparation of fmancial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires

management to make estimates and assumptions in certain circumstances affecting amounts reported in

these financial statements and related notes Actual results could differ from these estimates
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5.26 Derivatives

Forward exchange contracts

Receivables and payables arising from forward exchange contracts are translated into Baht at the rates of

exchange ruling at the balance sheet Gains and losses from the translation are included in determining

Income

Cross
curreny

and interest rate swap agreements

Payables and receivables arising from the cross currency swap agreements are translated into Baht at the

rates of exchange ruling on the balance sheet Unrealized gains and losses from the translation are included

in determining income The differences under interest rate swaps are recorded as adjustments to the

interest expense relating to the financial obligations in the statement of income

Currency option agreement

Currency option agreements are contracts between two parties whereby the seller grants the buyer future

option to buy call option or to sell put option foreign currency at an exchange rate stipulated in the

agreement The Company enters into such agreements in order to manage foreign exchange risk

The notional amounts of cross currency option agreements utilized by the Company to manage foreign

exchange risk are not recognized as assets or liabilities upon inception of the agreement but fees to be

received or paid by the Company in
respect

of such agreements are amortized on straight line basis over

the term of the agreement

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES ASSUMPTION AND JUDGEMENT AND CAPITAL

RISK MANAGEMENT

6.1 Critical accounting estimates assumption and judgments

Estimates assumption and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and

other factors including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances are as follows

Construction revenue

The stage of completion of any construction contract is assessed by management by taking into

consideration all information available at the reporting date In this process management carries out

significant judgements about milestones actual work performed and the estimated costs to complete the

work Significant assumptions are required to estimate the total contract costs and the recoverable

variation works that will affect the stage of completion Actual outcome in terms of actual costs or

revenue may be higher or lower than estimated at the balance sheet date which would affect the

revenue and profit recognised in future years as an adjustment to the amounts recorded to date
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Claims income

claim is an amount that the contractor seeks to collect from the customer or another party as

reimbursement for costs not included in the contract price claim may rise from for example

customer caused delays errors in specifications or design and disputed variations in contract work The

measurement of the amounts of revenue arising from claims is subject to high level of uncertainty and

often depends on the outcome of negotiations Therefore claims are only included in contract revenue

when

Negotiations have reached an advanced stage such that it is probable that the customer will
accept

the claim and

The amount that is probable will be accepted by the customer can be measured reliably

Allowance for
project

losses

The Company subsidiaries and joint venture review its construction
work-in-progress to determine

whether ether is any indication of foreseeable losses Identified foreseeable losses are recognised

immediately in the statement of income when it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total

contract revenue as determined by the Company management

Impairment of receivables

The Company subsidiaries and joint venture account for allowance for doubtful accounts which equal

to the estimated collection losses that may be incurred in the collection of receivables The estimated

losses are based on historical collection experience couple
with review of outstanding receivables at

the balance sheet date

Allowance for obsolete slow-moving and defective inventories

The Company subsidiaries and joint venture maintain an allowance for obsolete slow-moving and

defective inventories to reflect impairment of inventories The allowance is based on consideration of

inventory turnover and deterioration of each category

Impairment of investments

The Company subsidiaries and joint venture treat investments as impaired when there has been

significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below their cost or where other objective evidence of

impairment exists The determination of what is significant or prolonged requires management

judgment
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Impairment of goodwill

The Company subsidiaries and joint venture annually review goodwill from investments in subsidiary

companies to determine whether it is impaired or not The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units

are determined based on value-in-use calculations These calculations require the use of estimates

Property plant and equipment and intangible assets

Management determines the estimated useful lives and residual values for property plant and equipment

and intangible assets of the Company subsidiaries and joint venture Management will revise the

depreciation and amortization charge where useful lives and residual values previously estimated have

changed or subject to be written down for their technical obsolescence or no longer in used

Impairment of assets

The Company subsidiaries and joint venture consider the allowance for impairment of assets whether

there is an indication that an asset may be impaired If any such indication exists when there has been

significant decline in the fair value below their cost the Company subsidiaries and joint venture make

an estimate of the asset recoverable amount The determination of recoverable amount is requires

judgment

10 Leases

In determining whether lease is to be classified as an operating lease or finance lease management is

required to use judgment regarding whether significant risk and rewards of ownership of the leased asset

has been transferred taking into consideration terms and conditions of the arrangement

11 Litigation

The Company subsidiaries and joint venture have contingent liabilities as result of disputes and

litigation Management of the Company subsidiaries and joint venture has used judgment to assess of

the results of the disputes and litigation and believes that no loss will result Therefore no contingent

liabilities are recorded as at the balance sheet date However actual results could differ from the

estimates
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6.2 Capital
risk management

Objectives of the Company subsidiaries and joint venture in the management of capital are to safeguard its

ability to continue as going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other

stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital In addition the

Company subsidiaries and joint venture have to maintain debt to equity
ratio as stipulated

in loan facility

agreements

In order to maintain or adjust
the

capital structure the Company subsidiaries and joint venture may issue

new shares or issue new debentures to finance debts or sell assets to reduce debts

As at 31 December 2008 the total liabilities to total shareholders equity ratio in the consolidated financial

statements is 3.771 the separate
financial statements total liabilities to total shareholders equity is 2.471

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Unit Thousand Baht

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

2008 2007 2008 2007

Cash and deposits with banks 2397482 2969513 975020 1188599

Government bonds 1649734 1649734

Total 4047216 2969513 2624754 1188599

Less Deposits with maturity of

more than months 39707 405351 39690 84239

Total Cash and cash equivalents 4007509 2564162 2585064 1104360

As at 31 December 2008 the Company has temporary investments in government bonds of approximately Baht

1649.73 million for period of 15 days These bears interest at the rate of 2.10-2.18 percent per
annum

RESTRICTED DEPOSITS WITH BANKS

As at 31 December 2008 approximately Baht 43.67 million 2007 Baht 89.41 million of saving
and fixed

deposits
of the Company and its subsidiaries have been pledged with banks as collaterals for loans obtained by

the Company to finance specific projects and saving deposits of approximately Baht 365.92 million 2007 Baht

485.66 million have been pledged with the bank as collaterals for standby letters of credit Fixed deposits

amounting to Baht 97.70 million 2007 Baht 58.46 million have been pledged as required in the normal course

of business of Company subsidiaries joint ventures and the overseas branches These restricted deposits
with

banks are mostly
turned over within one year
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PROMISSORY NOTES

Unit Thousand Baht

CONSOLIDATED SEPARATE F/S

2008 2007 2008 2007

Promissory Notes 936590 682231 936590 682231

Less Promissory Notes Current Portion 300000 300000

Net 636590 682231 636590 682231

During the
year 2007 the Company arranged with group of major debtors re scheduling the collection of

amount of receivables that have been long outstanding Under such arrangement the debtors agreed to pay the

Company by installments over to years by issuing various promissory notes payable to the Company at

different due dates Those promissory notes bear interest at the rate MLR 4.493% of MLR per annum The

Company used such promissory notes as collaterals for its borrowings from commercial bank on back to

back basis The borrowings bear interest at the rate of MLR and are included as part of long term borrowings

loans As at 31 December 2008 and 2007 the outstanding balance of loans is totaling Baht 936.59 million and

682.23 million respectively with the back to back promissory notes totaling the same amount

10 TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE UNRELATED PARTIES

The aging of outstanding trade accounts receivable balances as at 31 December 2008 and 2007 are as follows

Unit Thousand Baht

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

Outstanding Ages 2008 2007 2008 2007

Less than months 6011096 3956929 3168890 2605364

months 952273 328676 201971 169272

12 months 357759 527279 10966 66467

More than 12 months 1706492 1673062 641964 613532

Total 9027620 6485946 4023791 3454635

Less Allowance for doubtful accounts 542901 602950 486946 534520

Net 8484719 5882996 3536845 2920115

The Company has set up full allowance for doubtful accounts for the major private accounts receivable that

have been overdued for more than 12 months and at 50 percent for those accounts overdued for more than

months Trade accounts receivable as at 31 December 2008 and 2007 include variation claims of Baht 302.61

million and Baht 359.28 million respectively recognized in the earlier
years

which has been disputed by the

customer Of these claims the arbitrator had issued verdict in favour of the subsidiary company of Baht 117.22

million and Baht 139.17 million respectively However the total amount has still been disputed by the customer
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Trade accounts receivable of such subsidiary company and joint venture as at 31 December 2008 and 2007 also

include Baht 244.87 million and Baht 369.93 million respectively
billed for interim work done which have not

been certified by customers beyond normal periods
of certification Considering the nature of the subsidiary

company and joint ventures businesses the management is unable to determine the age of such bills

Management however believe that such receivable can be collected in full and therefore has not set up any

allowance for possible losses

11 TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE RELATED PARTIES

The outstanding balances as at 31 December 2008 and 2007 are as follows

Total

Less Allowance for doubtful accounts

Net

219808

67892

559

6799

1084489

4972

36

368407

31534

28713

7507

45435

3039

7105

44026

2141

14877

12616

8205

24809

2853

37085

21073

2043980

1023056

1020924

80979

292106

188

7174

728569

29927

228

270442

32589

41353

1177

5305

25837

14912

4714

27926

10605

10007

9509

8205

3309

1680

3988

1610729

54651

1556078
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Unit Thousand Baht

SEPARATE F/S

2008 2007

Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures

eliminated from consolidated financial statements

ITO Joint Venture

JOT Joint Venture

Asian Steel Products Co Ltd

Thai Pride Cement Co Ltd

lTD NCC Joint Venture NT-2

lTD VIS Joint Venture

lTD NCC Joint Venture

PT Thailindo Bara Pratama

Italian Thai International Co Ltd

IN Joint Venture

ITD-NSC Joint
Venture

Italthai Marine Co Ltd

Bhaka Bhumi Development Co Ltd

IDS Joint Venture

Siam Concrete and Brick Products Co Ltd

ITD-Nawarat L.L.C

Aquathai Co Ltd

Nha Pralan Crushing Plant Co Ltd

Italthai Trevi Co Ltd

Italian-Thai Land Co Ltd

Italian-Thai Power Co Ltd

Saraburi Construction Technology Co Ltd

lTD-lTD CEM JV

Others

CONSOLIDATED F/S

2008 2007



Unit Thousand Baht

SEPARATE F/S

2007 2008 2007

CONSOLIDATED F/S

2008

Associated companies

MCRP Construction Corporation Philippines 687707 689301 635836 635836

Sino Lao Aluminum Corporation Limited 16839 12487 16839 12487

Bangkok Steel Wire Co Ltd 395 417 395 417

Others 18754 4300 17156 4300

Total 723695 706505 670226 653040

Less Allowance for doubtful accounts 687707 687707 635836 635836

Net 35988 18798 34390 17204

Related companies

elated by way of common directors

Nam Thuen Power Co Ltd 167962 397204

Italthai Engineering Co Ltd 78375 86963 78340 86927

Siam Steel Syndicate Plc 2207 11552 2166 10371

Pladaeng Co Ltd 51677 51677

Italthai Industrial Co Ltd 15117 45673 13829 45673

Ao Siam Marine Co Ltd 125681 101084 125681 101084

Amari Co Ltd 370 23202 370 23202

Nawarat Patanakarn Plc 806 228 806 228

Nishimatsu Construction Co Ltd 131 5272

Ao Po Grand Marina Co Ltd 31732 10243 31732 10243

Baan Rimnam Chaopraya Co Ltd 460 460

Asia Pacific Potash Corporation Limited 22487 21658 22487 21658

Toyo-Thai Corporation Ltd 87609 30781 87609 30781

Ao Po Pattana Co Ltd 18566 18566

Thai Rent All Co Ltd 736 8639 336 8279

Suvarnnabhumi Entertainment Co Ltd 57802 57802

Saraburi Coal Co Ltd 123 123

Others 19507 10870 16027 10813

Total 611105 823612 437768 419502

Less Allowance for doubtful accounts 101650 110822 101650 110822

Net 509455 712790 336118 308680
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Unit Thousand Baht

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

2008 2007 2008 2007

Outstanding balances and portion of other

participants of joint ventures

ITO joint Venture 131885 48588

lOT Joint Venture 40735 175264

lTD NCC Joint Venture 18 112

lTD NCC Joint Venture NT-2 374501 291428

IN joint Venture 14069 20263

ITD_VISJoint Venture 1740 10475

ITD-Nawarat LL.C 17611 11170

Others 3004 582

Total 583563 557882

Trade accounts receivable related parties

Net 1129006 1289470 1391432 1881962

The aging of outstanding balances of trade accounts receivable related parties as at 31 December 2008 and

2007 are as follows

Unit Thousand Baht

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

Outstanding Ages 2008 2007 2008 2007

Less than months 522951 958758 607427 1121022

months 132654 82706 134134 151387

12 months 236889 110185 322255 252776

More than 12 months 1025869 936350 2088158 1158086

Total 1918363 2087999 3151974 2683271

Less Allowance for doubtful accounts 789357 798529 1760542 801309

Net 1129006 1289470 1391432 1881962

The Company has set up allowances for doubtful accounts at the full amount of the major accounts receivable

that have been overdued for more than 12 months by evaluating risk factor for each receivable

During the year 2008 the Company has made provision for loss on non collection of trade receivable from

related parties
in the

separate
fmancial statements totalling Baht 980.28 million since these related parties have

loss from their operation and may not be able to repay
their debts
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12 SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES TO RELATED PARTIES

The outstanding balances as at 31 December 2008 and 2007 are as follows

Unit Thousand Baht

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

2008 2007 2008 2007

Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures

eliminated from consolidated financial statements

lTD EGC Joint Venture 1070494 912296

Bhaka Bhumi Development Co Ltd 368330 208246

Siam Concrete and Brick Products Co Ltd 34569 34569

PT Thailindo Bara Pratama 97406 46487

lTD Cementation India Limited 17342 111685

lTD NSC Joint Venture 41500

lTD NCC Joint Venture 811 26151

Shimizu lTD Joint Venture 34755

lTD Cemindia joint Venture 126377 126377

ITD-Nawarat L.L.C 234435 186254

lTD ITDCEMJV 5267 5408

Others 73 73

Total 1955104 1733801

Less Allowance for doubtful accounts 515477 184155

Net 1439627 1549646

Associated companies

Italian-Thai Gypsum Co Ltd 4600 4600 4600 4600

Sino Lao Aluminum Corporation Limited 1248 6594 1248 6594

Total 5848 11194 5848 11194

Less Allowance for doubtful accounts 4600 4600 4600 4600

Net 1248 6594 1248 6594

Related company

elated by way of common directors

Obayashi Corporation 1308

Total 1308
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Unit Thousand Baht

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

2008 2007 2008 2007

Outstanding balances and portion
of other

participants of joint ventures

lTD Nawarat LL.C 93774

lTD NCC Joint Venture 398

Total 94172

Short term loans and advances to

Related parties net 96728 6594 1440875 1556240

Significant movements in the short-term loans and advances to related
parties

for the
years

ended 31 December

2008 are as follows

Unit Thousand Baht

During the period

2007 Increase Decrease 2008

Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures

lTD EGC Joint Venture 912296 158198 1070494

Bhaka Bhumi Development Co Ltd 208246 223884 63800 368330

Siam Concrete and Brick Products Co Ltd 34569 34569

PT Thailindo Bara Pratama 46487 50919 97406

lTD Cementation India Limited 111685 94343 17342

lTD NSC Joint Venture 41500 41500

lTD NCC Joint Venture 26151 25340 811

Shimizu lTD Joint Venture 34755 34755

lTD Cemindia joint Venture 126377 126377

ITD-NAWARAT L.L.C 186254 48293 112 234435

lTD ITDCEMJV 5408 34 175 5267

Other 73 73

Total 1733801 481328 260025 1955104

Associated companies

Italian-Thai Gypsum Co Ltd 4600 4600

Sino Lao Aluminum Corporation Limited 6594 1229 6575 1248

Total 11194 1229 6575 5848

Total 1744995 482557 266600 1960952
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During the
year 2008 the Company has made provision for loss on non collection of short-term loan and

advance from related
parties

in the
separate

financial statements totaling amount 234.44 million in consideration

that such parties have loss from its operation and may not be able to repay their debts

13 INVENTORIES

Unit Thousand Baht

CONSOLIDATED SEPARATE F/S

2008 2007 2008 2007

Construction in
progress 333040 269616 16259 5541

Materials 3931852 3075367 1491821 1348472

Total 4264892 3344983 1508080 1354013

Less Provision for inventory obsolescence 10090 12769

Inventories net 4254802 3332214 1508080 1354013

During the year the movements in allowance for slow moving and obsolete inventories are as follows

Unit Thousand Baht

Balance as at January 2008 12769

Add Additional allowance during the year 4518

Less Reversal of allowance for obsolete inventories 7197

Balance as at 31 December 2008 10090

14 INVESTMENTS IN RELATED PARTIES

14.1 Investments in subsidiaries associated companies and joint ventures

Unit Thousand Baht

Percentage SEPARATE F/S

Paid-up of shareholding Cost

Nature of business
Capital

2008 2007 2008 2007

Percent Percent

Investments in subsidiaries

Italian-Thai International Co Ltd Holding company and
ship

charter hire 400000 99.99 99.99 400000 400000

Less Allowance for impairment 400000 400000

Net

Bhaka Bhumi Development Co Ltd Construction and real estate 5075 99.99 99.99 5075 5075

Thai Pride Cement Co Ltd Manufacture and distribution of cement 1300000 99.99 99.99 1585000 1585000

Sin Rae Muang Thai Co Ltd Mining business 3500000 99.99 99.99 3499999 3472940

Nba Pralan Crushing Plant Co Ltd Rock quarrying processing and distribution 1000 99.91 99.91 999 999

Less Allowance for impairment 999 999

Net

Siam Concrete and Brick Products Manufacture and distribution of concrete

Co Ltd products and real estate 84000 99.70 99.70 82296 82296

Italthai Marine Ltd Production and sale of vessels and equipment 460000 86.96 86.96 80000 80000
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Unit Thousand Baht

Percentage SEPARATE F/S

Paid-up of shareholding Cost

Nature of business capital 2008 2007 2008 2007

Percent Percent

Itakhai Trevi Co Ltd Foundation and piling work services 55000 80.45 80.45 55689 55689

Asian Steel Product Co Ltd Manufacture and distnbution of steel pipes for

civil construction 20000 69.90 69.90 7004 7004

Thai Maruken Co Ltd Lease and sale of sheet piles and beams 20000 50.96 50.96 10196 10196

Italian-Thai Land Co Ltd Not yet operational 10000 99.99 99.99 50 50

Less Allowance for impairment 50 50

Net

Palang Thai Kaowna Co Ltd Not yet operational 1000 99.94 61.48 650 265

Less Allowance for impairment 650 265

Net

Khunka Palang Thai Co Ltd Not
yet operational 1000 61.48 61.48 265 265

Less Allowance for impairment 265 265

Net

Palit Palang Ngan Co Ltd Not yet operational 1000 74.93 74.93 50 50

Less Allowance for impairment 50 50

Net

Italian Thai Power Co Ltd Production and distribution of electricity 100000 99.99 99.99 100000 25000

Saraburi Construction Technology Manufacture distribution and installation of

Co Ltd concrete sheet 250 99.93 99.93 250 250

Asia
Logistics Development Co Ltd Not

yet operational 1000 99.93 999

Asia Industrial and Port Corporation Not
yet operational 1000 99.93

Co Ltd

Overseas companies

Myanmar lTD Co Ltd Service agent for Myanmar companies 1483 99.99 99.99 1483 1483

Thousand Baht

Less Allowance for impairment 1483 1483

Net

PT Thailindo Bara Pratama Coal digestion
services 25250 99.99 99.99 108071 108071

Million IDR

lTD Cementation India Ltd Construction services in India 115

Million INR 69.57 69.57 2143951 2143951

Total Investments in subsidiaries net 7679529 7575472

Investment in joint venture

ITD-Nawarat L.L.C Construction services in United Arab Emirates 300000 60.00 60.00 977 977

UAE

Total Investment in
joint venture 977 977
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Unit Thousand Baht

Percentage CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

Paid-up of shareholding Equity Cost

Nature of business Capital
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Percent Percent

Investments in associated companies

Praram Square Hotel Co Ltd Hotel Business 100000 50.00 50.00 50000 50000

Less Allowance for impairment 50000 50000

Net

Italian-Thai Gypsum Co Ltd Construction in Saudi Arabia 10500 50.00 50.00 5250 5250 5250 5250

Less Allowance for impairment 5250 5250 5250 5250

Net

ATO-Asia Turnouts Co Ltd Production and chstnbution

of turnouts for railway

projects 5000 49.00 49.00 16955 13664 2450 2450

Siam Pacific 1-biding Co Ltd Holding company 58625 46.69 46.69 27453 27627 27373 27373

Chantaburi Farm Co Ltd Real estate development 100000 35.72 14729 21429

Asia Steel Corporation Manufacture import and

export of steel in
Philippines 20000 30.00 30.00 12301 12301 7800 7800

Less Allowance for impairment 12301 12301 7800 7800

Net

Bangkok Steel Wire Co Ltd Production and distribution

of P.C wire 313000 19.98 19.98 97847 92696 71603 71603

Praram Square Co Ltd Shopping center development 750000 20.00 20.00 200000 150000 200000 150000

Less Allowance for impairment 200000 150000 200000 150000

Net

Thai Contractors Assets Co Ltd Real estate development 375000 15.00 15.00 53896 37373 56250 37500

Overseas companies

Anarnarine Construction Construction contractor in 65000 25.00 25.00 198 198 198 198

SND BHD Malaysia RM

Less Allowance for impairment 198 198 198 198

Net

MCRP Construction Corporation Construction contractor in 25 24.00 24.00 12000 12000 12000 12000

Philippines Philippines Million Peso

Less Allowance for impairment 12000 12000 12000 12000

Net

MCRP Holding Corporation Holding company in 24.00 24.00 3000 3000 3000 3000

Philippines Philippines
Million Peso

Less Allowance for impairment 3000 3000 3000 3000

Net

Sino Lao Aluminum Bauxite mine business 34.00 33.00 171623 61210 174462 67961

Corporation Limited Milhon USD

Total Investments in associated companies net 367774 247299 332138 228316

Total Investments in subsidiary associated companies

and
joint ventures net 367774 247299 8012644 7804765
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Unit Thousand Baht

Percentage CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

Paid-up of shareholding Equity Cost

Nature of business Capital 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Percent Percent

Investments in associated

companies held by

Subsidiaries

Naturewsy Resources Co Ltd Holding company 40 30.00 30.00 296700 296700

Million USD

Less Allowance for impairment 296700 296700

Net

Siam Pacific Holding Co Ltd Holding company 58625 4.30 4.30 2525 2525

Allied Enterprise Co Ltd Holding company 1000 30.00 300

Total 2825 2525

Total Investments net
370599 249824

The Company and its subsidiaries equity interest in the above associated companies are mostly determined

based on the financial statements compiled by the management of those companies and not yet audited by

those companies auditors However the Companys management believes that there are no significant

adjustments to be made to the consolidated financial statements

The Company regularly assesses the values of investments in each subsidiary/associated company and joint

venture The allowance for impairment is promptly taken up when there is reliable indication that the decline

in value is quite certain

The significant financial information of the associates in the
aggregate amounts are summariaed as follows

Unit Thousand Baht

For the
years

ended 31 December

Assets

Liabilities

Revenues

Net income

2008 2007

2886363

1514031

1988042

20848

1895781

868870

1584189

55588
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14.2 Other long term investments

Unit Thousand Baht

Percentage of CONSOLIDATED F/s SEPARATE F/S

shareholding Cost Cost

Nature of business 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Percent Percent

Investments in other companies

Non-listed companies

Toyo-Thai Corporation Ltd Construction contractor 16.25 16.25 52000 52000 52000 52000

Nam Theun Power Co Ltd Hydroelectric power plant
15.00 15.00 975117 446331 975117 446331

M-Home SPY Co Ltd Real estate development 11.54 11.54 12 12 12 12

Less Allowance for impairment 12 12 12 12

Net

Siam Steel Syndicate Plc Manufacture and

distribution for

construction 5.45 5.45 55885 55885 55885 55885

Siam Fiber Optics Co Ltd Manufacture and

distribution of optic

fibers 10.00 10.00 24000 24000 24000 24000

Medical Device Manufacturer Manufacture and

crhailand Limited distribution of medical

products 6.95 6.95 50069 50069 50069 50069

Less Allowance for impairment 50069 50069 50069 50069

Net

Sosuco Granite Co Ltd Rock quarrying and

Distribution 5.00 5000 5000

Less Allowance for impairment 5000 5000

Net

Bell Development Co Ltd Formerly Real estate development

Time Regency Co Ltd 3.51 3.51 47313 47313 47313 47313

Less Allowance for impairment 47313 47313 47313 47313

Net

The Bangkok Club Co Ltd Entertainment services 0.44 0.44 3000 3000 3000 3000

Less Allowance for impairment 1985 1985 1985 1985

Net 1015 1015 1015 1015

Imperial Technology Management Initiation and establishment

Service Plc of Asian University of

Science and Technology 19.83 19.83 175000 175000 175000 175000

Less Allowance for impairment 84515 84515 84515 84515

Net 90485 90485 90485 90485

Thai Rent All Co Ltd Construction machinery

Rental 15.00 15.00 13729 13729 7500 7500

Lao Metal Industry Co Ltd Manufacture steel wires and

steel rod 10.00 10000 10000

Advance payment for share capital

The Exchange Square Co Ltd Real estate development 5000 5000

Less Allowance for impairment 5000 5000

Net

Total Investment in other non listed

companies net 1222231 683445 1216002 677216
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Listed companies

Charoong Thai Wire and

Cable Plc

Add Unrealized gain loss from

K.C Property Plc

Add Unrealized loss from changes

In value of rnvestments

Net market value

Nawarat Patanakam Plc

Less Unrealized loss from changes

In value of investments

Net market value

Everland Plc

Add Unrealized gain from changes

In value of investments

Net market value

Total Investment in other listed

companies net

Total Investments in other

companies net

Investments held by subsidiaries

Non-listed companies

Premus Thailand Co Ltd

Island Country

Telecommunication Co Ltd

Less Allowance for impairment

Net

Bell Development Co Ltd

Formerly Time Regency Co Ltd

Less Allowance for impairment

Net

Manufacture and distribution

of enamel coated wire and

cable

Percentage of CONSOLIDATED F/S

Shareholding

2008 2007

Percent Percent

78558

22158

49249

244815

9139

914

8225

100716

Unit Thousand Baht

SEPARATE F/S

Cost

66950

126345

9139

2559

6580

100716

185420

244815

9139

914

8225

100716

34243 78558 34243

66473 22158 66473

111 111 111 111

142 142

Nature of business

changes in value of investments

Net market value

Cyber Bay Corporation

Philippines

Add Unrealized gain loss from

changes in value of investments

Net market value

Cost

2008 2007 2008 2007

12.90 12.90 308715 308715 308715 308715

116752 73672 116752 73672

191963 382387 191963 382387

14.25 14.25 195566 195566 59395 59395

69221

126345

1.04 1.04 9139

2559

6580

4.05 4.05 100716

0.05 0.05

111 253 111 253

347157 702153 347157 702153

1569388 1385598 1563159 1379369

10.00 10.00 1250 1250

4.28 3053

3053

13.00 13.00 135226 135226

135226 135226

Real estate development

Real estate development

Construction services

Real estate development

Real estate management

Telecommunication services

Real estate management
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13481 4578

5697 23756

6947 25006

1576335 1410604 1563159 1379369

During the
year 2008 Nam Theun Power Co Ltd requests for payment of share capital amount USD 15.76

million which equivalent to Baht 528.79 million

The Company has pledged the shares of related company to secure the long term loan with Financial

Institutions of related company

During the year 2008 the Company sold its investments in Chataburi Farm Co Ltd The Exchange Square Co

Ltd and Sosuco Granite Co Ltd with gain of approximately Baht 1.00 million

15 INVESTMENT IN POTASH MINING PROJECT

The Company has investment in potash mine project of Baht 3236 million that the request for mining license

is being processed Currently the government agree
to set up the national committee consist of represent from

Ministry
of Industry Ministry of Interior Ministry of Natural Resources and Environment Ministry

of Public

Health and Ministry of Social Development and Human Security to consider the
process to resolve the potash

mining operations in Udonthani to make the progress and generate
the benefits The Companys management

believes that this project will generate
benefits both for nearby areas and for the country and the project will be

approved by the government and operational as planned since the Ministry of Finance has jointly
invested in

this project
for O% of the total registered capital The management of the Company believes that there will not

be any impairment in the value of investment

Nature of business

Percentage of

Shareholding

2008 2007

Percent Percent

CONSOLIDATED F/S

Cost

Unit Thousand Baht

SEPARATE F/S

Cost

Manufacture and distribution

of enamel coated wire and

cable

2008 2007 2008 2007

Listed companies

Charoong Thai Wire and Cable

Pit

Add Unrealized gain loss from

changes in value of

investments

Net market value

Total

Total Investments in other companies net

0.80 0.80 19178 19178
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16 LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES TO RELATED PARTIES

The outstanding balances as at 31 December 2008 and 2007 are as follows

Associated company

Sino Lao Aluminum Corporation Limited

Allied Enterprise Co Ltd

Total

Unit Thousand Baht

SEPARATE F/S

2008 2007

Subsidiaries and
Joint Ventures

eliminated from consolidated financial statements

ITO Joint Venture

lTD NCC Joint Venture

Italian-Thai International Co Ltd

IDS Joint Venture

IN Joint Venture

The Joint Venture of Italian-Thai Development

Plc together with Alcatel Contracting GmbH

lTD NCC Joint Venture NT-2

Southern Industries 1996 Co Ltd

Nha Pralan Crushing Plant Co Ltd

Italian-Thai Land Co Ltd

Palang
Thai Kaowria Co Ltd

Khunka
Palang

Thai Co Ltd

Palit Palang Ngan Co Ltd

Italian-Thai Power Co Ltd

Sin Rae Muang Thai Co Ltd

Others

Total

Less Allowance for doubtful accounts

Net

CONSOLIDATED F/S

2008 2007

528400

18360

245380

220500

156291

105000

198000

12100

554358

456350

59066

94456

220680

21391

9792

2900124

1668352

1231772

34462 34462

116100

150562 34462

528400

69070

128546

220500

115770

105000

198000

24673

13000

554358

280702

58882

94231

170

9792

2401094

1266584

1134510

34462 34462

34462 34462
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Unit Thousand Baht

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

2008 2007 2008 2007

Related companies

Pladaeng Co Ltd 59075 59075

Central Bay Reclamation and Development Corp 35761 35761

Asia Pacific Potash Corporation Limited 211822 150674

Total 247583 245510 59075

Less Allowance for doubtful accounts 35761 94836 59075

Net 211822 150674

Total long term loans and advances to related

Companies net 362384 185136 1266234 1168972

Significant movements in the
long term loans and advances to related

parties
for the

year
ended 31 December

2008 are as follows

Unit Thousand Baht

During the
year

2007 Increase Decrease 2008

Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures

ITO Joint Venture 528400 528400

ITD-NCC Joint Venture 69070 50710 18360

Italian-Thai International Co Ltd 128546 116834 245380

IDS Joint Venture 220500 220500

IN joint Venture 115770 40521 156291

The Joint Venture of Italian-Thai Development

Plc together with Alcatel Contracting GmbH 105000 105000

lTD NCC Joint Venture NT-2 198000 198000

Southern Industries 1996 Co Ltd 24673 24673

Nha Pralan Crushing Plant Co Ltd 13000 900 12100

Italian-Thai Land Co Ltd 554358 554358

Palang Thai Kaowna Co Ltd 280702 175648 456350

Khunka Palang Thai Co Ltd 58882 184 59066

Palit Palang Ngan Co Ltd 94231 225 94456

Italian-Thai Power Co Ltd 170 264680 44170 220680

Sin Rae MuangThai Co Ltd 21391 21391

Others 9792 9792

Total 2401094 619483 120453 2900124
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Unit Thousand Baht

During the period

2007 Increase Decrease 2008

Associated company

Sino Lao Aluminum Corporation Limited 34462 34462

Related company

Pladaeng Co Ltd 59075 59075

Total 2494631 619483 179528 2934586

During the
year 2008 the Company has made provision for loss on non collection of long-term loan and

advance from related parties in the separate fmancial statements totaling amount 251.63 million in consideration

that such parties have loss from its operation and may not be able to
repay

their debts

17 LOAN AND ADVANCES TO UNRELATED PARTIES

As at 31 December 2008 the Company had
outstanding

balance of loan of USD 11.79 million 2007 USD

13.79 million to the Defense Ministry of the Union of Myanmar to finance the construction of steel mill in

Myanmar The Company will receive the repayment of this loan in the form of steel processing services for

40.00
percent

of such steel mill production capacity but not less than 100000 metric tons
per annum for

period of six
years

after the construction of steel mill is completed Construction of the above plant is now

complete and commences providing services The returns on loan depend upon the extent of the demand for

steel in Myanmar In the past the Company has akeady set up provision for loss in full amount The Company

does not take up interest income in the books but sunmiarizes the amount for inclusion in its income tax

computation

The Company reappraised the value of these loans since the Company had consistently received loan

repayments over the past years The Company therefore reduced the associated allowance for loss to only

USD 11.79 million in accordance with the anticipated actual losses and reversed the excess provision previously

made to the account Reversal of allowance for doubtful accounts As at 31 December 2008 the Company has

fully recovered the advance referred above

Moreover the Company also has advanced cash of Baht 88.61 million for the investment in local company

which is under the negotiation process Currently has been no further development of the
project

because the

Electricity Generating Authority of Thailand is in the process of concluding the development plan for the capacity

of Power plant Such cash advances are to support the acquisition of the concession license from the

Government of Cambodia to develop 3600 mega watt Coal-Fired Power Plant at Koh Kong
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The Government of Cambodia is currently allowing three companies comprising Koh Kong Power Light Co

Ltd Cambodia International Investment Group and Gulf JP to develop the power plant If any one of the three

companies can conclude the negotiation with the Electricity Generating Authority of Thailand and Ministry of

Energy it will be awarded the right to generate the Power Plant For the time being Koh Kong Power Light

Co Ltd is the most prospective winner for this
project

Should the Company not win the selection process the

Company will write off the cash advance referred to above to expense immediately

The subsidiary company entered into agreement with broker in Cambodia to perform contact and negotiate

with Government of Cambodia to obtain the license and permission for the development of 3600 Megawatts

Coal-fired Power Plant in Koh Kong Province The subsidiary company shall pay USD 20.00 million with

installments as described in the agreement and shall provide 5.00 of free shares for this project to broker As

at 31 December 2008 the subsidiary company has paid cash to such broker totaling Baht 252.68 million Such

cash advance is considered as part
of the acquisition costs of concession to operate power plant in Cambodia

18 LAND HELD FOR SALE AND DEVELOPMENT

Land held for sale and development

Less Allowance for impairment

Land held for sale and development net

Unit Thousand Baht

CONSOLIDATED

2008 2007

952721 1013090

394501 453900

558220 559190

Management believes that such assets are salable in the future at prices not less than their net carrying values

19 PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Unit Thousand Baht

Cost

January 2008

Reclassification

Acquisitions/Transfer in

Disposals/Transfer out

Translation adjustment

31 December 2008

CONSOLIDATED

Furniture Site office

fixtures and And

Building Office Temporary

Land and factories Equipment Camps

2445333 5584620 19228406 466957

Machinery

and equipment

under

installation Total

344365 28069681

104567 288121 183554

4084 72921 2556278 109095 1269826 4012204

6432 392140 4884 1143892 1547348

208 7010 502049 10248 22456 541971

2449209 5644099 20785928 560920 735964 30176120
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CONSOLIDATED

Unit Thousand Baht

Furniture Site office Machinery

fixtures and And and equipment

Building Office Temporary

Land and factories Equipment Camps installation Total

SEPARATE F/S

Furniture Site office Machinery

fixtures and and and equipment

Building Office temporary under

Land and factories Equipment camps installation Total

2247918 4056252 13423131 434604 281449 20443354

51000 51000

3749 54438 1319320 109095 956293 2442895

48 215481 366

233613 10425

2251667 4110642 14242357 532908

Accumulated depreciation

January 2008

Accumulated depreciation from reclassification

Depreciation for the year

Depreciation for disposals

Translation adjustment

31 December 2008

Net book value

13435

199676 1031403

48 159669

111626

1975183 9095844

13435

10292626

80985 1312064

42 159759

Accnrnnltpd dpnrrriii-ion

under

lJanuary 2008 2103078 10768444 191633 13063155

Accumulated depreciation from reclassification 13435 13435

Depreciation for the year 272946 1756657 84015 2113618

Depreciation for disposals 5743 254092 4059 263894

Translation adjustment 3299 238904 8067 250270

31 December 2008 2366982 12018670 276957 14662609

Net book value

31 December 2007 2445333 3481542 8459962 275324 344365 15006526

31 December 2008 2449209 3277117 8767258 283963 735964 15513511

Depreciation in 2007 income statement 1922582

Depreciation in 2008 income statement 2113618

Unit Thousand Baht

Cost

January 2008

Reclassification

Acquisitions/Transfer in

Disposals/Transfer out

Translation adjustment

31 December 2008

1062652

15514

159576

1278547

259552

21297150

1775555 8349171 167900

31 December 2007 2247918 2280697 5073960

31 December 2008 2251667 2135459 5146513

119678

11325253

8052

254226

266704

278682

Depreciation in 2007 income statement

Depreciation in 2008 income Statement

281449

159576

10150728

9971897

1225396

1312064
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The Company and its subsidiaries have mortgaged part of the buildings with
aggregate net book values of

approximately Baht 447.89 million and land of Baht 403.55 million 2007 Baht 491.45 million and Baht 143.55

million respectively with bank as collaterals for long term loans from such bank as discussed in Note 25 In

addition the Company and its subsidiaries have mortgaged and
granted power of

attorney to mortgage land with

total value of Baht 4.91 million 2007 Baht 4.91 million
with banks as collaterals for the issuance of letters of

guarantees
for the Company and subsidiaries

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007 certain building machinery and equipment items of the Company

subsidiaries and joint ventures have been
fully depreciated

but are still in use The original cost before deducting

accumulated depreciation of those assets amounted to Baht 5910.98 million and Baht 5570.37 million

respectively SEPARATE F/S Baht 4775.13 million and Baht 4742.00 million respectively

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007 machinery equipment and vehicles with net book value amounting to Baht

1119.50 million and Baht 1436.80 million are acquired under hire purchase contracts as referred to in Note 24

20 GOODWILL

Unit Thousand Baht

Consolidated

2008 2007

Cost 548948 548948

Less Accumulated amorti2ation 48862 48862

Net book value 500086 500086

The management has considered that the above goodwill has no any impairment

21 BANK OVERDRAFTS AND SHORT TERM LOANS FROM FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

The outstanding balances of bank overdrafts and short term loans from financial institutions as at 31

December 2008 and 2007 are as follows

Unit Thousand Baht

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

2008 2007 2008 2007

Bank overdrafts 2274344 67717 62787 20018

Short term loans from financial institutions 5078961 4906571 2979377 3473444

Total 7353305 4974288 3042164 3493462
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These represent loans obtained from local and overseas financial institutions in both Baht
currency

and foreign

currencies as follows

Unit Million

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

2008 2007 2008 2007

Baht 3845 5857 2396 5439

PHP 141 165 141 165

USD

NTD 455 400 455 400

INR 493 773

These loans are subject to interest at domestic market rate for Baht currency loans and at the rates based on

market rate of India Taiwan Philippines
and SIBOR for

foreign currency
loans

As at 31 December 2008 part
of loans amounting to Baht 2073.66 million 2007 Baht 1638.46 million are used

to finance certain specific projects project finance The banks require the Company to assign or transfer the

proceeds
from the

projects
into the Companys accounts with those banks

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007 overdraft and short term credit facilities of the Company have not yet been

drawn down amounting to Baht 1517.12 million and Baht 873.00 million respectively

During the
year 2007 the Company reclassified loan for investment in Potash mining project from short-term

loan to long-term loan see note 25 as the specific condition indicates that the Company will have to settle frill

amount within months from the date the subsidiary obtains mining concession However should the subsidiary

not receive the approval for mining concession within 31 May 2008 the Company will have to repay Baht 165.00

million per quarter from August 2008
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22 TRADE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE RELATED PARTIES

The outstanding balances as at 31 December 2008 and 2007 are as follows

Unit Thousand Baht

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

2008 2007 2008 2007

Subsidiaries and
Joint

Ventures

eliminated
from consolidated financial statements

IOTJoint Venture 3589 14650

I.C.C.T Joint Venture 140887 140887

IN Joint Venture 5670 28020

Thai Maruken Co Ltd 93690 75364

ITO Joint Venture 10762 5085

Italthai Trevi Co Ltd 57460 119611

Siam Concrete and Brick Products Co Ltd 58721 93340

lTD VIS Joint
Venture 6633 7317

lTD Cementation India Limited 124663 16753

ITD-ITDCEMJV 95894 118164

Asian Steel Product Co Ltd 29713 2221

Thai Pride Cement Co Ltd 2619 78387

Nha Pralan Crushing Plant Co Ltd 1809 997

Aquathai Co Ltd 72224 75232

Italthai Marine Co Ltd 3984 1225

Sarabun Construction Co Ltd 7235

Others 8029 2213

Total 723582 779466

Associated companies

MCRP Construction Corporation Philippines 79995 92099 79995 92099

Bangkok Steel Wire Co Ltd 58896 50301 22352 9103

ATO-Asia Turnouts Ltd 44033 11735 41996 10373

Total 182924 154135 144343 111575
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Related companies

elated by way of common directors

Takenaka Corporation

Obayashi Corporation

Italthai Industrial Co Ltd

Siam Steel Syndicate Plc

Nishimatsu Construction Co Ltd

Italthai Engineering Co Ltd

Charoong Thai Wire Cable Plc

Nawarat Patanakarn Plc

Toyo-Thai Corporation Ltd

Thai Rent All Co Ltd

Amarine Estate Co Ltd

Siam Fiber Optics Co Ltd

Others

Total

Outstanding balances and portion of

other participants in joint ventures

JOT Joint Venture

I.C.C.T Joint Venture

ITO Joint Venture

lTD VIS Joint Venture

IN Joint Venture

Others

Total

Unit Thousand Baht

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

2008 2007 2008 2007

234214 174417

90841 157336

127986 131133 69600 57964

123111 63498 123111 63394

298423 232840

228173 131976 224241 127758

90812 106640 89813 106640

90255 75705 77983 65528

2846 17401 2846 17401

39188 25170 38891 24529

24720 24720

15775 15775

9196 34873 5450 2140

1375540 1150989 672430 465354

2153

105665

6457

2321 2561

2778 13730

618 473

119992 134270

Total 1678456 1439394 1540355 1356395

8790

105665

3051
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23 SHORT TERM LOANS AND .AIVANCES FROM RELATED PARTIES

The outstanding balances as at 31 December 2008 and 2007 are as follows

Unit Thousand Baht

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

2008 2007 2008 2007

Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures

eliminated from consolidated financial statements

lTD Cementation India Limited 967

ITD-ITDCEMJV 1087

Total 2054

Associated company

Thai Contractors Asset Co Ltd 9964

Total 9964

Related companies

Nam Theun Power Co Ltd 54855 208674

Obayashi Corporation 221142

Nawarat Patanakarn Plc 68138

Saraburi Coal Co Ltd 20000

Others 673 13

Total 123666 449829

Short term loans and advances from related

parties
133630 449829 2054

Significant movements in the short term loans and advances from related parties for the year ended 31

December 2008 are as follows

Unit Thousand Baht

During the
year

2007 Increase Decrease 2008

Associated company

Thai Contractors Asset Co Ltd 9964 9964

Total 9964 9964
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Unit Thousand Baht

During the year

2007 Increase Decrease 2008

Related companies

Nam Theun Power Co Ltd 208674 153819 54855

Obayashi Corporation 221142 221142

Nawarat Patanakarn Plc 68138 68138

Saraburi Coal Co Ltd 20000 20000

Others 13 660 673

Total 449829 68798 394961 123666

Net 449829 78762 394961 133630

24 HIRE PURCHASES PAYABLE

Unit Thousand Baht

CONSOLIDATED SEPARATE F/S

2008 2007 2008 2007

Hire purchases payable less than year 504285 437264 382839 411914

Hire purchases payable period 2-5 years 671843 572831 261454 542508

Total 1176128 1010095 644293 954422

Less deferred interest 181044 127171 83255 120635

Less Current portion of hire purchase 421629 385188 337195 363526

Net 573455 497736 223843 470261

The above hire purchases payable are for machinery equipment and vehicles leases with scheduled repayment

terms of
years

25 LONG TERM LOANS

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007 the Company and its subsidiaries have outstanding long term loans as

follows

Unit Thousand Baht

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

2008 2007 2008 2007

Long term loans 6983073 7224781 5382398 5421806

Less Current portion 2282580 1689872 1546760 1149269

Net 4700493 5534909 3835638 4272537
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Movements in the long term loans during the year ended 31 December 2008 are summarized below

Unit Thousand Baht

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

Balance as at January 2008 7224781 5421806

Add Additional borrowings 2428316 2060257

Less Repayment 2604347 2102307

Less Translation adjustment 65677 2642

Balance as at 31 December 2008 6983073 5382398

The Company has loan agreement with local commercial bank for Baht 3299.00 million included in the above

beginning balance for investment in potash mine project The loan is collateralized by the pledge of share

certificates of the group of related companies The Company will have to settle full amount within months

from the date the subsidiary obtains mining concession However should the subsidiary not receive the approval

for mining concession within 31 May 2008 the Company will have to repay the loan by installments at Baht

165.00 million per quarter starting August 2008 During the year the Company has repaid Baht 330.00 million

for this loan

During the
year 2008 the Company entered into agreement with commercial bank for refmance debt of Baht

914.41 million from EXIM Bank which bears interest at the rate of THFIX 3.25%
per annum During the

year
the Company has repaid Baht 114.30 million for this loan

During the
year 2008 the Company entered into loan agreement with foreign bank for purchase of

machineries amounting to EUR 14.10 million for which EUR 12.51 million or equivalent to Baht 620.93 million

has been drawndown This loan bears interest
per annum at EURIBOR

During the
year 2008 the Company entered into loan agreement with local commercial bank for the hedged

line of Khongjeam dam project development amounting to Baht 200.00 million for which Baht 150.00 million

has been drawndown This loan bears interest
per annum at MLR

Moreover during the year the Company entered into loan agreement with local commercial bank for

development of 3600 Megawatts Coal-fired Power Plant in Koh Kong Province amounting to Baht 680.00

million for which Baht 227.56 million has been drawndown This loan bears interest at the rate of MLR
per

annum

The Company and subsidiaries have registered
the mortgages of

part
of their land and construction thereon with

net carrying value as at 31 December 2008 of Baht 862.39 million 2007 Baht 713.00 million and the deeds of

hypothecation of certain machinery located overseas as collaterals for loans

49



The loans of the Company and its subsidiaries bear interest at the rate of minimum loan rate MLR

In addition the loan agreement contains covenants relating to various matters such as the payment of dividend

and limitations on the provision of loans

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007 the long-term credit facilities of the Company have not yet been drawndown

amounting to Baht 904.75 million and Baht 389.00 million respectively

26 DEBENTURES NET

Unit Thousand Baht

CONSOLIDATED AND

SEPARATE F/S

Debenture Life Date of issue Maturity date Interest rate 2008 2007

p.a

years
20 September 2006 20 September 2009 7.00 704565 704565

years
23 September 2008 23 September 2010 6.50 1992787 1055627

Total 2697352 1760192

Less Current portion of debentures 705837 1055627

Debentures net of current portion 1991515 704565

On 23 September 2008 the Company issued subordinate unsecured debentures with principal amount of Baht

2000 million which are issued to specific person with two-year tenure and with face value of Baht 1000 These

bear interest rate at 6.50 percent per annum which is payable quarterly The debentures will be redeemed on 23

September 2010 The Company will use the proceeds from this issuance to repay
debts and/or use for working

capital in business expansion

In addition the debentures were issued with covenants relating to various matters such as the decrease in share

capital the merger the payment of dividend and limitations on the provision of loans

The movement of debentures during the
year

ended 31 December 2008 in the consolidated and separate

financial statements is as follows

Thousand Baht

Beginning balance 1760192

Additions 2000000

Repayment 1057100

Costs of issuing debentures 9816

Amortization of costs of issuing debentures 4076

Current portion 705837

Ending balance 1991515
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27 CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES NET

At Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders No 1/2008 held on 14 January 2008 the shareholders

approved the issuance of convertible debentures of the Company not more than USD 200000000 or an

equivalent amount in any other currency with maturity not exceeding years from the date of issuance unit

of convertible debenture can be converted to ordinary shares based on the par value of debenture divided by the

convertible price of debenture The conversion price shall be considered by Board of Directors or any persons

assigned by Directors However the conversion price should not be less than the market price based on the

average closing price
of the Companys shares in Stock Exchange of Thailand for 15

days
before the date of

conducting of the bookbuilt for the convertible debentures The shareholders approved an increase of the

Companys registered capital by Baht 728000000 from the existing registered capital of Baht 4193678180 to

Baht 4921678180 by issuing 728000000 ordinary shares at the
par

value of Baht
per

share to reserve for the

conversion of the convertible debentures

On 10 June 2008 the Company issued unsecured convertible debentures of USD 150 million which were

offered to foreign investors but not be offered or sold within the United States or to US person and juristic

person in relation to Regulation The convertible debentures were registered as listed securities on the

Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited under the Securities Act of Singapore

The convertible debentures are issued at par
with face value of USD 100000 per

debenture Interest is payable

semi-annually in arrears at an annual interest rate of 4.5% Each debenture is convertible at any time up to

maturity at an initial conversion ratio at 310621.63 shares per debenture fixed exchange rate of 32.04 Baht

USD and initial conversion price of 10.3148 Baht Debentureholders have the right to convert debentures

starting from 21 July 2008 but not less than seven business days prior to the maturity date However the

Company has cash settlement option in lieu of delivering ordinary shares to the debentureholders

The Company presented part
of accrued interest for convertible bond which paid the debentureholders when

they exercise the right to convert to common shares separately in the balance sheets

The nominal value of the convertible debentures will be redeemed as follows

Redemption amount

1st Redemption 10 December 2008 USD 101750.00

2nd Redemption 10 June 2009 USD 103570.00

3rd Redemption 10 December 2009 USD 105462.80

4th Redemption 10 June 2010 USD 107431.31

5th Redemption 10 December 2010 USD 109478.56

6th Redemption 10 June 2011 USD 111607.71

7th Redemption 10 December 2011 USD 113822.02

8th Redemption 10 June 2012 USD 116124.90

9th Redemption 10 December 2012 USD 118519.89

10th Redemption 10 June 2013 USD 121010.69
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At any time after 10 June 2010 but not less than seven business days prior to the maturity date the Company

has an option to early convert or redeem all of the convertible debentures

Initial convertible debentures comprise the following

Unit Thousand Baht

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

2008 2008

Convertible debentures 4942401

Less Issuing convertible debentures costs 112170

Convertible debentures net 4830231

The movement of convertible bonds during the year ended 31 December 2008 in the consolidated and

separate
financial statements is as follows

Thousand Baht

Beginning balance

Additions 4897925

Cost of issuing convertible debentures 122257

Amortization of costs of issuing convertible debentures 10087

Unrealised losses on exchange rates 44476

Ending balance 4830231

In case debentureholders will not convert and hold the debentures to maturity interest expense on the

convertible debentures is calculated using the effective interest method by applying the effective interest rate of

8.52%
per annum inclusive of the costs of issuing convertible debentures and yield to maturity

No potential dilution in
earnings per

share arose from the convertible debentures because the
average

share

price during this year was lower than the exercise price

On 11 June 2008 the Company and its subsidiaries entered into various hedge agreements to hedge foreign

currency
and interest rate risks of which the details are as follows

The Company entered into cross currency swap and interest rate swap agreements with fmancial

institution to make cross currency swap for the Companys convertible debentures for USD 50.00 million

for Baht 1634.00 million and to swap interest rate at 4.50 percent per annum on USD for 5.77 percent

per annum on Baht The term of the agreement is for three years
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The Company entered into call spread and coupon swap agreement with financial institution to

exchange the Companys convertible debentures for USD 50.00 million at Baht 32.60
per

USD with

condition to exchange the USD at market rate if the exchange rate is more than Baht 35.60 per USD

and to obtain compensation of Baht 3.00
per USD and to swap interest rate at 4.50 percent per annum

on USD for MonthFIX plus 2.45
percent per annum on Baht The term of the agreement is for three

years

The Company entered into foreign currency
forward agreement with financial institution for the

Companys convertible debentures for USD 50.00 million at 33.70 Baht
per

USD with condition to

take the foreign currency option if the exchange rate reaches Baht 35.00
per

USD The Company has

paid premiumfor this contract of USD 1.39 million and will amortize this over the agreement period The

term of the agreement is for three
years

The Company presented part of accrued interest for convertible bond which
paid

the debentureholders when

they exercise the right to convert to common shares separately

28 ALLOWANCE FOR LOSS ON CONSTRUCTION PROJECT

During the year the Company assessed and revised its projections for the delay in the
project

National Highway

Route NH-31C in India and the
project Nankang Station Underground Civil and EM Construction rot CL 305

in Taiwan This caused
significant

increase in cost of construction The Company has recognized provision for

loss on the construction
project amounting to Baht 469.69 million in the income statement As at 31 December

2008 allowance for losses on construction projects is outstanding of Baht 628.18 million in the balance sheet

The Company believes that the delay which resulted in the loss is not the fault of the Company and is currently

negotiating with the contractor Since there is uncertainly as to whether the cost will be recoverable the

Company has not recognized revenue on such project

29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year the Company and its subsidiaries had significant
business transactions with related parties

which have been concluded on commercial terms and bases
agreed upon in the ordinary course of businesses

between the Company and those companies as follow
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Transfer Dricin Dolicv

Turn-key construction service income

Construction service income not including the procurements of materials

Land rental income

Sales of equipment

Sales of investment

Purchases of construction materials

Turn-key construction
expenses

Hire of construction services not including procurements of materials

Purchases of investment

Interest on loans

Transactions with subsidiaries and joint ventures

eliminated from consolidated financial statements

Construction services and other income

Sales of equipment

Purchases of construction materials and services

Purchases of equipment

Transactions with associated companies

Construction services and other income

Purchases of construction materials and services

Purchases of equipment

Transactions with related companies

Construction services and other income

Land rental income

Purchases of construction materials and services

Purchases of equipment

Furthermore the Company also has significant transactions with

advances

its related parties in
respect

of loans and

The outstanding balances of the above transactions are presented as separate items in the balance sheet

Cost plus margin

Cost or cost plus margin

Mutually agreed

Cost or mutually agreed

Market price

Approximate market price

Cost
plus margin

Cost

Approximate net book value

Mutually agreed rate

Unit Million Baht

SEPARATE F/S

Below is summary of significant related
party

transactions
during the year

CONSOLIDATED

For the
years ended 31 December

2008 2007 2008 2007

1384 1539

39 211

892 1196

52 41

174 18 172 16

217 212 121 114

16

3370 4129 876 1027

33 33

1009 1462 702 866

95 173 91 171
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Loans from directors

As at 31 December 2008 subsidiary company and indirect subsidiary company have loans from directors

amounting to Baht 159.23 million 2007 Baht 179.40 million which amount of Baht 11.51 million bears interest

at the rate of MLR
per annum

30 INCOME TAX

The Company has operation losses there is not subject to obligation to pay income tax for the
year

ended 31

December 2008

Income tax for the branch in Taiwan has been calculated based on 25.00
percent

of taxable income

Income tax for the
years

ended 31 December 2008 of subsidiaries and joint ventures in Thailand have been

calculated at the rate of 3O.OO% on the net income after adding back certain
expenses

which are not allowable

for tax computation purposes and the deduction of tax losses brought forward from previous years

Income tax presented in the consolidated financial statements is an income tax of the overseas branches and

subsidiaries that have been calculated in accordance with accounting standard and/or tax law of those countries

31 DIVIDEND PAYMENT

At the Ordinary General Shareholder Meeting 1/2551 held on 25 April 2008 the shareholders approve the

appropriation of dividends from the
operations

for the
year 2007 of Baht 0.07 per share for 4193678180

ordinary
shares

totaling
Baht 293.19 million

32 PROVIDENT FUND

The Company subsidiaries joint ventures and its employees have jointly established provident fund in

accordance with the Provident Fund Act B.E 2530 Both employees and the Company contributed to the fund

monthly at the rate of 2.00 5.00 percent of basic salary The fund which is managed by Finansa Asset

Management Limited will be paid to employees upon termination in accordance with the fund rules During the

years 2008 and 2007 the Company and its subsidiaries contributed Baht 35.79 million and Baht 29.00 million

respectively to the fund SEPARATE F/S Baht 30.16 million and Baht 26.90 million respectively

33 COST OF CONSTRUCTION WORK

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007 construction costs of the Company its subsidiaries and its proportionate

interests in
joint ventures after adjustment to reflect gains or losses recognized for current construction projects

amounted to Baht 132337.04 million and Baht 141990.61 million respectively SEPARATE F/S Baht

88035.56 million and Baht 103784.60 million respectively
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34 STATUTORY RESERVE

Pursuant to Section 116 of the Public Limited Company Act B.E 2535 the Company is required to set aside as

statutory reserve at least 5.00% of its net income after
deducting accumulated deficit brought forward if any

until the reserve reaches lO.OO% of the registered capital The statutory reserve is not available for dividend

distributions

During the
year 2007 the Company proposed appropriation for additional statutory reserve from net income of

Baht 37.00 million to bring the reserve to 10.00 percent of the authorized share capital

35 DIRECTORS REMUNERATION

Directors remuneration
represents the benefits paid to the Companys directors in accordance with section 90

of the Public Companies Act exclusive of salaries and related benefits payable to executive directors The

directors remuneration has been approved at the Company Annual General Meeting

36 EXPENSES BY NATURE

Significant expenses by nature are as follows

Unit Thousand Baht

CONSOLIDATED SEPARATE F/S

2008 2007 2008 2007

Salary and wages and other employee benefits 6906488 8757837 5059345 5222915

Depreciation 2113618 1920479 1312064 1225396

Amortisation 53220 112391 39579 33289

Allowance for loss on construction work 308332 12660 469686 12660

Loss from devaluation of investments 23601 385 23601

Rental expenses 1086898 667394 658823 667394

37 GUARANTEES

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007 the Company has outstanding guarantees
of

approximately Baht 28799.47

million and Baht 21701.31 million respectively issued by financial institutions on behalf of the Company its

subsidiaries and its joint ventures in
respect of certain performance bonds required in the normal course of

businesses
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As at 31 December 2008 and 2007 the Company had outstanding guarantees
of approximately Baht 8670.30

million and Baht 8870.00 million respectively issued to financial institutions and its ventures to collateralize

credit facilities granted by those financial institutions and joint venture partners to subsidiaries associated

related companies and joint ventures The Company issued
guarantees

in proportion to its shareholding except

for Italthai Trevi Co Ltd Italthai Marine Co Ltd Aquathai Co Ltd Sarithom Co Ltd Asian Steel Product

Co Ltd and lTD Cementation India Limited for which the Company issued full
guarantees

for the credit

facilities

38 COMMITMENT

38.1 Under the Companys rehabilitation plan executed in 2002 the plan administrator lTD Planner

Company Limited arranged for the establishment of Special Purpose Vehicle SPV under Thai Laws

This SPV was established as private company with registered share capital of Baht 0.10 million

consisting of 19000 ordinary shares of Baht 5.00 each and 1000 preference shares of Baht 5.00 each The

plan administrator novated debt to the SPV through allocation of these ordinary shares to the creditors in

proportion to the amount of debt novated while the preference shares will be allocated to the Companys

directors Those creditors comprise unsecured financial creditors under the master rescheduling

agreement and debts to unsecured debenture holders amounting to Baht 3604.00 million The Company

has transferred its non-core assets to the SPV in exchange for the SPV to assume the debt obligations of

the Company It has to complete the sale of the non-core assets within 30 June 2007 Under the

stipulations of the rehabilitation plan there are no interest charges on the novated debt until 30 June

2007 If all of the non-core assets have not been sold off by 30 June 2007 and not all debts have been

settled the SPV has to pay off all outstanding debt on July 2007 However if all of the non-core assets

have been sold off by 30 June 2007 but not all debts have been settled the SPV will
repay

the

outstanding portion of the novated debt in five equal installments on 30 June and 30 December of each

year from 30 June 2008 to 30 June 2010 with interest on the remaining debt at the rate of
average

interest rate of MLR quoted two business days before the first day of the relevant interest period by Siam

Commercial Bank Plc Bangkok Bank Plc and Krung Thai Bank Plc minus 3%
per annum commencing

July 2007 Interest will be paid on the same dates as principal repayment from 30 June 2008 onwards

Under the facility agreement between the Company and the SPV the Company is obliged to extend loans

to the SPV in amounts equal to the principal and interest which have to be
paid to the creditors in the

manner discussed above As at 31 December 2008 the outstanding balance of loans amounted to Baht

919.23 million

As the Company has obligations to provide loans to the special purpose vehicle discussed above based

on the principals of conservatism Baht 229.57 million by which the transfer price under the rehabilitation

plan exceeds the net book value of the non-core assets which the Company has transferred to the special

purpose vehicle as mention above is not recognized as gain in the income statement but is recorded as

Deferred gain
from transfer of assets to special purpose vehicle in the balance sheet
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38.2 As at 31 December 2008 the Company and joint ventures had the outstanding
commitments with major

subcontractors classified by currencies as follows

Unit Million Baht

Baht
equivalent

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

Currency

Baht 3356 3162

NTD 2540 2540

USD 151

INR 1735 1735

38.3 As at 31 December 2008 the Company its subsidiaries and its joint ventures had the following

outstanding commitments proportionately of the Company in
respect

of purchases of materials

machinery and software and related services

Unit Million Baht

Baht equivalent

CONSOLIDATED F/S SEPARATE F/S

Currency

Baht 145 78

EUR 159 83

USD 100 36

INR 410 10

SEK 64

NOK 10

NTD

38.4 As at 31 December 2008 the Company had outstanding commitment of Baht 18.75 million and USD

48.80 million in
respect

of uncalled portion of investments in two associated companies and two related

companies and uncalled portion of investments in subsidiary company of Baht 0.75 million

39 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the year 1997 the Company and seven other parties were jointly sued for compensation totaling

approximately
Baht 655.00 million On 30 December 2005 the Court of First Instance ordered the

defendant to pay of damages amounting to Baht 440.00 million plus interest at the rate of 7.50
percent per

annum from 11 June 1992 to the payment date On 17 March 2006 the Company submitted an appeal and

petition to stay
execution to the order of the Court Chonburi Province Copies of the appeal and the

petition
have been considered to the plaintiff and the outcome of the case has not yet

been known The

Company believes that there will be no damage from such case The Company therefore has not set up any

provision in its accounts
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On March 2003 court case was brought against subsidiary company claiming for compensation

totaling approximately
Baht 126.00 million for alleged negligence in driving sheet piles on top

of pipelines

belonging to third
party company resulting in damage to its property On 22 September 2006 the Court

of First Instance ordered the subsidiary to pay damages amounting to Baht 92.00 million together with fees

On 20 December 2006 the subsidiary submitted an appeal and petition to stay execution of the order to

the Civil Court Copies of the appeal and the petition have been considered to the plaintiff and the outcome

of the case has not yet
been known However the management of

subsidiary company assessed the

situation and feel that it is
high

chance for the subsidiary to be responsible for such claims for damage

The subsidiary company therefore set up full allowance for damage in its accounts

Since the
year 2000 certain customers of the Company have taken legal actions against the Company

subsidiary company and joint venture for breach of service agreements claiming compensation totaling

approximately Baht 215.00 million 2007 Baht 86.00 million The cases are currently pending for

judgment from the Civil Courts amount of Baht 80.00 million and pending for the adjustment of arbitrator

amount of Baht 135.00 million Management is of the opinion that such lawsuits are normal part of

business and some are brought without proper justification grounds and believes that no material liabilities

will be incurred as result of the lawsuits discussed above Therefore the Company has not set provision

for those in the accounts

40 FINANCIAL INFORMATION BY SEGMENT

The operations of the Company its subsidiaries and its joint ventures for the
years ended 31 December 2008

and 2007 are mainly engaged in
single industry segment turn key construction services and are conducted in

the following geographical segments

Unit Million Baht

Local

2008 2007

Revenues from

construction services 26129 31110

Gross profit loss 1568 2842

Administrative expenses

Reversal of allowance allowance for doubtful accounts

Share of loss from investments accounted for by equity method

Dividend income and shares of profit from the joint ventures

Loss from devaluation of investment

Interest income

Loss on exchange rate

Other income

Allowance for impairment and contingent habihties

Interest and financial expenses

Income tax

Minority interests

Net income loss for the year

CONSOLIDATED F/S

For the
years

ended 31 December 2008 and 2007

Overseas Total Elimination

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

18871 16373 45000 47483 2145 1860

913 399 655 3241

Grand total

2008 2007

42855 45623

655 3241

1773 1410

232 42

74 86

24

133 53

294 165

637 750

28 31

1744 1298

105 163

22 64

2656 1010
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Unit Million Baht

As at and 31 December 2008 and 2007

Local Overseas Total Elimination Grand total

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Property plant
and

equipment net 12295 12422 3219 2569 15514 14991 16 15514 15007

Other assets 36278 34860 15401 13727 51679 48587 9963 10667 41716 37920

Total assets 48573 47282 18620 16296 67193 63578 9963 10651 57230 52927

41 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

41.1 Financial risk management

The Companys financial instrument principally comprise cash and cash at banks pledged deposits at

banks trade accounts receivable loans investments bank overdrafts and short-term loans from financial

institutions loans hire purchase payables debentures and long-term loans The financial risks associated

with these financial instruments and how they are managed are described below

Credit risk

The Company has exposure to credit risk primarily with
respect to trade accounts receivable loans and

other receivables The Company manages the risk by adopting appropriate credit control policies and

procedures and therefore does not expect to incur material financial losses In addition the Company

does not have high concentration of credit risk since it has large customer base The maximum exposure

to credit risk is limited to the
carrying amounts of receivables loans and other receivables as stated in the

balance sheet

Interest rate risk

The Companys exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to its cash at banks bank overdrafts and

short-term loans from financial institutions short-term loans hire purchase payables debentures and

long-term borrowings However since most of the Companys financial assets and liabilities bear floating

interest rates or fixed interest rates which are close to the market rate the interest rate risk is expected to

be minimal

Forei-n currency risk

The Companys exposure to foreign currency
risk arises mainly from trading transactions and borrowings

that are denominated in foreign currencies The Company seeks to reduce this risk by entering into

forward exchange contracts when it considers appropriate Generally the forward contracts mature within

one year
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The balances of financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at 31 December 2008

are summarized below

Financial Financial Average exchange rate

Foreign currency assets liabilities as at 31 December 2008

Million Million Baht per foreign currency unit

USD 22 191 34.9438

JPY 56 619 0.3864

EUR 13 49.2662

VND 499 12707 0.0021

Forward exchange contracts which remain outstanding on 31 December 2008 are summarized below

Currency Balance Million Forward contract exchange rate

JPY buy 127 0.3184

EUR buy 14 44.7610 48.8560

GBPbuy 60.210761.0480

NOK buy 5.7850 5.8485

SEK buy 16 4.9750 5.0245

USD sell 82 31.5322 34.8400

EUR sell 48.3746

Below is the summary of the Groups foreign currency
denominated assets and liabilities as at 31

December 2008 which were unhedged

CONSOLIDATED F/S Net

EUR USD JPY VND

Million Million Million Million

Assets in foreign currency
23 189 499

Trade accounts payable 43 863

Trade accounts payable related parties 801

Hire purchase payables 619

Advances received from customers under

construction contracts 12707

Retentions payable

Loans from financial institutions 13
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SEPARATE F/S Net

EUR USD JPY VND

Million Million Million Million

Assets in foreign currency 22 56 499

Trade accounts payable 40

Trade accounts payable related parties

Hire purchase payables 619

Loans from financial institutions 13

The Company and subsidiaries will earn future revenues in
foreign currencies in an amount of

approximately USD 306.22 million INR 39374.27 million PHP 0.37 million NTD 2023.26 million and

JPY 113.06 million

In addition the Company and subsidiaries have foreign currency exposure risk with
respect to their

investments in subsidiaries joint ventures and associated companies in overseas which are not covered by

the hedges against foreign currency
risk

41.2 Fair values of financial instruments

Since the majority of the Companys financial instruments are short-term in nature or bear
floating

interest rates their fair value is not expected to be materially different from the amounts presented in the

balance sheets

fair value is the amount for which an asset can be exchanged or liability settled between

knowledgeable willing parties in an arms length transaction The fair value is determined by reference to

the market price of the financial instrument or by using an appropriate valuation technique depending on

the nature of the instrument

42 ACQUISITION OF INVESTMENT

On June 2007 the Company invested in ordinary shares of Italian Thai Land Co Ltd Khun Ka Palang Thai Co

Ltd Palit Palang Ngan Co Ltd and Palang Thai Kaowna Co Ltd which were purchased from Special Purpose

Vehicle SPy
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The book value of assets and liabilities acquired at the acquisition date are summarized below

Unit Thousand Baht

Italian Thai Khun Ka Palang Palit Palang Palang Thai Kaowna

Land Co Ltd Thai Co Ltd Ngan Co Ltd Co Ltd Total

Cash and cash equivalents 158 46 41 248

Land 70429 39215 36634 49487 195765

Other current assets 108 50 158

Trade accounts payable 8783 8783

Short term loan from related
parties 329927 456097 92533 120659 999216

Accrued expenses 224461 224461

Other current liabilities 30 30 48 170 278

Book value of net assets 492769 416646 55851 71301 1036567

Portion holding 99.99 61.48 61.48 74.93

Net cash outflow on acquisition

of subsidiaries 50 50 50 50 200

The book value of assets and liabilities approximately their fair value except the fair value of land which is

approximately Baht 317.00 million The Company however has not recognized the difference in land values because

of the fluctuation in current economic condition may have some effect to such land values

43 OTHERS

On 17 January 2007 the National Assets Examination Committee NAEC issued an order appointing an

inspection subcommittee to investigate the procurement of baggage-handling system and the CTX bomb

scanners for Suvarnabhumi Airport Subsequently on 14 February 2007 the Company and joint venture

received the accusation letter from the NAEC to give the full cooperation with the investigation

committee There was an unofficial disclosure from the investigation subcommittee that cracks on the

runways and taxiways at Suvarnabhumi Airport was caused by the higher level of underground water not

caused by the poor performance of the construction

The Companys management believes that the cracks on the runways and
taxiways are not the fault from

the poor performance of the construction undertaken by the Joint Ventures Therefore no provision is

required in the accounts

subsidiary company obtained the notice to change an electric cable in accordance with agreement with

Government Enterprise The Company management does not expect to incur the significant loss

On 23 January 2008 Italian-Thai Power Co Ltd 99.99% subsidiary entered into the MOU with the

Electricity Generating Public Company Limited and Ratchaburi Electricity Generating Holding Public

Company Limited to conduct the study for investment in the 3600 MW Koh Kong Power Project in Koh

Kong Province Cambodia The shareholding structure has been preliminary agreed that the Electricity

Generating Public Company Limited and Ratchaburi Electricity Generating Holding Public Company

Limited will hold 70.00% and Italian-Thai Power Co Ltd will hold 30.00% of this project
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During the year the Company made revision for the accounting estimate for budget cost for significant

project
because this project was completed As result the profit was recognized for the

year
ended 31

December 2008 of approximately
Baht 475.00 million This is significanfly affected the result of its

operations for this year

Most of other income in statements of income are represented by equipment rental land rental

transportation income and reversal of provision which are included in consolidated financial statements of

Baht 433.98 million and separate
financial statements of Baht 281.89 million

44 RECLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Certain amounts in the financial statements issued in the previous year as presented herein for comparative

purpose have been reclassified to conform with the current year classification with no effect on previously

reported net income or shareholders equity

45 APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements were authorized by the Companys authorized director on March 2009
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